Tyren Frazier, Chair
Robert Vilchez, Vice Chair
Dana G. Schrad, Secretary
Eric English

William Johnson

Scott Kizner

Post QOffice Box 1110
Richmond. VA 23218-1110
804.588.3903

Anita James Price
Synethia White

COMMONWEALTH of VIRGINIA

Board of Juvenile Justice

‘sV’A'\lgl ) |\'(‘ o} _JJ[”\”* I '

September 21, 2022
Virginia Public Safety Training Center, Knox Hall

AGENDA

9:30 a.m. Board Meeting

IL.

HI

CALL TO ORDER and INTRODUCTIONS

BOARD ELECTIONS (Page 1)
James Towey, Legislative & Regulatory Affairs Manager, Department of Juvenile Justice

CONSIDERATION OF THE JUNE 29, 2022, MINUTES (Pages 2-13)
PUBLIC COMMENT

DIRECTOR’S CERTIFICATION ACTIONS (Pages 14-39)
Ken Bailey, Certifications Manager, Department of Juvenile Justice

OTHER BUSINESS

Consideration of the Board Bylaws (Pages 40-47)
James Towey, Legislative & Regulatory Affairs Manager, Department of Juvenile Justice

Consideration of Virginia Juvenile Community Crime Control Act (VJCCCA) Plans (Pages 48-61)
Katherine Farmer, VJCCCA Supervisor, Department of Juvenile Justice

Regulatory Update (Pages 62-64)
Ken Davis, Regulatory Affairs Coordinator, Department of Juvenile Justice

Request Approval to Advance the Regulation Governing Juvenile Correctional Centers to the
Final Stage (Pages 65-117)
Kristen Peterson, Regulatory and Policy Coordinator, Department of Juvenile Justice

Request Approval to Advance SB 20 Regulation (6VAC35-200) to the Proposed Stage (Pages 118-159)
Ken Davis, Regulatory Affairs Coordinator, Department of Juvenile Justice



VIL

VIIL

BOARD MEETING AGENDA
September 21, 2022
Page Two

Request Extension of Variance Applicable to Merrimac Juvenile Detention Center (Pages 160-177)
Ken Davis, Regulatory Affairs Coordinator, Department of Juvenile Justice

Request Extension of Variance Applicable to Juvenile Correctional Centers, Security Staff
Supervision of Residents During Transportation (Pages 178-182)
Kristen Peterson, Regulatory and Policy Coordinator, Department of Juvenile Justice

Request Extension of Variance Applicable to Juvenile Correctional Centers, Training for Director
Supervision Staff (Pages 183-186)
Kristen Peterson, Regulatory and Policy Coordinator, Department of Juvenile Justice

Request Amendment to Board Policy 02-002 (Media Relations) (Pages 187-191)
Ken Davis, Regulatory Affairs Coordinator, Department of Juvenile Justice

Request Amendment to Board Policy 02-024 (Collaboration with Colleges and Universities)
(Pages 187-191)

Kristen Peterson, Regulatory and Policy Coordinator, Department of Juvenile Justice

Request Rescission of Board Policy 20-106 (Behavior Management) (Pages 187-191)
Kristen Peterson, Regulatory and Policy Coordinator, Department of Juvenile Justice

DIRECTOR REMARKS and BOARD COMMENTS

SPECIALLY CALLED MEETING: November 9, 2022, 9:30 a.m., Virginia Public Safety Training
Center

ADJOURNMENT



e
s i

COMMONWEAILTH of YVIRGINIA
Board of Juvenile Justice

§ 5.01. Officers Elected from the Board.
The Officers of the Board elected from its membership shall be the Chairperson, Vice- chairperson
and Secretary, who shall each be elected by the Board at its first regular meeting of the fiscal year.
Officers shall serve for a term of one year and shall be eligible for re-election.

§ 5.02. Chairperson.

The Chairperson shall be the presiding officer of the Board at its meetings. Upon request of the
Board, the Chairperson shall act as its spokesperson or representative and shall perform such
additional duties as may be imposed on that position by an Act of the General Assembly or by

direction of the Board. The Chairperson shall be an ex-officio member of all Committees of the
Board.

§ 5.03. Vice-chairperson.
In the absence of the Chairperson at any meeting or in the event of disability or of a vacancy in the
office, all the powers and duties of the Chairperson shall be vested in the Vice-chairperson. The

Vice-chairperson shall also perform such other duties as may be imposed by the Board or the
Chairperson.

§ 5.04. Secretary.

The Secretary shall (1) review and recommend improvements to Board meeting procedures and
other relevant Board business so as to facilitate the administrative efficiency of the Board; (2) ensure
the development of appropriate resolutions, etc., which are needed by the Board from time to time;
(3) serve as the Board’s parliamentarian; (4) work closely with the Department staff who are assigned
to provide administrative assistance to the Board to review and sign minutes and policy documents,
etc.; and (5) to ensure that unique or non-routine materials and equipment are availabie for the Board
to carry out its functions. In the event that both the Chairperson and Vice-chairperson are absent at
any meeting, the Secretary shall preside over the meeting.



Tyren Frazier, Chair
Robert Vilchez, Vice Chair 3 Post Office Box 1110
Dana G. Schrad, Secretary TR Richmond, VA 232181110
Eric English 804 588.3903
William Jahnson
Scott Kizner
Anita James Price
Synethia White

COMMONWEALTH of VIRGINIA
Board of Juvenile Justice

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES

June 29, 2022
Virginia Public Safety Training Center

Board Members Present: Eric English, Tyren Frazier, William (Will) Johnson, Dana Schrad, and Synethia
White

Board Members Absent: Scott Kizner, Anita James Price, and Robert Vilchez

Department of Juvenile Justice (Department) Staff Present: Gabbi Ashby, Ken Bailey, Ken Davis, Jenna
Easton, Cullen Enabnit, Katherine Farmer, Michael Favale, Amy Floriano, Wendy Hoffman, Dale Holden, Joyce

Holmon, Linda McWilliams, Guillermo Novo, Margaret O’'Shea (Office of the Attorney General), Kristen
Peterson, Lara Todd, and James Towey

Guests: Maya Artis {University of Virginia School of Law), Drew Flanagan (University of Virginia School of
Law), and Rhonda Gilmer (City of Richmond Juvenile Services)

CALL TO ORDER AND INTRODUCTIONS

Chairperson Tyren Frazier called the meeting to order at 9:43 a.m. Chairperson Frazier welcomed those
present and asked for introductions.

CONSIDERATION OF THE APRIL 20, 2022, MINUTES

The minutes of the April 20, 2022, Board meeting were provided for approval. On a motion duly made by
Dana Schrad and seconded by Will Johnson that the Board approve the minutes as presented, all Board
members present declared “aye” and the motion carried.

PUBLIC COMMENT
There was no public comment.

DIRECTOR’S CERTIFICATION ACTIONS
Ken Bailey, Certification Manager, Department

Mr. Bailey directed the Board to the packet, which contained the individual audit reports and a summary of
the Director’s certification actions completed June 6, 2022.

Aurora House is a group home serving the areas of Falls Church and Arlington. The facility operates a long-
term program for girls that includes a separate space in the facility for independent living for older girls. The
audit for Aurora House found two areas of noncompliance, both dealing with maintaining proper



documentation. The first deficiency was not documenting when medication was changed or discontinued.
As there were no new cases to review for March’s follow-up visit, and the certification staff could not
determine compliance, a corrective action plan was developed and this satisfied the requirement. The second
deficiency was not documenting behavioral support plans. Aurora House implemented a corrective action

plan, and five cases were reviewed at the status review in March. The facility was found to be in compliance
and was certified to August 23, 2024.

Fairfax Shelter Care is a pre-dispositional emergency shelter placement for youth in crisis located in the
Fairfax Government Complex near the Juvenile Detention Center. Fairfax Shelter Care received 100%
compliance on their audit and was certified to May 9, 2025, with a letter of congratulations,

New River Valley Juvenile Detention Home and Post-dispositional Program serves the area of Christiansburg,
and received their second consecutive 100% compliance audit and were certified to June 11, 2025. New River
Valley is one of the older facilities that have no updated features such as electronic locks, but they do have
an effective program. The facility has a unique feature with a therapy goat program.

Mr. Bailey has shared with the Board previously that there are good audits and some that are challenging,
like the one for Roanoke Valley Juvenile Detention Center (JDC). The audit for this program found two
deficiencies, and the facility was certified to February 11, 2025, with a status report due in December 2022
regarding the repairs to the facility computer system. Roanoke Valley JDC was considered state-of-the-art
when it was built, with surveillance cameras and electronic locking systems; however, over the years the
system has deteriorated. The audit found the system in need of upgrade. The facility operates with keys
controlling the egress from the pods to the residents’ rooms, but the facility was designed for electronic

control from a control room. The facility needs to operate the way it was designed. The facility was cited for
not maintaining the functions of the system.

The current status for Roanoke Valley JDC is not determined. They have received a consultant’s evaluation
of the facility and will move forward with securing bids once the architectural drawings are created. On page
29 of the Board packet is the security assessment done by Mead and Hunt. The system may be hard to fix
due to availability of materials such as electronic chips. The facility’s estimated cost to replace the system is
$435,000, an expense the Roanoke Detention Commission would have to absorb. The facility does have the
support of the Commission. The Certification Unit will follow this situation closely to ensure repairs are made.

The audit for Roanoke Valley JDC also found one minor deficiency in the medication area. Medication records
did not document the medication strength. Certification staff had no cases to review at their follow-up visit
on April 13, but determined they were in compliance with policy.

Board Member Will Johnson remarked that the facility is relying on a key-operated system and asked if the

juvenile detention center was able to staff the facility to ensure security for both residents and staff, i.e. staff-
to-population ratios?

Mr. Bailey answered that the facility has added personnel but found staffing to be a problem during the
pandemic. Roanoke Valley JDC had a serious incident in January which could have been prevented if the
facility had more staff. Staffing is a good remedy to some problems, but the facility is operating on a key

system much like the one in New River Valley. Certification staff recommended repair of the electronic
system.

Board Member Dana Schrad asked how much consideration is given to a facility during an audit regarding

supply and staff shortages. Some of the shortages are out of their control. Is the Certification Unit doing
anything to change the standard?



Mr. Bailey responded that the Certification Unit does take those factors into consideration when audits are
conducted. In this instance, Roanoke Valley IDC was not taking aggressive steps to start the process. The
Department felt they needed to write that assessment and send a copy to the Commission in order for the
facility to realize they needed to be aggressive toward fixing the problem.

Department Director Amy Floriano said that due to the incident in January at Roancke Valley JDC, the area
judges were concerned with the response to the electronic system failure. The judges approached city
management and told them the problem needed to be addressed or the judges would not send youth to the
facility. The safety of the children is the utmost concern and the Department needed to make sure the facility
is operating properly. The Department decided to set a quick date of December for a follow-up visit to stay
on top of the issues and has told the facility that supply chain shortages are out of their control, but that does
not mean the facility cannot try and move forward with fixing the issues.

Board Member Schrad asked if the audit takes into consideration the effort the facility makes to correct
deficiencies. Mr. Bailey responded that he would like to see some effort; however, in this case, the
documentation was not there; if it had been, then he would have taken a different approach.

The Shenandoah Valley Juvenile Center received their second consecutive 100% compliance, and the facility
was certificated until June 9, 2025, with a letter of congratulations. This program is unique as the only juvenile
detention center in the country that houses federal youth from the Office of Refugee Resettlement (ORR).
There had been a number of issues over the past years with lawsuits against the facility for improper care.
The Certification Unit conducted several monitoring visits and found Shenandoah Valley Juvenile Center does
a good job with these young people. The lawsuits have been dismissed.

There have been numerous issues at Chesapeake Juvenile Services over the past 12 months. The original
audit for the facility was in November 2021, and had four areas of noncompliance. A status review was
conducted on February 7, 2022. Certification staff found no documentation for a sanitation inspection, but
the status review found documents to be updated. Evacuation drills were missing on a number of different
shifts, but the status review found drills being conducted on each shift and on each month in December 2021
to present. Residents had complained that blankets were not clean and needed to be washed; at the status
review, all six residents reported the issue corrected. It was also reported that some of the blankets were
torn and needed to be replaced, which has also been completed. Chesapeake Juvenile Services was given
approval to continue their current certification status to October 2022, with review of the implementation
of the corrective action plan. If a deficiency is found during an audit, the certification staff wait several

months to return to ensure the facility has taken corrective action. That is why the reports show current
status.

Before a final report could be presented to the Department Director, several incidents took place at
Chesapeake Juvenile Services in January and February. Residents received injuries due to use of force, and
there were reports of sexual misconduct. At the writing of this report, one of those issues was referred to
law enforcement for prosecution. All staff involved in the serious incident were found to have used Handle
with Care techniques improperly and were very aggressive, an approach that led to concussions. The
certification staff met and decided to take a closer look at the current situation in Chesapeake. A qualified
group of Department staff representing the Certification Unit, Quality Assurance Unit, and the Human Rights
Advocates conducted an onsite assessment and evaluated the general well-being of the residents at
Chesapeake Juvenile Services. After the completion of the assessment, the Department felt that this situation
needed the involvement of the governing body. The Department met with the City of Chesapeake’s Deputy
City Manager, Director of Human Services, and Assistant Director of Human Services, as well as the
administration of the facility. The City administration is concerned with the reputation of the facility and the



care and treatment of youth. The administration was presented with the findings, and they completed a
corrective action plan. At this point, certification staff will review the situation again in October.

Mr. Bailey has talked to the Board previously about audits that give the Department concern, but certification
staff are present in the facility each month looking at physical restraint. Mr. Bailey has two staff considered
experts in the field of Handle with Care. They review video recordings and assess what needs to be corrected.
The City’s Director of Human Services decided to understand the program better and completed training on
Handle with Care to get a better idea of the program, to help remedy some of the problems.

Board Member Schrad noted that there was a lot to unpack from this audit report and asked if any staff were
disciplined or terminated. Mr. Bailey responded that all staff involved in the incidents were terminated.

Board Member Schrad noticed the lack of sufficient mental health services. Board Member Schrad’s
organization recently met with the Secretary of Health and Human Resources on the lack of qualified care

specialists across the state and the difficulty of getting good quality mental health care. Is this problem
apparent in detention centers?

Mr. Bailey responded that it is not seen to a great extent, and facilities seem to have a good connection with
their community services board or other organizations that provide mental health services when needed.

Some facilities have mental health therapists employed, but smaller facilities may find it difficult to justify
the expense.

Board Member Schrad believed Chesapeake is not an area in the state that is underserved, but rich in
resources. It makes Board Member Schrad wonder about the overall environment in this particular facility
and whether the culture invites quality personnel to want to work there. Are there any longer term issues?

Mr. Bailey responded that this past year Chesapeake Juvenile Services hired a new superintendent who had
a large learning curve. They sought advice from the Virginia Beach JDC, a facility with a good reputation and
operation. Mr. Bailey believed there is a culture in the facility that has existed for some time, and the Deputy
City Manager is concerned that changes have not been made. Mr. Bailey is confident, at this point, that the

City administration will take charge and make sure that Chesapeake Juvenile Services is up to par, and if not,
the Department will find out.

Director Floriano added that the City administration in Chesapeake has changed in the past few months. The
current City Manager came from northern Virginia. The Department hopes the changes made in city
management will translate to the facility because they have had a problem for a long time.

Mr. Bailey said the Department’s Quality Assurance staff have volunteered to look at the behavior
management program in Chesapeake Juvenile Services. The last time that program was reviewed was in
2014, and it is time to make changes and redevelop.

Chairperson Frazier said this audit report was pretty intense; it was interesting to hear the comparison
between Roanoke with their technology challenges and the response of the judges to not wanting to send
the youth to that facility. Chairperson Frazier did not see any judicial response in Chesapeake, not that it did
not happen, but he can see the differences in the two communities. Chairperson Frazier asked, when there

is a situation like this related to the safety of the young people and staff, what actions are authorized by the
Board?

Mr. Bailey answered that the Department Director can place the program on probation, which would be the
next step if Chesapeake Juvenile Services does not correct their issues, and could de-certify the program with



all the youth removed from that facility. There was a similar situation years ago with the City of Richmond,
which was headed in the direction of de-certification; however, the city administration decided to shut down
for a year before being de-certified. The options was mentioned to Chesapeake to shut down to retool,

retrain, and reopen. Chesapeake Juvenile Services is confident they can make the necessary corrective
actions and not reach that stage.

Board Member Schrad had a few questions on the incentives for a locality to have detention centers and
their ability to properly support them to ensure compliance.

Mr. Bailey responded that one of the main factors for a locality to want a detention center is to keep the
youth closer to their families and closer to the court. If a youth housed in Virginia Beach needed to go to
court in Chesapeake, law enforcement from Chesapeake would drive to Virginia Beach to pick up the youth,
take them to court, and return them. It is the convenience of having those services in that area. Mr. Bailey

noted that things happen in juvenile detention centers, and the Department has dedicated staff to ensure a
response if issues arise.

Chairperson Frazier appreciated the information, and instructed the Board that, if they wanted to take action,
such as a strongly worded letter or other type of action to ensure the safety of young people and staff, then
the Board can have more conversations. It does seem like the corrective actions are working, but Chairperson

Frazier still worries about the well-being of the young people especially seeing all the challenges in
Chesapeake.

Mr. Bailey finished his report by letting the Board know of a request received from Northern Virginia JDC,
which operates a post-dispositional program, to increase the capacity of that program from 10 beds to 16.
The Director was in agreement to modify the terms of their certificate. The program feels this will provide
them more needed services to the community by having those six post-dispositional beds.

CONSIDERATION OF THE FY 2022-2023 VIRGINIA JUVENILE COMMUITY CRIME CONTROL ACT (VICCCA)
PLANS

Jenna Easton, Program Manager, Department

The item on the VICCCA was presented to the Board by Ms, Easton virtually, and the presentation is on page
59 of the Board packet.

The General Assembly enacted VICCCA in 1995 to establish a community-based system of services that
correspond with the severity of offense and treatment needs of youth. Originally, the purpose was to deter
crime by providing an immediate and effective punishment that emphasizes the accountability of the juvenile
offender for their actions, as well as reviewing the pattern of repeat offending per Code of Virginia section
16.1-309.2. The intent is for a locality to have autonomy to develop and implement programs and services
to prevent and address offending by youth in their communities. Because this is a unique funding source,

emphasis is placed on funding detention alternatives and up-front programming to address diversion and
prevention, as well as early intervention needs.

Under this legislation, state and local dollars are combined to fund community-based programs for youth.
Since January 1996, state funding has been allocated to localities through a formula based on several factors
such as the number and type of arrest. Some localities are required to contribute a maintenance of effort
(MOE). The MOE originally required that a locality must extend the same amount of funding it did in fiscal
year (FY) 1995 in order to receive state funding. Legislation passed July 1, 2011, allowed a locality to reduce

the MOE to an amount equal to the state funding amount and not to exceed the amount of state funds
allocated for VJCCCA.



The current total state allocation is slightly under $10.4 million. The total annual budget including the MOE
and additional local funds that are contributed is approximately $20 million.

Participation in VJCCCA is voluntary, but currently all 133 localities in Virginia participate. Some localities
maintain local plans while others pool their funds with other localities to form combined plans.

The Department’s Diversion Unit staff provide technical assistance to these localities and have administrative
oversight and monitoring of the current 76 VJCCCA plans in Virginia. Pages 65 and 68 of the Board packet
include a breakdown of each locality’s state allocation, as well as their required MOE. The information
regarding local contributions is not included because that often changes. If a locality happens to expend more
than planned through the state allocation and MOE, they are required to cover those costs with local dollars.
Sometimes the final budget is not established until the end of the fiscal year.

In order for a locality to participate and receive VICCCA funding, they are required to develop a biennial plan
for utilization of those funds. The Diversion Unit staff offers technical assistance and helps guide the locality

to use data to identify needs based on current trends to decide which programs and services to include on
their plan.

While plans must be approved by the Department and Board, communities do have autonomy and flexibility
in addressing their juvenile offense patterns. Per the Code of Virginia, plan development requires
consultation with judges, court service unit directors, and the Office of Children Services (CSA) through their
local community planning management team {(CPMT) chair. The CPMT is a local interagency body that
manages the expenditures of CSA and provides funding for localities for children and families in communities.

Prior to FY 2020, all VICCCA funding was used to serve youth before intake on complaints or who were before
the court on petitions alleging the juvenile is a child in need of services, child in need of supervision, or
delinquent per Code of Virginia §16.1-309.2. Effective from FY 2020, VICCCA was amended and expanded to
deter crime by providing communities with diversion or community-based services to juveniles who are in
need of such services, by providing immediate and effective punishment to hold the juvenile offender
accountable for their actions, reducing the pattern of repeat offending. Localities are not required to provide
prevention programming; they can now elect to add the category prevention services to their plan. The
Department has had an increase in that area of programming for the upcoming plans.

The Diversion Unit anticipated receiving plans for all 133 localities; some localities choose to participate in
combined plans. Since VICCCA is the only source of funding from the state for detention alternatives, those
services continue to make up a large portion of the funding. In addition, staff have researched and shared
with localities model provision programs and have seen an increase in plan proposals that include those
services, particularly for truancy prevention programs.

As a result of the Diversion Unit’s research on best practices, and following feedback received from the field,
restorative justice, pro-social activity, and mentoring have been added to the allowable services list, which is
a menu of programs and services included in local plans. On pages 69-77 of the Board packet are the updated
allowable services, and page 64 provides a breakdown of each program or service, as well as the number of
youth and the funds that are projected for the upcoming FYs of the biennium. At the bottom of that
document, the figures are not the same for each year. This may be because localities have allocated funds
differently for each year or because of DJ)’s recommendations.

Ms. Easton shared with the Board some data from FY 2021:
e 3,578 youth were placed in VIJCCCA programs for a total of 5,807 placements.



s 81% of youth placed in VJCCCA programs and services were eligible for detention.

e On average there were 1.6 program placements for youth.

¢ The majority (53%) of placements were pre-dispositional and non-residential, while 29% of
placements were post-dispositional and non-residential.

e Of the 8% of placements that were residential placements, 93% were pre-dispositional. Most likely

those were detention alternatives; the remaining 7% were post-dispositional placements into
residential services.

The number of youth served through VICCCA has declined over the past three years. This is likely due to a
combination of major impact on service delivery by COVID-19 and a reduction in spending on youth.

The following 68 localities and combinations of localities have submitted VICCCA plans for FY 2023 and FY
2024 with balanced budgets for both years. These plans have been reviewed by D)) staff and are
recommended for approval by the Board for FY 2023 and 2024 of the 2023-2024 biennium.

Accomack combined (includes Northampton), Alexandria, Amherst, Arlington combined (includes Falls
Church), Bath, Bedford County, Campbell, Caroline, Charlotte combined (includes Appomattox, Buckingham,
Cumberfand, Lunenburg, Prince Edward), Charlottesville combined (includes Albemarle), Chesterfield,
Colonial Heights, Craig, Culpeper, Danville, Dinwiddie, Emporia combined {includes Brunswick, Greensville,
Sussex), Fairfax City combined {includes Fairfax County), Fauquier, Floyd, Fluvanna, Franklin, Frederick
combined (includes Clark, Winchester), Fredericksburg, Giles, Goochland, Greene, Halifax, Hampton,
Hanover, Henrico, Hopewell, King George, King William combined (includes Charles City, King & Queen,
Middlesex, New Kent), Loudoun, Louisa, Lynchburg, Madison, Manassas City, Manassas Park, Martinsville
combined {includes Henry, Patrick), Mecklenburg, Montgomery, Nelson, Newport News, Norfolk, Orange,
Page, Petersburg, Pittsylvania, Prince George, Pulaski, Radford, Rappahannock, Rockingham combined
{includes Harrisonburg), Roanoke City, Roanoke County combined (includes Salem), Shenandoah,
Spotsylvania, Stafford, Surry, Tidewater Youth Services Commission (includes Chesapeake, Franklin City, Isle
of Wight, Portsmouth, Southampton, Suffolk, Virginia Beach), Warren, Washington combined (includes
Bristol, Smyth, Russell, Buchanan, Dickenson, Lee, Norton, Scott, Tazewell, Wise), Wayneshoro combined
(includes Augusta, Staunton), Westmoreland combined (includes Essex, Lancaster, Northumberland,

Richmond County), Wythe combined (includes Bland), and York combined (includes Gloucester, James City,
Williamsburg, Matthews, Poquoson)

On a motion duly made by Will Johnson and seconded by Dana Schrad, the Board of Juvenile Justice approved

the 68 VICCCA plans listed above for the 2023 and 2024 fiscal years. All Board members present declared
“aye” and the motion carried.

The following four localities have submitted VICCCA plans with a balanced budget for FY 2023. These plans
have been reviewed by D)J staff and are recommended for approval by the Board for the 2023 fiscal year of
the 2023-2024 biennium: Amelia, Nottoway, Powhatan, and Prince William.

Board Member Schrad asked why the four plans were only for one year. Ms. Easton responded that in this
situation the court service unit directors from the locality wanted to add programming that the community
was not prepared to offer yet and did not want to wait the full two years to have the programming added. A
locality can add diversion programming and move forward with the proposed plan. Then for the second year,
the locality can have the time to develop the program for the second year of the biennium.

On a motion duly made by Dana Schrad and seconded by Synethia White, the Board of Juvenile Justice
approved the VICCCA plans for the 2023 fiscal year for Amelia, Nottoway, Powhatan, and Prince William. All
Board members present declared “aye” and the motion carried.



The following four localities and combinations of localities have not yet met all proposed plan submission
requirements: Grayson combined {includes Carroll, Galax), Highland, Lexington combined (includes Buena
Vista, Rockbridge, Alleghany, Covington, Botetourt}, and City of Richmond

It is recommended that the localities’ FY 2022 plan be carried forward for one additional quarter, through
September 30, 2022, to allow additional time for proposed plan development and submission. The new plan
will be presented during the September meeting of the Board of Juvenile Justice.

On a motion duly made by Eric English and seconded by Synethia White, the Board of Juvenile Justice
approved the FY 2022 VICCCA plans for Grayson combined, Highland, Lexington combined, and the City of

Richmond for one additional quarter through September 30, 2022. All Board members present declared
“aye” and the motion carried.

The City of Richmond has submitted a request to reduce their Maintenance of Effort (MOE) to match the

state allocation beginning in FY 2023. The current MOE is $459,084, which exceeds the state allocation of
$347,000 by $111,401.

Board Member Schrad asked whether, when a reduction is requested by a locality, they need to submit a
plan adjusting their spending.

Ms. Easton answered that the City of Richmond asked for their plan to be continued, and if approved, the
MOE will be reduced and the budget will reduce by $111,401; therefore, the City of Richmond will present a
new plan based on that new budget with the reduction. The locality does not have to report or justify what
they will do with the additional funds but will continue to use them toward VJCCCA services. In 1995, when
VICCCA was initiated, the budgets were much greater, approximately four times what the state allocation is
currently. The budgets have been reduced over the years. The MOE was based on those high numbers. In
order for a locality to receive or not return any state funds, they have to use their entire MOE. It is almost

like a required match in a grant. The locality would like to reduce the amount required to participate in order
to receive the reduced amount of funding from the state.

Board Member Johnson asked whether, given that the state has reduced its commitment over the years, it
seemed unfair that localities are expected to continue to provide support at an elevated level toward

supporting these youth. Ms. Easton responded that she is confident that the City of Richmond should be the
last locality to have a greater MOE.

On a motion duly made by Tyren Frazier and seconded by Will Johnson, the Board of Juvenile Justice
approved the reduction of the required Maintenance of Effort for the City of Richmond to match the state
allocation beginning in FY 2023. All Board members present declared “aye” and the motion carried.

REGULATORY UPDATE
Ken Davis, Regulatory Affairs Coordinator, Department

The regulatory update is on page 78 in the Board packet.
Mr. Davis updated the Board on changes made since the regulatory update was written. In April, the Board

approved moving the Regulation Governing Juvenile Secure Detention Centers to the final stage of the
regulatory process. Executive branch review by the Office of the Attorney General is underway.



The workgroup has finished the text on the Regulation Governing Youth Detained Pursuant to Federal
Contracts (known as the SB20 regulation) with a few outstanding questions to be answered. The regulation

should be ready to present to the Board for consideration to move forward to the proposed stage at their
September meeting.

CONSIDERATION OF FOUR BOARD POLICIES

Kristen Peterson, Regulatory and Policy Coordinator and Ken Davis, Regulatory Affairs Coordinator,
Department

Ms. Peterson provided background on Board policies. The Department plans to conduct a comprehensive
review of 39 Board policies and recommend either amending, rescinding, or retaining the policies. The Board
has not done a comprehensive review of their policies since 2012. A number of policies have become
obsolete, dated, or require review. Policies are distinct from regulations. Regulations are subject to the
Administrative Process Act and undergo executive branch review. They have the force and effect of law and
are treated more stringently in terms of review then Board policies. Board policies are not subject to

executive branch review or the public comment process. The Board’s decision on these policies takes effect
immediately.

The Board considered four policies, three of which the Department asked the Board to amend and the fourth
the Department asked the Board to rescind.

02-006 (Applications for Federal Funds) is a continuation from the last Board meeting. Originally, the
Department brought forward a recommendation to rescind this Board policy because the statutory provision
that gave rise to the policy was no longer in place. It was repealed in 2012. The Department recommended
rescinding, but the Board indicated their interest in receiving information on funding provided to the
Department. Ms. Peterson directed the Board to page 83 of the Board packet to review the revised Board
policy.

Changes were made to the first and third paragraphs. In the first paragraph, statutory language that was
repealed was removed; in its place the current statutory language that forms the basis for this policy had
been inserted. in the third paragraph, the Department had drafted language requiring a summary report
submission to the Board at least twice a year that would correspond with a Board meeting. This would
provide a wider range of information than the Board’s original needs, such as including competitive grants.
Ms. Peterson noted that the Department already puts together an internal report containing most of this
information. So it will not be difficult to modify that report for the Board’s purpose.

Board Member Schrad thanked Ms. Peterson for this revision and said it was important for the Board to be
made aware of grant applications due to the directives within them that can often drive policy. Board
Member Schrad believed this will be helped by receiving regular reports. This is not to question the decisions
of the agency when applying for funds but to ensure those applications are consistent with policy directives,
the law, and what the Board thinks is the proper direction for the Department.

On a motion duly made by Dana Schrad and seconded by Eric English, the Board of Juvenile Justice approved
the amendment of Board Policy 02-006 (Applications for Federal Funds), as proposed at the June 29, 2022,
meeting, to take effect immediately. All Board members present declared “aye” and the motion carried.

Mr. Davis provided information on 01-001 (Board Policies and Regulations). This was originally called Board
Policies and Standards, but the Board’s standards have since been subsumed into regulations. The
Department recommended a change in the title to be more reflective of what the policy actually addresses
which is Board policies and regulations. The only other change is to make this policy more specific in terms 10



of ensuring the policies stay updated. Language was added that these reviews should happen every four
years, and the Board will be provided with recommendations to amend, retain, or rescind each policy.

On a motion duly made by Synethia White and seconded by Dana Schrad, the Board of Juvenile Justice
approved the amendment of Board Policy 01-001 (Board Policies and Regulations), as proposed at the June

29, 2022, meeting, to take effect immediately. All Board members present declared “aye” and the motion
carried.

Mr. Davis provided information on 17-001 {Summary of Residents’ Rights). The Department asked to amend
the title to Protecting Residents’ Rights. The policy is not a summary of residents’ rights, but rather a
statement of the Board's commitment to protecting the rights of residents in the care of the Department or
those entities regulated by the Board. The only other change was to strike language that was duplicative.
There was a phrase, “laws relating to individuals rights” which duplicated “federal and state statutes and
regulations.” The policy stays the same, the revisions tidy up the language.

On a motion duly made by Will Johnson and seconded by Eric English, the Board of Juvenile Justice approved
the amendment of Board Policy 17-001 (Protecting Residents’ Rights), as proposed at the June 29, 2022,
meeting, to take effect immediately. All Board members present declared “aye” and the motion carried.

Ms. Peterson concluded the discussion with 05-010 (The Prison Rape Elimination Act {PREA)). This is a federal
statute in place since 2003. The statute was enacted in order to provide for the analysis of the incidence and
effects of prison rape in federal, state, and local institutions and to provide information, resources,
recommendations, and funding to protect individuals from prison rape. Part of the initiative established a
national commission, which was tasked with developing standards that went into place in 2012. Part of those
standards, specifically section 115-311(a), requires agencies to have a written policy that mandates zero
tolerance towards sexual abuse and harassment and to outline the approach to preventing, detecting, and
responding to such conduct. With respect to that particular requirement, the term “agencies” is defined as
the entity that is responsible for actually operating the facility. The Board’s policy does not comply with many
of the requirements of the national standards. PREA is a federal policy that the Department is required to
comply with even in the absence of any Commonwealth statutory provisions or any regulatory provisions
promulgated by the Board. The Department believed the procedure that DJJ has in place currently is sufficient
to demonstrate compliance with the requirements of PREA.

The Department is trying to reduce the number of resources that staff have to consult in order to effectively
carry out their duties, and part of that is reducing the Board’s policies. The recommendation is for the Board
to rescind the policy. There is no executive branch review or any other requirements. The rescission of the
policy would be immediate and would not impact facility operations.

On a motion duly made by Dana Schrad and seconded by Eric English, the Board of Juvenile Justice approved
the rescission of Board Policy 05-010 (The Prison Rape Elimination Act), as proposed at the June 29, 2022,
meeting, to take effect immediately. All Board members present declared “aye” and the motion carried.

DIRECTOR’S COMMENTS
Amy M. Floriano, Director, Department

Director Floriano updated the Board on the implementation of pre-court services for all youth entering the
system. This means that VICCCA services can be offered to them immediately. Once the petition is secured,
there will be contact with the family and access to court services when the child is undergoing crisis. This has
been implemented in all court service units. Additionally, there is an immediate crisis across the state
involving gun violence. The administration has decided that children with guns need more attention, and the 11



agency has issued a few directives. The first directive issued requires that, if a child brings a gun to school,
the Department will not divert that child. That child will go in front of the judge and the judge will determine
why this child had a gun and brought it to school. Those felony charges will not be diverted. The second
directive issued was something the Department is already doing but needed to clarify, and that was a
mandatory override of the detention instrument for a child with firearms. If a child has a gun, that is an

increased risk to themselves and to the community; therefore, a judge will need to decide the constraints to
place on that child.

The Department has pursued vocational programming, and is hoping to have at least three vocational
programs in facilities, to include welding, electrical, and plumbing. The Department is hoping to have
electrical and plumbing programs in place by this summer. The Department has worked to secure mentoring
services for youth in the facility that will continue when they are returned to the community. The Department
secured a grant for 20 spots in the Virginia Technical Institute in Hampton Roads for youth in the community
who needed to go through additional programming.

The Department has looked at the reentry numbers, and 40% of recidivism occurs during the first four
months after release. This is one of the reasons why the Department wanted to give VICCCA services to youth
as soon as possible. The time span between when an event happens and when the child receives services is
currently too long. The child’s brain is in a completely different place by the time the services are provided.
If you ask a child what they did six months ago, they will not remember why they did what they did. But if
you get services to the child within a few weeks of the event, they will have a better understanding of the
connection and be able to move forward further in their treatment therapy. The Department’s Data Resource
Guide for 2021 showed a slight downward trend in recidivism, and that is why it is important to get services
in place as soon as possible. The Department is focused on wrapping services around the youth from when
they first come into contact with the system until they return to the community. The Department wants to
support youth so they do not return to their previous dangerous situations and lifestyles.

Board Member English asked about the detention override. Director Floriano answered that the Department
put in place the mandatory override for firearm charges, and are now ready to move forward with revisions
to the length of stay guidelines. The Department will likely review the detention override instrument at some

point and will take into account the concerns of law enforcement and the judiciary in determining what
factors to include in the override.

Board Member White asked about juveniles’ families and social circle, who play a big role in how they get re-
acclimated and whether or not they reoffend. Director Fioriano answered that the Department has family
advocates who work with the families and partner with various outreach programs. Director Floriano believes
it is important to make contact with families as soon as possible and to inciude them in treatment team
discussions and in therapy options. Board Member White followed up by asking if that will start before

release, and Director Floriano replied yes. The family is already involved in treatment team meetings before
their child gets released.

Board Member Schrad asked about the effectiveness of parental education programs and if they are
evaluated. Director Floriano does not know the statistics for that program. Board Member Schrad said it can
be a struggle to get parents involved. They are part of the solution and part of the problem.

Board Member White talked about the Strengthening Families Program in which she is a facilitator. The
program started in the prison system with adults and centered on communication. Board Member White
believes in the program, but she cannot see how it will work if a young person was not able to participate in
the program closer to their home community. It has better outcomes when it is community-neighborhood
based. Board Member White would also like to know what types of programs are available to youth before 12



they are released to families, such as programs that support reunification, positive support, and positive
social behavior. Board Member White stressed the need to look at concerns with cultural competency with
the facilitators leading these programs.

Director Floriano said many of the programs involved with VICCCA services are done in the community. These
are intervention, diversion, and probation programs done in the community where the child is placed. They
are not necessarily being done in the facilities. Director Floriano said that when the child enters the system,
the family participates in therapeutic programming determined by the treatment team. The Department is
focused on continuity of services from beginning to end. We need to make sure we provide oversight, family
interactions, and step-down services with the agency’'s reentry advocates. As part of its workforce
development, the Department is reviewing how it handles moving the child through the system, what the
agency should keep doing to adapt and standardize provision. Also there is a need to provide the same
programming in community placement programs as well.

Deputy Director of Community Programs Linda McWilliams said that youth on probation or parole are

benefiting from Functional Family Therapy (FFT) and Multi-Systemic Therapy {(MST), to help them avoid going
deeper into the system.

Chairperson Frazier asked about the rebuild at Bon Air and the population numbers.

Director Floriano said the Department is completing the preliminary work and relocating staff affected by the
construction on campus. Currently, Bon Air has approximately 100 youth, with a further 79 youth in
community placement programs. Many of the Bon Air youth are high risk. The Department tries to place
youth near their home to structure the continuity of services and possibly start some work release programs
as they transition out. There is a focus on the youth stepping down in a gradual manner that is not going to
be a complete cultural shock on their final release.

NEXT MEETING
The next Board meeting is September 21, 2022, at 9:30 a.m. at the Virginia Public Safety Training Center.

ADJOURNMENT
Chairperson Frazier adjourned the meeting at 11:17 a.m.

13



DIRECTOR'S CERTIFICATION ACTIONS
August 25, 2022

CERTIFICATION ACTION — August 25, 2022: Certified Summit Transitional Living program to
April 30, 2025.

Pursuant to 6VAC35-20-100C. 2, if the certification audit finds the program or facility in less than
100% compliance with all regulatory requirements and a subsequent status report, completed
prior to the certification action, finds 100% compliance on all regulatory requirements, the director
or designee shall certify the facility for a specific period of time, up to three years.

CERTIFICATION ACTION - August 25, 2022: Certified Prince William Juvenile Detention
Center to April 13, 2025.

Pursuant to 6VAC35-20-100C.2, if the certification audit finds the program or facility in less than
100% compliance with all requlatory requirements and a subsequent status report, completed
prior to the certification action, finds 100% compliance on all regulatory requirements, the director
or designee shall certify the facility for a specific period of time, up to three years.

CERTIFICATION ACTION — August 25, 2022: Certified Richmond Juvenile Detention Center
and Post-Dispositional Program to June 12, 2025,

Pursuant to 6VAC35-20-100C.2, if the certification audit finds the program or facility in less than
100% compliance with all regulatory requirements and a subsequent status report, completed
prior to the certification action, finds 100% compliance on all requlatory requirements, the director
or designee shall certify the facility for a specific period of time, up fo three years.

CERTIFICATION ACTION August 25, 2022: Continued the current certification status to
November 8, 2022. The facility is to have the security fencing project completed by that date. The
first priority must be the 10 foot area where the escape took place in June 2021.

14



CERTIFICATION AUDIT REPORT
TO THE

DEPARTMENT OF JUVENILE JUSTICE

PROGRAM AUDITED: AUDIT DATES:

The Summit Transitiona! Living Program April 11, 2022

3400 Newby's Bridge Road

Chesterfield, Virginia 23832 CERTIFICATION ANALYST:

(804) 726-8690
Heather Rose, Director
hiroses@intercepthealth.com

Learna Harris

CURRENT TERM OF CERTIFICATION:
April 30, 2020 — April 29, 2022

REGULATIONS AUDITED:
6VAC35-41 Regulation Governing Juvenile Group Homes and Halfway Houses

PREVIOUS AUDIT FINDINGS — May 21, 2020
100%

CURRENT AUDIT FINDINGS - April 11, 2022:

99.8% Compliance Rating

No repeat deficiencies from previous audit.

6VAC35-41-180 (A). Employee and volunteer backgrounds checks. CRITICAL

DIRECTOR'S CERTIFICATION ACTION — August 25, 2022: Certified Summit Transitional
Living program to April 30, 2025.

Pursuant to 6VAC35-20-100C.2, if the certification audit finds the program or facility in less than
100% compliance with all regulatory requirements and a subsequent status report, completed
prior to the certification action, finds 100% compliance on all requlatory requirements, the
director or designee shall certify the facility for a specific period of time, up to three years.

TEAM MEMBERS:

Learna Harris, Team Leader

Shelia Hinton, Central Office

John Adams, Central Office

Nikesha Roberts, Central Office
Michael Sayles, Central Office

Wanda Parris-Flanagan, Central Office

POPULATION SERVED:

The Summit Transitional Living Program facility is a 3,000 square foot residential home situated
on 11-acres. This two-level home includes seven (7) total bedrooms (six single and 1 double),
four (4) bathrooms, kitchen, living room, dining area, recreation room, access to laundry
facilities and staff office. The property also has an additional 2,000 square foot building, which

is used as a career/resource room with a computer lab, space for family visitation and multi-use
area for recreation and community meetings.

The Summit Transitional Living Program accepts males, ages 17.5 to 21 with a minimum IQ of

15



Summit Traditional Living Program

65, who are being discharged from a Department of Juvenile Justice commitment. Youth
referred to and placed at Summit Transitional Living home will demonstrate various levels of risk
to reoffend and commonly display the following behaviors and criminogenic and non-
criminogenic needs:

Criminal history and propensity to commit crimes

History of running away from home, foster care, and/or residential placements
History of association with anti-social companions

Pro-criminal, risky thinking)

Antisocial personality such as impulsivity, poor emotional regulation and inadequate
decision-making skills

Limited coping skills and low frustration toleration

Low educational achievement and history of poor school performance

History of low family affection/history of poor supervision

. History of substance abuse

0. History of self-destructive behavior

1. History of mental health diagnoses (such as post-traumatic stress disorder, depression,
Oppositional Defiance Disorder, and Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder)

12. Low or limited functioning youth with a minimum 1Q of 65

13. Lower levels of job readiness and independent living skills

14. Need for focused intensive transition and community reintegration services

15. History of trauma and exposure to violence

16. Impaired social functioning

PROGRAMS AND SERVICES PROVIDED:
The Summit Transitional Living Program provides the following services to the residents:

SHEE

230N

e Direct:
* Aggression Replacement Training (ART)
Casey-Life Skills
YASI screening
Cognitive Behavioral Interventions (CBl)
Core Correctional Practices (CCP)
Motivational Interviewing
The Risk, Need, Responsivity (RNR) Model,
Understanding of the Youth Assessment & Screening Instrument (YASI),

DJJ's Assessment-Driven Case Planning Practices {Comprehensive Re-Entry
Case Plan — CRCP)

DJJ's Community Model Utilized in the JCCs

Behavioral Intervention

Video conferencing for external services and communication (court, family
visitation, telehealth)

Resource lab with computers and internet access

Individual and Family counseling

Supervision

Treatment planning

Psycho-educational groups on independent living skills, substance abuse
education, AIDS and sexually transmitted diseases, victim sensitivity, self-esteem,
parenting, decision making, anger management, and more



Summit Traditional Living Program

Career assessment

Employment skills

Education skills/support (not to be confused with teaching. Courses can be
accessed in the Resource center, but are NOT offered through/by The Summit
Transitional Living Program)

Nutrition/meal planning

Community engagement

ldentifying/strengthening relationships with natural supports

Facilitating visitation with family and natural supports

Transportation support

+  Community:

Enrichment activities and programs — various professional and community
groups

Spiritual programs — various local spiritual groups

AIDS and sexually transmitted disease — various organizations and community
groups such as, Planned Parenthood

Transportation

Parenting skills — Mentoring; various community groups

Dental/Vision Care - local provider of choice

Medical Care — local provider of choice (assuming Medicaid or resident private
insurance is accepted)

Literacy and Math - Local educational institutions; tutors; PennFoster

Social Skills {Program and Community service)

Independent Living Skills — programs identified on an as-need basis
Experiences/Exposure

Community: (services offered by community agencies and resources)

Out Patient Service — additionally purchased service available through intercept
or identified provider of choice

ABEL Assessment Sexual Interest (AASI) Screen

Affinity 2.5 Sexual Interest Screen

Anger Management Intervention

Clinical Group

Crisis Stabilization

Dialectical Behavior Therapy Group

Face to Face Surveillance

Therapeutic Mentor

Family Centered Treatment

Gang Intervention

GPS Electronic Monitoring

Home-Based Services

Individual, Group and Family Therapy and relapse prevention for Substance
Abuse

Individual, Group and Family Therapy for youth and relapse prevention with
sexualized behaviors

Intensive In-Home Services

17



Summit Traditional Living Program

¢ Mental Health Skill Building

¢ Multi-Systemic Therapy

+ Non Clinical Group

e Parenting Group

» Psychological Services

* Psycho-Sexual Evaluation

» Restorative Justice

+ Seven Challenges Group for Substance Abuse
e Strengthening Families Program

¢ Substance Abuse Intensive Qutpatient Program

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
TO THE
DEPARTMENT OF JUVENILE JUSTICE

FACILITY/PROGRAM: Summit Traditional Living Program
SUBMITTED BY: Heather Rose, Program Director
CERTIFICATION AUDIT DATES: April 11, 2022

CERTIFICATION ANALYST: Learna R. Harris

Under Planned Corrective Action indicate; 1) The cause of the identified area of non-

compliance. 2) The effect on the program. 3) Action that has been taken/will be taken to correct
the standard cited. 4} Action that will be taken to ensure that the problem does not recur.

6VAC35-41-180 (A). Employee and volunteer backgrounds checks. CRITICAL

A. Except as provided in subsection B, all persons who (i) accept a position of
employment at, (ii) volunteer on a reguiar basis and will be alone with a resident in the
performance of their duties, or (iii) provide contractual services directly to a resident
on a regular basis and will be alone with a resident in the performance of their duties
in a juvenile residential facility shall undergo the following background checks, in
accordance with 63.2-1726 of the Code of Virginia, to ascertain whether there are

criminal acts or other circumstances that would be detrimental to the safety of
residents in the facility:

1.
2.
3.

4.
5.

A reference check;

A criminal history check;

A fingerprint check with the Virginia State Police and Federal Bureau of
Investigations (FBI)

A central registry check with Child Protective Services; and

A driving record check if applicable to the individual’s job duties;

Audit Finding:
One of two applicable cases reviewed did not have the reference checks completed.

18



Summit Traditional Living Program

Program Response

Cause:

Human Resources failed to complete reference check for new employee. Therefore, references
were not checked/completed.

Effect on Program:
None

Planned Corrective Action:

Onboarding Specialists will ensure that they have been reminded that new hires cannot onboard
without completing the entire application process.

Completion Date:
4/12/2022

Person Responsible:
Cristen Anderson, Human Resources

Current Status on July 12, 2022: Compliant
Three of three applicable cases reviewed had completed reference checks.

19



CERTIFICATION AUDIT REPORT
TO THE

DEPARTMENT OF JUVENILE JUSTICE

PROGRAM AUDITED: AUDIT DATES:

Prince William County Juvenile Detention Center March 22, 2022

14873 Dumfries Road

Manassas, Virginia 20112 CERTIFICATION ANALYST:
(703) 792-8300 Wanda Parris-Flanagan

(703) 791-3958 FAX
John T. Dowdy, Superintendant
[dowdy@pwcgov.org

CURRENT TERM OF CERTIFICATION:
April 13, 2019 — April 12, 2022

REGULATIONS AUDITED:
6VAC35-101 Regulation Governing Juvenile Secure Detention Centers

PREVIOUS AUDIT FINDINGS — November 6, 2018:

97.64% Compliance Rating

6VAC35-101-80 (A) Serious incident reports. CRITICAL

6VAC235-101-80 (D) Serious incident reports.

6VAC35-101-170 (A) Employee and volunteer background checks. CRITICAL
6VAC35-101-300 (A) Volunteer and intern orientation and training.
6VAC35-101-350 (C) Buildings and inspections.

6VAC35-101-1060 (H) Medication.

6VAC35-101-100 (E) Room confinement and isolation.

CURRENT AUDIT FINDINGS — March 22, 2022:
99.65% Compliance Rating

No repeat deficiencies from previous audit.
6VACC35-101-800 (B) Admission and orientation.

DIRECTOR’'S CERTIFICATION ACTION — August 25, 2022: Certify Prince William Juvenile
Detention Center to April 13, 2025.

Pursuant to 6VAC35-20-100C. 2, if the certification audit finds the program or facility in less than
100% compliance with all regulatory requirements and a subsequent status report, completed
prior to the certification action, finds 100% compliance on all regulatory requirements, the
director or designee shall certify the facility for a specific period of time, up to three years.

TEAM MEMBERS:

Wanda Parris-Flanagan, Team Leader
Shelia Hinton, Central Office

Nikesha Roberts, Central Office
Michael Sayles, Central Office

John Adams, Central Office

Leah Nelson, Central Office
Christopher Mallory, Chesterfield JDC

20



_Pr_ince William Juvenile Dggention Cegter

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION
Prince William Juvenile Detention Center (“PWCJDC") opened for operations in 1979. They are

a 72-bed co-ed facility designed and licensed to secure detention for juveniles ages 10 thru 17,
The facility is located in the hub of Prince William County, Virginia.

PWCJDC is a part of the Residential Services Division of the Prince Wiliiam County Department
of Social Services. The facility provides services to the 31% Court Services Unit/Judicial District
which includes the following localities:

- Prince William County

- Manassas City

- Manassas Park

It is the mission of PWCJDC to protect the community, the staff and youth we serve; provide
quality structured programs in a humane environment and promote healthy emotional,
educational, social and physical development.

It is the vision of the PWCJDC to protect, restore and improve public safety through a continuum
of services and programs that; effectively supervise juvenile offenders, promote offender
accountability to victims and communities, and build skills and competencies of youth to
become responsible citizens.

SERVICES PROVIDED:

Education

The Education Department at the PWCJDC is operated by the Virginia Department of
Education, (State Operated Programs}, but locally contracted through Prince William County
Public Schools, and staffed by certified secondary Prince William County public schools
teachers. Qur staff consists of; a principal, administrative assistant, core content area teachers,
a Health and Physical Education teacher, special education teachers, an ESOL teacher,
Literacy Coach, and a GED teacher. We offer both traditional and computer-based instruction,
for those students who are already placed in the computer-based instruction program, as well
as a 16/17 year old GED program. Students detained at the juvenile detention center are
afforded the opportunity to continue their education while detained, including special education

and ESOL services, as well as access to SOL testing. In addition, we are a certified testing site
for the GED test by Pearson VUE.

Mental Health

PWC.IDC’s licensed Clinical Supervisor provides on-site supervision to a full-time Region Ten
CSB Mental Health Case Manager/Clinician. The Region Ten CSB Mental Health Case
Manager/Clinician position is dedicated to and located at PWC JDC.

Medical

PWCJDC employs nurses, physician assistants and a physician to monitor and address the
medical needs of residents. The medical clinic currently operates several days a week and has
an on-call nurse to address all medical issues and unforeseen events.

Community Volunteers

PWCJDC has a great relationship with the local community. Volunteers provide weekly arts and
crafts, girl scouts, yoga, life skills and religious activities for the youth.

Recreation



_Prigce V}Iilliam Ju!enile Detention Center

Each youth is given an opportunity for structured large muscle activity daily and receives
additional physical activity during their daily physical education class. The recreation program
also provides leisure activities during evening and weekend hours.

Community Placement Program (CPP)

in effort to place residents close to their home community to promote community re-entry and
family engagement, the Prince William County Community Placement Program (“PWCCPP")
provides a highly structured, disciplined residential program for juvenile offenders committed to
the Department of Juvenile Justice, PWCCPP utilizes a blended behavioral modification
approach with positive peer culture and community treatment model elements to help residents
learn empathy, accountability, and personal responsibility through evidence-based cognitive
behavioral techniques. Programming focuses on skill development, with the aim of improving
positive, prosocial decision-making and building competencies in the areas of education, job
readiness and social skills. Services are provided in the areas of anger management, substance

abuse, life skills, post-graduate education, job and employability skills, community service and
recreation.

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
TO THE
DEPARTMENT OF JUVENILE JUSTICE
FACILITY/PROGRAM: Prince William County Juvenile Detention Center
SUBMITTED BY: John Dowdy, Superintendent
CERTIFICATION AUDIT DATES: March 22, 2022

CERTIFICATION ANALYST: Wanda Parris-Flanagan

Under Planned Corrective Action indicate; 1) The cause of the identified area of non-
compliance. 2) The effect on the program. 3) Action that has been taken/will be taken to correct
the standard cited. 4) Action that will be taken to ensure that the problem does not recur.

6VAC35-101-800 (B). Admission and orientation.
B. The resident shall receive an orientation to the following:

1. The behavior management program as required by 6VAC35-101-1070 (behavior

management);
a. During the orientation, residents shall be given written information
describing rules of conduct, the sanctions for rule violations, and the
disciplinary process. These shall be explained to the resident and documented
by the dated signature of resident and staff.
b. Where a language or literacy problem exists that can lead to a resident
misunderstanding the rules of conduct and related regulations, staff or a
qualified person under the supervision of staff shall assist the resident.

2. The grievance procedure as required by 6VAC35-101-100 (grievance

procedure);

3. The disciplinary process as required by 6VAC35-101-1080 (disciplinary
process);

22



Prince William Juvenile Detention Center

4. The resident's responsibilities in implementing the emergency procedures as
required by 6VAC35-101-510 {emergency and evacuation procedures); and

5. The resident's rights, including, but not limited to, the prohibited actions
provided for in 6. VAC35-101-650 (prohibited actions).

Audit Finding:

Six out of six files audited did not provide documentation that the resident received an
orientation on the behavior management program. Six out of 6 files audited did not provide
documentation that the resident received an orientation on the disciplinary process.

Program Response

Cause:

The facility was using an outdated form that addressed the review of rules, consequences and
expectations, but didn't specifically mention the behavior management program and due process.

Effect on Program:
The facility did not have documented evidence that the behavior management program and due
process were reviewed/discussed during intake/orientation.

Planned Corrective Action:

The facility developed, trained staff on and implemented an intake checklist (see attached) that
covers all elements of the standard and requires acknowledgement by staff/youth that the areas
were reviewed and that they received a written copy. This will take place during intake/orientation.

Completion Date:
March 22, 2022

Person Responsible:
John T. Dowdy, Superintendent and Justin Ford, Assistant Superintendent

Current Status on June 13, 2022: Compliant

Six out of six case files reviewed provided documentation that the resident received an orientation

on the behavior management program and the disciplinary process.

23



CERTIFICATION AUDIT REPORT
TO THE

DEPARTMENT OF JUVENILE JUSTICE

PROGRAM AUDITED: AUDIT DATES:

Richmond Juvenile Detention Center April 20, 2022

1700 Oliver Hill Way

Richmond, Virginia 23219 CERTIFICATION ANALYST;

(804) 646-2937
Rodney Baskerville, Superintendent
rodney.baskerville{@rva.gov

Learna Harris

CURRENT TERM OF CERTIFICATION:
June 12, 2019 — June 11, 2022

REGULATIONS AUDITED:
6VAC35-101 Regulation Governing Juvenile Detention Centers

PREVIOUS AUDIT FINDINGS - January 30, 2019:
6VAC35-101-80 (D). Serious incident reports.
6VAC35-101-1060 (M). Medication. CRITICAL

CURRENT AUDIT FINDINGS — April 20, 2022:
98.9%

No repeat deficiencies from previous audit.
6VAC35-101-650 (A). Prohibited Actions. CRITICAL
6VAC35-101-1080 (B). Disciplinary process.

DIRECTOR'S CERTIFICATION ACTION -- August 25, 2022: Certify Richmond Juvenile
Detention Center and Post-Dispositional Program to June 12, 2025.

Pursuant to 6VAC35-20-100C.2, if the certification audit finds the program or facility in less than
100% compliance with all regulatory requirements and a subsequent status report, completed
prior to the certification action, finds 100% compliance on all regulatory requirements, the
director or designee shall certify the facility for a specific period of time, up to three years.

TEAM MEMBERS:

Learna Harris, Team Leader

Shelia Hinton, Central Office

Deborah Hayes, Central Office

John Adams, Central Office

John Dowdy, Prince William JDC
Wanda Parris-Flanagan, Central Office
Nikesha Roberts, Central Office

POPULATION SERVED:
The Richmond Juvenile Detention Center (RJDC) is a 60-bed facility designated to provide
temporary and safe custody to male and female juvenile offenders between the ages of ten and

17. The age range for residents admitted to the Post Dispositional Program is 14-17 and for the
Re-Entry Program approved age, range is 16-19.

24



Richmond Juvenile Detention Center

The facility, which is approximately 17 years old, is divided into six 10-bed pods. The facility
contains an intake and medical area, several classrooms, a library/computer lab, and there are
security cameras scanning the interior and exterior perimeter of the building.

PROGRAMS AND SERVICES PROVIDED:

The Richmond Juvenile Detention Center is a pre-dispositional secure facmty The facility has a
behavior management program that provides a system of rewards for positive behavior and
teaches residents to be accountable for their behavior. Recreation is incorporated into the
academic program and during leisure time. Residents participate in psycho-educational groups
five days a week and life skills twice a week. Programs are designed to ensure residents have a
more productive transition when they return home or are transferred to other facilities.

The Richmond Juvenile Detention Center Re-Entry Program provides services for residents
transitioning from a Juvenile Correctional Center to detention up to 120 days prior to discharge
from commitment onto parole. The Richmond Juvenile Detention Center will provide bed space
for male/female juveniles from ages 16-19. The goal is to provide quality Detention Re-Entry
services in a structured yet nurturing environment. The program is strengths based and will help
each resident with maladaptive behaviors and replace them with socially appropriate skills to

enhance self-esteem, develop competency skills and build character through individual, group
and family therapy.

The Richmond Juvenile Detention Center’s Post-Dispositional Program is governed by the Code
of Virginia and certified through the VA Department of Juvenile Justice. It provides the
Thirteenth Court Service Unit a secure residential alternative to commitment to DJJ for the City
of Richmond youths. These non-violent juvenile offenders from ages 14-17 years of age are on
suspended commitments to DJJ and can spend up to six months in the Post-D Program. The
program is designed to meet their individual, behavioral, educational and treatment needs. The
participation of parents and/or legal guardians is an integral component of the program as they
take part in the treatment and progress of the youth through their transition back home.

CENTRAL ADMISSION AND PLACEMENT UNIT

Due to the closure of some juvenile correctional centers (JCC) within the VA Department of
Juvenile Justice, the RJDC serves as an intake site for DJJ to conduct intakes/evaluations for
juvenile offenders committed to DJJ. The intake process includes interviews, orientations,
assessments and testing completed by DJJ staff. After completion of this three-week intake
process, residents remain at the facility until accepted into a Community Placement Program

(CPP) or placement at Bon Air JCC. When a placement is arranged, the residents are transported
by DJJ to their designated facility placement.

Residents receive medical and mental health services as needed. Three nutritious meals and one
snack are provided daily by the facility food services in accordance with USDA requirements.

The Dr. Virgie Binford Education Center, operated by the Richmond Public School system, is an
eleven-month academic program. An array of services are provided to include GED preparation,
remedial courses, social skills and basic reading, writing, and math lessons. A principal, several
teachers and support staff operate the facility education program. When a resident is released,
all their grades and testing results are communicated to the resident’s designated school.

SERVICES PROVIDED:
e Direct;

25



Richmor_1c_i_Juver_n_i_l_e__[)etenlign_ Center

Medical and mental health services
Educational enrichment

Emergency and medical transportation
Food service

Social and recreational services
Psycho-Educational groups

Life skills group

Volunteer Services

e & & & & & ¥ ¥

o Services accessed in the community:
e Community service task
¢ Community monitoring program
* Psychiatric and mental health services

26



Richmond Juvenile Detention Center

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
TO THE
DEPARTMENT OF JUVENILE JUSTICE

FACILITY/PROGRAM: Richmond Juvenile Detention Center
SUBMITTED BY: Rodney Baskerville, Superintendent
CERTIFICATION AUDIT DATE: April 20, 2022

CERTIFICATION ANALYST: Learna R. Harris

Under Planned Corrective Action indicate; 1) The cause of the identified area of non-
compliance. 2) The effect on the program. 3) Action that has been taken/will be taken to correct
the standard cited. 4) Action that will be taken to ensure that the problem does not recur.

6VAC35-101-650 (A). Prohibited Actions. CRITICAL
A. The following actions are prohibited:

1. Discrimination in violation of the Constitution of the United States, the
Constitution of the Commonwealth of Virginia, and state and federal statutes and
regulations.

2. Deprivation of drinking water or food necessary to meet a resident’s daily
nutritional needs, except as ordered by a licensed physician for a legitimate medical
purpose and documented in the resident's record;

3.Denial of contacts and visits with the resident’s attorney, a probation officer, the
regulatory authority, a supervising agency representative, or representatives of other
agencies or groups as required by applicable statutes or regulations;

4. Any action that is humiliating, degrading, abusive, or unreasonably impinges upon
the residents’ rights, including but not {imited to any form of physical abuse, sexual
abuse, or sexual harassment;

5. Corporal punishment, which is administered through the intentional inflicting of
pain or discomfort to the body through actions such as, but not limited to (i) striking
or hitting with any part of the body or with an implement; (ii) pinching, pulling, or
shaking; or (iii) any similar action that normally inflicts pain or discomfort;

6. Subjection to unsanitary living conditions;

7. Deprivation of opportunities for bathing or access to toilet facilities, except as

ordered by a licensed physician for a legitimate medical purpose and documented in
the resident's record;

8. Denial of health care;

9. Denial of appropriate services, programs, activities, and treatment;

10. Application of aversive stimuli, except as provided in this chapter or permitted
pursuant to other applicable state regulations. Aversive stimuli means any physical
forces (e.g., sound, electricity, heat, cold, light, water, or noise) or substances (e.g.,
hot pepper, pepper sauce, or pepper spray) measurable in duration and intensity that
when applied to a resident are noxious or painful to the individual resident;

11. Administration of laxatives, enemas, or emetics, except as ordered by a licensed
physician or poison control center for a legitimate medical purpose and documented
in the resident's record;

12. Deprivation of opportunities for sleep or rest, except as ordered by a licensed

27



Richmond Juvenile Detention Center

physician for a legitimate medical purpose and documented in the resident’s record;
13. Use of pharmacological restraints; and
14, Other constitutionally prohibited actions.

Audit Finding:
Three out of six confinement forms reviewed residents were read charges, had hearings,
and offered large muscle activity during sleeping hours.

Program Response

Cause:

Staff/Supervisor did not afford resident(s) to have uninterrupted sleep/rest after receiving a facility
infraction.

Effect on Program:
Failure to enable a resident to receive sufficient sleep/rest.

Planned Corrective Action:

No hearings will be conducted during sleeping hours. All staff will be trained in the Prohibited
Actions regulation to ensure compliance on each action. Supervisors and Superintendent will
review facility documentation to ensure compliance. Individual sessions to be completed with

each supervisor on how to conduct hearings. Staff will be provided a copy of DJJ standards for
detention centers.

Completion Date:
May 9, 2022

Person Responsible:

Protective Services Specialist (PSS) Protective Services Support Supervisor (PSSS) and
Superintendent

Current Status on July 18 2022: Compliant
Four of four applicable cases reviewed no residents were disturbed during sleeping hours.

6VAC35-101-1080 (B). Disciplinary process.
B. Disciplinary report. A disciplinary report shall be completed when it is alleged that a
resident has violated a rule of conduct for which room confinement, including a bedtime
earlier than that provided on the daily schedule, may be imposed as a sanction.
1. All disciplinary reports shall contain the following:
a. A description of the alleged rule violation including the date, time, and location;
b. A listing of any staff present at the time of the alleged rule violation;
c. The signature of the resident and the staff who completed the report; and
d. The sanctions, if any, imposed.
2. A disciplinary report shall not be required when a resident is placed in his room

for a “cooling off” period, in accordance with written procedures, that does not
exceed 60 minutes.

28



Richmond Jt_J_ygniIe Detention Center

Audit Finding:
Six of six cases reviewed alleged rule violations were reported on an Incident report form

instead of a Disciplinary report form, which did not have a place for the resident’s
signature.

Program Response

Cause:

Facility reported/documented violations of conduct within the facility on Incident Forms, instead
of a Disciplinary Report designed specifically for disciplinary violations.

Effect on Program:

Not having a Disciplinary Report with a description, may have hindered resident(s) obtaining a
clear understanding of their violation of a rule of conduct at the facility.

Planned Corrective Action:

A Disciplinary Report Form was created to include description and a resident’s signature. All staff
provided and trained on all forms, provided copies of the regulations supporting the report and
process. All staff will receive a copy of DJJ standards for detention centers. Facility policies will
be updated to reflect any changes in the hearing process.

Completion Date:
May 9, 2022

Person Responsible:
Administration (Superintendent)

Current Status on July 18, 2022: Compliant
The facility has implemented a disciplinary report form,

29



CERTIFICATION AUDIT REPORT
TO THE
DEPARTMENT OF JUVENILE JUSTICE

PROGRAM AUDITED: AUDIT DATES:

Northern Virginia Juvenile Detention Home June 2021

200 South Whiting Street

Alexandria, VA 22304 CERTIFICATION ANALYST:
(703) 751-3700 Clarice T. Booker

Johnitha McNair, Executive Director Kenneth Bailey
JMcNair@jdcnv.org

CURRENT TERM OF CERTIFICATION:
May 15, 2018 - June 1, 2022

REGULATIONS AUDITED:
6VAC35-101 Regulation Governing Juvenile Secure Detention Centers

PREVIOUS AUDIT FINDINGS — January 30, 2018:

6VAC35-101-80 (A) Serious incident reports CRITICAL
6VAC35-101-655 (A) Vulnerable populations

6VAC35-101-870 (B) Written communication between staff; daily log
6VAC35-101-1060 (G) Medication

CURRENT AUDIT FINDINGS — June 28, 2021

98.62% Compliance Rating

No repeat deficiencies from previous audit

6VAC35-101-170 (A). Employee and volunteer background checks. CRITICAL
6VAC35-101-350 (B). Buildings and inspections. CRITICAL

6VAC35-101-350 (C). Buildings and inspections.

6VAC35-101-1200 (A). Individual service plans in post-dispositional detention programs.
6VAC35-101-1210 (A). Progress reports in post-dispositional detention programs

DIRECTOR'S CERTIFICATION ACTION January 13, 2022: Continued the current certification
status of Northern Virginia Juvenile Detention Center June 1, 2022, with instructions to have
completed the necessary security enhancements. (Director Boykin)

CERTIFICATION ACTION August 25 2022: Continued the current certification status to
November 8, 2022. The facility must have the security fencing project completed by that date.
The first priority must be the 10 foot area where the escape took place in June 2021.

TEAM MEMBERS:

Clarice Booker, Team Leader
Deborah Hayes, Central Office
Mark Lewis, Central Office
Shelia Hinton, Central Office
Nikesha Roberts, Central Office
Michael Sayles, Central Office

30



Northern Virginia Juvenile Detention

James McPherson, Central Office
Thomas Gaskins, Central Office

POPULATION SERVED:

Northern Virginia Juvenile Detention Home is a secure custody facility operated by the Juvenile
Detention Commission for Northern Virginia. The members of the Commission include the cities
of Alexandria and Falls Church and the county of Arlington. The facility serves a pre-
dispositional population of 70 male and female residents ages 10 through 17. There is a post-
dispositional detention program for 10 male and female residents, ages 14 through 17, included
in the rated capacity. There is also a CPP unit in the facility, housing eight direct care females
included in the rated capacity.

PROGRAMS AND SERVICES PROVIDED:
In addition to all mandated services Northern Virginia Juvenile Detention Center interacts with the
community in obtaining such services as:

» Psycho-educational groups through the Alexandria Community Service Board

* Counseling and crisis intervention by mental health staff through local jurisdictions
¢ On-site education through the Alexandria Public School System
®

Local religious-based organizations provide youth the opportunity for spiritual guidance as
well as religious services

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
TO THE

DEPARTMENT OF JUVENILE JUSTICE

FACILITY/PROGRAM: Northern Virginia Juvenile Detention Home
SUBMITTED BY: Johnitha McNair, Executive Director
CERTIFICATION AUDIT DATES: June 2021

CERTIFICATION ANALYST: Clarice T. Booker/Kenneth Bailey

Under Planned Corrective Action indicate; 1)} The cause of the identified area of non-
compliance. 2) The effect on the program. 3) Action that has been taken/will be taken to correct
the standard cited. 4) Action that will be taken to ensure that the problem does not recur.

6VAC35-101-350 (B). Buildings and inspections. CRITICAL

A current copy of the facility's annual inspection by fire prevention authorities indicating
that all buildings and equipment are maintained in accordance with the Virginia
Statewide Fire Prevention Code (13VAC5-51) shall be maintained. If the fire prevention
authorities have failed to timely inspect the detention center's buildings and equipment,
documentation of the facility's request to schedule the annual inspection as well as

documentation of any necessary follow-up with fire prevention authorities shall be
maintained.

31



Northern Virginia Juvenile Detention

Audit Finding:
Fire inspections by the Fire Marshall were conducted at the facility on 2/15/2018, 3/16/2018,
2/2212019, 3/1/2019, and 12/23/2020. There was no documentation of a fire inspection

between March 1, 2019 and December 23, 2020, and there was more than 13 months
between the inspections.

Program Response

Cause:

The Fire Marshall reported to the facility on March 22, 2019, as a follow-up to the March 1, 2019
visit (attached). Per Fire Marshall Richard C. Boyd Jr., they did not report to the facility between
March 1, 2019, and December 23, 2020 “due to COVID-19, being understaffed and backed up”.

The facility has requested that Mr. Boyd Jr. put this in writing so it can be on record. A copy of the
correspondence will be sent to DJJ as well.

Effect on Program:
Resulted in non-compliance.

Planned Corrective Action:

On August 24, 2021, the facility Maintenance Engineer, Maurice Moye spoke with Mr. Boyd Jr. to
ask for an update regarding an appointment for them to conduct the fire inspection however he
advised that he's unable to provide a specific date at this time. He further indicated that they are

still, “backed up”. We will continue to remain in contact with the Fire Marshall in an effort to resolve
this area of non-compliance.

Completion Date:
Unknown at this time

Person Responsible:
Maurice Moye and lan Rachal

Status Visit November 8, 2021: Noncompliant

According to Salithea Eubanks, Compliance Manager, Northern Virginia Juvenile Detention
Center is still attempting to get the fire inspection completed by the Fire Marshall. The Fire
Marshalt has not been able to complete the fire inspection due to COVID-19, being under staffed

and being backed up. There is no projected date when the fire inspection will be completed in
person.,

Current Status on August 15, 2022: Compliance
Reviewed a current Alexandria Fire Inspection date 3/05/2022.

6VAC35-101-350 (C). Buildings and inspections.
A current copy of the detention center's annual inspection and approval, in accordance

with state and local inspection laws, regulations, and ordinances, of the systems listed
below shall be maintained. These inspections shall be of the:

32



Northern Virginia Juvenile Detention

1. General sanitation;
2. Sewage disposal system;
3. Water supply; and
4. Food service operations.

Audit Finding:
Sanitation inspections by the Health Department were conducted at the facility on 4/4/2018,

and 6/2/2019. There was no documentation of an inspection between 4/4/2018 and 6/2/2019,
and there were more than 13 months between the inspections.

Program Response

Cause:
N/A

Effect on Program:
N/A

Planned Corrective Action:
A sanitation inspection was completed on September 28, 2018. (attached)

Completion Date:
September 28, 2018

Person Responsible:
Selita Taylor

Current Status: Compliant
The inspection report was located and reviewed by Ken Bailey.

6VAC35-101-1200 (A). Individual service plans in postdispositional detention programs.
A. A written plan of action, the individual service plan, shall be developed and placed in
the resident's record within 30 days following admission and implemented immediately
thereafter. The individual service plan shall:

1. Be revised as necessary and reviewed at intervals; and

2. Specify (i) measurable short-term and long-term goals; (ii) the objectives, strategies, and

time frames for reaching the goals; and (iii) the individuals responsible for carrying out the
plan.

Audit Finding:
There was no documentation of strategies being addressed in two out of three applicable
service plans reviewed.

Program Response

Cause:

Individual service plans to include short-term and long-term goals for post-dispositional residents
were verbally discussed during treatment team meetings with the resident and supervising staff.

33



Northern Virginia Juvenile Detention

However, the facility failed to consistently formally document per 6VAC35-101-1200 (A).

Effect on Program:
The direct effect on the program was incomplete files and inaccurate record keeping.

Planned Corrective Action:

A checklist was developed to be completed by the post-dispositional Case Manager and reviewed
by the Program Manager to ensure compliance. In addition, this standard was added to the case
conference form indicating that the short-term and long-term goals and plans were reviewed by
the treatment team which includes notification of parent/guardian. Case files for post-dispositional
have been updated with sections that mirror the DJJ standards.

Completion Date:
June 28, 2021

Person Responsible:
Lana Powers and Annie Reiney

Status Visit November 8, 2021: Compliant
Two of two applicable service plans reviewed documented the strategies.

6VAC35-101-1210 (A). Progress reports in postdispositional detention programs.

There shall be a documented review of each resident’s progress in accordance with § 16.1-
284.1 of the Code of Virginia. The review shall report the:

1. Resident's progress toward meeting the plan's objectives;

2. Family's involvement; and

3. Continuing needs of the resident.

Audit Finding:
There was no documentation that the family’s involvement and continuing needs of the

resident were addressed in progress reports in three out of three applicable case records
reviewed.

Program Response

Cause:

The facility failed to properly document due to the family involvement section being inadvertently
removed from the progress reports. There was a turnover in leadership for post-dispositional and
this error wasn't identified until October 2020.

Effect on Program:
The direct effect on the program was incomplete files.

Planned Corrective Action:

A checklist was developed to be completed by the post-dispositional Case Manager and reviewed
by the Program Manager to ensure compliance. The resident's progress toward meeting the
plan’s objectives is documented under the Treatment Plan Progress section. Case files for post-
dispositional residents are completed with sections that mirror the DJJ standards and currently,

34



Northern Virginia Juvenile Detention

family involvement is documented in the Family Participation section and continuing needs of the
residents is documented in the Goal section.

Completion Date:
October 20, 2020

Person Responsible:
Lana Powers and Annie Reiney

Status Visit November 8, 2021: Compliant

There was documentation that the family’s involvement and continuing needs of the resident were
addressed in progress reports in two out of two applicable case records reviewed

6VAC35-101-170 (A). Employee and volunteer background checks. CRITICAL

A. Except as provided in subsection B, all persons who (i) accept a position of employment
at, (ii) volunteer on a regular basis and will be alone with a resident in the performance of
their duties, or (iii) provide contractual services directly to a resident on a regular basis
and will be alone with a resident in the performance of that person's duties shall undergo
the following background checks in accordance with § 63.2-1726 of the Code of Virginia to

ascertain whether there are criminal acts or other circumstances that would be detrimental
to the safety of residents:

1. A reference check;

2. A criminal history record check;

3. Fingerprint checks with the Virginia State Police and Federal Bureau of
Investigations (FBI);

4. A central registry check with Child Protective Services; and

5. A driving record check if applicable to the individual's job duties.

Audit Finding:

There was no documentation of reference checks in four out of 10 new staff records
reviewed. The criminal history check in one out of 10 new staff files reviewed was
completed after the date of hire (date of hire 11/30/2020, date of criminal history check was
12/4/2020). The CPS check in one out of 10 new staff files reviewed was completed after
the date of hire (date of hire 11/30/2020, date of CPS check was 12/3/2020).

Program Response

Cause:

A turnover in the Human Resources positions in March and June of 2020 contributed to
miscommunication as to the status of applicants and what had been completed, received, and
maintained as it related to the hiring process. The recruiting, screening, hiring, and onboarding
process was interrupted in the early months of 2020 as a result of the pandemic. For instance,
the CPS check that was completed on the employee on 12/3/2020; after the hire date of
11/30/2020; had previously been received in January of 2020 when the employee was initially
considered for the position. These errors are directly attributed to our effort to bring staff on after
months of delay in the process caused by the pandemic.

35



Northern Virginia Juvenile Detention

Effect on Program:
The direct effect on the program was failing to meet the standard.

Planned Corrective Action:

We recognize that both the delay in hiring caused by the pandemic and the urgency to bring staff
on board contributed to our non-compliance with the standard. To avoid this moving forward,
prior to new hires receiving a start date, an employee personnel action form (which shows the
status of completion of all background checks and pre-employment requirements and the dates
they were reviewed) will be completed and signed by the Executive Director and the Deputy
Director in her absence and maintained in each employee’s file.

Completion Date:
June 9, 2021

Person Responsible:
Selita Taylor and Johnitha McNair

Status Visit November 8, 2021: Compliant
There was documentation of reference checks in three out of three new staff records reviewed.
The criminal history check in three out of three new staff files reviewed was completed prior to

date of hire. The CPS check in three out of three new staff files reviewed was completed prior to
the date of hire. _

ADDENDUM

A significant incident occurred after the conclusion of the audit and necessitates inclusion in
this audit report as there are ongoing compliance issues.

On June 15, 2021, an escape occurred from the recreation yard where a resident was
participating in recreation with two other residents. One staff was assigned to their
supervision. The resident was able to distance himself from staff and scale the wall and
adjacent fence to gain access to the roof of the building. After gaining access the roof he was
able to travel to the back portion of the building jump off the building near the dumpsters
where he was able to scale another fence and continue into the community. He was
apprehended by local police and returned to detention. There were no incidents in the

community. Due to community feedback the concertina wire securing the roof was removed
on May 31, 2020.

Ken Bailey, Certification Manager, reviewed the incident and made the following
determinations.

6VAC35-101-350 (D). Buildings and inspections.

D. Building plans and specifications for new construction, change in use of existing
buildings, and any structural modifications or additions to existing buildings shall
be submitted to and approved by the regulatory authority and by other appropriate
regulatory agencies. Any planned construction, renovation, enlargement, or
expansion ofa detention center shall follow the submission and approval
requirements of the Regulations for State Reimbursement of Local Juvenile

Residential Facility Costs (6VAC35-30) and of any other applicable regulatory
authorities.

Finding:

36



Northern Virginia Juvenile Detention

NVJDC modified the existing building security features without approval of the regulatory
authority. The removal of the barbed wire compromised the security of facility, safety of the
residents, and public safety.

Program Response

Cause:

Both the concertina and barbed wire were removed from two interior fences adjacent to the
housing units and recreation area and one exterior fence which is not accessible from the
recreation yard. It is necessary to note that the outermost perimeter fence adjacent to the
recreation yard never had concertina wire or barbed wire; nor were there modifications made
to it. The outer perimeter fencing, which was not breached and played no part in this incident
is supplemented with no-climb mesh fencing and an inverted overhang designed to prevent
scaling.lt remains in place, without modifications.

The resident was able to access the roof from one of the two interior fences. Once on the
roof, the resident was able to access a fence only accessible from the roof when inside the
facility. Thisunauthorized access to the roof facilitated escape from the facility.

Effect on Program:

Changes to programming activities, specifically the cessation of outdoor recreation. A finding
of non-compliance with the Department of Juvenile Justice's certification standards.

Planned Corrective Action:

We have requested bids to make the fencing inside the perimeter more secure either or both
by increasing the height of the fence with an inveried overhang similar

to the exterior perimeter and adding no climb mesh to the exterior of the fence to cover the

currentchain link. Once a vendor is selected, NVJDC will proceed with securing the areas that
contributedto the escape.

Completion Date:
In progress

Person Responsible:
Johnitha R. McNair

Status Visit November 8, 2021: Noncompliance
The required documents have not been submitted to DJJ for review.

Current Status August 15, 2022: Compliance

The needed plans were submitted to DJJ Chief Deputy Angela Valentine. She noted in an email
of March 8, 2022, that NOVA JDC had done due diligence in ensuring that the work to be done
will meet security standards. With the assurance from the Northern Virginia Detention
Commission that they would not request reimbursement from the State to secure the perimeter,
on March 21, 2022, approval was granted for NOVA to proceed with the project.




Northern Virginia Juvenile Detention

6VAC35-101-530 (A). Control of perimeter.

In accordance with a written plan, the detention center's perimeter shall be
controlled byappropriate means to provide that residents remain within the
perimeter and to prevent unauthorized access by the public.

Finding:
Removal of the barbed wire that was an approved security feature of the facility did not

provide for proper control of the facility perimeter. Nothing was added to secure the
perimeter.

Program Response
Cause:

As stated in the program response in section: 6VAC35-101-350 (D). Buildings and
inspections; the removal of the barbed wire and concertina wire contributed to a breach in
the control of the inner perimeter.

Effect on Program:

Changes to programming activities, specifically the cessation of outdoor recreation. A finding
of non-compliance with the Department of Juvenile Justice’s certification standards.

Planned Corrective Action:

We have requested bids to make the fencing inside the perimeter more secure either or both
by increasing the height of the fence with an inverted overhang similar to the exterior
perimeter and adding no climb mesh to the exterior of the fence to cover the current chain link.
Once a vendor is selected, NVJDC will proceed with securing the areas that compromised
physical security and contributed to the escape.

Completion Date:
In progress

Person Responsible:
Johnitha R. McNair

Status Visit November 8, 2021: Noncompliance
Not modifications have been made to secure the area from escapes.

Current Status on August 15 2022: Noncompliance
The NOVA Detention Commission has approved funding for the project but a final vendor has
not been selected. This decision is expected before the end of August. Johnitha McNair will

give an update on August 25™. A contract has been awarded to Long Fence. Construction is
scheduled to begin October 15, 2022,

6VAC35-101-890 (G). Staff supervision of residents.



Northern Virginia Juvenile Detention

G. Staff shall regulate the movement of residents within the detention center in
accordancewith written procedures.

Finding:

The staff supervising the recreation area was not attentive to his duties and was not posted
in amanner to respond to the incident and show awareness of his surroundings. Video
showed himsitting on a bench engaged with the other two youth while Lopez Kener moved
away from the group and started scaling the fence. Until the area is secured properly

procedures should be modified to require two staff on the recreation yard when residents in
the area.

Program Response

Cause:

Staff failed to maintain a security posture while supervising the residents which providedan
opportunity for the resident to scale the fence gaining access to the roof which led to the
resident’s escape.

Effect on Program:

Changes to programming activities, specifically the cessation of outdoor recreation. A finding
of non-compliance with the Department of Juvenile Justice's certification standards.

Planned Corrective Action:

Until the perimeter is made to be more secure, all recreation will take place in the indoor
gymnasium, Staff was held accountable in keeping with the standards ofconduct and
disciplinary process of the Northern Virginia Juvenile Detention Center.

Completion Date: In progress
Person Responsible: Johnitha R. McNair

Status Visit November 8, 2021: Noncompliance
Staffing levels have not been increased to allow for the needed security on the recreation yard.
Due to the security threat outdoor recreation has been ceased since July 2021.

Current Status on August 15, 2022: Compliance

Residents have returned to outside recreation with increased staffing levels and appropriate
positioning of staff in the recreation yard. This includes a staff member stationed on top of the
building when the resident was able to gain access to the roof and escape.




STATE BOARD OF JUVENILE JUSTICE

BY-LAWS

Revised September 1, 2021

Article 1.

§ 1.01. Establishment and Composition.

The State Board of Juvenile Justice (the “Board”) is established by § 66-4 of the Code of
Virginia. The Board consists of nine members appointed by the Governor and confirmed
by the General Assembly if in session and, if not, at its next succeeding session. Two of
the nine members shall be experienced educators.

Article 2.

§ 2.01. Term of Office.

In accordance with § 66-5 of the Code of Virginia, the term of office of Board members
shall be for four years, except that appointments to fill vacancies shall be for the
remainder of the unexpired terms. No person shall be eligible to serve more than two
successive four-year terms, except that a person appointed to fill a vacancy may be
eligible for two additional, successive four-year terms after the term of the vacancy for
which the person was appointed has expired.

§ 2.02. Orientation.

In accordance with § 2.2-3702 of the Code of Virginia, within two weeks of their
appointment or re-appointment, members of the Board shall (i) be furnished by the
Board's administrator or legal counsel with a copy of the Virginia Freedom of

Information Act (§ 2.2-3700 et seq.), and (ii) read and become familiar with the
provisions of that Act.

§ 2.03. Meetings.

Section 66-8 of the Code of Virginia requires that the Board meet at least four times each
calendar year. The Board shall meet as follows:

(a)  Regular Meetings - Meet once during each calendar quarter at such times and
places as it deems appropriate.

(b)  Special Meetings - Special meetings of the Board may be called by the Chairperson
or, it the Chairperson is absent or disabled, by the Vice chairperson or by any four
members of the Board at such dates, times and places as may be specified in the
call for the meeting.

Last Updated September 1, 2021

40



STATE BOARD OF JUVENILE JUSTICE
BY-LAWS

§ 2.04. Notice.

Al least five days’ notice in writing shall be given to a Board member of the date, time,
and place of all meetings. In accordance with § 2.2-3707 of the Code of Virginia, notice
including the time, date and place of each meeting shall be furnished to any citizen of the
Commonwealth who requests such information. Notices for meetings shall state whether
or not public comment will be received at the meeting, and, if so, the approximate points
during the meeting public comment will be received. Any requests to be notified of
Board meetings on a continual basis shall be made at least once a year, in writing and
shall include the requester’s name, address, zip code, daytime telephone number, email
address (if available) and organization, if applicable. Notice to any citizen of the
Commonwealth who requests such information, reasonable under the circumstance, of

special or emergency meetings shall be given contemporaneously with the notice
provided Board members.

§ 2.05. Board Materials.

With the exception of any materials that are exempt from public disclosure pursuant to
§ 2.2-3705 of the Code of Virginia, at least one copy of all agenda packets and materials
furnished to Board members for a meeting shall be made available for inspection by the
public at the same time such documents are furnished to the members of the Board.

§ 2.06. Cancellation or Rescheduling of Meetings.

The Chairperson may, with the concurrence of a majority of the Board, cancel or
postpone a meeting. The Director of the Department of Juvenile Justice (the “Director”)
shall ensure that proper and immediate public notice is given. In an emergency, the
Chairperson is authorized to cancel, significantly alter, or postpone the meeting time.

§ 2.07. Quorum.

In accordance with § 66-9 of the Code of Virginia, a majority of the current membership
of the Board shall constitute a quorum for all purposes.

§ 2.08. Attendance.

Participation is essential to the fulfillment of the function of membership. The absence of
any member impedes the business of the Board and deprives the Department of Juvenile
Justice {(the “Department”) of the overall policy direction this Board is responsible for
providing. Should any member miss three consecutive regular meetings, or a total of five
or more regular meetings during a calendar year, the Chairperson, following consultation
with the member, is authorized to advise the appropriate Executive Branch ofticial(s). In
accordance with § 66-5 of the Code of Virginia, members of the Board may be suspended
or removed by the Governor at his pleasure.

§ 2.09. Conduct of Business

The Board actively encourages and welcomes public participation in all its public
deliberations. All meetings of the Board, including meetings and work sessions during
which no votes are cast or any decisions made, shall be public meetings, and shall be
conducted in accordance with § 2.2-3707 of the Code of Virginia. Votes shall not be

Last Updated September I, 2021 2

41



STATE BOARD OF JUVENILE JUSTICE
BY-LAWS

taken by written or secret ballot in an open meeting, and minutes shall be recorded at all
public meetings. All meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the principles of
procedures prescribed in Roberts’ Rules of Order.

Article 3. Powers and Duties.

§ 3.01. General Powers and Duties.

Section 66-10 of the Code of Virginia gives the Board the following general powers and
duties:

a) To establish and monitor policies for programs and facilities for which the
Department is responsible by law;

b) To ensure the development of a long-range youth services policy;

¢} To monitor the activities of the Department and its effectiveness in implementing
the policies of the Board;

d) To advise the Governor and Director on matters relating to youth services;

e) To promulgate such regulations as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of
Title 66 of the Code of Virginia and other laws of the Commonwealth;

f} To ensure the development of programs to educate citizens and elicit public
support for the activities of the Department;

g} To establish length-of-stay guidelines for juveniles indeterminately committed to
the Department and to make such guidelines available for public comment;

h) To adopt all necessary regulations for the management and operation of the
schools in the Department, provided that any such regulations do not conflict with
regulations relating to security of the institutions in which the juveniles are
committed; and

i) To establish compulsory minimum entry-level, in-service, and advanced training
standards, as well as the time required for completion of such training, for persons
employed as juvenile correctional ofticers employed at a juvenile correctional
facility as defined in § 66-25.3. For juvenile correctional officers who may have
contact with pregnant residents, such standards shall include training on the
general care of pregnant women, the impact of restraints on pregnant residents
and fetuses, the impact of being placed in restrictive housing or solitary

confinement on pregnant residents, and the impact of body cavity searches on
pregnant residents.

§ 3.02. Additional Specific Powers and Duties.
Various sections of the Code of Virginia give the Board additional specific powers and

duties, both mandatory and discretionary. Such sections of the Code of Virginia include,
but are not limited to, the following:

a) Section 2.2-4007.02 of the Code of Virginia requires the Board to promulgate

regulations for public participation in the formation and development of
regulations.

Last Updated September 1, 2021 3

42



STATE BOARD OF JUVENILE JUSTICE
BY-LAWS

d)

h)

Section 16.1-223 of the Code of Virginia requires the Board to promulgate
regulations governing the security and confidentiality of data in the Virginia
Juvenile Justice Information System.

Section 16.1-233 of the Code of Virginia requires the Board to establish minimum
standards for court service unit staff and related supportive personnel and to
promulgate regulations pertaining to their appointment and functions to the end
that uniform services, insofar as is practical, will be available to juvenile and
domestic relations district courts throughout the Commonwealth.

Section 16.1-284.1 of the Code of Virginia requires the standards established by
the Board for secure juvenile detention centers to require separate services for the
rehabilitation of juveniles placed in post-dispositional dentition programs for
greater than 30 calendar days.

Section 16.1-293.1 of the Code of Virginia requires the Board to promulgate
regulations for the planning and provision of mental health, substance abuse, or
other therapeutic treatment services for persons returning to the community
following commitment to a juvenile correctional center or post-dispositional
detention program.

Section 16.1-309.3 of the Code of Virginia authorizes the Board to approve local
plans for the development, implementation, and operation of a community-based
system of services under the Virginia Juvenile Community Crime Control Act
(Article 12.1 of Title 16.1 of the Code of Virginia). This section also requires the
Board to solicit written comments on the plan from the judge or judges of the
juvenile and domestic relations court, the director of the court service unit, and 1f
applicable, the director of programs established under the Delinquency
Preventions and Youth Development Act (Chapter 3 of Title 66 of the Code of
Virginia).

Section 16.1-309.5 of the Code of Virginia requires the Board to promulgate
regulations to serve as guidelines in evaluating requests for reimbursement of
one-half the cost of construction, enlargement, renovation, purchase, or rental of a
secure juvenile detention center or other home and to ensure the geographically
equitable distribution of state funds provided for such purpose.

Section 16.1-309.9 of the Code of Virginia requires the following:

a. The Board to develop, promulgate, and approve standards for the
development, implementation, operation, and evaluation of a range of
community-based programs, services, and facilities authorized by the
Virginia Juvenile Community Crime Control Act (Article 12.1 of Title
16.1 of the Code of Virginia)

b. The Board to approve minimum standards for the construction and
equipment of secure juvenile detention centers or other facilities and for
the provision of food, clothing, medical attention, and supervision of
juveniles to be housed in these facilities and programs.

Section 16.1-309.10 of the Code of Virginia authorizes the Board to visit, inspect,
and regulate any secure juvenile detention center, group home, or the residential
care facility for children in need of services, delinquent, or alleged delinquent that
is established by a city, county, or any combination thereof.

Last Updated September |, 2021 4

43



STATE BOARD OF JUVENILE WSTICE
BY-LAWS

i} Section 16.1-322.5 of the Code of Virginia requires the Board to approve those
localities creating a Commission for the purpose of financing and constructing a
regional detention or group home. This section also requires the Board to approve
contracts for construction of such facilities.

k) Section 16.1-322.7 of the Code of Virginia requires the Board to make, adopt, and
promulgate regulations governing specific aspects of the private management and
operation of local or regional secure juvenile detention centers or other secure
facilities.

1) Section 66-10.1 of the Code of Virginia requires the Board to promulgate
regulations to effectuate the purposes of Chapter 5.1 (§32.1-162.16 et seq.) of
Title 32.1 of the Code of Virginia governing any human research conducted or
authorized by the Department.

m) Section 66-10.2 of the Code of Virginia requires the Board to promulgate

regulations governing the housing of youth who are detained in a juvenile

correctional facility pursuant to a contract with the federal government and not
committed to such juvenile correctional facility by a court of the Commonwealth.

ai-66 - a¥a "

0) Section 66-23 authorizes the Board to promulgate regulations to govern the
process by which superintendents of juvenile correctional centers consent to
residents applying for driver’s licenses and issue employment certificates;

p) Section 66-24 of the Code of Virginia requires the Board to promulgate
regulations for the certification of community group homes or other residential
care facilities that contract with or are rented for the care of juveniles in direct
state care.

q) Section 66-25.1 of the Code of Virginia requires the Board to promulgate
regulations governing the form and review process for any agreement with a
public or private entity for the operation of a work program for juveniles
committed to the Department.

r) Section 66-25.6 of the Code of Virginia requires the Board to promulgate
regulations governing the private management and operation of juvenile
correctional facilities.

s) Section 66-28 of the Code of Virginia requires the Board to prescribe policies
governing applications for grants pursuant to the Delinquency Prevention and
Youth Development Act (Chapter 3 of Title 66 of the Code of Virginia) and

standards for the operation of programs developed and implemented under the
grants.

-

Article 4.
Committees.

§ 4.01.Special or Ad Hoc Committees

Special or Ad Hoc Committees may be constituted at any time by action of the Board or
the Chairperson. At the time a Special Committec is created, its mission shall be
specifically established by action of the Board or by the Chairperson. In creating such

Last Updated September 1, 2021 5

44



STATE BOARD OF JUVENILE JUSTICE
BY-1LAWS

Special Committees, the Chairperson shall specify the time within which the Committee
is to make its report to the Board.

§ 4.04. Other Appointments,

The Chairperson may designate members of the Board from time to time to serve on
various task forces, advisory councils, and other committees and to serve as laison with
Department functions and state organizations or associations.

Article 5.
Officers.

§ 5.01. Officers Elected from the Board.
The Officers of the Board elected from its membership shall be the Chairperson, Vice-
chairperson and Secretary, who shall each be elected by the Board at its first regular

meeting of the fiscal year. Officers shall serve for a term of one year and shall be eligible
for re-election.

§ 5.02. Chairperson.

The Chairperson shall be the presiding officer of the Board at its meetings. Upon request
of the Board, the Chairperson shall act as its spokesperson or representative and shall
perform such additional duties as may be imposed on that position by an Act of the

General Assembly or by direction of the Board. The Chairperson shall be an ex-officio
member of all Committees of the Board.

§ 5.03. Vice-chairperson.
In the absence of the Chairperson at any meeting or in the event of disability or of a
vacancy in the office, all the powers and duties of the Chairperson shall be vested in the

Vice-chairperson. The Vice-chairperson shall also perform such other duties as may be
imposed by the Board or the Chairperson.

§ 5.04. Secretary.

The Secretary shall (1) review and recommend improvements to Board meeting
procedures and other relevant Board business so as to facilitate the administrative
efficiency of the Board; (2) ensure the development of appropriate resolutions, etc.,
which are needed by the Board from time to time; (3) serve as the Board’s
parliamentarian; (4) work closely with the Department staff who are assigned to provide
administrative assistance to the Board to review and sign minutes and policy documents,
etc.; and (5) to ensure that unique or non-routine materials and equipment are available
for the Board to carry out its functions. In the event that both the Chairperson and Vice-
chairperson are absent at any meeting, the Secretary shall preside over the meeting.

§5.05. Order of Succession in Absence of Officers

In the event that the Chairperson, Vice-chairperson, and Secretary all are absent from a
meeting, the Board member in attendance with the longest tenure on the Board shall be

Last Updated September 1, 2021 6

45



STATE BOARD OF JUVENILE JUSTICE
BY-LAWS

authorized to preside over the meeting. In the event that two or more such members in
attendance have served identical terms, the Director shall be authorized to designate one
of the two Board members to preside over the meeting.

Article 6.
Department of Juvenile Justice.

§ 6.01. Director.

§ 66-1 of the Code of Virginia establishes the Department of Juvenile Justice under the
immediate supervision of a Director who is appointed by the Governor, subject to
confirmation by the General Assembly. In accordance with § 66-2 of the Code of
Virginia, the Director is responsible for supervising the Department and for exercising
such other powers and performing such other duties as may be provided by law or as may
be required of the Director by the Governor and the Secretary of Public Safety. The
Director shall implement such standards and goals of the Board as formulated for local
and community programs and facilities. In accordance with § 16.1-234 of the Code of
Virginia, it shall be the duty of the Department to ensure that minimum standards

established by the Board for court service and other state-operated programs are adhered
to.

§ 6.02. Relationship of the Board and Department.

In keeping with the powers and duties imposed upon the Board and upon the Director by
law, the Board shall regularly meet with the Director in order that the responsibilities of
each are carried out efficiently and cooperatively. The Board shall periodically assess its
needs for administrative assistance and how well those needs are being met, and shall so
advise the Director. In accordance with § 16.1-309.4 of the Code of Virginia, the
Department shall submit to the Board on or before July | of odd-numbered years, a
statewide plan for the establishment and maintenance of a range of institutional and
community-based, diversion, predispositional and postdispositional services to be
reasonably accessible to each court. The Department shall establish procedures to ensure
(i) the superior quality and timeliness of materials submitted to the Board and (ii) that the
Board is informed as early as possible of individuals attending Board meetings.

§ 6.03. Administrative Assistance.

The Department shall provide staff assistance to the Board in carrying out its
administrative duties.

Article 7.
Amendments and Procedural Irregularities.

§ 7.01. Annual Review.
The Board shall review the By-Laws annually to ensure compliance with any
amendments that may have been made to applicable sections of the Code of Virginia.

Last Updated September |, 2021 7

46



STATE BOARD OF JUVENILE JUSTICE
BY-LAWS

§ 7.02. Amendments.

The By-Laws may be amended at any regular or special meeting of the Board by an
affirmative vote of the majority of the Board, provided that the proposed amendment was
included in the notice of the meeting.

§ 7.03. Procedural Irregularities.

Failure to observe procedural provisions of the By-Laws does not affect the validity of
Board actions.

§ 7.04. Effective Date.

The foregoing By-Laws are adopted by the Board and are effective as amended,
September 2the 1, 2021.

Last Updated September 1, 2021 B

47



Virginia Juvenile Community Crime Control Act
FY2023 - FY2024 Summary of Programs

Sum of FY 23 Year | Sum of FY 23 Year | Sum of FY 24 Year | Sum of FY 24 Year
1 Youth 1 Budget 2 Youth 2 Budget

Anger Management 590 $241,362.00 763 $234,102.00
Assessments/Evaluations 29 $27,926.00 29 $27,926.00
Clinical Services 124 $303,658.00 124 $303,658.00
Community Service 1311 $2,256,981.63 1191 $855,412.00
Coordinator/Administrative 50 $373,830.80 50 $356,841.70
Employment/Vocational 63 $121,300.00 63 $121,300.00
Gang intervention 33 $123,329.10 33 $123,5759.10
Gang Prevention 48 $162,373.44 48 $162,623.44
Group Home 261 $1,614,426.77 261 51,614,426.77
Law Related Education 221 $133,362.00 205 $115,186.00
Life Skills 376 $299,984.08 376 $299,984.08
Mentoring 126 $284,665.00 127 $284,467.00
Parenting Skills 239 $158,495.00 239 $158,495.00
POST-D Day & Evening Reporting 66 $611,223.00 66 $623,840.27
POST-D EM & GPS 1049 $1,302,161.26 975 $1,100,208.32
POST-D Outreach 305 $531,811.72 305 $533,123.72
POST-D Sheiter Care 64 $381,079.73 64 $381,079.73
PRE-D EM & GPS 1914 $3,034,810.26 1724 $2,807,676.62
PRE-D Qutreach 388 $2,666,744.43 883 $2,364,082.72
PRE-D Shelter Care 332 $2,412,016.73 152 $662,981.73
Pro-Social Activities 131 $45,470.00 131 $45,470.00
Pro-Social Skills 895 $480,257.41 865 $428,277.72
Restorative Justice 212 $72,225.00 172 $56,441.00
Sex Offender Services 11 $24,150.00 i1 $24,150.00
Shoplifting/Larceny Reduction 262 $37,908.00 260 $37,908.00
Specialized Prevention Programs 112 $65,855.00 117 $65,855.00
Specialized Program Services 464 $548,678.20 438 $447,451.20
Substance Abuse Ed/Treatment 612 $469,971.00 569 $465,651.00
Substance Abuse Prevention 38 $75,053.00 38 $75,053.00
Truancy Intervention 190 $217,137.00 190 $217,137.00
Truancy Prevention 650 $270,142.00 650 $270,142.00
Grand Total 11666 $19,348,387.56 11119 $15,264,530.12

48



Virginia Juvenile Community Crime Control Act
FY2023 - FY2024 Budget Summary

Locality FY2023 MOE | FY2023 State | FY2024 MOE | FY 2024 State
Accomack $0.001 S 23,933.00 S0.001 & 23,933.00
Albemarle $52,231.00| § 71,218.00 $52,231.00| S 71,218.00
Alleghany $3,617.00| S 18,476.00 $3,617.00| $ 18,476.00
Amelia $2,729.00| $ 9,913.00 $2,729.00! $ 9,913.00
Amherst $28,233.00| $ 37,022.00 $28,233.00| $ 37,022.00
Appomattox $332.00| 9,071.00 $332.00| $ 9,071.00
Arlington $270,059.00| § 270,059.00 $270,059.00 $ 270,059.00
Augusta $0.00| $ 26,808.00 $0.00f $ 26,808.00
Bath $0.00! § 6,585.00 $0.00| S 6,585.00
Bedford $14,190.00| § 70,751.00 $14,190.00| $ 70,751.00
Bland $0.00| § 6,585.00 $0.00| § 6,585.00
Botetourt $3,300.00| S 13,138.00 $3,300.00| § 13,138.00
Brunswick $635.00| $§ 11,703.00 $635.00| $  11,703.00
Buchanan $809.00| $ 67,453.00 $809.00[ $ 67,453.00
Buckingham $287.00f $ 8,798.00 $287.00| $ 8,798.00
Campbell $53,024.00] §  53,024.00 $53,024.00| S  53,024.00
Caroline $8,460.00] 5  14,869.00 $8,460.00| S  14,869.00
Carroll $2,940.00| S 18,929.00 $2,940.00| S 18,929.00
Charles City $9,400.00| $ 6,585.00 $9,400.00| $ 6,585.00
Charlotte $268.00} § 12,976.00 $268.00| & 12,976.00
Chesterfield $202,459.00| S 668,292.00 $202,459.00| $ 668,292.00
Clarke $0.00| S 8,990.00 $0.00| & 8,990.00
Craig $0.00! § 6,585.00 $0.00| $ 6,585.00
Culpeper $1,119.00| S 51,802.00 $1,119.00| $  51,802.00
Cumberland $0.00) S 6,585.00 50.00| $ 6,585.00
Dickenson $2,739.00| $ 10,437.00 $2,739.00f § 10,437.00
Dinwiddie $9,014.00[ §  19,549.00 $9,014.00| S  19,549.00
Essex $4,885.00] $  22,825.00 $4,885.00( $  22,825.00
Fairfax County $613,374.00| $ 600,996.00 $613,374.00| S 600,996.00
Fauquier $2,886.00] S 36,836.00 $2,886.00) S 36,836.00
Floyd $0.00| $ 6,585.00 $0.00| § 6,585.00
Fluvanna $0.00| S 6,585.00 50.00| § 6,585.00
Franklin County $10,124.001 §  21,332.00 510,124.00] §  21,332.00
Frederick $0.00; $ 53,031.00 $0.00| S 53,031.00
Giles $385.00| S 9,243.00 $385.00| S 9,243.00
Gloucester $44,727.00| S 44,727.00 $44,727.00| $ 44,727.00
Goochland $0.00| S 6,585.00 $0.00| $ ©,585.00

49



Grayson $0.00f S 6,585.00 $0.00| S 6,585.00
Greene $0.00| $ 7,596.00 $50.00| $ 7,596.00
Greensville $8,668.00| S 6,585.00 $8,668.00] $ 6,585.00
Halifax $10,476.00| § 63,762.00 $10,476.00| § 63,762.00
Hanover $20,556.00| S 81,243.00 $20,556.00| $ 81,243.00
Henrico $209,620.00f S 390,110.00 $209,620.00] $ 390,110.00
Henry $34,009.00| § 131,661.00 $34,009.00| $ 131,661.00
Highland $0.00| $ 6,585.00 50.00] § 6,585.00
Isle of Wight $10,716.00| § 23,984.00 $10,716.00| S 23,984.00
James City $91,512.00| $ 91,512.00 $91,512.00| § 91,512.00
King & Queen $2,535.00f S 9,336.00 $2,535.00| S 9,336.00
King George $1,040.00| §  15,258.00 $1,040.00| $  15,258.00
King William $10,300.00| & 6,951.00 $10,300.00( 5 6,951.00
Lancaster $7,908.00/ $  20,530.00 $7,908.00| S  20,530.00
Lee $3,333.00| $ 27,260.00 $3,333.00| S 27,260.00
Loudoun $145,706.00] $ 145,706.00 $145,706.00| 5 145,706.00
Louisa $1,028.00] $ 9,905.00 $1,028.00! § 9,505.00
Lunenberg $1,047.00; § 13,270.00 $1,047.00| S 13,270.00
Madison $1,494.00| S 6,585.00 $1,494.00| $ 6,585.00
Mathews $10,651.00| § 22,790.00 $10,651.00| $ 22,790.00
Mecklenburg $1,349.001 $  31,360.00 $1,349.00| $  31,360.00
Middlesex $3,241.00| $ 6,585.00 $3,241.00| $ 6,585.00
Montgomery $179.001 &  49,393.00 $179.00l $  49,393.00
Nelson $202.00( S 10,364.00 $202.00( % 10,364.00
New Kent $14,391.00{ § 10,557.00 $14,391.00; S 10,557.00
Northampton $0.001 $  12,336.00 $0.00] $ 12,336.00
Northumberland $6,626.00| § 29,083.00 $6,626.00] 5 29,083.00
Nottoway $617.001 S 19,399.00 $617.00( 5 19,399.00
Orange $2,181.00| $ 21,728.00 $2,181.00| S 21,728.00
Page $0.00! S 30,076.00 $0.00| § 30,076.00
Patrick $5,984.00| $ 25,241.00 $5,984.00| $ 25,241.00
Pittsylvania $29,756.00| S 41,765.00 $29,756.00| § 41,765.00
Powhatan $2,056.00| S 8,468.00 $2,056.00| $ 8,468.00
Prince Edward $0.001 §  10,840.00 $0.00l $ 10,840.00
Prince George $21,972.00| § 52,775.00 $21,972.00| § 52,775.00
Prince William $509,171.00| S 394,413.00 $509,171.00( & 394,413.00
Pulaski $0.00| 5 21,321.00 $0.00| 5 21,321.00
Rappahannock $0.00f $ 8,673.00 $0.00| § 9,673.00
Richmond County $11,698.00| $ 10,751.00 $11,698.00| $ 10,751.00
Roanoke County $24,644.00 $ 179,982.00 $24,644.00| S 179,982.00
Rockbridge $50.00( $ 14,600.00 50.00] S 14,600.00
Rockingham $0.00f $  44,867.00 $0.00[ $§ 44,867.00

50



Russell $411.00] §  28,355.00 $411.00| $  28,355.00
Scott $35.00[ $  23,096.00 $35.001 §  23,096.00
Shenandoah $0.00( $  31,204.00 $0.00( $  31,204.00
Smyth $4,392.00| §  29,786.00 $4,392.00| §  29,786.00
Southampton $6,340.00{ 5  10,485.00 $6,340.00[ §  10,485.00
Spotsylvania $39,655.00| §  84,641.00 $39,655.00| $§  84,641.00
Stafford $37,265.00| $ 107,510.00 $37,265.00{ $ 107,510.00
Surry $6,275.00| $ 6,585.00 $6,275.00| $ 6,585.00
Sussex $3,321.00( S 6,585.00 $3,321.00{ $ 6,585.00
Tazewell $923.00} $  46,689.00 $923.00( $  46,689.00
Warren $0.00| $  36,630.00 $0.00| §  36,630.00
Washington $11,856.00| $  34,727.00 $11,856.00| $  34,727.00
Westmoreland $30,339.00| $  58,808.00 $30,339.00| $  58,808.00
Wise $6,815.00( $  54,899.00 $6,815.00/ $  54,899.00
Wythe $0.00( $  33,156.00 $0.00| §  33,156.00
York $44,146.00f $  54,684.00 $44,146.00] S  54,684.00
Alexandria $95,575.00| $ 185,026.00 $95,575.00( $ 185,026.00
Bristol $9,828.00| ¢  28,057.00 $9,828.00| §  28,057.00
Buena Vista $0.00| $  11,657.00 $0.00| §  11,657.00
Chartottesville $108,415.00( 5 220,840.00 | $108,415.00) 5 220,840.00
Chesapeake $83,014.00] $ 246,857.00 $83,014.00| $ 246,857.00
Colonial Heights $0.00| §  69,080.00 $0.00{ S 69,080.00
Covington $1,054.00| $ 7,575.00 $1,054.00| $ 7,575.00
Danville $26,324.00] $  86,999.00 $26,324.00| $  86,999.00
Emporia $8,917.00| 5 63,101.00 $8,917.00/ § 63,101.00
Fairfax City $0.00] §  12,378.00 $0.001 $  12,378.00
Falls Church $2,815.00| $ 120,679.00 $2,815.00[ $ 120,679.00
Franklin City $6,195.00| §  15,521.00 $6,195.00| $  15,521.00
fFredericksburg $33,165.00| $  54,975.00 $33,165.00( S  54,975.00
Galax $0.00( 5  13,363.00 $0.00[ $  13,363.00
Hampton $110,724.00f $ 315,703.00 $110,724.00| $ 315,703.00
Harrisonburg $0.00| $  41,964.00 $0.00| $  41,964.00
Hopewell $42,913.00} $ 105,185.00 $42,913.00| $ 105,185.00
Lexington $0.00( $ 6,608.00 $0.00| S 6,608.00
Lynchburg $147,370.00( $ 247,716.00 $147,370.00| § 247,716.00
Manassas $2,510.00| $ 59,873.00 $2,510.00 $ 59,873.00
Manassas Park $0.00| $  20,794.00 $0.00| $  20,794.00
Martinsville $22,756.00| $  72,076.00 $22,756.00{ $  72,076.00
Newport News $226,485.00/ 5 339,437.00 $226,485.00| $ 339,437.00
Norfolk $639,899.00] $ 639,899.00 $639,899.00] $ 639,899.00
Norton $10.00| § 12,062.00 $10.00| §  12,062.00
Petersburg $64,836.00{ $  84,000.00 564,836.00] S  84,000.00

51



Poquoson $10,295.00| $  10,295.00 $10,295.00[ §  10,295.00
Portsmouth $45,877.00| $ 184,000.00 $45,877.00 $ 184,000.00
Radford $0.00| $  10,199.00 $0.00] $ 10,199.00
Richmond City $459,084.00| $ 347,683.00 | $459,084.00| $ 347,683.00
Roanoke City $274,384.00] $ 394,210.00 | $274,384.00{ $ 394,210.00
Salem $9,418.00[ §  52,851.00 $9,418.00/ S  52,851.00
Staunton $0.00f $  35,093.00 $0.00| $  35,093.00
Suffolk $57,855.00| $ 124,169.00 $57,855.00] $ 124,169.00
Virginia Beach $662,505.00| $ 869,280.00}| $662,505.00| $ 869,280.00
Waynesboro $0.00] §  55,484.00 $0.00] $  55,484.00
Williamsburg $31,908.00] $  39,383.00 $31,908.00| $  39,383.00
Winchester $0.00[ § 66,337.00 $0.001 $ 66,337.00
$5,922,796.00 | $10,379,921.00 | $5,922,796.00 | $10,379,921.00
$16,302,717.00 $16,302,717

52



"301AUS5 1) JO Jueuioduod e se SITNAISS LJeNN) d-3id Spnjaul osje sl Sd9/IM3 JO 3sn

-BLI3JUD [ESSILUSIP/UOISSILLPE pUB (WaISAs Juauabeus Jolreyaq wesbosd ‘uonesado JO SINOY (S2AIUBDUN PUB SUONJUeS paenpelb Jo walsAs e

uo paseq papa2u se umop/dn dais 1o ueld @ TAEIS JO yibua) /s10eju0d JO 3poul pue Jsqunu :Buipnput ‘NS pue WNo2 AQ paysiqels suonepadxa
weiboid Ipnjaul SN PUB JapIAsd UM YOW ue uBnosyl paysiqelss aq snw saulppinb weifiold SISPIADIE [((-UoU 10) silaulslinhay

"3AIRUIDIIE UONUIISP SANDUISII-2I0W/SS3)
e Wwoly umop/dn paddals YINoA (HT-0T JO 24005 TvQ YIIM) SANELIZIIE UOQUSISP B JO P33U Ul YINoA [euonisodsip-ald TUGRENAD 19018

"$35USY0 3|qRUIRIAP-UOU JaYI0 10 SNIHD J0) PIsn 3 JOU PINoYS S33IAISS JO Aobajed siyL
(5d9) a2mas
Buiwomsed |eqolb 1o (W3} Bunojiuow DB} JO asN ybnoJy) 1NoY Joy AJIIgejiea. S,yanoA sainsse pue Aa1es ognd Loy sapiacad eyl buuouo

(sd9) so128
Buiuoisod 12qo|D
72 (W3) busojiuol

2won313 a-3ud

-B1I3JD [ESSIUSIP/UCISSILIPR pUe ‘WalsAs Juawabeuew Joineyaq weibo.d ‘uonesado Jo SINOY [$DAIUIDUL pUB SUOIURS
pajenpesb Jo WalsAs @ UO paseq papasu se umop/dn dais Jo) ueid e ‘Ae3s Jo Yibua) !S1093U00 JO IPOW pue Jsquinu :Buipnppul ‘NSD pue unod
AqQ paysiqelsa suoneadxa wesboid apn(oul Jsnwl pue Japinodd yam yolW Ue ybnoayl paysiqelss aq snw sauepinb welbold FIUSWLINDaY

BAIBLID](E UONUIIBP JAROUISSY
-210W © WoJ) umop paddals YINoA {($T-0T JO 34005 [v¥d € Yim) SANBUIB)E UORUIIAP & JO pasu ul YINoA |eUCINISOASIp-3ld TUONENG0 39hJeL

“S35UBYO 3|qeU(RIRP-UOU JBYI0 Jo SNIHD 04 Pasn 84 J0U PINOYS S30IAISS JO Aobajed sy
1PEIUCI oapia/auoyd 1o 331) 0] 3384 RIA AJUNILWOD
3y} LIYIM pue ‘Jooyas ‘Blioy Je SPRJUD wopues ybnoIy) UNO2 104 AJN|IGRIIRAR SINCA Sainsse pue A3ajes dijgnd Joj sapiaoad jeyy Bulouo

SIDINIDS
yaeannQ g-Jud

SOAREW)[Y UoRuAAQ [euoRIsodsig-aid

uonexojje 0} |eucrpodold aq
1snws sabequaniad 314 ‘YIS [[d-Uou AQ SSD1AI35 358U JO uonesuadwod 10} 135png YIDO(A 12301 JO %S 1 dn 23ed0|je Aew sueld TSuswaInbay

Buyiiesy 10/pue sbunaaw yIDJCA bupuane
pue ‘spenuod 3dIAIas Bulioyuou/bunenobau ‘saniqisuodsal 19800 e1eq J0/pue ueld ‘UoNeu(pIoe) aWdojRASp ue|d TSpnpul ABWI Sa0IAJES

S39A

35 pue ‘swesboud ‘sued

¥ Ty K O T i b S

TOCA Sbeuew 03 S30IAISS SANBNSIUILPY

SADIAIDS
IARESILIpY
/103eU1pI00)

(1202/60/21 Paiepdn) sadIAIRS pue suielbold Papund YIIICA 3lgemo]|y +T/ETAL T SIqeL

630 1 abed

53



“1901)0 ojo1ed/uoneqosd s UINOA JU3 AG speLL S1oejuod aoedal J0U Op SI9EIUOD BDURJHIAINS [BUONIPPY

‘leaosdde JosiARdNS 11SD INOYIM SARP DANNIISUCD OF J9AC 104 azed v

UIRLUSS JOU PINOYS PUR ‘AW JOA0 35@3S09P 03 ueld € ylim padu Jo Aanas 0 jeuoiyiodosd ‘9IUBADE Ul PAUILIIZIAP 3G ||BYS S10BJU0D JO Jaquinu Ay L
‘UL |BSSIWSIP/UCISSILIPpE pue ‘WaNsAS Juswsbeuew JolAeYaq welbosd ‘uogerado JO SINOY !SIAIJUIIUL pue SUONJURS

pajenpesb Jo WalsAs e uo paseq papaau se umop/dn da)s so) ueid e ‘A1 40 bud| ‘$101U0d JO 3pow pue saquinu Bupnpul ‘NSD AL puR UNod

Aq paysIqeIsa suoneadxe welboud apnjoul 1S pue 1apinold yum YO ue yBnoayy paysqeIsa 3q Jsnw saulapINb wesbold TSRWAINGTY $AIINIBS
yseanno g-1sod

uonisods|p 10) Ynod syl
310j20 YINOA fuoisiaiadns Jo (SIU0IROIA [E2IUYIB] Buioe; YINOA ‘uoisiasadng [eucnippe Jo pasu Ul josed Jo uoneqosd uo yno, TOReNdog 9bie]

voisinadns 3josed/uoneqaid SduRYUD

0] JIPIC Ul 10RJUOY 03pIA/auoyd 40 53B) 0] 331} BIA AJUNLULIOD 3Y) UIyIM pue ‘looyas a0y 03 $19EUCD [rUoIppe $3pIacid Jey) BuUoUo
SuOpIURS pajenpels/jruogisodsig-1sod

$|eLiD)a 5aMAlRS Aduabelajul

“poddns Jlwapede ‘BulRsuNod SB YINS Spasu JUaWIea) SSa2ppe 0] SaDIAIBS JO abues pancsdde Ajeoynads e pue (S)UsLISSasse TSPRPUL SIIARS

UONUR)SP AIN3IS WO UMOP Paddals YINoA ‘SAneWIS)|e uohuslRp
AANDIIS3I-$53] © WO dn paddais YINOA (HT-0T JO 2405 T¥Q B YiM) 3AEUI3)R LORU3IAP € JO P3dU uj LANOA jeuonisodsip-a.d TUONEINAOG JoDJe] | 9Je) 1239YS a-3ud

'$95UBY0 IIQRUIZIAP-UOU JBLIO JO SNIHD 40§ Pasn 5q 10U PINOYS S3IAIRS JO A10BIRD SIYL
'uonuaIep

0 aARUIBYE [euomISOdSIp-a.d B SE Pasn 2ie pue JOIARYSQ WINoA BuiZiiqe)s uo SN0y Jey) swesboud aued [enuspisa (sAep (6 03 dn) wWsl-HouS
JUIWITORABP |NS |RD0S-0id 'SAANAIDE
[EUOESI3] PUE [RUOREINP3 ‘[EININD JURWAOIASP [UOEDOA ruoddns Jnuapeoe ‘uoisiauadns (Buiesuncs ‘uoneyodsuel) TSPNUT SIIAISS

SAEUISNE UONUSIEP FAIILISAs-2I0W/$53) | swesbold buiproday
e woJj umop/dn paddals aNok ((HI-0T JO 21005 [yd € Uim) BAINBLIDIE UOKUDIAP € JO p3au ul YINoA jeuorsodsip-ald TUONENGod J19bIeL Bujuaaz B Aeq
pJanpnils a-3ud
“S25UDYJ0 B|GRUIBIBP-UOU 1310 40 SNIHD J0J Pasn 30 Jou PINOYS S3DIAIS JO Alobages sy
UOIUIIAP DIN3S 0] sARewwd) e |eucnisodsip-aud e se pasn aJe pue ‘{wdpg:£-wdog €
10 sanoy ay) Buunp Ajeadss) sanoy [poyds Jeinbal Jaye Jo Buunp uoisiuadns pue SSNIAIDE PAINDNIS apinoad 1ey) swesboud jenguapisal-UoN

& Jo 7 abeg

54




S|el1a)a1 SIS Aduabelau
‘poddns Jwapede ‘BuljRsuned Se YINs Spadu JUaUIIeal] SSaIppe 0] S30IAI9S JO abues panoadde Aeoynads e pue (SHUBLISSISSE TBPN{UN SaJIAIFS

uoNISOdSIP JOJ LINOD A
210529 YINoA ‘uoisiatadns Jo (Siucnelola |eayds} buie) YINOA ‘uciSadnS JeuoIPPE JO PSBU Ul 3jo1ed 10 LoREqosd UO LINOA TUoOReNUGo ] 9bJe ]

uosiuadns ajoJed /uoneqoid aoueyu3 0} JSPIO LI J0IARY3G YINOA Buiziiqes uo sndoj Jew sweaboud ased jenuaplsal (sAep 06 0 dn) wisl-uous

a4e) J932YS a-1S0d

JuadoRA3p IS [RID0s-04d SANIAIRDE
[PUOQERIIS) PUE [BUCIEINPI ‘[RINYND ‘JUBLLAO[RAIPD |RUOINES0A ‘voddns Jwapede ‘ucisiaadns (Buyasunocd luoneuodsuel) TIPN{UTN SEIATSS

ucnisodsIp 104 WNOJ AU}
210J9q YINOA ‘uoisiaadns Jo (S)ucnelo {ea1uy3] Buidey YINoA ‘uoisiadns (euoRIppe JO paau U 3joled o uoneqoad uo Yino) TUDHEINdod Jobie)

uoisinadns ajosedjucneqosd aoueyud 03 1apso ul (doo: £-wdp:g
40 sunoy ayy Buunp Ajenadsa) sinoy jeoyds Jeinbal Jaye Jo Buunp uosiAladns pue saiARde panns apiaosd ey swesbold |equapisal-uoN

swelboid buproday
Buiuaaz g Aeq
painpnis g-150d

"SIAISS S} 1O JUBUOJUIOD € Se SRS YoraRnQ g-150d 2PN|Jul 0S| ISNW SdD/W3 JO 35N

*1321)0 9joued fuoneqoud sYINOA

3y} Aq Ipeuw SPejuod adejdad 10U Op $1DEIUOD IJUR||IBAINS [BUOIPDY ‘|leacsdde 10s1AU20NS 115D INOYNM SARP SAQNIISUOD OF JIA0 10J ade)d ul
UIBWIA] 30U PINOYS PUB ‘SLUN JIAO 3588103p 03 Ugld @ YIm Paau Jo AJUaASS 03 |euoiodold ‘SoURAPE Ul D3UILLIBIRP 3 (|BYS SPDEIU0D JO J3quinu ay
‘BUIAYLD |2SSILUSIP/UOISSILIPE pue ‘WBlSAS Juawabeuew Joineyaq weibosd {uonessdo Jo sinoy 'S3ANUSIUI PUB SUORIURS pajenpelb Jo WalsAs e uo
paseq papaau se umop/dn dais 10 veld e TAels Jo Yabua) 1SPejuoD JO apow pue Jaquinu Bupnpul ‘NS Y pue VN0 AQ paysiqelss suonerdsdxs
weiboud 3ph|oul 1ISNW pue 13piacid UM YO ue ybnouy) paysiqelsa aq 1snw saulspiné wesbosd SIapiAoad [((-UOU 10} SJUSWRINGSY

uonISodsIp 10) YN0 3Y)
21050 INOA ‘uoISIAINS JO ($)U0iE(0IA [EDILYDS] Buidey YINGA TUCISIAIBNS [euonippe JO paau Ul sjosed 10 uoneqosd uo YIno ) TUSHENAO 19DIe L

(549) a01a19s Buuoysod |eqolb
10 (W3) Buuopuow U3 Jo 25N YBnosp uoisiaadns ajoJed/ucneqoid S3ueyua 0} JOpJC Uj DUR|IIBAINS [euolIppe sapiaoid 1ey) BUUGIUO

(Sd9) a31nlas
Suiuonisod 12qo|D
13 (W3) Gunojiuop
21u04339|3 G-150d

6 Jo € abeg

55



Wea] UoHRUIRIOND YOOICA 3Ul AQ pascidde wesbosd fwnnowInd v SiieWalinboy

(SWOO.ISSEPD WNIUUSIA PIE) BULNJOLS {('S'3'A) ublens absaw3 o TS3JJUIEXT Weibold

swelboad
JOIARYS pajejad Joj (uonpues pajenpeib) (S)uonejom [eauysa) Buise; ajosed /uoneqoud uoRPNpay Ausoie
pasiuadns uo yInoA TAuadle| Jo/pue Burydoys 01 paie)a. sabseys uo (g-150d 10 (J-21d) UN0D 3y 10 YR 310J3q YINOA Tuonendog JebieL JBuiydoys
J0IARY2G Wajqo.d 0) Peal Jeyl SJ9IRg pue ‘sanjea ‘susaned Bunup Buissaippe oneyaq wajgesd 01 saageusaye Buissnasip Isiis Bunjuiyy
|euanbasuod Buidojaaap apnpul os(e Aep {Auade| Jo/pue Buryydoys jo saouanbasuod pue SMe| Sl uo sjuediped ajeonpa jeys sweibold
-AEunjoa Ajus st satued e Aq uonedidiued HSENENIEL]
S3OUIIDJUCD JIPUBHO/WINDIA {BUIDURIDILCI AULNIWOD ‘Buissa20.d 92110 TOPNPDUN SIIIAIRS
swelbold
{uonpues pajenpesd) 250SNE 2ANRI0ISIY

{s)uoiyelola [eauyd3) bue; ajosed /uoneqoid pasiadns uo YINOA {{(J-150d 1O Q-3id) HNGD 3Y) 10 SHEJUI 340489 YINOA TuohHenda jebet

: SWINIA 03 UoNesusdwod JaYI0 JO/pue UoRNISal apniul
0[R2 ARl ‘SJaL0 SIoedwi Joiaeyaq J1BY) moy z1ubod3s 0) pue JoIAeYaq JIBL) Aq pasne3 wiey Jiedas 03 Ayunyoddo ue yineA apinoud Jey) swesbold

Wea| uoHeuIpionn YIID(A Ut Aq paaoidde wesboud/wnnousnd v SI0eWenDay
s9ny ewbay TSa)dwexy wWeibold

(uonpues pajenpelb)
(s)uoneoia [eays2) budey s0led/uoneqold pasiasdns uo YInoA {{g-150d 10 Q-aid) HNOD 3Y) 10 IYRIUI 240SB3] UINOA TUOnendod 19bie |

5153] abpajmouy 150d W aud ‘suonejuasasd pIseq-gam SANDRISII SUOISSNISID dnoaB/[enpiapul SY1Dads-a5U3H0 SPNioUl OS|e ABW [UISAS
1e63] ay3 Jo Bulpueisiapun ue pue ‘AljIgeuNclIde ‘Amqisuodsad 21D Bunowoud Aq suaznd Buipige-mej auiedaq 0) yinoA abeinoous ey swelbold

sweiboad voneanp3a
pajeey me

‘paanbal si (13pIA0ld AAIBS By} Se) AJIE30] Y3 pue [[J US3MI3Q YOIW UV SyUalRInbay

{uoipues pajenpesb)
(s)uoigeloia feawyds) buney sjosed /ucqeqold pasiasadng uo YINoA [((Q-150d 10 Q-24d) HNOD 3y 10 I3EIUI 310J3G YIROA ‘UONEINACd J8DIB L

‘wetboud siyl 10j sjuswannbal

313 19w jou op (uonajdwod BuiAjuaa ‘sauepuane buuojuow ‘sapunyioddo ausyom Jo 151} e Buipinoid) suoje sannp Juswabeuew ased
$3)1SH0M I01J/03 uofepodsurl) ‘sajdpund SAEI0)$3) Jo/pue Bujules) [enos 21210d400U) 0S| AR ‘SONSNIOM

ym sdiysssuped Buiysygeasa B buninioas pue uosiaIRdns Spnpul Jey] LINOA 10} SaIUNUOAdO Yiom 22113 AlunWILod apwold Jey) sweiboid

sweibold
VIS AQIunwwo)

610 i abed

56



Wea L UoIeuIpIon?) YIJICA 843 Aq paacidde wesfoud/wnnound v TSIUSWaIINDay

sWwdoRAIP (IS Palel2J 10) pa3u payuap! ue YIIM sjaled /uoneqo.d
pasiAladng uo YINOA Buip|ing s uawAoidwa Joj paau palnuap! ue Yiim {Q-1504 Jo J-2id) YNOD 3U3 JO el 21053] YINOA ‘uonendog 19Je L

swelbosd

swaleid qof ‘uonepcdsuel) JO UOREUIPIOOD “uawAocidws payoddns/uaistuadns s3s-ue usWdoRASP (IS awiodwa-a1d pue gof Buiasunod
pUB JUSLISSISSE |QUORBI0A 3pNpPuUl Aol “uswAojdws BUILIEIQo Ul WAL ISISSe pue SIS JuawAoidws J1seq yum yInoA auedaud jeyl swesboid

swelbolid [RUOIIEIOA
fiuawAojdwa

LBuiuies) pazierads pue {s)sa.bap ajqesdde yum jeuoissajold Lpjeay |eusu pasusdl e Aq papiaoad 3@ 1SNW S33IAISS TSIURWIRINDaY
SIOIAIDS YA[ESY [RIUBLL J0j PI3U PAYRUBP] UE Yim (Q-150d 40 (0-34d) HNOD 33 JO 3XEIUI 310Jaq LANOA TUORENCd0g J9DJEL

oo ‘Adesayy Jisnw ‘Adesay) We TAdessy)
suinba ‘Buijasunoa awoy-ul ‘Buljssunod Ajwey Jo ‘dnoib ‘lenpiaipu) apnjoul Aely {Aiwey pue YInoA JO Spasu au} 1esw 0] S8DIAISS Y eay |ejusiy

SONALSS [EDIUID

LBules pazienads pue (s)aa.62p aigedidde yum jeuoissajoid Lyjeay |ejual pasuadl e Aq papinosd 90 1SNW SDIAISS TTIUBWBINGoY

I0IARY3q P3IE) 40y (Uondues pajenpelb) (s)uoiiejon [eauya) buey 3|o.4ed juoeqoud
pasiaiadns uo LANGA ‘uoissaibbe Jo/pue 3UB|oIA 0) palejRs sabieyd uo (Q-150d 40 Q-21d) ¥No> 34} 10 Ul 3JoPq YINoA TUONEING0d J9bIEL

s|s Buido pue ‘|jonuod-asndut
‘BUINOS WIGoUd JO JUIWAOISAID 'SUOURAITIUI {BJOIABYR] SAIMUBOD fS|14s UONEINB2.-)35 S|IS UOIN|OS3] JJIPUOD UCHeINPS pue Buyjasunod
0§ Wa)goad pue BUIEIIUNWILIOD JO SUB3W

AT AT o

6 40 5 abeg

suonjebigoe
PRIIPIO-LINOY 10 UOISJAAIP [[IJINJ 03 J3PIO Ul SADIAISS |EDIUIP Buuinbad ((-150d 40 g-21d) HNOD Y3 JO IYEIU! 310J5q YINOA UOREINCOd 1abJeL \M_MO_HMMM«_
-wesbosd Sy J04 SJUBWIRINDIL 1Y) 193U JoU S3IOP ISSYS UL
*suONEBIC PaJapi0 WN0S 10 uejd UOISIBAIP [{JIN} 0F JSPIO Ul SBOIAIS [eIUl2 HuLIiNbas YINOA 10} SUONEN|BAS/SJUBWISSISSY
Wea] UORBUIPIOO? YIOICA 3U) Aq paacsdde weabod/wninouind
e 10 Buuen pazijeinads pue {s)aalbap aqeddde yim [euoissajosd sy jEuaw pasusdy e Aq papinoid 8q ISNW SNIASS TSIUSWRINDIY
(SLLvd) suonens ybnoL
0] SSAIRUIAYY [NJ3dR3d ‘SWOOISSE|D) WU PIE {(apL) abueyd e 1og Bunjuiyl ((1Hy) Adessyl Juswaseday uoissau6by TS[dluex] Welbold
swesbouid

juawpbeueyy Jabuy

153NS |

57



WEe3] UORBUIPIO0D YIDICA 84t Ag pancidde wesBosdwn|naiund vy SIUWaInbay

satjiwed Buuayibuans ! y1ay1abo) s|ooyss B saliwed 1Sy ‘peq £/bz ‘1al0Id JuBled BitL TSI 0eXg Wehold

swesboid
ajosed /uoneqosd siins Buguased

pasiadns uo 1o {(g-150d 40 J-8.d) HNod au Jo 3jelul 310jq UyInoA Jo suoddns [esnyeu/SIayeIaed/sueipiend /siualed TUCHENdO 190 e ]

saanen pooysayie; ‘Buuwesbord Jusiadiod Ajjesnyn> “usuuamodud ueipient uaied apnjoul Aely YINoA paAjoAul-230snf jo spoddns
[eanjeu/siaxeaed/sueipsenb/siussed agy 0y woddns apiaaud pue ‘s|pis Bunuased acueyud ‘suoinjos punuased aagisod pyng o3 paubisap sweiboid

Wea| UONBUIPIOTY) YOII(A Y3 Aq paaoidde wesbosd unjnowng v  TSI0SWRINbay
eubIiA ¥OLNIW TSejdWexg Welboid
paau paynuap! ue yiim ajosed/uoneqoid pasiaiadns uo YINoA {q-1504 10 Q-2id) MNOD S 10 SHEIUN 240435 LINOA TGonendog jebie] | swesboug Bunojuop

Buiuiesy (1S jeuosiadiaiul Lolneyaq aanisod
Buiyoeos pue Buuouia) ‘Buisiape swsiueydasw buidod pue Sjis [erosoad Buiyoes)/bu)spow apnoul ARty 1|RJSSE00NS 3q pue s|ecb 1121 J9vW
0] YinoA 1oy sanunpoddo ssueyus pue ‘apinG “poddns o) [Fpow 3j0)/dysuoneal npe aasod e Buipiaosd Aq Aduaiadwod ping Jeu) sweliboug

58

Wea | UONBUIPIOD) YOIII[A 343 AQ pascsdde weuboid fuimnauind ESUEE =T

3y 13(01d ‘ISSTY ‘Bullies] SIS UIAOG SINS 21 A3seD TSI|dUIEXT WeIbold

JURWAOBAIP SHINS 3j)| JO} PI3L PAYNUSPI Ue Yum ((1-1504 10 O-34d) UNOD 3Y) JO IYEU! 31043q LAINOA T0oneINdo  19bJe], | swesboid S|INS
SwasAs Poddns pue sdiysuonea: Auiieay Jo JuawdoRasp Sms Buia Juspuadapul JuawdolsAap (NS [euos.adialul Jo/pue

‘Bupjel-sandadsiad [enos ‘Bumss eob ‘Bunjuiy [enusnbasuod !paau DusbouIILY PAYNUIP! S LANOA UO paseq SIDIAIBS PIZIeNpIAIpU 3pniou
Aely ‘suazijn sapnpoad awodsq 0] s10iAeyaq Ayleay pue [24305-0.0 BuUILIEIUIBLL Ul YINOA 1SISSE 0] JUSWdofRASp (|XS Sj0t0sd Jey) sweibosd

Wea L UoneuIpIoo]) YIIDCA 3Ul AQ paacsdde wesbosd Aun|naiund TUawaInbay
{(dvA) sweiboid 21e30ApY WANoA "1y 3y'D) Buies ] pue uoneinp3 adUesISIY fues ‘WnNXLIND XIUdoyd 3y | TSI[0Wex] Welbold

pasu paYIuSp! ue yim m_o._m&co.um.aoa sweibosd
pasiaadng Uo WINoA AuaLuaajoaul bueb 01 pajeR. sabieyd uo (Q-1sod 10 Q-34d) 1N0I 33 10 MjeU 10439 AINOA TUCHEINGO Jabie L uonuaasur Buey

uawaded/Buiuies qol fjeaowal

00nE ‘SaNIANDR pue ‘sedeld ‘spoddns jepos-oud 01 YInoA BunIdLL0d 'BulESUNOD dnosb/Anwey/enpiapul ‘spoddns pue S321AJ9S punoiedesm
‘BUIyIe0d/BULICIUSW uBWSAAUl Bueb Souanjul 1ey) s10ey AunWWod pue Ajiwe) ‘yInoA Buissaippe pue BuIAJIUSP) SIS |eSnJR1/SDURISISD.
pue ‘BuieLl uoISIDp ‘BuBURY [BINLD Ul YINOA 1SISSE 03 JuaLdoiaaap (NS spnpul Aep Huswanoaul Bueb 3onpa) 0y paubisap sweiboid

& J0 9 3bed



Wea] UONEUIPIoOD YIDIIA Ul AQ pasoidde
wesBoad wninawing e Jo ,Buluiely pazijeiseds pue {s)9a1Bap a|gedidde im [euoissajoud pasusdy e Aq papircid 3G 1SNW SaDIAIRS TSIURWIAINDaY

JolARY3q pajejsd Jo) (Londues palenpesb) (sjuone|ola |eaIuI) Bupey ajosed/ucneqosd
pasiuadng uo LINOA {joyod|e 1o sbrup o) pajes) sabuey? U0 ((-150d JO (J-24d) UNO3 B} 1O SHEIUI 31053q YINOA LonEN Od 9081

-weiboad sy 104 SUAWBNNDIL BY) 193LL 10U SI0P ISSYS SYL

“201AI5S papnxa ue si auole Bupsa) Bug ruonessiuiwpe

welb01d JUBLLEIRAI] LM UOHIDUN[UGD Ul SUOP UYM AJUC JBPIAOI 3DIAISS BY) Aq panpuod aq Aew Bunsal Bnip Jayio pue ! jazAjeyiealq ‘sisAleulin
JuaLIIEaA/BUIISUNOD BSNOE 3JUBISQNS TLUONEINPE 3SNge 3dueIsqns apnpul Al LJoIARYSq Wajgoad Jayuny

pIoAR 0] pue ‘a4 joyodje pue Bnip Bululewsas Ul YInoA ay) Isisse ‘3sn adueIsans [eB3)1 jo 530uaNbAsL0d 33 LINCA ydea) o) paubisap swieiboid

swielboud Juawiessl
fuonednp3
asnqy adueIsqns

Wea] UONeUIpIo0D YODI(A 3Ul AQ paacudde
wesboid/wnnound e 1o ,Buiuen paziienads pue (s)aa169p ageaydde yum Jeuoissajosd pasuddl e Aq papinoud 3q 1S SAIAIES RS TENEN LT

sJ0IABYSQq BUIpURYO |BNXIS JO/puk
*Aydesbowad ‘6unxas o) pajejal sebieyd uo ajcued/uoneqoud pasiuadns uo Jo (Q-150d 10 g-34d) WNOD JO el 310130 INOA TuoneNdod 39bJeL

Jusunean/BuRsuno) dnoib pue ‘Auey ‘lenpiapul ‘uoneanpa Alepuncq jeuossad ‘uoneanps
Buixas 3pnjoul AR ‘SJ01ARYDRG BUIPUALO [ENX3S JO JUDLIERI) JO/pUe UoledInpa ybnoJyy Alages dignd 3owoud Jey) Seoimss pue swesbold

S3JIAIDS
JIpUBYPO XIS

Wea | uoIeuIpIoo? YDA 343 Aq paacidde welbold/wninoiund Sjuolalinboy

(MOM) pooyuewop, uo Bunpom ‘weibold (Wv'a) uel e bulwodag
'3 Ajun ‘uaty BUNCA pug SA0g 40) [1PUNOD 3YL 1BDJD SPID [SWOISSE|D WHULIIIA PJIE {opL) abuey) v 104 Bupuy TS3AWEX3 welbold

siope) aaddcad uspbuans
0] pasu paunuap! ue yum 3josed/ucneqosd pasiasadns ue YInoA (@-150d 10 G-21d) UNOI 3U} 10 MEIUI 210J3Q LANOA TUORET0] | JobIeL

101ARY2q wajqosd 03 3INQUIU0D 1BY] SJ31[2Q pue ‘sanjea ‘sulaped
Bunjuiy Buissalppe ‘uopesyueD anjeA pue WBWAORAIP 1adeleyd ‘Buwwiesboud synads sapuab ‘suonuaaalul (_I0lABYRg aaubod apnjppul
Aely siis Bupjuiyl jeruanbasuod aacidwi pUR SI0IABYDG [ernos-oad 32URLUS 0) S|IPS Yoed] 18Uyl YINOA JO SPBaU {eNpIAIpUl Su) 0] paJo)|1e) swesboud

swesbold
S|IMS [e130S-0dd

-uepd ayy uo welboid suaepuess B 3q 1snuw Ae63)ed Sy "Wea L UORBUIPIoAD YIDJ[A 3P WOL) PRARDSY 30 1SNW [RACIddR J0Ud THIUAWRINDIY
paau paynuap! ue yim josed /uoneqosd pasiuadns uo YINoA !(d-150d JO -34d) BNOJ 9] 10 3YEIUI 103G YINOA UONEINKIOd 12DIB]

Bunsay g35 yum pajelosse
51507 !SISSBI/SLI0SSY| SANAIIDR |BINYIND [SIIAIIIR JRINJLUNDRIXD (SINIAIIE [BUONR3IIRL PRIniInils apnpoul Ay ‘sananoe |eros-oad ybnoayl
ASUSNbUIBP 34N3NJ J0) POOLIENI SONP3J PUB ‘JUWBOI0JUIRI dARISOd apiaoad ‘s10e) aARRN0NA PING Jey] SIRIARDe pue 'SaDIAIRS ‘suueibold

SaNIADY |e120S-01d

6 Jo ¢ abed

59



BUASUNG) JO PIEOG SUOISS3J0Id YIIEH JO 1020 VA 243 01 Pajulf Jou Ing bi

oo ‘aonpesd Jo adods pue suonemnbas UM SIUeldiios
VIIO(A (€30 Buipn/ou) S13pincid 32IAJ3S Y «

U Buessdo 5q JSMU pue SpenuspaLy [euoissyosd painbai oy 5595500 IS (SISDINOKT PIIICINIOD PUE SISA0ITLUI DAPUN)-
"SiualLRANDa) UOREDYILIZD pue ‘Al01enbal TBuISUR0)| 199 1SNy ESTIET Elm_: o

paau paynuap! ue yym 3josed/ucieqosd pasiuadns uo YINoA ((1-150d 10 g-aid) HNOD a3 310J2q INOA TUOCHEINAO J9DIE]L

swelbosd
auwoH dnoug

e Ut Juswadeld Sapn|au| JUSLUCIIAUD 3iNJ35-UouU e Ul Juatuaae|d |enuapisal e aplaosd Jeyl sweiboud
Cni I : PR St SR, e e e

o i ke

Wea | UoReuIpIoo)) YIOOC0A U3 WOl paaiadal 3q 1snul jeAciddy SUBWRINDaY

39195 pasanbal 1oy pasu Bunesipul/ol pajesss (uonoues pajenpelB) (S)Uone(oA [eDUYD3) Bupe; ajcsed /Juoneqoad
pasIAIadns LO LAINOA ‘21as paisanbadl 9y} 01 pajejRs sabieyd uo (Q-150d 10 d-2Jd) HNOD B3 JO SHEI 240)5q YINOA TUOARINGC JobJeL

15117 $SIDIAIBS I|GEMOJY SU3 U0 PaUIpnG wesboud
10 9IIAIBS Aue 3PNPIU] ABW $331A19S *ueld WDDIDCA JUSLIND BU3 UM 10) papiaosd 10U aJe Jeu S30IMIRS JO I5eydInd 3y 10 pajedo)|e Buipuny

{s9a11u35 ueld
uoisiaadng ALBWI0Y)
SINAIIS
weibold pazijenads

Wes| UOKeupIc0D YOIOIA 3 Aq paacsdde wesbouid/wninownd v “ﬂcuEm.__qum

(dvA) Aoueni] — welbold S1e30ADY LANOA "paloid ateg Ag $S800NS o) Spiy JnQ buuedald DiIoMmIBN ISTH
Aq suoddng yaes) uQ !snwog Aq welbold Juawabebug [00Y2S 11IBUUCD pue AU (dIWY) weibold BulIoIUB JUSWBASIYDY Sojduiexg Weibold

JCIARY2q palejal 10§ (uonoues
pa:enpelb) (s)uonejoin jearuya) bune) sjosed/uoneqoud pasiuadng uo YINoA suoniad AJuentL-SNTHD 104 3xelul 240430 UINOA ruonendog Jabie]

4No3 ugsy/swelboid HNOD ANRUIDYE

'sapnpead aARI01SaL/UOnRIP3IW paseq-Adueny) suoddns Jlwapede !S3JIAIRS SSaulpea) Jsaued B abayjoo ‘Buiping diysuone;as JaydeslJuspms
'SHSIA BLWIOY ‘sjjed dn-syem/AJjIqeauncoe BuLIOW ‘SSIAIRS UONISUBL] JALIWNS ‘SPIEMS] PUR SBAQURUI ‘Buipsunod pue Buiyieod/Huliojuaw
apnpul Agp ‘a3uepuanle {ooyds O] sialeq Buissauppe AQ JUSWIAJ0AUL UN0D JBYHNj 3JNpal pue Juawabebua [ooyds aacsdw Jey) sweaboid

swesboasd
uoOnUAAISJUL Aduenst

6 Jo g abieg

60



‘BUYISUNG? JO PIBOG SUOISSSIOLY YIESH JO 94367 A SYF 0) Pyl Jou g BUprdul ‘o308l JO 30008 pue SUCHEINDaI UM UBHd03
wt BUBEIRCE 3 JSMU PUE SIBUBPRLD [eUOISSajoId pasnbas ay3 ssassod jsnul (ssopmord papenuos pue s394 oydiwa papuny-¥I20(/ 18301 Buipnjauy) suapiAcid 33IAIBS [V
0ea) UOREUIPIO0) VOILA 243 Aq parcidde wesbo.d/wninduind y -Sjusiusuinbay

swesbod
JUSLUAAJOAUT WILSAS 3a1sn( 3uaan( Joy ysu-3e bulaq se *j00] JuaWSSAsse panosdde ue AQ ‘PaYIUSP! US3G 3ARY OUM LINCA ‘uonejndod J9belL | |, un:u:u..m.. _uonnn_ sads

wiaIsAs aonsnl 3juaAn{ 3y ul panoaul Buiwodeq woly YINOA JuaARId 0F SEDIAIRS Pazi|eidads apinoad eyl swelbold

Wea| uoeuipionD YIII0A 341 AQ paaoidde wiesbod WninouLng v TSIUSWLIIND3Y

diysisupey wawabebu3 jooyds Amay ((ddL) weiboid Ynoo) Aduensy !S|coyRS Ul $IUNLIWG)D (doL)
wesbold UDRAIING LIS S,URWAM (dvA) Aduen.) — weabold 31e20APY YINOA alo1d JUaRd Ag $S200NS JoJ SpIY InQ Bunedaid HuomIaN 3STY

Aq spoddhs yae1] UQ ‘snwog Aq weabolg wawabebu3 jooys 103UU0D) pue Y3 {(dINY) Wesbold BULIoIUS WDLWRAIDY So|dWexs Welbold
swesbold

Aduenuy 1oy ysi-1e Bulaq se ‘o] UAWSsIsse pasoidde ue Aq ‘paunuUap! USAq IABY OUM UINOA TUOREINTO4 J9bIR] | UOIU3A3Ld Asuena)

subledwe? ssaualeme Aduenu) unod us/suielboid 1nod sanewsaye 'saonpesd aalel0lSal/uoneIpow

paseq-Auent) ‘uawabeurw 35D ‘SU0dINS JWAPEIR ISINAISS SS3UIPRI 19380 B aba102 ‘Buipiing diysuonejas 13Yde1/1uspnis

SHSIA BWOY ‘S1eD dn-2xem/AuIqeIunoIde BUILIOW !SaDIAISS UDIHISURI] JBLULINS ‘Spaemal pue saARuadul [buldsunod pue Buiyseod/Hunoua
apnput Aeyy ‘aduepuane [00Yds 0) siswleq Buissauppe Ag Juenn BUILOD3q WOy YINOA Juaaasd pue Juawabebua eoyds arcidun jey swelbolg

wieat UONBUIPI00D) YOJICA oWt AG paaoidde
wes60.d /wnnawn e lo Buen paziensds pue (5)9.163p ajqeandde yum [euoissajoid pasuad e Ag papiacad 3q 1SN S3JIAIS SSUSWalinbay

asnqe aJueISGNS 10§ YSU-1e Bulag se ‘|o0) Judlssasse panoidde ue AQ ‘payNUBP! UB3Q 3ABY OYM RNOA UOREINDOd JSDIe] swelbold VoRUIAISY

asnqy adueIsqns
231095 panqiyeud e st Buissy Brup Jatpo pue ‘JazAieyieasq ‘sishleutin
BuIjasUNCD pue “JuRWssasse ‘(ISSYS "@'1) Bulualds sNge 3JUBISGNS (UONEINPS ISNqe BauRsqns
apnjoul B ‘931y (0yodJe pue Brup BulleWAI LI YINOA Sy} ISISSe ‘BSN aoUeIsqaNS [eBap Jo S9auaNbasuCT ay) LANoA yaea] o) paubisap swesbold
Wwea| uoneuIpJood YIJICA 343 Aq paacidde weiBold/wnjniuind ESTENTENNER
{dvA) Swelbold S1e0ApY LINOA ("L'y"3'Y'D) Bullled | pue uoneInp3 souelsisay Bues “URINJLIND XIUSold 3y TSICWeX] Weibold
WAL Bueb Joj ysu-1e Buiaq Se ‘|00) JULSSsse paroidde ue AQ ‘p3HNUIPI US( ALY OYM LANOA TUBHBNAO JSbieL swesboud

UOIUBADId Buen
Juawded/Buiel) qol {[pacwal oonel ‘ssniape

pue ‘sase|d ‘suoddns (e10s-oid 03 YInoA Burpauuod Gujpsuncd dnoub/Ajiue)/lenpiapur Juawsbeuew ased/spoddns pue sadlues punosedesm
"Buiyre0s/BuuoiuaL uawRAlcAul BueG 3duaNYUI JBY] SI030RY AJUNLILLCD pue Alwiey ‘Ino4 Buissauppe pue BUIAJUBP! SIS (ESNJRL/BOURISISII
pue ‘Bupjew uiSAP ‘Bunuyl [EMI U YINOA JSISSe 0] BWwdo@ARp (IS FPNPUL ARl Juatuaajoal) Bueb juaaad o} paubisap sweibold

(1202/60/21 pa1epdn) S32MAIDS pue Swelbold UOIIUBARI PapPUNd YIDIIA 3iqemolly vZ/EZ Ad T JIqel

6 40 6 dbeyd

61



DEPARTMENT OF JUVENILE JUSTICE

REGULATORY AND GUIDANCE DOCUMENT UPDATE

September 21, 2022

ACTIONS WITH RECENT UPDATES:

6VAC35-30

6VAC35-35

6VAC35-41

6VAC35-71

Regulation Governing State Reimbursement of Local Juvenile Residential Facility
Costs

Regulation Governing the Process for Planning, Designing, and Constructing
Locally Funded Juvenile Residential Facilities (*New)

Stage: NOIRA (Standard Regulatory Process)

Status: This action involves a comprehensive overhaul of the process localities follow to
obtain state reimbursement for local facility construction and renovation projects and
proposes a new process for localities that have no plans to seek reimbursement for such
projects. The NOIRA has completed Executive Branch review, and was published in the

Virginia Register on February 1, 2021. The 30-day public comment period generated no
comments.

Next step: The board approved the proposed amendments on April 7, 2021, for
advancement to the Proposed Stage of the standard regulatory process. The department

continues its preparations to advance the approved amendments for Executive Branch
review,

Regulation Governing Juvenile Group Homes and Halfway Houses
Stage: Proposed (Standard Regulatory Process)

Status: This regulation was last amended effective January 1, 2014. This action involves
a comprehensive review of the regulatory requirements. The NOIRA was published in
the Virginia Register on October 31, 2016, we received no public comments. The action
was submitted through the Proposed Stage on April 17, 2020, has undergone Executive
Branch review, and was published in the Virginia Register on May 24, 2021. The 60-day
public comment period ended on July 23, 2021, with no public comments.

Next step: The reconvened workgroup has resumed meetings to prepare this regulation
for advancement to the Final Stage of the standard regulatory process.

Regulation Governing Juvenile Correctional Centers
Stage: Revised Proposed (Standard Regulatory Process).

Status: This regulation became effective on January 1, 2014. This action involves a
comprehensive review of the regulatory requirements. The NOIRA was published in the
Virginia Register on October 3, 2016. At the NOIRA stage, no public comments were
submitted. The Proposed action was certified by the Office of the Attorney General,
approved by DPB, the SPSHS, and the Governor’s Office; and subsequently published
in the Virginia Register on September 30, 2019. The 60-day public comment period

62



6VAC35-101

6VAC35-180

6VAC35-200

ended on November 29, 2019, Significant changes were made after the Proposed Stage,
so the action was advanced through a Revised Proposed Stage, which was submitted on
August 31, 2021, The Revised Proposed Stage completed Exccutive Branch review on
January 4, 2022. It was published in the Virginia Register on February 14, 2022, and a

30-day public comment period followed, ending on March 16, 2022. There were no
public comments.

Next step: The department plans to present the proposed final language to the Board at
its September 21, 2022, meeting for approval to advance to the Final Stage of the
standard regulatory process.

Regulation Governing Juvenile Secure Detention Centers
Stage: Proposed (Standard Regulatory Process)

Status: This regulation became effective on January 1, 2014. This action involves a
comprehensive review of the regulatory requirements. The NOIRA was published in the
Virginia Register on October 17, 2016, and yielded no public comments. The action was
submitted through the Proposed Stage on September 3, 2019, completed Executive
Branch review, and was published in the Virginia Register of Regulations on May 24,
2021. The 60-day public comment period ended on July 23, 2021, and resulted in two
public comments. The reconvened workgroup held its last meeting on December 6, 2021.

At its April 20, 2022, meeting, the Board authorized the Department to submit this
regulation to the Final Stage.

Next step: This regulation is undergoing review at the Office of the Attorney General,
after which it will advance to the Department of Planning and Budget, followed by the
Secretary’s office and the Governor’s office.

Regulations Governing Mental Health Services Transition Plans for Incarcerated
Juveniles

Stage: NOIRA (Standard Regulatory Process)

Status: This regulation became effective January 1, 2008, and has never been amended.
This action involves a comprehensive overhaul of the regulatory requirements to ensure
the continued provision of post-release services for incarcerated juveniles with a
substance abuse, mental health, or other therapeutic need. The NOIRA completed
Executive Branch review on January 4, 2022, and subsequently was published in the
Virginia Register on February 14, 2022, The required 30-day public comment period
ended on March 16, 2022, and yielded no comments.

Next step: The department has convened a workgroup to prepare the text for the
Proposed Stage of the standard regulatory process.

Regulations Governing Youth Detained Pursuant to Federal Contracts (*New)

Stage: NOIRA (Standard Regulatory Process)

63



Status: This action secks to establish new regulations applicable to programs for youth
detained in juvenile correctional facilities pursuant to contracts with the federal
government. The action is intended to carry out the legislative directive in Chapter 599
of the 2020 Acts ot Assembly. The NOIRA action has undergone DPB, SPSHS, and
Governor’s Office review, was published in the Firginia Register on March 1, 2021, and
the public comment period ending on March 31, 2021, yielded no public comment.

Next step: The department plans to present the proposed language for this regulation to
the Board at its September 21, 2022, meeting for approval to advance to the Proposed
Stage.

64



. P.O. Box 1110
S:Tixr Floriano COWONWEALTI’I OF V]R.G]NIA Richmond, V:‘232l8

. : 804) 371.0700
Department of Juvenile Justice Fax: Esm; 371 6497

www.djj.virginia.gov

TO: State Board of Juvenile Justice
FROM: Virginia Department of Juvenile Justice

SUBJECT: Request Authorization to Submit Amendments to the Regulation Governing Juvenile Correctional
Centers (6VAC35-71) to the Final Stage of the Standard Regulatory Process

DATE.: September 21, 2022

I. SUMMARY OF ACTION REQUESTED

The Department of Juvenile Justice (the department) respectfully requests the State Board of Juvenile Justice (the
board) to authorize amendments to the Regulation Governing Juvenile Correctional Centers (6VAC35-71) for
advancement to the Final stage of the standard regulatory process pursuant to the Administrative Process Act set
forth in § 2.2-4000 et seq. of the Code of Virginia. The proposed amendments are intended to impact the Bon Air
Juvenile Correctional Center, as well as any juvenile correctional centers that may be constructed in the

Commonwealth in the future. These amendments also will apply to any future privately operated juvenile
correctional centers.

I1. BACKGROUND OF THE REVIEWS

Pursuant to § 66-10 of the Code of Virginia, the board has the authority to promulgate regulations “necessary to
carry out the provisions of this title and other laws of the Commonwealth.” This includes the authority to adopt
regulations governing the operation of juvenile correctional centers. The department assists the board by

facilitating the review of existing regulations, identifying areas for amendment, and submitting them to the board
for evaluation and approval.

In June 2016, the board authorized the submission of a Notice of Intended Regulatory Action (NOIRA) to initiate
the regulatory process for a comprehensive review of this chapter. The NOIRA completed executive branch
review in September 2016, and a 30-day public comment period followed, ending in November 2016 and yielding
no public comments. In November 2017 and January 2018, the board authorized the submission of proposed
amendments for advancement to the Proposed stage of the regulatory process. After the required executive branch
review, the amendments were published in the Virginia Register of Regulations in September 2019, followed by
a 60-day public comment period that yielded one set of comments from the disAbility Law Center of Virginia
(dLCV). Based on dLCV’s recommendations, new practices adopted in the juvenile correctional center since the
2018 regulatory submission, and internal concerns with the proposed version, the department recommended
additional amendments to the regulation, which the board approved on June 24, 2020. Although the board

65



authorized the amendments for advancement to the Final stage of the standard regulatory process, the department
submitted the action through the Revised Proposed stage due to the volume and scope of amendments made since
the last submission. This optional stage is available to state agencies pursuant to § 2.2-4007.03 of the Code when
considerable amendments made between the Proposed and Final stages of the standard process warrant additional
executive branch review and public comment. The Revised Proposed package completed executive branch review
on January 4, 2022, was published in the Virginia Register on February 14, 2022, and yielded no comments at
the close of the public comment period on March 6. The department now presents these additional amendments
to the board for advancement to the Final stage of the standard regulatory process.

HI, EXPLANATION OF ADDITIONAL PROPOSED CHANGES FOR FINAL STAGE

The final proposal incorporates all proposed amendments to the regulation presented during the Proposed stage
and any additional amendments approved as part of the Revised Proposed stage, except as modified below. The
information contained in Part 11l of this memo addresses amendments approved at the Proposed and Revised
Proposed stage only to the extent they are relevant to the final proposal.

Room Confinement

Amendments Approved at the Proposed or Revised Stages

As 6VAC35-71 advanced through the various stages of the regulatory process, the board approved numerous
amendments to restrict the use of room confinement in juvenile correctional centers. For purposes of the revised
regulation, room confinement includes all instances in which a resident is placed involuntarily in the resident’s
room or another designated room and subject to additional restrictions. Room confinement does not include

timeouts, confinement resulting from lockdowns, or confinement that occurs during normal sleeping hours,
showering activities, facility counts, or shift changes.

The primary intent of the board-approved amendments involving room confinement was to impose additional
safeguards that ensure each confined resident’s physical and mental well-being during confinement while
allowing staff a means of addressing threats to security and safety. Among the amendments approved at the
Proposed and Revised Proposed stages are mandatory checks of confined residents at 15- rather than 30-minute
intervals; daily visits from a qualified medical health professional or mental health clinician to assess the
resident’s health status; a mandatory visit from at least one staff member during the initial three hours of

placement, and an opportunity for one or two additional interactions with staff daily depending upon the
anticipated duration of the confinement period.

In addition to these changes, the board also limited the purposes for which room confinement may be authorized
consistent with the department’s efforts to reduce the use of disciplinary room confinement at Bon Air Juvenile
Correctional Center. The board-approved amendments allow for room confinement only to address a resident
whose actions threaten facility security or the safety and security of others in the facility or to prevent property
damage committed in order to fashion an object that threatens safety or security. Room confinement imposed as
a sanction for noncompliance or as a means of punishment is expressly prohibited under the board-approved
amendments. Thus, amendments at the Proposed stage repealed the current regulatory provisions allowing staff
to sanction a resident with disciplinary room confinement for up to five days for violating a facility rule.

66



Amendments Recommended at the Final Stage

While the department remains supportive of efforts to reduce room confinement and the use of alternative
strategies to address facility infractions, the department no longer supports an absolute ban on disciplinary room
confinement. Bon Air Juvenile Correctional Center has continued to use disciplinary room confinement to address
and deter certain behavioral infractions, and its continued use demonstrates that disciplinary room confinement
remains an effective and useful tool to address the most severe infractions committed in a juvenile correctional
center. The department believes this sanction holds residents accountable to staff and other residents who may be
impacted when the resident commits certain behavioral infractions; demonstrates to other residents the
consequences associated with these offenses and thus serves as a deterrent for similar behavior; and provides the
resident with a transparent, definable, and proportionate penalty for the offense. Under the current regulatory
scheme, residents are placed in disciplinary room confinement only after they are charged with an applicable
offense, afforded an opportunity for a hearing, and, if such hearing occurs, determined guilty of the offense.

Residents are afforded the opportunity to appeal the disciplinary decision in accordance with the timeframes
specified in the current regulation.

Based on these considerations, the department believes that room confinement should continue to be available to
staff as a sanction to address and prevent those offenses specified in the department’s current procedures.
Therefore, the proposal strikes the language in subsection C of Section 1140 that would have prohibited
disciplinary room confinement and adds language authorizing room confinement as a disciplinary sanction,
provided residents have been charged with and found guilty of or have admitted to one of the following
institutional infractions: 1) escape, attempted escape, or Absent without Leave (AWOL); 2) possession or use of
security contraband; 3) assault; 4) fighting; 5) sexual misconduct; and 6) sexual abuse. As under the current
regulation, the proposal places a five-day cap on disciplinary room confinement. Because the terms are not defined

currently, the proposal adds definitions for disciplinary room confinement, sexual abuse, and sexual misconduct
in Section 10 of the regulation.

Boot Camp Provisions

Part X of the current regulation contains provisions that address juvenile boot camp facilities (§§ 1230-1270).
These facilities were authorized pursuant to § 66-13 of the Code, which gave the department the authority to
establish or contract with various other entities to establish juvenile boot camps and mandated that the board
prescribe standards for the development, implementation, and operation of these facilities. The types of boot
camps contemplated in the governing statute have not operated in the Commonwealth since 2003. While in place,
these programs operated independently of the juvenile correctional centers and had different structures and
philosophies regarding behavior management. Because of these differences, the board agreed at the Proposed

stage that the boot camp provisions should be moved to a new, separate chapter that would apply exclusively to
juvenile boot camp programs.

During the 2022 Virginia General Assembly Session, however, the General Assembly passed legislation
(Chapters 414 and 415 of the 2022 Acts of Assembly) removing the department’s authority to establish or contract
for these programs, as well as the board’s mandate to prescribe regulations governing the programs. In light of
these statutory changes, the board is no longer under a statutory duty to promulgate regulations governing juvenile

boot camps. The proposal strikes the proposed new chapter in its entirety along with the additional references to
juvenile boot camps in Section 15 of the regulation.

67



Omissions at Previous Stage: Other Nonsubstantive Amendments

At the Revised Proposed stage, the department proposed amendments to several provisions in the regulation that
improperly incorporated written procedures into the regulation in violation of 1 VAC7-10-140. In accordance with
this section, agencies are precluded from adopting textual matter in a regulation by referring to all or any part of
one of the agency’s own documents except in unique and highly unusual circumstances. The department identified
over 40 violations of this provision at the Revised Proposed stage but inadvertently omitted an improper
incorporation reference in Section 230. The proposal strikes this invalid language.

The proposal also makes a few additional minor changes, none of which is substantive.

IV. CONCLUSION

The department believes that the additional amendments recommended in this memo will ensure that juvenile
cotrectional center staff continue to be equipped with the tools needed to address resident infractions in a safe
and productive manner. Other amendments addressed in this memo are consistent with earlier modifications that
the board approved at the Proposed or Revised Proposed Stages. The department therefore requests that the board
approve these amendments for advancement to the Final stage of the standard regulatory process.

68



REGULATION GOVERNING JUVENILE CORRECTIONAL CENTERS

6VAC35-71-10. Definitions.

The following words and terms when used in this chapter shall have the following meanings
unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

“Active supervision” or "actively supervise" means the act of resident supervision in which a
direct care employee is (i) actively patrolling and frequently viewing the areas in which residents
are present a minimum of once every 15 minutes and (ii) close enough in proximity to the resident
to provide a quick response should an incident occur.

"Annual” means within 13 months of the previous event or occurrence.

"Assistant superintendent” means the individual who provides regular assistance and support
to the superintendent in the management and operation of a juvenile correctional center.

"Aversive stimuli” means physical forces, such as sound, electricity, heat, cold, light, water, or
noise, or substances, such as hot pepper, pepper sauce, or pepper spray, measurable in duration
and intensity that when applied to a resident are noxious or painful to the resident.

"Behavior management' means the principles and methods employed to help a resident
achieve positive behavior and to address and correct a resident's inappropriate behavior in a
constructive and safe manner that emphasizes program expectations, treatment goals, resident
and staff safety and security, and the resident’s individual service plan.

"Board" means the Board of Juvenile Justice.

"Case record" means the collection of written information regarding a resident and the
resident's family, if applicable.

"Community manager" means the individual who supervises, coordinates, and directs an
assigned group of staff in multiple housing units and who oversees the schedules, programs, and
services for assigned housing units within a juvenile correctional center.

"Contraband” means an item possessed by or accessible to a resident or found within a
juvenile correctional center or on its premises that (i) is prohibited by statute, regulation, or
department procedure; (ii) is not acquired through approved channels or in prescribed amounts;

or (iii) may jeopardize the safety and security of the juvenile correctional center or individual
residents.

"Contractor" means an individual who has entered into a legal agreement to provide services
on a recurring basis to a juvenile correctional center.

"Department” means the Department of Juvenile Justice.

“Direct care” means the period during which a resident who is committed to the department
pursuant to § 16.1-272 or 16.1-285.1 or subdivision A 14 of § 16.1-278.8 of the Code of Virginia

is under the supervision of staff in a juvenile correctional center operated by or under contract
with the department.

"Direct care employee" means an employee whose primary job responsibilities are (i)
maintaining the safety, care, and well-being of residents; (ii) implementing the structured program
of care and the behavior management program; and (iii) maintaining the security of the facility.
For purposes of this chapter, the term “direct care employee" shall include a security employee
assigned, either on a primary or as-needed basis, to perform the duties of clauses (i), (i), and (iii)
of this definition and who is required to receive initial and annual training in these areas in order
to carry out the responsibilities in clauses (i), (i), and (iii) of this definition.

"Direct supervision" or "directly supervise" means the act of a direct supervision employee
providing services to a resident while direct care employees are not within close proximity and do

69



not have direct and continuous visual observation of or the ability to hear any sounds or words
spoken by the resident.

“Direct supervision employee" means an employee who is responsible for maintaining the
safety, care, and well-being of the residents in addition to providing services or performing the
primary responsibilities of that position and who is authorized to directly supervise residents.

"Director" means the Director of the Department of Juvenile Justice.

[ “Disciplinary room confinement” means the placement of a resident in room confinement as
a conseguence for a violation of a rule of the facility after application of the disciplinary process,
as provided for in 6VAC35-71-1110. |

“Emergency" means a sudden, generally unexpected occurrence or set of circumstances
demanding immediate action such as a fire, chemical release, loss of utilities, natural disaster,
hostage situation, major disturbance, escape, or bomb threat. For purposes of this definition,

"emergency” does not include regularly scheduled employee time off or other situations that
reasonably could be anticipated.

"Gender identity" means a person's internal sense of being male or female, regardless of the
person's sex assigned at birth.

"Grievance" means a written communication by a resident on a department-approved form
that reports a condition or situation that relates to department procedure and that presents a risk
of hardship or harm to a resident.

"Health care record" means the complete record of all health care services provided to a
resident, including medical, dental, orthodontic, mental health, family planning, obstetrical,
gynecological, health education, and other ancillary records.

"Health care services" means those actions, preventive and therapeutic, taken for the physical
and mental well-being of a resident. Health care services include medical, dental, orthodontic,

mental health, family planning, obstetrical, gynecological, health education, and other ancillary
services.

"Health-trained personnel" means an individual who is trained and appropriately supervised
to carry out specific duties with regard to the administration of health care.

"Housing unit” means the space in a juvenile correctional center in which a particular group of
residents resides, which comprises sieeping areas, bath and toilet facilities, and a living room or

its equivalent for use by the residents. Depending upon its design, a building may contain one or
several separate housing units.

"Human research” means any systematic investigation, including research development,
testing, and evaluation utilizing human subjects that is designed to develop or contribute to
generalized knowledge. Human research shall not be deemed to include research exempt from
federal research regulation pursuant to 45 CFR 46.101(b).

"Immediate family member" means a resident's parent or legal guardian, step-parent,
grandparent, spouse, child, sibling, or step-sibling.

"Individual service plan" means a written plan of action developed, revised as necessary, and
reviewed at specified intervals to meet a resident's needs.

"Juvenile correctional center,” "JCC," or "facility" means a public or private facility, operated
by or under contract with the department, where care is provided to residents under the direct
care of the department 24 hours a day, seven days a week.

"JCC administration" or "facility administration" means the juvenile correctional center
superintendent or the superintendent's designee.

70



"Legal mail" means a written communication that is sent to or received from a designated
class of correspondents, including a court, legal counsel, administrator of the grievance system,
the department, or the regulatory authority.

"Lockdown" means the restriction of all or a group of residents to their housing unit, an area
within their housing unit, or another area within a JCC for the purpose of (i) relieving temporary
tensions within the facility that may threaten or critically affect staff or residents or present a risk
to public safety; (ii) conducting a facility search for contraband; (iii) responding to an imminent
threat to the security and control of the facility or to the safety of staff, residents, or the public; or
(iv) responding to other unexpected circumstances that threaten the safe operation of the facility,
such as a loss of electricity, a critical shortage of staff, or an emergency.

"Mechanical restraint” means an approved mechanical device that involuntarily restricts the
freedom of movement or voluntary functioning of a limb or portion of an individual's body as a
means of controlling his physical activities when the individual being restricted does not have the
ability to remove the device. For purposes of this chapter, mechanical restraints shall include flex-
cuffs, handcuffs, leather restraints, leg irons, restraining belts and straps, and waist chains.

“Mechanical restraint chair' means an approved chair used to restrict the freedom of
movement or voluntary functioning of a portion of an individual's body as a means of controlling
his physical activities while the individual is seated and either stationary or being transported.

"Medical record" means the complete record of medical screening and examination
information and ongoing records of medical and ancillary service delivery, including all findings,
diagnoses, treatments, dispositions, prescriptions, and their administration.

"Medication incident" means any one of the following errors made in administering a
medication to a resident: (i) a resident is given incorrect medication; (i) medication is administered
to the incorrect resident; (iii) an incorrect dosage is administered; (iv) medication is administered
at the wrong time or not at all; or (v) the medication is administered through an improper method.
For purposes of this regulation, a medication incident does not include a resident's refusal of
appropriately offered medication.

"Mental health clinician" means a clinician licensed to provide assessment, diagnosis,
treatment planning, treatment implementation, and similar clinical counseling services, or a
license-eligible clinician under supervision of a licensed mental health clinician.

"Natural support" means a department-approved personal association and pro-social
relationship typically developed in the community that enhances the quality and security of life for
a resident and that is expected to provide post-release support, including an extended family
member, person serving as a mentor, or representative from a community organization.

"On duty" means the period of an employee's scheduled work hours during which the
employee is responsible for the supervision of one or more residents in the performance of that
employee’s position duties.

"Parent" or "legal guardian" means (i) a biological or adoptive parent who has legal custody
of a resident, including either parent if custody is shared under a joint decree or agreement; (ii) a
biological or adoptive parent with whom a resident regularly resides; (iii) a person judicially
appointed as a legal guardian of a resident; or {iv) a person who exercises the rights and
responsibilities of legal custody by delegation from a biological or adoptive parent, upon
provisional adoption, or otherwise by operation of law.

"Physical restraint" means the application of behavior intervention techniques involving a
physical intervention to prevent an individual from moving all or part of his body.

"Premises" means the tracts of land within the secure perimeter on which any part of a juvenile
correctional center is located.

Al



"Protective device" means an approved device placed on a portion of a resident's body to
protect the resident or staff from injury.

"Regulatory authority” means the board, or the department if designated by the board.

"Resident"” means an individual, regardless of age, who is committed to the department and
resides in a juvenile correctional center.

"Rest day" means a period of not less than 24 consecutive hours during which the direct care

employee has no responsibility to perform duties related to employment at the JCC or with the
department.

"Room confinement” means the involuntary placement of an individual resident in the
resident's room or other designated room and the imposition of additional restrictions. For
purposes of this chapter, room confinement shall not include (i) timeout periods; (ii) confinement
during normal sleeping hours; (iii) confinement for purposes of allowing residents in a housing
unit to shower safely; (iv) confinement for purposes of conducting facility counts; (v) confinement
during shift changes; or (vi) confinement resulting from a lockdown.

"Rules of conduct" means a list of a juvenile correctional center's rules or regulations that is
maintained to inform residents and others of the behavioral expectations of the behavior
management program, behaviors that are not permitted, and the consequences that may be
applied when impermissible behaviors occur.

"Security employee" means an employee who is responsible for maintaining the safety, care,
and well-being of residents and the safety and security of the facility.

[ “Sexual abuse” means nonconsensual sexual contact by a resident or staff, including (i)
contact between the penis and the vagina or the anus; (ii) contact between the mouth and the
penis, vagina, or anus; (iii} penetration of the anal or genital opening of another person by a hand,
finger, or other object; or (iv} non-penetrative intentional touching (either directly or through the
clothing) of the genitalia, anus, groin, breast, inner thigh, or buttocks; and (v) intentional sexual

touching (either directly or through clothing) of the genitalia, anus, grein, breast, inner thigh, or
buttocks.

“Sexual misconduct” means any sexual conduct or act by a resident either individually, with
another_resident, or directed towards staff, including non-forced sexual contact, indecent
exposure or masturbation, and sexual harassment. ]

"Sick call" means the evaluation and treatment of a resident in a clinical setting, either onsite
or offsite, by a qualified health care professional.

"Spit guard" means a protective device designed for the purpose of preventing the spread of
communicable diseases as a result of spitting or biting.

"Superintendent” means the individual who is responsible for the onsite management and
operation of a juvenile correctional center on a regular basis.

"Timeout" means a systematic behavior management technique designed to reduce or
eliminate minor inappropriate or problematic behavior by having staff require a resident to move
to a specific location that is away from a source of reinforcement until the problem behavior has
subsided, not to exceed 60 minutes.

"Volunteer” or "intern" means an individual or group under the direction and authority of the

juvenile correctional center who voluntarily provides goods and services without competitive
compensation.

"Vulnerable population" means a resident or group of residents who has been determined by
designated JCC staff to be reasonably likely to be exposed to the possibility of being attacked or
harmed, either physically or emotionally.

72



"Written" means the required information is communicated in writing in either hard copy or in
electronic form.

6VAC35-71-15. Applicability.

This chapter applies exclusively to (i) state-operated juvenile correctional centers and (ii)
privately operated juvenile correctional centers governed by the Juvenile Corrections Private
Management Act (§ 66-25.3 et seq. of the Code of Virginia). Parts | through VII! apply to state-
operated and privately operated facilities. Part IX applies solely to privately operated juvenile
correctional centers. Provisions applicable to | juvenile boot campsand ] locally, regionally, or
privately operated aiternative direct care programs for juveniles are not included in this chapter.
6VAC35-71-20. (Repealed.)

6VAC35-71-30. Certification.

A. The JCC administration shall maintain a current certification demonstrating compliance with
the provisions of the Regulation Governing the Monitoring, Approval, and Certification of Juvenile
Justice Programs and Facilities (6VAC35-20).

B. The JCC administration shall demonstrate compliance with this chapter, other applicable
regulations issued by the board, and applicable statutes and regulations.

C. Documentation necessary to demonstrate compliance with this chapter shall be maintained
for a minimum of three years.

D. The current certificate shall be posted at all times in a place conspicuous to the public.
6VAC35-71-40. Relationship to the regulatory authority.

All reports and information as the regulatory authority may require to establish compliance
with this chapter and other applicable regulations and statutes shall be submitted to or made
available to the audit team leader.

H6VAC35-71-50. Variances and waivers.

A. Board action may be requested by the director or the director's designee to relieve a JCC
from having to meet or develop a plan of action for the requirements of a specific section or
subsection of this regulation, provided the section or subsection is a noncritical regulatory
requirement. The variance request may be granted either permanently or for a determined period
of time, as provided in the Regulation Governing the Monitoring, Approval, and Certification of
Juvenile Justice Programs and Facilities (6VAC35-20).

B. A variance may not be implemented prior to approval of the board.

C. If the superintendent has submitted a variance request to the director or the director's
designee concerning a noncritical regulatory requirement and board action has been requested
formally by the director or the director's designee, the director may, but is not required to, grant a
waiver temporarily excusing the facility from meeting the requirements of a specific section or
subsection of this regulation. The waiver shall be subject to the requirements in 6VAC35-20-93.

6VAC35-71-55. Operational procedures.
Current operational procedures shall be readily accessible to all staff.
6VAC35-71-60. Incident reports.

A. The following events shall be reported to the director or the director's designee as soon as
practicable, but no later than 24 hours after the incident:

1. A serious illness, incident, injury, or accident involving the serious injury of a resident;
2. A resident’s absence from the facility without permission; and

3. The facility's use of the mechanical restraint chair, regardless of the purpose or duration
of use.

73



B. As appropriate and applicable, facility staff shall, as soon as practicable, but no later than
24 hours afler the incident, report the incidents listed in subsection A of this section to (i) the
parent or legal guardian and (ii} the supervising court service unit or agency.

C. Any incident involving the death of a resident shall be reported to the individuals specified
in subsections A and B of this section without undue delay.

D. Facility staff shall prepare and maintain a written report of the events listed in subsections
A and C of this section that shall contain the following information:

1. The date and time the incident occurred;

2. A brief description of the incident;

3. The action taken as a result of the incident;

4. The name of the person who completed the report;

5. The name or identifying information of the person who made the report to the
supervising agency and to the parent or legal guardian; and

6. The name of any law-enforcement agency or local department of social services to
which the report was made.

E. The department shall establish written procedures that address any additional serious
incidents that must be reported, the process for notifying the parties identified in subsection B of
this section, and the steps for completing and submitting the written report required in subsection

D of this section. The JCC administration shall ensure the written procedures are accessible to
JCC staff.

F. The resident's case record shall contain a written reference (i) that an incident occurred
and (ii) of all applicable reporting.

G. In addition to the requirements of this section, any suspected child abuse and neglect shall
be governed by 6VAC35-71-70.

6VAC35-71-70. Suspected child abuse or neglect.
A. When there is reason to suspect that a resident is an abused or neglected child, the matter

shall be reported immediately to the local department of social services or to the Virginia

Department of Social Services toll-free child abuse and neglect hotline as required by § 63.2-
1509 of the Code of Virginia .

B. Any case of suspected child abuse or neglect occurring at a JCC, occurring during a JCC-
sponsored event or excursion or involving JCC staff shall be reported within 24 hours to (i) the
director or the director's designee, (ii) the supervising court service unit, and (iii) the resident's
parent or legal guardian, as appropriate and applicable.

C. When a case of suspected child abuse or neglect is reported in accordance with subsection
A of this section, a record shall be maintained at the facility that contains the following information:

1. The date and time the suspected abuse or neglect occurred;
2. A brief description of the suspected abuse or neglect;
3. The action taken as a result of the suspected abuse or neglect; and

4. The name or identifying information of the person to whom the report was made at the
local department of social services.

D. The resident's case record shall contain a written reference that a report was made.
E. Written procedures shall be accessible to staff regarding the following:
1. Handling accusations of child abuse or neglect, including those made against staff;

2. Reporting consistent with requirements of the Code of Virginia and documenting
suspected cases of child abuse or neglect to the local child protective services unit;

74



3. Cooperating during any investigation; and
4. Measures to be taken to ensure the safety of the resident and the staff.
6VACJ35-71-75. Reporting criminal activity.

A. Staff shall be required to report to the superintendent or the superintendent's designee all
known criminal activity alleged to have been committed by residents or staff, including physical
abuse, sexual abuse, or sexual harassment of residents.

B. The superintendent or the superintendent's designee shall notify the appropriate persons
or agencies, including law enforcement and the local department of social services division of

child protective services, if applicable and appropriate, of suspected criminal violations by
residents or staff.

C. The JCC superintendent and applicable staff shall assist and cooperate with the
investigation of these complaints and allegations subject to restrictions in federal or state law.

6VAC35-71-80. Grievance procedure.
A. The department shall have a grievance procedure in place that provides for the following:
1. Resident participation in the grievance process, with assistance from staff upon request;

2. Investigation of the grievance by an impartial and objective employee who is not the
subject of the grievance;

3. Documented responses to all grievances with the supporting reasons for the decision;
4. At least one level of appeal;

5. Administrative review of grievances;

6. Protection of residents from retaliation or the threat of retaliation for filing a grievance,
and

7. Immediate review of grievances that pose an immediate risk of harm to a resident with
resolution as soon as practicable but no later than eight hours after the initial review and
review and resolution of all other grievances as soon as practicable but no later than 30
business days after receipt of the grievance. For purposes of this subdivision, a grievance

may be deemed resolved once facility staff have addressed, corrected, or referred the
issue to an external organizational unit.

B. Residents shall be oriented to the grievance procedure in an age and developmentally
appropriate manner,

C. The grievance procedure shall be (i} written in clear and simple language, (ii) posted in an

area accessible to residents, and (iii) available in an area easily accessible to parents and legal
guardians.

D. Staff shall assist and work cooperatively with other employees in facilitating the grievance
process.

6VAC35-71-90. Student government association.

A. The JCC administration shall maintain a student government association that is
representative of the facility’s population and is organized to (i) provide leadership development

opportunities and opportunities for civic participation and engagement for residents and (ii) allow
for resident communication with facility and agency leadership.

B. The student government association shall develop a constitution and bylaws that shall

govern the operation of the organization and provide for an election process for student
government association officers and representatives.

C. Representatives from the student government association shall meet with the
superintendent or the superintendent's designee at least once per month, during which time the
representatives shall be given the opportunity to raise matters that concern the residents and to

75



have input into planning, problem-solving, and decision-making in areas of the residential program
that affect their lives.

D. In addition to the monthly meetings with the superintendent or the superintendent's
designee, the JCC administration shall provide regular opportunities for the student government
association to meet as a body and with the residents they represent.

E. The facility administration shall maintain a current copy of the constitution and bylaws
required in subsection B of this section that shall be posted in each housing unit. During
orientation, the residents shall receive an overview of the student government association, the
constitution, and the bylaws.
6VAC35-71-100. Administration and organization.

Each JCC shall have an organizational chart that includes functions, services, and activities
in administrative subunits. The organizational chart shall be reviewed and updated as needed, as
determined by the superintendent or the superintendent’s designee.

6VAC35-71-110. Organizational communications.

A. The superintendent or the superintendent's designee shall meet, at least monthly, with all
facility department heads and key staff members.

B. In order to encourage contact with employees and residents, observe the facility's living
and working conditions, and enhance the efficacy and success of the therapeutic community
within each housing unit, the JCC administration shall establish written procedures that require
the assistant superintendent and the community manager assigned to each specific housing unit
to make regular, consistent, and frequent visits to each housing unit under their jurisdiction. The
written procedures also shall provide facility rules regarding these visits.

C. The superintendent shall visit every housing unit and activity area at least once per month.
6VAC35-71-120. Community relationships.
The JCC administration shall designate a community liaison and, if appropriate, a community

advisory committee to serve as a link between the faciiity and the community. The community

advisory committee may include facility neighbors, local law enforcement, and local government
officials.

6VAC35-71-130. Participation of residents in human research.

Residents shall not be used as subjects of human research except as provided in 6VAC35-
170 and in accordance with Chapter 5.1 (§ 32.1-162.16 et seq.) of Title 32.1 of the Code of

Virginia.
Additionally, the testing of medicines or drugs for experimentation or research is prohibited.
6VAC35-71-140. Background checks.

A. Except as provided in subsection B of this section, all persons who (i) accept a position of
employment or (ii) provide contractual services directly to a resident on a regular basis and will
be alone with a resident in the performance of their duties in a JCC shall undergo the following
background checks to determine whether there are criminal acts or other circumstances that
would be detrimental to the safety of residents in the JCC:

1. A reference check;
2. A criminal history record check;

3. Fingerprint checks with the Virginia State Police and Federal Bureau of Investigation
(FBI);

4. A central registry check with Child Protective Services; and
5. A driving record check, if applicable to the individual's job duties.

76



B. In order to minimize vacancy time when the fingerprint checks required by subdivision A 3
of this section have been requested, employees may be hired pending the results of the fingerprint

checks, provided:
1. All other applicable components of subsection A of this section have been completed,

2. The JCC provides the applicant with written notice that continued employment is

contingent on the fingerprint check results as required by subdivision A 3 of this section;
and

3. Employees hired under this exception shall not be allowed to be alone with residents
and may work with residents only when the residents are under the direct or active
supervision of staff whose background checks have been completed until all the
requirements of this section are satisfied.

C. The JCC administration shall retain documentation of compliance with this section.

D. Written procedures shall provide for the supervision of nonemployee persons who are not
subject to the provisions of this section and have contact with residents.

6VAC35-71-150. Required initial orientation.

A. Before the expiration of the employee's seventh work day at the facility, each employee
shall receive a basic orientation on the following:

1. The facility;

2. The population served;

3. The basic tenets and objectives of the facility's behavior management program;
4. The facility's organizational structure;

5. Security, population control, emergency preparedness, and evacuation procedures in
accordance with 6VAC35-71-460;
6. The practices of confidentiality;
7. The residents’ rights; and
8. The basic requirements of and competencies necessary to perform in the positions.
B. Volunteers and interns shall be oriented in accordance with 6VAC35-71-240.

C. Contractors shall receive an orientation regarding the expectations of working within a
secure environment.

6VAC35-71-160. Required initial training.

A. JCC employees shall complete initial, agency-approved training that is specific to the
individual's occupational class.

B. Direct care employees and security employees, before being responsible for supervising a

resident, shall complete at least 120 hours of training, which shall include training in the foliowing
areas:

1. First aid and cardiopulmonary resuscitation, unless the individual is currently certified,
with certification required as applicable to their duties;

2. Recognition of signs and symptoms and knowledge of actions required in a medical
emergency;

3. The department's behavior management program, as provided in 6VAC35-71-745,
including the requirements for sustaining a therapeutic community environment, as
required in 6VAC35-71-735. At a minimum, this training shall address (i) the components
and basic principles of the behavior management program; (i) the principles, definitions,
and expectations governing a therapeutic community environment; (iii) the main tenets of

77



the department's graduated incentive system; and (iv) the tools available to address
noncompliance;

4. The residents' rules of conduct, the rationale for the rules, and the disciplinary process
in accordance with 6VAC35-71-1110;

5. The department's behavior interventions, including, if applicable to the individual's
duties, training in the use of physical restraints, mechanical restraints, and protective
devices and the mechanical restraint chair, as provided in 6VAC35-71-1175, 6VAC35-71-
1180, and 6VAC35-71-1203,

6. Emergency preparedness and response, as provided in 6VAC35-71-460;

7. Standard precautions, as provided in 6VAC35-71-1000;

8. Child abuse and neglect;

9. Mandatory reporting;

10. Residents’ rights, including the prohibited actions provided for in 6VAC35-71-550;
11. Maintaining appropriate professional relationships;

12. Appropriate interaction among staff and residents;

13. Suicide prevention, as provided in 6VAC35-71-805;

14. Adolescent development;

15. Procedures applicable to the employees’ positions and consistent with their work
profiles; and

16. Other topics as required by the department and any applicable state or federal statutes
or regulations.

C. Direct supervision employees shall complete an initial 80 hours of agency-approved
training, including the topics enumerated in subsection B of this section before being responsible
for the direct supervision of a resident and an additiona! 40 hours of agency-approved training
before the completion of their first year of employment.

D. Employees providing medical services shall complete the following training:

1. An initial 40 hours of agency-approved training, including (i) tuberculosis control
practices and (ii) the topics enumerated in subdivisions B 5 through B 16 of this section
before they may work directly with a resident; and

2. An additional 80 hours of agency-approved training before the expiration of their first
year of employment.

E. Employees who administer medication shall, prior to administration and in accordance with
the provisions of § 54.1-3408 of the Code of Virginia, successfully complete a medication
management training program approved by the Board of Nursing or be licensed by the
Commonwealth of Virginia to administer medication.

F. Administrative and managerial staff shall receive at least 40 hours of training during their
first year of employment. Clerical and support staff shall receive at least 16 hours of training.

G. If an individual is employed by contract to provide services for which licensure by a

professional organization is required, documentation of current licensure shall constitute
compliance with this section.

H. Volunteers and interns shall be trained in accordance with 6VAC35-71-240.

I. The department shall develop written procedures that clearly delineate the positions falling
under each category identified in this section.

78



6VAC35-71-170. Retraining.
A. Each employee shall complete retraining that is specific to the individual's occupational
class and the position’s job description and that addresses any professional development needs.

1. Direct care employees, security employees, direct supervision employees, and
employees providing medical services shall complete 40 hours of training annually,
including the requirements of this section.

2. Administrative and managerial staff shall receive at least 40 hours of training annually.
3. Clerical and support staff shall receive at least 16 hours of training annually.

B. All staff shall complete an annual training refresher on the facilty's emergency
preparedness and response plan and procedures.

C. All direct care employees, security employees, and direct supervision employees shall
complete annual refresher training in the following areas:

1. The department's behavior management program and the requirements for sustaining
a therapeutic community environment, as required by 6VAC35-71-160 B 3;

2. Suicide prevention;

. Maintaining appropriate professional relationships;

. Appropriate interaction among staff and residents;

. Child abuse and neglect;

. Mandatory reporting;

. Resident rights, including the prohibited actions provided for in 6VAC35-71-550;

. Standard precautions; and

. Other topics as required by the department and any applicable state or federal statutes
or regulations.

D. All employees providing medical services shall complete annual retraining in the topics
enumerated in subdivisions C 2 through C 9 of this section.

E. All direct care employees, security employees, and direct supervision employees shall
receive training sufficient to maintain a current certification in first aid and cardiopuimonary
resuscitation.

F. Employees who administer medication shall complete annual refresher training on the
administration of medication, which shall include at a minimum, a review of the components
required in 6VAC35-71-1070.

G. If an individual is employed by contract to provide services for which licensure by a

professional organization is required, documentation of the individual's current licensure shall
constitute compliance with this section.

H. All staff approved to apply physical restraints as provided for in 6VAC35-71-1175 shall be
trained as needed to maintain the applicable current certification.

|. All staff approved to apply mechanical restraints, protective devices, or the mechanical
restraint chair shall be retrained annually as required by 6VAC35-71-1180 and 6VAC35-71-1203.

J. Staff who have not timely completed required retraining shall not be allowed to have direct
care or direct supervision responsibilities pending completion of the retraining requirements.
6VAC35-71-180. Code of ethics.

The facility administration shall make available to all employees a written set of rules
describing acceptable standards of conduct for all employees.

W o ~N Ok W

79



6VAC35-71-185. Employee tuberculosis screening and follow-up.

A. On or before the individual's start date at the facility and at least annually thereafter each
(i) employee and (ii) contractor who provides services directly to residents on a regular basis shall
submit the results of a tuberculosis screening assessment that is no older than 30 days. The

documentation shall indicate the screening results as to whether there is an absence of
tuberculosis in a communicable form.

B. Each (i) employee and (i} contractor who provides services directly to residents on a

regular basis shall submit evidence of an annual evaluation of freedom from tuberculosis in a
communicable form.

C. Each (i) employee and (i} contractor who provides services directly to residents on a
regular basis shall undergo a subsequent tuberculosis screening or evaluation, as applicable, in
the following circumstances:

1. The employee or contractor comes into contact with a known case of infectious
tuberculosis; or

2. The employee or contractor develops chronic respiratory symptoms of three weeks'
duration.

D. Employees and contractors providing services directly to residents on a regular basis, who
are suspected of having tuberculosis in a communicable form shall not be permitted to return to
work or have contact with staff or residents until a licensed physician or licensed medical provider
has determined that the individual does not have tuberculosis in a communicable form.

E. Any active case of tuberculosis developed by an employee or a resident shall be reported
to the local health department in accordance with the requirements of the State Board of Health
Regulations for Disease Reporting and Control (12VAC5-90).

F. Documentation of any screening results shall be retained in a manner that maintains the
confidentiality of information.

G. The detection, diagnosis, prophylaxis, and treatment of pulmonary tuberculosis shall be
performed in accordance with the current recommendations of the Virginia Department of Health's
Division of Tuberculosis Prevention and Control and the federal Department of Health and Human
Services Centers for Disease Control and Prevention.
6VAC35-71-215. Physical or mental health of personnel.

If an employee or contractor poses a significant risk of substantial harm to the health and
safety of a resident, others at the facility, or the public or is unable to perform essential job-related
functions, that individual shall be removed immediately from all duties involved in the supervision
of residents. The facility may require a medica! or mental health evaluation to determine the
individual's fitness for duty prior to returning to duties involving the supervision of residents.

6VAC35-71-220. Selection and duties of volunteers and interns.

A. A JCC that uses volunteers or interns shall have written procedures in place governing
their selection and use. The procedures shall provide for the evaluation of persons and
organizations in the community who wish to associate with the residents.

B. Volunteers and interns shall have qualifications appropriate for the services provided.

C. The responsibilities of interns and individuals who volunteer on a regular basis shall be
defined clearly in writing.

D. Volunteers and interns may not be responsible for the duties of direct care or direct
supervision employees, nor may a volunteer or intern be authorized to be alone with residents.

80



6VAC35-71-230. Background checks for volunteers and interns.

A. Any individual who volunteers or is an intern on a regular basis in a JCC shall be subject
to the background check requirements provided for in 6VAC35-71-140.

B. Documentation of compliance with the background check requirements shall be maintained
for each volunteer or intern for whom a background check is required.

C. A JCC that uses volunteers or interns shall [ implement have ] written procedures [ In place
] for supervising volunteers or interns, on whom background checks are not required or whose
background checks have not been completed who have contact with residents.

6VAC35-71-240. Volunteer and intern orientation and training.

A. Any individual who (i) volunteers on a regular basis; (ii) volunteers and has contact with
residents or is an intern in a JCC; or (iii) is the designated leader for a group of volunteers shall
be provided with a basic orientation on the following:

1. The facility;

. The population served;

. The basic objectives of the department;

. The department and facility organizational structure;

. Security, population control, emergency preparedness, and evacuation procedures,
. The practices of confidentiality;

. Resident rights, including the prohibited actions provided for in 6VVAC35-71-550; and

. The basic requirements of and competencies necessary to perform their duties and
responsibilities.

B. Volunteers and interns shall be trained within 30 days from their start date at the facility in
the following:

1. Their duties and responsibilities in the event of a facility evacuation as provided in
6VAC35-71-460; and

2. All other procedures that are applicable to their duties and responsibilities.
6VAC35-71-260. Maintenance of case records.

A. A separate written case record shall be maintained for each resident, which shall include

all correspondence and documents received by the JCC relating to the care of that resident and
documentation of all case management services provided.

B. Separate health care records, including behavioral health records, as applicable, and
medical records shall be kept on each resident. Health care records shall be maintained in
accordance with 6VAC35-71-1020 and applicable statutes and regulations. Behavioral health
care records may be kept separately from other health care records.

C. Case records shall be released only in accordance with §§ 16.1-300 and 16.1-309.1 of the
Code of Virginia and applicable state and federal laws and regulations.

D. The department shall have written procedures in place for the maintenance and
management of case records in juvenile correctional centers. The procedures for managing
resident written records shall address confidentiality, accessibility, security, and retention of
records pertaining to residents, including:

1. Access, duplication, dissemination, and acquisition of information only by persons
legally authorized according to federal and state laws;

2. Security measures to protect records from loss, unauthorized alteration, inadvertent or

unauthorized access, and disclosure of information, and records transported between
service sites; and

0~ G U AR WK

81



3. Designation of the person responsible for records management.

E. Active and closed records shall be kept in secure locations or compartments that are

accessible only to authorized employees and shall be protected from unauthorized access, fire,
and flood.

F. Each resident's written case and health care records shall be stored separately subsequent
to the resident's discharge in accordance with applicable statutes and regulations.

G. Residents' inactive records shall be retained as required by The Library of Virginia.
6VAC35-71-270. Face sheet.

A. At the time of admission, each resident's record shall include, at a minimum, a completed
face sheet that contains the following: (i) the resident’s full name, last known residence, birth date,
birthplace, sex, gender identity, race, social security number or other unique identifier, religious
preference, and admission date; and (ii) the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of the
resident’s legal guardians, supervising agency, emergency contacts, and parents, if appropriate.

B. The face sheet shall be updated when changes occur and maintained as a part of the
resident's record.

6VAC35-71-280. Buildings and inspections.

A. All newly constructed buildings, major renovations to buildings, and temporary structures
shall be inspected and approved by the appropriate building officials. There shall be a valid,
current certificate of occupancy available at each JCC that documents this approval.

B. A current copy of the facility's annual inspection by fire prevention authorities indicating that
all buildings and equipment are maintained in accordance with the Virginia Statewide Fire
Prevention Code (13VAC5-51) shall be maintained. If the fire prevention authorities have failed
to inspect the facility's buildings and equipment, the facility administration shall maintain
documentation of the request to schedule the annual inspection, as well as documentation of any
necessary follow-up.

C. The facility administration shall maintain a current copy of the facility's compliance with
annual inspection and approval by an independent, outside source in accordance with state and
local inspection laws, regulations, and ordinances, of the following:

1. General sanitation;
2. The sewage disposal system, if applicable;
3. The water supply, if applicable;
4. Food service operations; and
5. Swimming pools, if applicable.
6VAC35-71-290. Equipment and systems inspections and maintenance.

A. All safety, emergency, and communications equipment and systems shall be inspected,
tested, and maintained by designated staff in accordance with the manufacturer's
recommendations or instruction manuals or, absent these requirements, in accordance with a
schedule that is approved by the superintendent.

1. The facility administration shall maintain a listing of all safety, emergency, and
communications equipment and systems and the schedule established for inspections
and testing.

2. Testing of equipment and systems shall be conducted quarterly, at a minimum.

B. Whenever safety, emergency, or communications equipment or systems are determined

to be defective, immediate steps shall be taken to rectify the situation and to repair, remove, or
replace the defective equipment or systems.

82



6VAC35-71-310. Heating and cooling systems and ventilation.

A. Heat shall be distributed in all rooms occupied by the residents so that a temperature no
less than 68°F is maintained, unless otherwise mandated by state or federal authorities.

B. Air conditioning or mechanical ventilating systems, such as electric fans, shall be provided
in all rooms occupied by residents when the temperature in those rooms exceeds 80°F, unless
otherwise mandated by state or federal authorities.

6VAC35-71-320. Lighting.
A. Sleeping and activity areas shall provide natural lighting.

B. All areas within buildings shall be lighted for safety, and the lighting shall be sufficient for
the activities being performed.

C. Night lighting shall be sufficient to observe residents.

D. Operable flashlights or battery-powered lanterns shall be accessible to each security
employee and direct care employee on duty.

E. Outside entrances and parking areas shall be lighted.
6VAC35-71-330. Plumbing and water supply; temperature.
A. Plumbing shall be maintained in operational condition, as designed.
B. An adequate supply of hot and cold running water shall be available at all times.

C. Precautions shall be taken to prevent scalding from running water. Hot water temperatures
shall be maintained at 100°F to 120°F.

6VAC35-71-350. Toilet facilities.

A. There shall be toilet facilities available for resident use in all sleeping areas for each JCC
constructed after January 1, 1998.

B. There shall be at least one toilet, one hand basin, and one shower or tub for every eight
residents for facilities certified on or before December 27, 2007. There shall be one toilet, one
hand basin, and one shower or tub for every four residents in any building constructed or
structurally modified on or after December 28, 2007.

C. There shall be at least one bathtub in each facility.

D. The maximum number of employees on duty in the housing unit shall be counted in
determining the required number of toilets and hand basins when a separate bathroom is not
provided for staff.

6VAC35-71-360. Sleeping areas.

A. Generally, male and female residents shall have separate sleeping areas; however, nothing
in this chapter shall preclude a facility from making a placement decision based upon a case-by-
case analysis of whether a placement would ensure a resident’s health and safety or present
management or security problems, as required in 6VAC35-71-555.

B. Beds in all facilities or sleeping areas established, constructed, or structurally modified after
July 1, 1981, shall be at least three feet apart at the head, foot, and sides; and bunk beds in such
facilities shall be at least five feet apart at the head, foot, and sides. Facilities or sleeping areas
established, constructed, or structurally modified before July 1, 1981, shall have a bed placement
plan approved by the director or the director's designee.

C. Mattresses shall be fire retardant as evidenced by documentation from the manufacturer,
except in buildings equipped with an automated sprinkler system, as required by the Virginia
Uniform Statewide Building Code (13VAC5-63).

D. Sleeping quarters established, constructed, or structuraily modified after July 1, 1981, shall
have:

83



1. At least 80 square feet of floor area in a bedroom accommodating one person;

2. At least 60 square feet of floor area per person in rooms accommodating two or more
persons; and

3. Ceilings with a primary height of at least 7-1/2 feet exclusive of protrusions, duct work,
or dormers.

6VAC35-71-400. Smoking prohibition.

Residents shall be prohibited from using, possessing, purchasing, or distributing (i) tobacco
products, nicotine vapor products, or alternative nicotine products as defined in § 18.2-371.2 of
the Code of Virginia; (ii) cannabidiol oil or THC-A as defined in § 54.1-3408.3 of the Code of

Virginia; or (iii) any substance that is prohibited by state or federal law. These products may not
be used by staff, contractors, interns, or visitors in any area on the premises.

6VAC35-71-410. Space utilization.
A. The JCC administration shall provide for the following:
1. An indoor recreation area with appropriate recreation materials;
2. An outdoor recreation area with appropriate recreation materials;
3. Kitchen facilities and equipment for the preparation and service of meals;
4, A dining area equipped with tables and seating;
5. Space and equipment for laundry, if laundry is done on site;

6. Storage space for items such as first aid equipment, household supplies, recreational
equipment, and other materials;

7. A designated visiting area that permits informal communication and opportunities for
limited, monitored physical contact between residents and visitors;

8. Space for administrative activities, including confidential conversations and the storage
of records and materials; and

9. A central medical area with medical examination rooms or other spaces designated to
ensure privacy of care and equipped in consultation with the health authority.

B. if a school program is operated at the facility, school classrooms shall be designed in

consultation with appropriate education authorities to comply with applicable state and local
requirements.

C. Spaces or areas may be utilized for multiple purposes but shall be in functional condition
for the designated purpose.

6VAC35-71-420. Kitchen operation and safety.

A. The facility administration shall have a food service operation maintenance plan that
addresses the following: (i) food sanitation and safety procedures; (ii) the inspection of food
service, preparation, and dining areas and equipment; (iii) a requirement for sanitary and
temperature-controlled storage facilities for food; and (iv) the monitoring of refrigerator and water
temperatures.

B. The facility administration shall have written procedures governingj access to all areas
where food or utensils are stored and the inventory and control of culinary equipment to which
residents reasonably may be expected to have access.

C. Walk-in refrigerators and freezers shall be equipped to permit emergency exits.

D. Bleach or another sanitizing agent approved by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
to destroy bacteria shal! be used in laundering table and kiichen linens.

84



6VAC35-71-430. Maintenance of the buildings and grounds.

A. The interior and exterior of all buildings and grounds shall be safe, maintained, and
reasonably free of clutter and rubbish. This requirement applies to all areas of the facility and to
items within the facility, including (i) required locks, mechanical devices, indoor and outdoor
equipment, and furnishings; and (ii) all areas where residents, staff, and visitors may reasonably
be expected to have access.

B. All buildings shall be reasonably free of stale, musty, or foul odors.

C. Each facility shall have a written plan to control pests and vermin. Buildings shall be kept
reasonably free of flies, roaches, rats, and other vermin. Conditions conducive to harboring or
breeding insects, rodents, or other vermin shall be eliminated immediately. The facility
administration shall document efforts to eliminate these conditions, as applicable.

6VAC35-71-440. Animals on the premises.
A. Animals maintained on the premises shall be:

1. Kept a reasonable distance from eating and food preparation areas, as well as a safe
distance from water supplies;

2. Tested, inoculated, and licensed as required by law; and
3. Provided with clean sleeping areas and adequate food and water.
B. The premises shall be kept reasonably free of stray domestic animals.
6VAC35-71-450. Fire prevention plan.

The JCC administration shall develop and implement a fire prevention plan that provides for
an adequate fire protection service.

6VAC35-71-460. Emergency and evacuation procedures.

A. Each JCC shall have a written emergency preparedness and response plan, which shall
address:

1. Documentation of contact with the local emergency coordinator to determine (i) local
disaster risks; (ii) communitywide plans to address different disasters and emergency

situations; and (iii) assistance, if any, that the local emergency management office will
provide to the facility in an emergency;

2. Analysis of the facility's capabilities and potential hazards, including natural disasters,
severe weather, fire, flooding, workplace violence or terrorism, missing persons, severe
injuries, or other emergencies that would disrupt the normal course of service delivery;
3. Written emergency management procedures outlining specific responsibilities for (i)
provision of administrative direction and management of response activities; (ii)
coordination of logistics during the emergency; (iii) communications; (iv) life safety of
residents, employees, contractors, interns, volunteers, and visitors;, (v} property
protection; (vi) community outreach; and (vii) recovery and restoration;
4. Written emergency response procedures for (i) assessing the situation; (ii) protecting
residents, employees, contractors, interns, volunteers, visitors, equipment, and vital
records; and (iii) restoring services shall address:

a. Communicating with employees, coniractors, and community responders;

b. Warning and notifying residents;

c. Providing emergency access to secure areas and opening locked doors;
d. Requiring fire and emergency keys that are instantly identifiable by sight and touch;

e. Conducting evacuations to emergency shelters or alternative sites and accounting
for all residents;

85



f. Relocating residents, if necessary;

g. Nolifying parents and legal guardians, as applicable and appropriate;
h. Alerting emergency personnel and sounding alarms;

i. Locating and shutting off utilities when necessary; and

j. Providing for a planned, personalized means of effective evacuation for individuals
who use wheelchairs, crutches, canes, or require other special accommodations.

5. Supporting documents that would be needed in an emergency, including emergency
call lists, building and site maps necessary to shut off utilities, designated evacuation
routes, and lists of major resources such as local emergency shelters; and

6. A schedule for testing the implementation of the plan and conducting emergency
preparedness drills.

B. All employees shall be trained to ensure they are prepared to implement the emergency
preparedness plan in the event of an emergency. The training shall be conducted in accordance
with 6VAC35-71-160 and 6VAC35-71-170 and shall outline the employees' responsibilities for:

1. Alerting emergency personnel and sounding alarms;

2. Implementing evacuation procedures, including evacuation of individuals who require
special accommodations;

3. Using, maintaining, and operating emergency equipment;
4. Accessing emergency information for residents [, ] including medical information; and
5. Utilizing community support services.

C. Contractors, volunteers, and interns shall be oriented in their responsibilities in
implementing the evacuation plan in the event of an emergency. Orientation shall be in
accordance with the requirements of 6VAC35-71-150, 6VAC35-71-160, and 6VAC35-71-240.

D. The JCC administration shall document the review of the emergency preparedness plan
annually and make necessary revisions. The revisions shall be communicated to employees,
contractors, volunteers, interns, and residents and shall be incorporated into (i) training for
employees, contractors, interns, and volunteers; and (ii) orientation of residents to services.

E. If a disaster, fire, emergency, or any other condition that may jeopardize the health, safety
and welfare of residents occurs, facility administration shall take appropriate action to protect the
health, safety, and welfare of the residents and to remedy the condition as soon as possible.

F. If a disaster, fire, emergency, or other condition that may jeopardize the health, safety, and
welfare of residents occurs, facility staff first shall respond and stabilize the disaster or emergency.
Once stabilized, facility staff shall report the disaster or emergency and the conditions at the
facility to (i) the parents or legal guardians of all residents, (ii) the director or the director's
designee, and (iii} the applicable court service units in accordance with 6VAC35-71-60. A report
also shall be made to the regulatory authority within the same timeframe.

G. Floor plans showing primary and secondary emergency exits shall be posted on each floor
in locations where they are easily visible to employees and residents.

H. The responsibilities of the residents in implementing the emergency and evacuation
procedures shall be communicated to all residents within seven days following admission or within
seven days of a substantive change in the procedures.

I. The facility administration shall conduct at least one evacuation drill to simulate the facility's
evacuation procedures each month in each building occupied by residents. During any three
consecutive calendar months, at least one evacuation drill shall be conducted during each shift.

J. A record shall be maintained for each evacuation drill and shall include the foliowing:

1. The buildings in which the drill was conducted;

86



2. The date and time of the drill;
3. The amount of time taken to evacuate the buildings;
4. The specific problems encountered, if applicable;

5. The staff tasks completed, including head counts and practice in notifying emergency
authorities; and

6. The name of the staff members responsible for conducting and documenting the drill
and preparing the record.

K. The JCC administration shall designate at least one employee who shall ensure that all

requirements regarding the emergency preparedness and response plan and the evacuation drill
program are met.

6VAC35-71-470. Security procedures.

A JCC shall have written security procedures in place related to the following:

1. Post orders or shift duties for each direct care and security post;
2. Population count;
3. A control center that integrates all external and internal security functions and
communications, is secured from residents' access, and is staffed 24 hours a day;
4. Contro! of the perimeter;
5. Actions to be taken regarding any escapes or absences without permission;
6. Searches of the buildings, premises, and persons; and
7. The control, detection, and disposition of contraband.

6VAC35-71-480. Searches of residents.

A. A JCC may conduct a search of a resident only for the purposes of maintaining facility

security and controlling contraband while, to the greatest extent possible, protecting the resident's
dignity.

B. Staff in the JCC shall adhere to the following requirements when conducting searches of
residents, including patdowns and frisk searches, strip searches, and body cavity searches:

1. Searches shall be conducted only by personnel who have received the required training
and are authorized to conduct searches.

2. The resident shall not be touched any more than is necessary to conduct the search.

3. Facility staff shall not search or physically examine a transgender or intersex resident
solely for the purpose of determining the resident's genital status.

C. Strip searches and visual inspections of the vagina and anal cavity areas shall be
conducted with a staff witness in an area that ensures privacy.

D. Except in exigent circumstances creating a potential threat to the heaith of a resident, if it
is determined that a manual or instrumental search of the anal cavity or vagina is necessary, the
resident shall be transporied to a local medical facility. In exigent circumstances creating a
potential threat to the resident's health, manual or instrumental searches of the anal cavity or
vagina shall be conducted by a qualified medical professional.
6VAC35-71-490. Communications systems.

A. There shall be at least one continuously operable, nonpay telephone accessible to staff in
each building in which residents sleep or participate in programs.

B. There shall be a means of communicating between the control center and housing units.
C. The facility shall be able to provide communications in an emergency.

87



6VAC35-71-500. Emergency telephone numbers.

A. There shall be an emergency telephone number where a staff person may be contacted
24 hours per day and seven days per week.

B. The emergency telephone number shall be provided to residents and the adults responsible
for their care when a resident is away from the facility and not under the supervision of direct care
employees, security employees, or law-enforcement officials.

6VAC35-71-510. Weapons.

No firearms or other weapons shall be permitted on JCC premises or during JCC-related
activities unless:

1. The weapon belongs to a law-enforcement officer and is (i) secured in a locked cabinet,
(i) secured in the trunk of the officer's vehicle, or (iii) present on the premises in response
to a request for law-enforcement intervention in an emergency, or

2. The director or the director's designee authorizes the weapon to be brought on the
premises.

6VAC35-71-520. Equipment inventory.

Facility staff shall have written procedures in place governing the inventory and control of all
of the facility’s security, maintenance, recreational, and medical equipment to which residents
reasonably may be expected to have access.

6VAC35-71-530. Power equipment.

The JCC administration shall have written safety rutes in place for use and maintenance of
power equipment.

6VAC35-71-540. Transportation.

A. The JCC administration shall have transportation available or make the necessary
arrangements for routine and emergency transportation of residents.

B. Written procedures shall require that facility staff whose duties involve transporting
residents offsite do the following:

1. Maintain a valid driver's license and report to the superintendent or the superintendent's
designee any change in the individual's driver's license status, including any suspensions,
restrictions, or revocations; and
2. Complete all related training.

C. Except when residents are transferred by non-JCC personnel as authorized in subsection
D of this section, residents shall be supervised by security employees or direct care employees
during routine and emergency vehicle transportation.

D. If a person or entity other than personnel in the juvenile correctional center assumes
custody of the resident for purposes of transportation, staff shall:

1. Provide the person or entity with a written document that identifies any pertinent
information known to the facility concerning the resident's immediate medical needs or
mental health condition that reasonably could be considered necessary for the resident's
safe transportation and supervision, including the resident's recent suicidal ideations or
suicide attempts. Any such information shall be provided in a manner that protects the
confidentiality of the information in accordance with § 16.1-300 of the Code of Virginia and
applicable rules and regulations regarding confidentiality of juvenile records.

2. Provide the individual transporting the resident with any medication the resident may
be required to take during transport or while absent from the facility.

6VAC35-71-545. Lockdowns.
A JCC may impose a lockdown only in accordance with the following requirements:

88



1. With the exception of a lockdown to respond to an emergency, a lockdown may not be
imposed until the superintendent or the superintendent's designee provides approval,

2. If an emergency necessitates a lockdown, the superintendent shall be notified as soon
as practicable;

3. The facility shall have written procedures in place for notifying administrators above the

level of superintendent of all lockdowns except lockdowns for routine contraband
searches;

4. If the lockdown extends beyond 72 hours, the lockdown and the steps being planned
or taken to resolve the situation shall be reported immediately to the administrator who is
two levels above the superintendent in the department's reporting chain-of-command,

5. Whenever residents are confined to a locked room as a result of a lockdown, the staff
shall:

a. Check each locked-down resident visually at least every 15 minutes, and more
frequently if necessitated by the circumstances;

b. Ensure that each resident has a means of immediate communication with staff,
either verbally or electronically, throughout the duration of the confinement period,;

c. Ensure that each resident is afforded the opportunity for at least one hour of large
muscle exercise outside of the locked room every calendar day unless the resident
displays behavior that is threatening or presents an imminent danger to himseif or
others, or unless the circumstances that required the lockdown justify an exception.

d. Ensure that the superintendent or the superintendent's designee makes personal
contact with each resident who is confined every calendar day; and

e. In response to a resident who exhibits self-injurious behavior after being in room
confinement, (i) take appropriate action in response to the behavior, (ii) consult with a
mental health clinician immediately thereafter and document the consultation, and (iii)
monitor the resident in accordance with established protocols, including constant
supervision, if appropriate.
6VAC35-71-550. Prohibited actions.
A. Residents shall not be subjected to the following actions:

1. Discrimination in violation of the Constitution of the United States, the Constitution of
the Commonwealth of Virginia, [; ] and state and federal statutes and regulations;

2. Deprivation of drinking water or food necessary to meet a resident's daily nutritional
needs, except as ordered by a licensed physician or licensed medical provider for a
legitimate medical or dental purpose and documented in the resident's medical record;

3. Denial of contacts and visits with the resident's attorney, probation or parole officer, the
JCC staff assigned to conduct the resident's due process hearings or resolve the
resident's grievance or complaint, the regulatory authority, a supervising agency

representative, or representatives of other agencies or groups as required by applicable
statutes or regulations;

4. Any action that is humiliating, degrading, abusive, or unreasonably impinges upon the
resident’s rights, including physical abuse, sexual abuse, or sexual harassment, nor shall
the resident be subject to retaliation for reporting these actions;

5. Corporal punishment, which is administered through the intentional infliction of pain or
discomfort to the body through actions such as (i) striking or hiiting with any part of the
body or with an implement; (ii) pinching, pulling, or shaking; or (iii) similar actions that
normally inflict pain or discomfort;

6. Subjection to unsanitary living conditions;



7. Deprivation of opportunities for bathing or access to toilet facilities, except as ordered
by a licensed health care professional for a legitimate medical purpose and documented
in the resident's medical record;

8. Denial of health care;
9. Denial of appropriate services, programs, activities, and treatment;

10. Application of aversive stimuli, except as permitted pursuant to other applicable state
regulations;

11. Administration of laxatives, enemas, or emetics, except as ordered by a licensed
physician, licensed medical provider, or poison control center for a legitimate medical
purpose and documented in the resident's medical record;

12. Deprivation of opportunities for sleep or rest, except as ordered by a licensed health

care professional for a legitimate medical or dental purpose and documented in the
resident's medical record;

13. Use of pharmacological restraints; and
14. Other constitutionally prohibited actions.

B. Employees shall be trained on the prohibited actions as provided in 6VAC35-71-160 and
6VAC35-71-170, as applicable.

6VAC35-71-555. Vulnerable population.

A. The facility administration shall implement a procedure for assessing whether a resident is
a member of a vulnerable population. Factors including the resident's height and size, English
proficiency, sexual orientation, history of being bullied, or history of self-injurious behavior may be
considered in determining whether a resident is a member of a vulnerable population. The
resident’s views with respect to his safety shall be given serious consideration.

B. If the assessment determines a resident is a member of a vuinerable population, the facility
administration shall implement any identified additional precautions such as heightened need for
supervision, additional safety precautions, or separation from certain other residents. The facility
administration shall consider on a case-by-case basis whether a placement would ensure the

resident's health and safety and whether the placement would present management or security
problems.

C. Lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, or intersex residents shall not be placed in particular
housing, bed, or other assignments solely on the basis of this identification or status, nor shall
any facility consider lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, or intersex identification or status as an
indicator of a likelihood of being sexually abusive.

6VAC35-71-560. Resident mail.

A. A resident's incoming or outgoing mail may be delayed or withheld only in accordance with
this section, as permitted by other applicable regulations, or by order of a court.

B. Staff may open and inspect residents’ incoming and outgoing nonlegal mail for contraband.
When based on legitimate interests of facility order and security, nonlegal mail may be censored

or rejected. The resident shall be notified when incoming or outgoing letters are withheld or
redacted, as appropriate.

C. In the presence of the resident recipient, staff may open to inspect for contraband but shall
not read incoming legal mail except as authorized in subsection D of this section.

D. Staff may not read incoming or outgoing mail unless (i} permission has been obtained from
a court or (ii} the superintendent or the superintendent's designee has determined that there is a
reasonable belief that the security of [a the ] facility is threatened.

90



E. Except as otherwise provided, incoming and outgoing letters shall be held for no more than

24 hours, and packages shall be held for no more than 48 hours, excluding weekends and
holidays.

F. Upon request, each resident shall be given postage and writing materials for all legal mail
and for at least two other letters per week.

G. Residents shall be permitted to correspond at their own expense with any person or

organization provided this correspondence does not pose a threat to facility order and security
and is not being used to violate or to conspire to violate the law.

H. First class letters and packages received for residents who have been transferred or
released shall be forwarded to the resident’s last known address.

|. Written procedures governing correspondence of residents shall be made available to all
employees and residents and updated as needed.
6VAC35-71-570. Telephone calls.

A. Residents shall be permitted to call family members or natural supports. Facility staff shall
have flexibility in scheduling these calls based on facility security needs and scheduled activities.

B. Resident telephone calls with their legal representatives shall comply with 6VAC35-71-590.
C. The department shall have written procedures in place that address resident contacts.
6VAC35-71-580. Resident contacts and visitation.

A. In order to ensure that residents maintain strong family and community relationships, a
resident's contacts and visits with immediate family members and natural supports may not be
restricted solely for punitive purposes. Any limitation shall be documented and based on (i) the
need for facility security and order and (ii) the behavior of individual residents and visitors.

B. Copies of the visitation procedures shall be mailed, either electronically or via first class
mail, to the resident’s parents or legal guardians, as applicable and appropriate, no later than the

close of the next business day after the resident arrives at the JCC, unless a copy already has
been provided to them.

C. Resident visitation at the home of an employee, volunteer, intern, or contractor is
prohibited.

B6VAC35-71-590. Contact with attorneys, courts, and law enforcement.

A. Residents shall have uncensored, confidential contact with their legal representative in
writing, as required by 6VAC35-71-560, by telephone, and in person. Reasonable limits may be
placed on these contacts as necessary to protect the security and order of the facility.

B. Residents shall not be denied access to the courts.

C. Residents shall not be required to submit to questioning by law enforcement, though they
may do so voluntarily.

1. A resident must provide written consent before any contact with law enforcement.
Written procedures shall be implemented for obtaining the resident's consent.

2. No employee may coerce a resident's decision to consent to have contact with law
enforcement.

6VAC35-71-610. Showers.

Residents shall have the opportunity to shower daily except (i) for the purpose of maintaining
facility security or for the special management of maladaptive behavior if approved by the

superintendent or designee or a mental health clinician or (ii) when there is a documented
emergency.

91



6VAC35-71-620. Resident privacy.

Residents shall be provided a level of privacy from routine sight supervision by staff members
of the opposite sex while bathing, dressing, or conducting toileting activities except (i) in
exceptional security circumstances or (i) if constant supervision is necessary to protect the
resident due to mental health issues. This section does not apply to medical personnel performing
medical procedures or to staff providing assistance to residents whose physical or mental
disabilities dictate the need for assistance with these activities as justified in the resident’s medical
record.

6VAC35-71-630. Nutrition.

A. Each resident, except as provided in subsection B of this section, shall be provided a daily
diet that (i) consists of at least three nutritionally balanced meals, of which two are hot meals
(except in emergencies), and an evening snack; (i) includes an adequate variety and quantity of
food for the age of the resident; and (iii) meets the nutritional requirements of all applicable federal
dietary requirements, such as U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA).

B. Special diets or alternative dietary schedules shall be provided in the following
circumstances: (i) when prescribed by a licensed health care professional; (ii) when necessary to
observe the established religious dietary practices of the resident; or (iii) when food or culinary
equipment has been used inappropriately, resulting in a threat to facility security and the special
diet or alternative dietary schedule is approved by the superintendent, the superintendent's
designee, or a mental health clinician. If a facility provides special diets or alternative dietary
schedules, the meals shall meet the minimum nutritional requirements of all applicable federal
dietary requirements, such as the USDA, and any required approval shall be documented.

C. Menus of actual meals served shali be kept on file in accordance with all applicable federal
requirements.

D. Staff who eat in the presence of the residents shall be served the same meals as the
residents unless a licensed health care professional has prescribed a special diet for the staff or
residents or unless the staff or residents are observing established religious dietary practices.

E. The JCC administration shall not allow more than 14 hours to pass between the evening
meal and breakfast the following day.

F. The JCC administration shall ensure that food is available to residents who for documented
medical or religious reasons need to eat breakfast before the 14 hours have expired.
6VAC35-71-650. Religion.

A. Residents shall not be required or coerced to participate in or unreasonably denied
participation in religious activities.

B. Residents shall be informed of their rights relating to religious participation during
orientation as provided in 6VAC35-71-680.
6VAC35-71-660. Recreation.
A. The JCC administration shall implement a recreational program plan developed and
supervised by a person trained in recreation or a related field. The plan shall include:
1. Opportunities for individual and group activities;
2. Opportunity for large muscle exercise daily;
3. Scheduling so that activities do not conflict with meals, religious services, or educational
programs; and

4. Regularly scheduled indoor and outdoor recreational activities that are structured to
develop skills. Outdoor recreation shall be available whenever practicable in accordance
with the facility's recreation plan. Staff shall document any adverse weather conditions,
threat to facility security, or other circumstances preventing outdoor recreation.

92



B. Each recreational program plan shall (i) address the means by which residents will be
medically assessed for any physical limitations or necessary restrictions on physical activities and
(ii} provide for the supervision of and safeguards for residents, including when participating in
water-related and swimming activities.

6VAC35-71-670. Resident funds.
A resident's personal funds, including any per diem or earnings, shall be used only for the
following: (i) the resident's benefit; (ii) payment of fines, restitution, costs, or support ordered by a

court or administrative judge; or (iii) payment of restitution for damaged property or personal injury

resulting from an institutional incident, as determined in accordance with the process established
in 6VAC35-71-1110.

6VAC35-71-680. Admission and orientation.

A. Written procedures governing the admission and orientation of residents to the JCC shall
provide for;

1. Verification of legal authority for placement;

2. Search of the resident and the resident's possessions, including inventory and storage
or disposition of property, as appropriate and required by 6VAC35-71-690;

3. Health screening of the resident as required by 6VAC35-71-940;

4. Notice to the parent or legal guardian of the resident's admission;

5. Provision to the parent or legal guardian of information on (i} visitation, (ii) how to
request information, and (iii) how to register concerns and complaints with the facility;

6. Interview with the resident to answer questions and obtain information;

7. Explanation to the resident of program services and schedules; and

8. Assignment of the resident to a housing unit and sleeping area or room.
B. The resident shall receive an orientation to the following:

1. The behavior management program as required by 6VAC35-71-745. During the
orientation, residents shall be given written information describing rules of conduct, the
sanctions for rule violations, and the disciplinary process. Staff shall have the discretion
to provide residents who are noncompliant or are displaying maladaptive behavior at least
one opportunity to view the written information instead of providing the resident with a
copy. The written information shall be explained to the resident and documented by the
dated signature of the resident and staff. If staff exercise the discretion not to provide the
resident with a written copy, staff must give the resident a copy of the written information
once the resident demonstrates the ability to comply with the rules of the facility.

2. The grievance procedure as required by 6VAC35-71-80.
3. The disciplinary process as required by 6VAC35-71-1110.

4. The resident's responsibilities in implementing the emergency procedures as required
by 6VAC35-71-460.

5. The resident's rights, including the prohibited actions provided for in 6VAC35-71-550.
6. The resident's rights relating to religious participation as required by 6VAC35-71-650.

C. The facility administration shall ensure that all information provided to the resident pursuant
to this section is explained in an age-appropriate or developmentally appropriate manner and is
available in a format that is accessible to all residents, including those who are deaf, visually
impaired, or otherwise disabled or who have limited reading skills or limited English proficiency.

D. The facility administration shall maintain documentation that the requirements of this
section have been satisfied.

93



6VAC35-71-690. Resident personal possessions.

A. The JCC administration shall inventory each resident's personal possessions upon
admission and document the information in the resident's case records.

B. The department shall have written procedures for the disposition or storage of items that
the resident is not permitted to possess in the facility. At a minimum, the procedures shall require
that if the items are nonperishable property that the resident may otherwise legally possess, staff
shall (i) securely store the property and return it to the resident upon release or (ii) make

reasonable, documented efforts to return the property to the resident or the resident's parent or
legal guardian.

C. Personal property that remains unclaimed six months following a resident's discharge from

DJJ and after a documented attempt to return the property may be disposed of in accordance
with § 66-17 of the Code of Virginia .

6VAC35-71-700. Classification plan.
A. The JCC administration shall utilize an objective classification system for determining a

resident's level of risk, needs, and most appropriate services and for assigning the resident to a
housing unit based on the resident's needs and existing resources.

B. Residents shall be placed according to their classification levels. These classifications shall

be reviewed as necessary in light of (i) the facility's safety and security and (ii) the resident's needs
and progress.

6VAC35-71-710. Resident transfer and reassignment between and within JCCs.
A. When a resident is transferred between JCCs, the following shall occur:

1. The resident's case records and health care records shall accompany the resident to
the receiving facility;, and

2. The resident's parents or legal guardian, if applicable and appropriate, and the court
service unit or supervising agency shall be notified within 24 hours of the transfer.

B. If a resident is reassigned to a more restrictive unit or program within a JCC or transferred
between JCCs, the JCC administration shall provide due process safeguards for the resident prior
to reassignment or transfer. The due process safeguards shall be documented in writing and

provided to the resident, both during orientation and when facility staff determine that
reassignment or transfer is necessary.

C. In the case of emergency transfers, the safeguards and notifications shall be instituted as
soon as practicable after transfer.

6VAC35-71-720. Discharge from direct care.

A. The case record of each resident s committed to the department and discharged from direct
care shall contain the following:

1. Documentation that the discharge was discussed with the parent or legal guardian, if
applicable and appropriate, the court service unit, and the resident; and

2. As soon as possible, but no later than 30 days after discharge, a comprehensive
discharge summary, which also shall be sent to the persons or agency that made the
placement. The discharge summary shall review:;

a. Services provided to the resident;
b. The resident's progress toward meeting individual service plan objectives;

¢. The resident's continuing needs and recommendations for further services and care,
if any;

d. The name of the person to whom the resident was discharged;
e. Dates of admission and discharge; and

94



f. The date the discharge summary was prepared and the identification of the person
preparing it.

B. In addition to the requirements in subsection A of this section, the case record of each

resident serving a determinate commitment or discharged pursuant to an order of a court also
shall contain a copy of the court order.

C. As appropriate and applicable, information concerning current medications, need for
continuing therapeutic interventions, educational status, and other items important to the

resident’s continuing care shall be provided to the legal guardian or legally authorized
representative.

D. Upon discharge, the (i) date of discharge and (ii) the name of the person to whom the
resident was discharged, if applicable, shall be documented in the case record.

6VAC35-71-735. Therapeutic communities in housing units.

A. The JCC administration shall ensure that each housing unit functions as a therapeutic
community that, at a minimum, includes the following components:

1. Designated staff assigned to one housing unit and, to the extent practicable, continued
assignment to that unit for the therapeutic benefit of residents;

2. Continued resident assignment to the same housing unit throughout the duration of

commitment, unless the continued assignment would threaten facility safety or security or
the resident's needs or progress,

3. Daily, structured therapeutic activities provided in accordance with 6VAC35-71-740;
and

4. Direction, guidance, and monitoring provided by an interdisciplinary team consisting of

designated JCC staff and representatives from the department's mental health, education,
and medical units.

B. The department shall establish written procedures governing therapeutic communities in
housing units that include these components.

6VAC35-71-740. Structured programming.

A. The facility administration shall implement a comprehensive, planned, and structured daily
routine designed {o:

1. Meet the residents' physical and emotional needs;

2. Provide protection, guidance, and supervision;

3. Ensure the delivery of program services; and

4. Meet the objectives of the resident's individual service plan.

B. Residents shall be provided the opportunity to participate in programming, as applicable,
upon admission to the facility.

6VAC35-71-745. Behavior management program.

A. The JCC administration shall implement a behavior management program approved by the
director or the director's designee.

B. Written procedures governing this program shall:
1. List the behavioral expectations for the resident;

2. List and explain techniques that are available or used to manage behavior, including
incidents of noncompliance;

3. Specify the processes for implementing the program, and
4. |dentify the means of documenting and monitoring the program's implementation.

95



C. If substantive revisions are made to the behavior management program, residents and
direct care employees shall be notified of these revisions in writing prior to implementation.

6VAC35-71-747. Behavior support contract.
A. If a resident exhibits a pattern of behavior indicating a need for behavioral support beyond

the support provided in the department's behavior management program, a written behavior
support contract shall be developed to assist the resident in self-managing these behaviors.

B. The facility shall have written procedures in place that address the circumstances under

which the contract will be utilized and the means of documenting and monitoring the contract's
implementation.

C. Staff regularly assigned to work with a resident in a housing unit shall review and be
prepared to implement the resident's behavior support contract.
6VAC35-71-750. Communication with court service unit staff.

A. A resident's probation or parole officer shall be provided with the contact information for an
individual at the facility to whom inquiries on assigned resident cases may be addressed.

B. The resident's probation or parole officer shall be invited to participate in any scheduled
classification and staffing team and treatment team meetings.

6VAC35-71-760. Communication with parents.
A. Each resident's parent or legal guardian, as appropriate and applicable, shail be provided

with the contact information for an individual at the facility to whom inquiries regarding the resident
may be addressed.

B. The resident's parent or legal guardian, as appropriate and applicable, shall be provided

written notice of and the opportunity to participate in scheduled classification and staffing team
and treatment team meetings.

6VAC35-71-765. Family engagement.

To the extent practicable the JCC administration shall adhere to the following in order to
ensure the inclusion and involvement of immediate family members and natural supports during
a resident’'s commitment to the department:

1. Permit the resident telephone calls to immediate family members or natural supports in
accordance with 6VAC35-71-57003];

2. Ensure events and activities in which family members will be invited to participate;

3. Ensure that a designated visiting area is available that is conducive to family visits in
accordance with 6VAC35-71-410; and

4. Maximize involvement of immediate family members and natural supports in the
resident treatment process.

6VAC35-71-770. Case management services.

A. The facility administration shall have written procedures in place governing case
management services that shall address:

1. The resident's adjustment to the facility, group living, and separation from the resident's
family;

2. Supportive counseling, as needed;
3. Transition and community reentry planning and preparation; and

4. Communication with (i) staff at the facility; (ii) the parents or legal guardians, as

appropriate and applicable; {iii) the court service unit; and (iv) community resources, as
needed.

B. The provision of case management services shall be documented in the case record.

96



6VAC35-71-790. Individual service plans.
A. An individual service plan shall be developed and placed in the resident's record within 30
days following arrival at the facility and implemented immediately thereafter.
B. Individual service plans shall describe in measurable terms the:
1. Strengths and needs of the resident;
2. Short-term and long-term goals, objectives, strategies, and timeframes for reaching
those goals, and the individuals responsible for carrying out the service plan;
3. Projected family involvement;

4. Projected date for accomplishing each objective; and

5. Status of the projected release plan and estimated length of stay except that this

requirement shall not apply to residents who are determinately committed to the
department.

C. The resident and facility staff shall participate in the development of the individual service
plan.

D. The supervising agency and resident's parents, legal guardian, or legally authorized
representative, if appropriate and applicable, shall be given the opportunity to participate in the
development of the resident's individual service plan.

E. The individual service plan shall include the date it was developed and the signature of the
person who developed it.

F. Copies of the individual service plan shall be provided to the (i) resident; (ii) resident's
parents or legal guardians, as appropriate and applicable; and (iii) placing agency.

G. The individual service plan shall be reviewed within 60 days of its development and within
each 90-day period thereafter.

H. The individual service plan shall be updated annually and revised as necessary. Changes
to the plan shall be made in writing. All participants shall receive copies of the revised plan.
6VAC35-71-800. Quarterly reports.

A. The resident's progress toward meeting individual service plan goals shall be reviewed,
and a progress report shall be prepared within 60 days of the development of the individual service
plan and within each 90-day period thereafter. The report shall review the status of the following:

1. Resident's progress toward meeting the plan's objeclives;
2. Family's involvement;

3. Continuing needs of the resident;

4. Resident's progress towards discharge; and

5. Status of discharge planning.

B. Each quarterly progress report shall include the date it was developed and the signature of
its author.

C. All quarterly progress reports shall be reviewed with the resident and distributed to the
resident's parents, legal guardian, or legally authorized representative; the supervising agency;
and appropriate facility staff.

6VAC35-71-805. Suicide prevention.

Written procedure shall require that (i) there is a suicide prevention and intervention program
developed in consultation with a qualified medical professional or mental health clinician and (ii)
all direct care employees, direct supervision employees, security employees, and employees
providing medical services are trained and retrained in the implementation of the program, in
accordance with 6VAC35-71-160 and 6VAC35-71-170, as applicable.

97



6VAC35-71-810. Behavioral health services.

Behavioral health services, if provided, shall be furnished by an individual (i) licensed by the
Department of Health Professions or (ii} who is working under the supervision of a licensed
clinician.
6VAC35-71-815. Daily housing unit log.

A. A daily housing unit log shall be maintained in each housing unit to inform staff of significant
incidents or problems experienced by residents, including health and dental complaints and
injuries.

B. Each entry in the daily housing unit log shall contain (i) the date of the entry, (ii) the name
of the individual making the entry, and (iii) the time each entry is made.

C. If the daily housing unit log is electronic, all entries shall be made in accordance with
subsection B of this section. The computer program shall possess the functionality to prevent
previous entries from being overwritten.

6VAC35-71-820. Staff supervision of residents.

A. Direct care employees shall provide 24-hour awake supervision seven days a week.

B. No direct care employee shall be on duty more than six consecutive days without a rest
day, except in an emergency.

C. Direct care employees shall be scheduled with an average of at least two rest days per
week in any four-week period.

D. Direct care employees shall not be on duty more than 16 consecutive hours, except in an
emergency.

E. There shall be at least one trained direct care employee on duty and actively supervising
residents at all times in areas of the premises in which one or more residents are present.

F. Notwithstanding the requirement in subsection E of this section, an employee who meets
the definition of a direct supervision employee and who satisfies the following additional

requirements shall be authorized to be alone with a resident outside the active supervision of a
direct care employee:

1. The direct supervision employee completes the training required by 6VAC35-71-160 C
and satisfies any additional retraining requirements provided for in 6VAC35-71-170;

2. The employee completes agency-approved training for direct supervision employees
on safety and security including training on the supervision of residents, verbal de-
escalation techniques, personal protection techniques, and emergency intervention before
being alone with residents outside of the active supervision of direct care employees;

3. The direct supervision employee passes an assessment demonstrating the ability to
perform all physical requirements related to personal protection;

4. During any period in which the resident is not actively supervised by direct care
employees, the direct supervision employee has the ability to communicate immediately
with a direct care employee through a two-way radio or by other means ; and

5. The direct supervision employee notifies the direct care employee immediately before
and immediately after meeting with the resident.

G. The facility administration shall have written procedures in place that address staff
supervision of residents, including contingency plans for resident illnesses, emergencies, and off-
campus activities. These procedures shall be based on ihe:

1. Needs of the population served;
2. Types of services offered;
3. Qualifications of staff on duty; and

98



4. Number of residents served.

H. The JCC administration may not permit an individual resident or group of residents to
exercise control or authority over other residents except when practicing leadership skills as part
of an approved program under the direct and immediate supervision of staff.

6VAC35-71-830. Staffing pattern.

A. During the hours that residents are scheduled to be awake, there shall be at least one
direct care employee awake, on duty, and responsible for supervision of every eight residents, or
portion thereof, wherever youth are present in the facility, as well as wherever residents are
attending off-campus, facility-sponsored activities. Pursuant to 6VAC35-71-540, however,
security employees shall be authorized to transport residents for routine or emergency purposes,
such as for work release programs or in response to an injury, without the presence of direct care
employees, provided the same staffing ratios are maintained as required in this subsection.

B. During the hours that residents are scheduled to sleep, there shall be at least one direct
care employee awake, on duty, and responsible for supervision of every 16 residents, or portion
thereof, wherever youth are present in the facility.

C. At least one direct care employee shall be on duty and responsible for the supervision of
residents in each building or housing unit where residents are sleeping.

D. Notwithstanding the requirements in this section, residents may be supervised by security
employees or direct care employees while assigned to or receiving health care services in the
infirmary or nurse's station.

6VAC35-71-840. Outside personnel.

A. JCC staff shall supervise all situations in which outside personnel perform any kind of work
in the immediate presence of residents.

B. Adults who are confined in a public or privately operated prison or a local jail shall not work
in the immediate presence of any resident and shall be supervised in a manner that prohibits
direct contact between or interaction among these individuals and residents.

6VAC35-71-850. Facility work assignments.

A. Work assignments, whether paid or unpaid, shall be in accordance with the age, health,
and ability of the resident.

B. Work assignments shall not interfere with school programs, study periods, meals, or sleep.
6VAC35-71-860. Agreements governing juvenile industries work programs.

A. If the director enters into an agreement with a public or private entity for the operation of a
work program pursuant to § 66-25.1 of the Code of Virginia, the agreement shall:

1. Comply with all applicable federal and state laws and regulations, including the Fair

Labor Standards Act (29 USC § 201 et seq.), child labor laws, and workers' compensation
insurance laws;

2. State the duration of the agreement and the criteria by which it may be extended or
terminated;

3. Specify where residents will work and, if not at a JCC, the security arrangements at the
work site; and

4. Summarize the educational and career and job-readiness benefits to residents.
B. The agreement shall address how residents will be hired and supervised, including:

1. The application and selection process;

2. The qualifications required of residents;

3. A requirement that there be a job description for each resident's position;

99



4. A requirement that there be an evaluation of each resident's job-related behaviors and
attitudes, attendance, and quality of work; and
5. Whether and how either party may terminate a resident’s participation.

C. The agreement shall address resident compensation including:
1. The manner by which and through what funding source residents are to be paid; and
2. If applicable, whether any deductions shall be made from the resident’'s compensation
for subsistence payments, restitution to victims, fines, or other simitar deductions.

D. As applicable, the agreement shall specify:

1. How records of the work program's finances, materials inventories, and residents' hours

of work shall be maintained and that these records are subject to inspection by either party
and by an independent auditor;

2. How the project's goods or services will be marketed,;
3. How proceeds from the project will be collected and distributed to the parties; and
4. Which party is responsible for providing:

a. The materials to be worked on;

b. The machinery to be used;

¢. Technical training and supervision in the use of equipment or processes;
d. Utilities;

e. Transportation of raw materials and finished goods;

f. Disposal of waste generated in the work project; and

g. Safety and other special equipment and clothing.

E. Prior to execution of the agreement, the director or the director’s designee shall review the
agreement for compliance with the requirements of this section. Except upon explicit authorization
by the board, the director and the director's designee shali be prohibited from executing any
agreement that is missing one or more elements enumerated in this section.

6VAC35-71-880. Health authority.

The JCC administration shall ensure that a licensed physician, health administrator,
government authority, health care contractor, supervising registered nurse or head nurse, or
health agency is designated to serve as the health authority responsible for organizing, planning,
and monitoring the timely provision of appropriate health care services in that facility, including
arranging for all levels of health care and ensuring the quality and accessibility of all medical,
nursing, dental, and mental health care services, consistent with applicable statutes, prevailing
community standards, and medical ethics. All medical, psychiatric, dental, and nursing matters
are the province of the physician, psychiatrist, dentist, and nurse, respectively.

6VAC35-71-890. Provision of health care services.

A. Licensed health care professionals shall provide treatment pursuant to the laws and
regulations governing the applicable practice within the Commonwealth.

B. Other health-trained personnel shall provide care within their level of training and
certification and shall not administer health care services for which they are not qualified or
specifically trained.

C. The facility administration shall retain documentation of the training received by health-
trained personnel necessary to perform any designated health care services. Documentation of
applicable, current licensure or certification shall constitute compliance with this section.
6VAC35-71-900. Health care procedures.

A. The department shall have written procedures in place for promptly:

100



1. Providing or arranging for the provision of medical and dental services for health
problems identified at admission;

2. Providing or arranging for the provision of routine ongoing and follow-up medical and
dental services after admission;

3. Providing emergency services for each resident who has reached 18 years of age and
consents to these services or for any other resident, as provided by statute;

4. Providing emergency services and ongoing treatment, as appropriate and applicable,
for any resident experiencing or showing signs of suicidal or homicidal thoughts,
symptoms of mood or thought disorders, or other mental health problems; and

5. Ensuring that the required information in subsection B of this section is accessible and
up to date.

B. The following written information concerning each resident shall be readily accessible to
designated staff who may have to respond to a medical or dental emergency:

1. The name, address, and telephone number of the licensed physician or dentist to be
contacted;

2. The name, address, and telephone number of the parent, legal guardian, or supervising
agency, as applicable, to be notified; and
3. Information concerning:
a. Use of medication;
b. Allergies, including medication allergies;
c. Substance abuse and use; and
d. Significant past and present medical problems.
6VAC35-71-930. Consent to and refusal of health care services.
A. An appropriately trained medical professional shall advise the resident and parent or legal
guardian, as applicable and appropriate, of (i) the material facts regarding the nature,

consequences, and risks of the proposed treatment, examination, or procedure; and (ii) the
alternatives to the proposed treatment, examination, or procedure.

B. Consent to health care services, as defined in 6VAC35-71-10, shall be provided in
accordance with § 54.1-2969 of the Code of Virginia.

C. Residents may refuse, in writing, health care and treatment. This subsection does not apply
to medication refusals that are governed by 6VAC35-71-1070.

D. When health care is rendered against the resident's will, it shall be in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations.

6VAC35-71-950. Tuberculosis screening.

A. Within seven days of arrival at a JCC, each resident, excluding residents transferred from

another JCC shall have undergone a screening or assessment for tuberculosis. The screening or
assessment shall be no older than 30 days.

B. A screening or assessment for tuberculosis shall be completed annually on each resident.

C. The facility's screening practices shall be performed in a manner that is consistent with the
current recommendations of the Virginia Department of Health, Division of Tuberculosis
Prevention and Control and the federal Department of Health and Human Services Centers for

Disease Control and Prevention for the detection, diagnosis, prophylaxis, and treatment of
pulmonary tuberculosis.

101



6VAC35-71-960. Medical examinations.

A. Within five days of an initial intake at a JCC, all residents shall be medically examined by
a licensed physician or a licensed health care practitioner operating under the supervision of a
licensed physician to determine if the resident requires medical attention or poses a threat to the
health of staff or other residents. This examination shall include the following:

1. Complete medical, immunization, and psychiatric history;
2. Recording of height, weight, temperature, pulse, respiration, and blood pressure;

3. Reports of medical laboratory testing and clinical testing resuits, as deemed medically
appropriate, to determine both clinical status and freedom from communicable disease;

4. Physical examination, including gynecological assessment of females, when
appropriate;

5. Documentation of immunizations administered; and
6. A plan of care, including initiation of treatment, as appropriate.

B. Residents transferring to the JCC from a direct care placement may submit the report of a
medical examination conducted within the preceding 13 months at the discretion of the health

care provider, upon review of the health screening at admission and prior medical examination
repor.

C. Each resident shall have an annual physical examination by or under the direction of a
licensed physician.

6VAC35-71-970. Dental examinations.

A. Within 14 days of an initial intake at a JCC, all residents shall undergo a dental examination
conducted by a dentist.

B. For residents transferring to the JCC from a direct care placement, the report of a dental

examination within the preceding 13 months may be acceptable at the discretion of the dentist
upon review of the dental examination documentation.

C. Each resident shall have an annual dental examination by a dentist and routine prophylactic
treatment.

6VAC35-71-990. Health screening for intrasystem transfers.

A. All residents transferred between JCCs shall receive a medical, dental, and mental health

screening by health-trained or qualified health care personnel upon arrival at the facility. The
screening shall include:

1. A review of the resident's health care record;
2. Discussion with the resident on his medical status; and
3. Observation of the resident.

B. All findings shall be documented, and the resident shall be referred for follow-up care as
appropriate.
6VAC35-71-1000. Infectious or communicable diseases.

A._ A resident with a known communicable disease that can be transmitted person-to-person

shall not be housed in the general population unless a licensed health care professional certifies
that:

1. The facility is aware of the required treatment for the resident and the procedures to
protect residents and staff, and

2. The facility is capable of providing care to the resident without jeopardizing residents
and staff.

102



B. The facility administration shall have written procedures in place, approved by the health
authority, that:

1. Address staff (i) interactions with residents with infectious, communicable, or contagious
medical conditions; and (ii) use of standard precautions;

2. Require staff training in standard precautions, initially and annually thereafter as
required in 6VAC35-71-160 and 6VAC35-71-170; and

3. Require staff to follow procedures for dealing with residents who have infectious or
communicable diseases.

C. Employees providing medical services shall be trained in tuberculosis control practices as
required in 6VAC35-71-160.

6VAC35-71-1020. Resident health care records.

A. Each resident's health care record shall include written documentation of (i} the initial
physical examination, {ii} an annual physical examination by or under the direction of a licensed
physician including any recommendation for follow-up care, and (iii) the provision of follow-up
medical care recommended by the physician or indicated by the needs of the resident.

B. Each initial physical examination report shall include:

1. Information necessary to determine the health and immunization needs of the resident,
including:

a. Immunizations administered at the time of the exam;

b. Hearing and vision exams conducted at a minimum on students in grades three,
seven, and 10, pursuant to 8VAC20-250-10, unless any of the exceptions listed in §
22.1-273 of the Code of Virginia apply;

c. A statement of the resident's general physical condition and documentation of
communicable disease status, including tuberculosis;

d. Current medical conditions or concerns;

e. Allergies, chronic conditions, and disabilities, if any;

f. Nutritional requirements, including special diets, if any;
g. Restrictions on physical activities, if any; and

h. Recommendations for further treatment, immunizations, and other examinations
indicated.

2. Date of the physical examination; and

3. Signature of a licensed physician, the physician's designee, or an official of a local
health department.

C. A resident's health care record shall include written documentation of (i) an annual

examination by a licensed dentist and (ii) follow-up dental care recommended by the dentist based
on the needs of the resident.

D. A resident's health care record shall include notations of health and dental complaints and
injuries and a summary of the resident's symptoms and treatments given.

E. A resident's health care record shall include or document the facility's efforts to obtain

treatment summaries of ongoing psychiatric or other mental health treatment and reports, if
applicable.

F. Written procedures shall provide that each resident's active health care records shall be:
1. Kept confidential from unauthorized persons and in a file separate from the case record,
2. Readily accessible in case of emergency; and
3. Available to authorized staff consistent with applicable state and federal laws.

103



G. A resident's inactive heaith records shall be retained and disposed of as required by The
Library of Virginia.

6VAC35-71-1030. First aid kits.
A. The JCC administration shall maintain first aid kits within the facility, as well as in facility

vehicles used to transport residents. The facility shall have written procedures in place addressing
the (i) contents; (ii} location; and (iii) method of restocking first aid kits.

B. The first aid kit shall be readily accessible for minor injuries and medical emergencies.
6VAC35-71-1040. Sick call.
A_ All residents shall have the opportunity daily to request health care services.

B. Resident requests for health care services shall be documented, reviewed for the
immediacy of need and the intervention required, and responded to daily by qualified medical
staff. Residents shall be referred to a licensed physician consistent with established protocols and
written or verbal orders issued by personnel authorized by law to give these orders.

C. The frequency and duration of sick call shall be sufficient to meet the health needs of the
facility population.

6VAC35-71-1050. Emergency medical services.

A. The JCC administration shall ensure that residents have access to 24-hour emergency
medical, mental health, and dental services for the care of an acute iliness or unexpected heaith
care need that cannot be deferred until the next scheduled sick call.

B. Procedures shall include arrangements for the following:
1. Utilization of 911 emergency services;
2. Emergency transportation of residents from the facility;
3. Security procedures for the immediate transfer of residents when appropriate;
4. Use of one or more designated hospital emergency departments or other appropriate
facilities consistent with the operational procedures of local supporting rescue squads;
5. Response by on-call health care providers to include provisions for telephonic
consultation, guidance, or direct response as clinically appropriate; and
6. Onsite first aid and crisis intervention.

C. Staff who respond to medical or dental emergencies shall do so within the scope of their
training and certifications.

6VAC35-71-1060. Hospitalization and other outside medical treatment of residents.
A. If a resident needs hospital care or other medical treatment outside the facility:
1. The resident shall be transported in accordance with 6VAC35-71-540.
2. Staff shall escort and supervise residents when outside the facility for hospital care or
other medical treatment until appropriate security arrangements are made. This

subdivision shall not apply to the transfer of residents under the Psychiatric Inpatient
Treatment of Minors Act (§ 16.1-335 et seq. of the Code of Virginia).

3. Any exceptions to subdivisions 1 and 2 of this subsection shall be made in accordance
with the resident's medical condition.

B. The parent or legal guardian, as appropriate and applicable, shall be informed that the
resident was taken outside the facility for health care in accordance with 6VAC35-71-60.

6VAC35-71-1070. Medication.

A. All medication shall be properly labeled consistent with the requirements of the Virginia

Drug Control Act (§ 54.1-3400 et seq. of the Code of Virginia). Medication prescribed for individual
use shall be so labeled.

104



B. All medication shall be securely locked, except when otherwise ordered by a licensed

physician or licensed health care provider on an individual basis for keep-on-person or equivalent
use.

C. All staff responsible for medication administration who do not hold a license issued by the
Virginia Department of Health Professions authorizing the administration of medications shall
successfully complete a medication training program approved by the Board of Nursing and
receive required annual refresher training before they may administer medication.

D. Staff authorized to administer medication shall be informed of any known side effects of
the medication and the symptoms of the effects.

E. A program of medication shall be initiated for a resident only when prescribed in writing by
a person authorized by law to prescribe medication. This includes over-the-counter medication
administered pursuant to a written or verbal order that is issued by personnel authorized by law
to give these orders.

F. All medications shall be administered in accordance with the physician's or other
prescriber's instructions and consistent with the requirements of § 54.1-3408 of the Code of
Virginia and the Virginia Drug Control Act (§ 54.1-3400 et seq. of the Code of Virginia).

G. A medication administration record shall be maintained that identifies all medicines
received by each resident and that includes the:

1. Date the medication was prescribed or most recently refilled,

. Drug name;

. Scheduie for administration, to include notation of each dose administered or refused,
. Strength,

. Route;

. ldentity of the individual who administered the medication; and

7. Date the medication was discontinued or changed.

H. If a medication incident or an adverse drug reaction occurs, first aid shall be administered
if indicated. As addressed in the physician's standing orders, staff shall promptty contact a poison
control center, hospital, pharmacist, nurse, or physician and shall take actions as directed. If the
situation is not addressed in standing orders, the attending physician shall be notified as soon as
possible and the actions taken by staff shall be documented.

I. Written procedures shall require (i) the documentation of medication incidents, (ii) the review
of medication incidents and reactions and implementation of necessary improvements, (iii} the
storage of controlled substances, and (iv) the distribution of medication off campus. The

procedures must be approved by the department's health services director. Documentation of this
approval shall be retained.

J. Medication refusals and actions taken by staff shall be documented. The facility
administration shall have procedures for managing these refusals that shall address:
1. The manner by which medication refusals are documented; and
2. Physician follow-up, as appropriate.

K. Disposal and storage of unused, expired, and discontinued medications and medical
implements shall be in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

L. The telephone number of a regional poison control center and other emergency numbers
shall be posted on or next to each non-pay telephone that has access to an outside line in each
building in which residents sleep or participate in programs.

M. Syringes and other medical implements used for injecting or cutting skin shall be locked
and inventoried.

[o2 B 6 ) I - L B\

105



6VAC35-71-1080. Release physical.

Each resident shall be medically examined by a licensed physician or qualified health care
practitioner within 30 days before release unless exempted by the responsible physician based
on a full medical examination conducted within 90 days prior to release.

Article 1

Behavior, Discipline, and Room Confinement
6VAC35-71-1110. Disciplinary process.

A. The JCC administration shall ensure that, to the extent practicable, resident behavioral
issues are addressed (i} in the context of a therapeutic community; (ii} in a manner that is
consistent with the department's behavior management program; (iii) with consideration of the
safety and security of the residents, staff, and others in the facility; and (iv) with the goal of
rehabilitating [ ratherthan-punishing ] the resident.

B. The JCC administration shall address (i) minor resident misbehavior through an informal
process and (ii) instances when a resident is charged with a violation of the rules of conduct
through the formal process outlined in subsections C, D, and E of this section.

C. If staff have reason to believe a resident has committed a rule violation that cannot be
resolved through the facility's informal process, staff shall prepare a disciplinary report detailing
the alleged rule violation. A written copy of the report shall be maintained by the housing unit staff.
The resident shall be given a written copy of the report within 24 hours of the alleged rule violation,
however, staff shall have the discretion to provide residents who are noncompliant or are
displaying maladaptive behavior at least one opportunity to view the written report instead of
providing a copy to the resident within 24 hours of the alleged rule violation. If staff exercise this
option, a copy of the written report shall be provided to the resident once the resident
demonstrates [ thattherasidentis-able the ability ] to comply with the rules of the facility.

D. After the resident receives notice of an alleged rule violation, the resident shall be provided
the opportunity to admit or deny the charge.

1. The resident may admit to the charge in writing to a superintendent or the
superintendent's designee who was not involved in the incident, accept the sanction
prescribed for the offense, and waive his right to any further review.

2. If the resident denies the charge or there is reason to believe that the resident's
admission is coerced or that the resident does not understand the charge or the implication

of the admission, the formal process for resolving the matter detailed in subsection E of
this section shall be followed.

E. The formal process for resolving rule violations shall provide the following:

1. A disciplinary hearing to determine if substantial evidence exists to find the resident guilty
of the rule violation shall be scheduled to occur no later than seven days after the rule violation,
excluding weekends and holidays. The hearing may be postponed with the resident's consent.

2. The resident alleged to have committed the rule violation shall be given at least 24
hours' notice of the time and place of the hearing; however the hearing may be held within
24 hours with the resident's writien consent.

3. The disciplinary hearing on the alleged rule violation shall:

a. Be conducted by an impartial and objective employee who shall determine (i) what
evidence is admissible, (i) the guilt or innocence of the resident, and (jii) if the resident
is found guilty of the rule violation, what sanctions shall be imposed;

106



b. Allow the resident to be present throughout the hearing, unless the resident waives
the right to attend, his behavior justifies exclusion, or another resident's testimony must

be given in confidence. The reason for the resident's absence or exclusion shall be
documented;

c. Permit the resident to make a statement, present evidence, and request relevant
witnesses on his behalf. The reasons for denying these requests shall be documented;

d. Permit the resident to request a staff member to represent him and question the
witnesses. A staff member shall be appointed to help the resident when it is apparent

that the resident is not capable of effectively collecting and presenting evidence on his
own behalf; and

e. Be documented, with a record of the proceedings kept for three years.

4. A written record shall be made of the hearing disposition and supporting evidence. The
hearing record shall be kept on file at the JCC.

5. The resident shall be informed in writing of the disposition and, if found guilty of the rule
violation, the reasons supporting the disposition and the right to appeal.

6. If the resident is found guilty of the rule violation, a copy of the disciplinary report shall
be placed in the resident's case record.

7. The superintendent or the superintendent's designee shall review all disciplinary
hearings and dispositions to ensure conformity with this chapter.

8. The resident shall have the right to appeal the disciplinary hearing decision to the
superintendent or the superintendent's designee within 24 hours of receiving the decision.
The appeal shall be decided within 24 hours of its receipt, and the resident shall be notified

in writing of the results within three days. These timeframes do not include weekends and
holidays.

6VAC35-71-1120. Timeout.
A. Facilities that use timeout shall have written procedures in place that provide the following:

1. Timeout may be imposed only to address minor inappropriate or problematic behavior,
such as talking back or failing to follow instructions;

2. A resident shall be released from the timeout period when the resident demonstrates
the ability to rejoin the group activity and comply with expectations that are in place; and

3. Staff shali be authorized to determine the area in which a resident is placed for timeout
on a case-by-case basis.

B. A resident in timeout shall have a means of immediate communication with staff, either
verbally or electronically.

C. Staff shall monitor the resident in the timeout area at least every 15 minutes and more often
depending on the nature of the resident's condition or behavior.

D. Use of timeout and staff checks on the residents shall be documented.
6VAC35-71-1130. (Repealed.)
6VAC35-71-1140. Room confinement.
A. Written procedures governing room confinement shall address the following issues:
1. The actions or behaviors that may result in room confinement;

2. The factors, such as age, developmental level, or disability, that should be considered
prior to placing a resident in room confinement;

3. The process for determining whether the resident's behavior threatens the safety and
security of the resident, others, or the facility; the protoco! for determining whether the

107



threat necessitating room confinement has abated; and the necessary steps for releasing
the resident from room confinement after the threat has abated; and

4. The circumstances under which a debriefing with the resident should occur after the
resident is released from confinement; the party that should conduct the debriefing; and
the topics that should be discussed in the debriefing, including the cause and impact of

the room confinement and the appropriate measures post-confinement to support positive
resident outcomes.

B. If a resident is placed in room confinement, regardless of the duration of the confinement
period or the rationale for the confinement, staff shall take measures to ensure the continued
health and safety of the confined resident. At a minimum, the following measures shall be taken:

1. Staff shall monitor the resident visually at least every 15 minutes and more frequently if
indicated by the circumstances. If a resident is placed on suicide precautions, staff shall
conduct additional visual checks as determined by the mental health clinician.

2. A qualified medical health professional or mental health clinician shall visit with the
resident at least once daily to assess the resident's medical and mental health status.

3. The resident shall have a means of immediate communication with staff, either verbally
or electronically, throughout the duration of the confinement period.

4. The resident shall be afforded the opportunity for at least one hour of large muscle
activity outside of the locked room every calendar day unless the resident displays
behavior that is threatening, presents an imminent danger to himself or others, or other
circumstances prevent the activity. The reasons for the exception shall be approved by
the superintendent or the superintendent's designee and documented.

5. If the resident exhibits self-injurious behavior while in room confinement, staff shall (i)
take appropriate action in response to the behavior to prevent further injury and to notify
supervisory staff; (ii) consult with a mental health clinician immediately afier the threat has
abated and document the consultation; and (iii) adjust the frequency of face-to-face
checks, as needed, never allowing more than 15 minutes to pass between checks.

C. [ A+resident shall-never be placed in room-confinerment asa sanction for-roRcempliance of
as-ameansof punishment | Room confinement may be imposed only in response to the following
situations:

1. If a resident's actions threaten facility security or the safety and security of residents,
staff, or others in the facility; [ of ]

2. In order to prevent damage to real or personal property when the damage is committed
with the intent of fashioning an object or device that may threaten facility security or the
safety and security of residents, staff, or others in the facility[ -, or

3. If the resident admits in writing to a charge for or is found quilty of one of the following

offenses in accordance with the disciplinary process in 6VAC35-71-1120 and is placed in
disciplinary room confinement:

a. Escape, attempted escape, or Absent without Leave (AWOL);

b. Possession or use of an unauthorized item that has the potential to threaten the
security of the facility;

¢. Assault;

d. Fighting;

a. Sexual misconduct: or
f. Sexual abuse.

108



D. A resident may not receive a sanction for disciplinary room confinement that exceeds five
consecutive days.

DP-Reom E. Except when a resident is placed in disciplinary room confinement in accordance
with subdivision C 3, room ] confinement may be imposed only after less restrictive measures
have been exhausted or cannot be employed successfully. Once the threat necessitating the

confinement has abated, staff shall initiate the process for releasing the resident from
confinement.

[ E- E. ] {faresident is placed in room confinement, the resident shall be provided medical and
mental heaith treatment, as applicable, education, daily nutrition in accordance with 6VAC35-71-
630, and daily opportunities for bathing in accordance with 6VAC35-71-550.

[E G. ] Within the first three hours of a resident's placement in room confinement, a
designated staff member shall communicate with the resident to explain (i) the reasons for which
the resident has been placed in confinement; (i) the expectations governing behavior while in

room confinement; and (iii) the steps necessary for the resident to be released from room
confinement.

[ G- H. ] A resident confined for six or fewer waking hours shall be afforded the opportunity at
least once during the confinement period to communicate, wholly apart from the communications
required in subsection F of this section, with a staff member regarding his status or the impact of
the room confinement. A resident confined for a period that exceeds six waking hours shall be
afforded an opportunity twice daity during waking hours for these communications.

[ H- I. ] The superintendent or the superintendent's designee shall make personal contact with
every resident who is placed in room confinement each day of confinement.

[+ J. ] If a resident is placed in room confinement for 24 hours, the superintendent or the
superintendent's designee shall be notified and shall provide written approval for any continued
room confinement beyond the 24-hour period.

[ 4- K. ] The facility superintendent's supervisor shall provide written approval before any room
confinement may be extended beyond 48 hours.

[ K- L. ] The administrator who is two levels above the superintendent in the department's
reporting chain-of-command shall provide written approval before any room confinement may be
extended beyond 72 hours. The administrator's approval shall be contingent upon receipt of a
written report outlining the steps being taken or planned to resolve the situation. The facility
administration shall convene a treatment team consisting of stakeholders involved in the

resident's treatment to develop this plan. The department shall establish written procedures
governing the development of this plan.

[ & M. ] Room confinement periods that exceed five days shall be subject to a case
management review that adheres to the following requirements:

1. A facility-level review committee shall conduct a case management review at the

committee's next scheduled meeting immediately following expiration of the five-day
period.

2. If the facility-level case management review determines a need for the resident's
continued confinement, the case shall be referred for a case management review at the

division-level committee meeting, which shall occur no later than seven business days
following the referral.

3. Upon completion of the initial reviews in subdivisions L 1 and L 2 of this section, any
additional time that the resident remains in room confinement shall be subject to a
recurring review by the facility-level review committee and the division-level review
committee, as applicable, until either committee recommends the resident's release from
room confinement. Upon written request of the division-level review committee, the

109



administrator who is two levels above the superintendent in the department’s reporting
chain-of-command shall be authorized to reduce the frequency of or waive the division-

level reviews. The rationale for the waiver shall be documented and placed in the
resident's record.

6VAC35-71-1150. (Repealed.)
6VAC35-71-1160. (Repealed.)
6VAC35-71-1175. Physical restraints.

A. Physical restraint shall be used as a last resort only after less restrictive behavior
intervention techniques have failed or to control residents whose behavior poses a risk to the
safety of the resident, staff, or others.

1. Staff shall use the least force deemed reasonably necessary to eliminate the risk or to
maintain security and order and shall never use physical restraint as punishment or with
intent to inflict injury.

2. Physical restraint may be implemented, monitored, and discontinued only by staff

trained in the proper and safe use of restraint in accordance with the requirements in
6VAC35-71-160 and 6VAC35-71-170.

B. The JCC administration shall implement written procedures governing use of physical
restraint that shall:

1. Require training in crisis prevention and behavior intervention techniques that staff may
use to control residents whose behaviors pose a risk;

2. ldentify the staff position that will write the report and timeframe for completing the
report;

3. Identify the staff position that will review the report for continued staff development for
performance improvement and the timeframe for this review; and

4. |dentify the methods to be followed should physical restraint, less intrusive behavior
interventions, or measures permitted by other applicable state regulations prove
unsuccessful in calming and moderating the resident's behavior.

C. Each application of physical restraint shall be fully documented in the resident’s record.
The documentation shall include:

1. Date and time of the incident;
2. Staff involved in the incident;
3. Justification for the restraint;

4. Less restrictive behavior interventions that were unsuccessfully attempted before using
physical restraint;

5. Duration of the restraint;
6. Description of the method of physical restraint techniques used;
7. Signature of the person completing the report and date; and
8. Reviewer's signature and date.
Article 3

Mechanical Restraints and Protective Devices
6VAC35-71-1180. Mechanical restraints and protective devices.
A. Mechanical restraints and protective devices may be used for the following purposes

subject to the restrictions enumerated in this section: (i) to control residents whose behavior poses
an imminent risk to the safety of the resident, staff, or others; (ii) for purposes of controlled

110



movement, either from one area of the facility to another or to a destination outside the facility;
and (iii) to address emergencies.

B. A JCC that uses mechanical restraints or protective devices shall observe the following
general requirements:

1. Mechanical restraints and protective devices shall be used only for as long as necessary
to address the purposes established in subsection A of this section. Once the imminent
risk to safety has abated, the resident has reached the intended destination within the
facility or has returned to the facility from a destination offsite, or the emergency has been
resolved, the mechanical restraint or protective device shall be removed.

2. The superintendent or the superintendent's designee shall be notified immediately upon
using mechanical restraints or protective devices in an emergency.

3. The facility administration may not use mechanical restraints or protective devices as a
punishment or a sanction.

4. Residents shall not be restrained to a fixed object or restrained in an unnatural position.

5. A mental health clinician or other qualifying licensed medical professional may order
termination of a mechanical restraint or protective device at any time upon determining
that the item poses a health risk.

6. Each use of a mechanical restraint or protective device, except when used to transport
a resident or during video court hearing proceedings, shall be recorded in the resident's
case record and in the daily housing unit log.

7. A written system of accountability shall be in place to document routine distribution of
mechanical restraints and protective devices.

8. All staff who are authorized to use mechanical restraints or protective devices shall
receive training in such use in accordance with 6VAC35-71-160 and 6VAC35-71-170, as
applicable; and only trained staff shall use restraint or protective devices.

C. If staff in a JCC use a mechanical restraint to control a resident whose behavior poses a
safety risk in accordance with clause (i} of subsection A of this section, they shall notify a qualified
health care professional and a mentai health clinician before continuing to use the restraint and,
if applicable, the accompanying protective device, if the imminent risk has abated, but staff
determine that continued use of the mechanical restraint is necessary to maintain security due to
the resident's ongoing credible threat of self-injury or injury to others. This may include instances

in which the resident verbally expresses the intent to continue the actions that required the
restraint.

D. Staff in a juvenile correctional center may not use a protective device unless the use is in

connection with a restraint and shall remove the device when the resident is released from the
restraint.

E. In addition to the requirements in subsections A through D of this section, if staff in a juvenile

correctional center use a spit guard to control resident behavior, they shall observe the following
requirements:

1. Staff may not use a spit guard unless it possesses the following characteristics:
a. The spit guard’s design may not inhibit the resident's ability to breathe;
b The spit guard must be constructed to allow for visibility; and
c. The spit guard must be manufactured and sold specifically for the prevention of
biting or spitting.

2, The spit guard may be used only on a resident who (i} previously has bitten or spit on
a person at the facility, or {ii) in the course of a current restraint, threatens or attempts to
spit on or bite or actually spits on or bites a staff member.

111



3. The spit guard must be applied in a manner that will not inhibit the resident's ability to
breathe.

4. While the spit guard remains in place, staff shall provide for the resident's reasonable
comfort and ensure the resident's access to water and meals, as applicable.

5. Staff must employ constant supervision of the resident while the spit guard remains in
place to observe whether the resident exhibits signs of respiratory distress. If any sign of

respiratory distress is observed, staff shall take immediate action to prevent injury and to
notify supervisory staff.

6. Staff may not use a spit guard on a resident who is unconscious, vomiting, or in obvious
need of medical attention.

6VAC35-71-1190. Monitoring residents placed in mechanical restraints.

A. Written procedures shall provide that if a resident is placed in mechanical restraints, except
when being transported offsite, staff shall:

1. Provide for the resident's reasonable comfort and ensure the resident's access to water,
meals, and toilet; and

2. Conduct a face-to-face check on the resident at least every 15 minutes and more often

if the resident's behavior warrants. During each check, a staff member shall monitor the
resident for signs of circulation and for injuries.

3. Attempt to engage verbally with the resident during each periodic check. These efforts
may include explaining the reasons for which the resident is being restrained or the steps

necessary to be released from the restraint or otherwise attempting to deescalate the
resident.

B. If a resident remains in a mechanical restraint for a period of two hours or more, except
during transportation of residents offsite:

1. The resident shall be permitted to exercise the resident's limbs for a minimum of 10
minutes every two hours in order to prevent blood clots; and

2. A medical staff member shall conduct a check on the resident at least once every two
hours.

C. When a resident is placed in mechanical restraints for more than one continuous hour in a
24-hour period, with the exception of use in routine off-campus transportation of residents, staff
shall consult with a mental health clinician. This consultation shall be documented.

D. If the resident, after being placed in mechanical restraints exhibits self-injurious behavior,
staff shall (i) take appropriate action in response to the behavior to prevent further injury and to
notify supervisory staff; (ii) consult with a mental health clinician and medical staff immediately

thereafter and document the consultation; and (iii) adjust the frequency of face-to-face checks as
needed.

6VAC35-71-1195. Written procedures regarding mechanical restraints and protective
devices.

The department shall develop written procedures approved by the director that reflect the
requirements established in this article.

6VAC35-71-1200. {Repealed.)
6VAC35-71-1203. Mechanical restraint chair; general provisions.

If staff in a JCC utilize a mechanical restraint chair, they shall observe the following
requirements, regardless of whether the chair is used for purposes of controlied movement in
accordance with 6VAC35-71-1204 or for other purposes in accordance with 6VAC35-71-1205:

1. The restraint chair shall never be applied as punishment or as a sanction.

112



2. All staff authorized to use the restraint chair shall receive training in such use in
accordance with 6VAC35-71-160 and 6VAC35-71-170.

3. Prior to placement in the chair, the health authority or the health authority's designee
shall ensure that the resident's medical and mental health condition are assessed to
determine whether the restraint is coniraindicated based on the resident's physical
condition or behavior and whether other accommodations are necessary.

4. The superintendent or the superintendent’s designee shall provide approval before a
resident may be placed in the restraint chair.

5. Staff shall notify the health authority or designee immediately upon placing the resident
in the restraint chair. The health authority or designee also shall ensure that a mental
health clinician conducts an assessment to determine whether, on the basis of serious
danger to self or others, the resident should be in a medical or mental health unit for
emergency involuntary treatment. The requirements of this subdivision shall not apply
when the restraint chair is requested by a resident for whom such voluntary use is part of

an approved plan of care by a mental health clinician in accordance with subsection C of
BVAC35-71-1205.

6. If the resident exhibits self-injurious behavior after being placed in the mechanical
restraint chair, staff shall (i) take appropriate action in response to the behavior to prevent
further injury and to notify supervisory staff, and (i) consuli a mental health clinician
immediately thereafter and obtain approval for continued use of the restraint chair.

7. The health authority or the health authority's designee, a mental health clinician, or other

qualifying licensed medical professional may order termination of restraint chair use at any
time upon determining that use of the chair poses a heaith risk.

8. Each use of the restraint chair shall constitute a serious incident to which the provision
of 6VAC35-71-60 shall apply.

9. Each use of the restraint chair shall be documented in the resident's case record and
in the daily housing unit log. The documentation shall include:

a. Date and time of the incident;
b. Staff involved in the incident;
¢. Justification for the restraint;

d. Less restrictive interventions that were attempted or an explanation of why the

restraint chair is the least restrictive intervention available to ensure the resident’s safe
movement.

e. Duration of the restraint;
f. Signature of the person documenting the incident and date;

g. Indication that all applicable approvals required in this article have been cobtained;
and

h. Reviewer's signature and date.

10. Staff involved in the use of the chair, together with supervisory staff, shall conduct a
debriefing after each use of the restraint chair.

6VAC35-71-1204. Mechanical restraint chair use for controlled movement; conditions.

A. JCC staff shall be authorized to use a mechanical restraint chair for purposes of controlled

movement of a resident from one area of the facility to another, provided the following conditions
are satisfied:

113



1. The resident's refusal to move from one area of the facility to another poses a direct
and immediate threat to the resident or others or interferes with required facility operations,
and

2. Use of the restraint chair is the least restrictive intervention available to ensure the
resident's safe movement.

B. When facility staff utilize the restraint chair in accordance with this section, staff shall
remove the resident from the chair immediately upon reaching the intended destination. If staff,
upon reaching the intended destination, determine that continued restraint is necessary, staff shall
consult with a mental health clinician for approval of the continued restraint.

6VAC35-71-1205. Mechanical restraint chair use for purposes other than controlled
movement; conditions for use.

A. JCC staff shall be authorized to use a mechanical restraint chair for purposes other than
controlled movement provided the following conditions are satisfied:

1. The resident's behavior or actions present a direct and immediate threat to the resident
or others;

2. Less restrictive alternatives were attempted but were unsuccessful in bringing the
resident under control or abating the threat;

3. The resident remains in the restraint chair only for as long as necessary to abate the
threat or help the resident gain self-control.

B. Once the direct threat is abated, if staff determine that continued restraint is necessary to
maintain security due to the resident's ongoing credible threat to injure the resident or others, staff
shall consult a mental health clinician for approval of the continued restraint. The ongoing threat

may include instances in which the resident verbally expresses the intent to continue the actions
that required the restraint.

C. JCC staff shall be excused from the requirements in subsections A and B of this section
when the restraint chair is requested by a resident for whom such voluntary use is part of an
approved plan of care by a mental health clinician.

D. Whenever a resident is placed in a restraint chair for purposes other than controlled
movement, staff shall observe the following monitoring requirements:

1. Employ constant, one-on-one supervision until the resident is released from the chair;
2. Attempt to engage verbally with the resident during the one-on-one supervision. These
efforts may include explaining the reasons for which the resident is being restrained or the
steps necessary to be released from the restraint or otherwise attempting to deescalate
the resident.

3. Ensure that a medical professional monitors the resident for signs of circulation and for
injuries at least once every 15 minutes; and

4. Ensure that the resident is reasonably comfortable and has access to water, meals, and
toilet.

6VAC35-71-1206. Monitoring residents placed in mechanical restraints.

A. If a resident remains in the restraint chair for a period that exceeds two hours, the resident
shall be permitted to exercise the resident's limbs for a minimum of 10 minutes every two hours
to prevent blood clots.

B. The JCC administration shall ensure that a video record of the following is captured and
retained for a minimum of three years in accordance with 6VAC35-71-30:

1. The placement of a resident in a restraint chair when a resident is restrained for
purposes of controlled movement;

114



2. The entire restraint, from the time the resident is placed in the restraint chair until the
resident's release, when restrained in the chair for purposes other than controlled
movement. The JCC administration may satisfy this requirement by positioning the
restraint chair within direct view of an existing security camera.

6VAC35-71-1207. Department monitoring visits; annual reporting; board review.

A. If staff in a JCC use a mechanical restraint chair to restrain a resident, regardless of the
purpose or duration of the use, the JCC shall be subject to a monitoring visit conducted by the
department pursuant to the authority provided in 6VAC35-20-60. The purpose of the monitoring
visit shall be to assess staff compliance with the provisions of this article.

B. Upon completion of the monitoring visit, the department shall provide the JCC
administration with a written report of its findings in accordance with 6VAC35-20-90.

C. The department shall document each monitoring visit conducted pursuant to subsection A
of this section and provide a written report to the board annually that details, at a minimum, the
following information regarding each separate incident in which the restraint chair is used:

1. The facility in which the chair is used;
2. The date and time of the use;

3. A brief description of the restraint, including the purpose for which the restraint was

applied, the duration of the restraint, and the circumstances surrounding the resident's
release from the restraint;

4. The extent to which the JCC complied with this article; and
5. The plans identified to address findings of noncompliance, if applicable.

D. The annual report shall be placed on the agenda for the next regularly scheduled board
meeting for the board’s consideration and review.

6VAC35-71-1208. Written procedures regarding mechanical restraint chairs.

Department staff shall develop written procedures approved by the director that reflect the
requirements established in this article.

Article 5

Limitations on Restraints

6VAC35-71-1209. Pregnant residents; limitations on use of physical restraints, mechanical
restraints, and the mechanical restraint chair.

A. Staff in a juvenile correctional center may not use physical restraints, mechanical
restraints, protective devices, or the mechanical restraint chair on a resident known to be
pregnant during labor, delivery, or post-partum recovery unless credible, reasonable grounds

exist to believe the resident presents an immediate and serious threat of self injury, injury to
staff, or injury to others.

B. Abdominal restraints, leg and ankie restraints, wrist restraints behind the back, and four-
point restraints may not be used on a resident known to be pregnant unless (i) credible
reasonable grounds exist to believe the resident presents an immediate and serious threat of
self injury, injury to staff, or injury to others; or (ii) reasonable grounds exist to believe the
resident presents an immediate and credible risk of escape that cannot be reasonably
minimized through any other method.

C. This section shall not apply to orthopedically prescribed devices, surgical dressings or
bandages, protective helmets, or any other devices or methods that involve physically holding a
resident for purposes of conducting routine physical examinations or tests, protecting the

resident from falling out of bed, or permitting the resident to participate in activities without the
risk of physical harm.

115



6VAC35-71-1210. Private contracts for JCCs.

A. The administration for privately operated JCCs shall abide by the requirements of (i) the
Juvenile Corrections Private Management Act (§ 66-25.3 et seq. of the Code of Virginia), (ii} the
governing contract with the depariment, and {iii} this chapter.

B. The administration for privately operated JCCs shall develop procedures, approved by the
director or the director's designee, to facilitate the transfer of the facility's operations to the
department if the contract terminates.

Rart-x

Boot-Camps

6VAC35-71-1230. (Repealed.)
6VAC35-71-1240. (Repealed.)
6VAC35-71-1250. (Repealed.)
6VAC35-71-1260. (Repealed.)
6VAC35-71-1270. (Repealed.)

116



117



COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA g et

. . 71,
Department of Juvenile Justice Fax: {§$§ e

www.djj.virginia.gov
TO: Board of Juvenile Justice

FROM: Virginia Department of Juvenile Justice

SUBJECT: Request Authorization to Advance 6VAC35-200 (Regulations Governing Youth Detained
Pursuant to Federal Contracts) to the Proposed Stage of the Standard Regulatory Process

DATE September 21, 2022

L. Action Requested

The Department of Juvenile Justice (the department) respectfully requests that the Board of Juvenile Justice (the
board) authorize advancing 6 VAC35-200 (Regulations Governing Youth Detained Pursuant to Federal Contracts)
to the Proposed stage of the standard regulatory process. This regulatory action was mandated by Chapter 599 of

the 2020 Acts of Assembly, later codified as § 66-10.2 of the Code of Virginia. The proposed text is attached to
this document.

IL. Background

During the 2020 Virginia General Assembly Session, Senator Adam Ebbin introduced Senate Bill 20 (SB 20)
directing the board to promulgate regulations to address youth detained in juvenile correctional facilities pursuant
to contracts with the federal government. The legislation intended to ensure that immigrant minors placed in state-
licensed secure juvenile facilities have additional regulatory protections and that staff provide them with a

heightened level of care. The bill passed both chambers of the General Assembly, was signed into law by
Governor Ralph Northam, and took effect on July 1, 2020.

The statute applies specifically to contractual arrangements between “juvenile correctional facilities” and the
federal government. The department is aware of two types of agreements that may fall under this statutory
mandate. First, juvenile correctional facilities may have contracts to house youth under legal custody of the Office
of Refugee Resettlement (ORR). ORR is a division of the U.S. Department of Homeland Security and is
responsible for placing unaccompanied immigrant minors apprehended while in the United States without legal
authorization. Pursuant to federal law, ORR must place such youth in the least restrictive setting that is in the
youth’s best interest. While this generally means placement in non-secure facilities such as shelter care, foster
care, group homes, residential treatment centers, or other special needs care facilities, unaccompanied minors
who are deemed a danger to themselves or others or who are charged with or convicted of a criminal offense must
be placed in secure settings. Currently, the Shenandoah Valley Juvenile Center, a state-licensed, locally operated

118



6VAC35-200 Proposed Stage Memorandum 2

secure juvenile detention center in Staunton, is the only secure facility in the country that has a cooperative
agreement with ORR to house unaccompanied minors.

Second, U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement (ICE) may contract with state-licensed juvenile facilities
for the temporary placement of accompanied minors and, occasionally, unaccompanied minors in exigent
circumstances when transportation to ORR is delayed. Youth may be confined in such facilities for 72 hours or
in some cases up to 30 days. Currently, ICE has contractual arrangements in place with several facilities across
the United States, including the Northwestern Regional Juvenile Detention Center, a state-licensed, locally
operated secure juvenile detention center in Winchester.

Senator Ebbin’s legistation directs the board to establish regulations that will apply to juvenile correctional
facilities that contract with the federal government in either of the two scenarios above. Section 66-25.3 of the
Code of Virginia defines juvenile correctional facility as, “any institution operated by or under the authority of
the Department” (of Juvenile Justice). This term commonly is understood to include state-operated juvenile
correctional centers housing and supervising youth committed to the department by a juvenile or circuit court
pursuant to § 16.1-278.7 of the Code of Virginia. While the department never has entered into a contractual
arrangement to house the youth in question in its juvenile correctional centers, the department determined that in

order to comply with the express statutory language, the proposed regulation must apply to juvenile correctional
centers that may enter into such contractual arrangements in the future.

Less frequently, the Code uses the term juvenile correctional facility to refer to locally or regionally operated
secure juvenile detention centers. These facilities detain youth charged with a delinquency offense while they
await adjudication or dispositional hearings. Many juvenile detention centers in Virginia also operate
postdispositional programs for youth who have been adjudicated delinquent for certain eligible offenses and
detained for up to six months by court order pursuant to Code of Virginia § 16.1-284.1. During his testimony
before various committees of the General Assembly, Senator Ebbin indicated that SB 20 was intended to apply
to Shenandoah Valley Juvenile Center, at a minimum, since it had a contractual arrangement with ORR.
Consistent with this intent, the department determined that the regulation also must apply to any other juvenile
detention centers that execute agreements for similar programs with ORR or ICE in the future.

On July 13, 2020, the department convened a workgroup to begin developing the regulation in accordance with
the new statute. The workgroup met regularly thereafter. On September 16, 2020, the board authorized the
submission of a Notice of Intended Regulatory Action (NOIRA), which is the first stage of the standard regulatory
process. The NOIRA completed the necessary Executive Branch review and was published in the Virginia
Register of Regulations on March 1, 2021. The 30-day public comment period ended on March 31, 2021, and

yielded no public comment. The SB 20 regulatory workgroup continued to meet throughout 2021 and into 2022,
holding its final meeting on June 22.

III. STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS
As set out in § 66-10.2, the new regulation must address seven areas:
1. Standards (i) governing the use of physical force, mechanical restraints, and spit guards, and (ii) avoiding

the use of isolation;

2. Staff training requirements regarding cognitive behavioral interventions, trauma-informed care, cultural
background implications, de-escalation techniques, and physical and mechanical restraints;

119



6VAC35-200 Proposed Stage Memorandum 3

Requircments for an appropriate number of bilingual staff and culturally relevant programs;

Mecthods to ensure that youth in these programs understand their rights and responsibilities;

Standards to ensure the provision of necessary physical and mental health care;

A requirement that any contract in which a juvenile correctional facility agrees to house youth under
federal custody must provide DJJ staft with the same access to those youth that DJJ has for all other youth
in juvenile correctional facilities, and

7. Standards for recordkeeping, including extended recordkeeping requirements for records and video
footage related to reported incidents.

EE

A number of proposed amendments to the regulatory chapters governing juvenile correctional centers and secure
juvenile detention centers have been approved by the board and continue to make their way through the regulatory
process. Among other changes, the proposed amendments impose additional restrictions on the use of restraints,
protective devices, and isolation. A regulatory change also took effect on August 22, 2019, requiring that these
types of contracts give department staff access to the case files of residents in these programs for the purposes of
compliance monitoring. In addition, a few of the topics identified in Senator Ebbin’s legislation are addressed in
existing regulatory provisions. The committee therefore paid special attention to those areas that either are not
expressly addressed in the current regulations or are not included in the proposed amendments.

IV. DISCUSSION OF THE PROPOSED TEXT

The workgroup decided on a three-part structure for the proposed regulation. Part | (Sections 10 through 50)
contains definitions and the general provisions that will apply to both state-operated juvenile correctional centers
(JCCs) and locally operated secure juvenile detention centers (JDCs). Parts 11 (Sections 60 through 350) and Il1
(Sections 360 through 560) contain provisions specific to the JDCs and the JCCs, respectively. The text draws
heavily on the proposed language for the JDC and JCC regulations currently making their way through the
regulatory process, with the goal of keeping all three chapters aligned (6VAC35-71, 6VAC35-101, and 6VAC35-
200). Because federal programs will be required to follow the JDC or JCC regulations unless otherwise noted,
the proposed text of this chapter frequently cross-references those chapters directly. Even though they contain no
changes, a few regulatory provisions from the JDC and JCC regulations have been duplicated in this chapter
because they address topics specifically mentioned in the new statute, and the workgroup determined it would be
prudent to include them. In cases where the JDC and JCC regulatory provisions were extensive, as with those

concerning the provision of physical and mental health care, facilities are directed to follow the relevant
provisions in the applicable chapter(s).

A brief discussion of selected sections of the proposed regulation follows:

PART I - ALL FEDERAL PROGRAMS

Section 10. Definitions.
The definitions of juvenile detention center and juvenile correctional center in 6VAC35-101 and 6VAC35-71,
respectively, do not contemplate these facilities housing residents pursuant to federal contracts. The definitions

of both terms have been updated for this chapter to include these residents. Additionally, the proposed text adds
definitions for federal program and federal resident.

Section 30). Initial training requirements for employees in federal programs.

120



6VAC35-200 Proposed Stage Memorandum 4

This section establishes enhanced training requirements for JDC and JCC employees who are expected to have
regular direct contact with residents in a federal program. These employees must receive this training prior to
working independently with federal residents. The topics are drawn directly from § 66-10.2: cognitive behavioral
interventions, trauma-informed care, cultural background implications, and de-escalation techniques. The new
law also requires training in the use of physical and mechanical restraints; these training requirements are

addressed in 6VAC35-101 and 6VAC35-71 and are required in Sections 260, 270, 300, 470, 480, and 510 of this
chapter.

Section 40. Residents with limited English proficiency.
To address the staffing requirement in § 66-10.2, this section adds a provision in B requiring that a minimum of
one bilingual staff member be accessible to the federal program. This provision supplements the requirement in

A that interpretation and translation services be available at all times to all federal residents with limited English
proficiency.

Section 50. Culturally relevant programming.

In addition to the requirement for bilingual staft, § 66-10.2 also mandates that the regulation set out requirements
for culturally relevant programming. Section 50 does that by requiring any facility with a federal contract to
ensure that culturally relevant programming is available to those residents and that it be developed with
consideration of the cultural needs, preferences, and differences of the populations served.

PART Il - FEDERAL PROGRAMS IN JUVENILE DETENTION CENTERS

Section 60. Other applicable repulations.

Generally, JDCs participating in federal programs will be required to adhere to the provisions of 6VAC35-101 in
addition to this new chapter. This section establishes which provisions in the JDC regulations are not applicable
because they have been altered for federal programs or included as distinct sections in 6VAC35-200.

Section 80. Serious incident reports.

The serious incident reporting provisions in 6VAC35-101 require that the enumerated events be reported to the
applicable court service unit (CSU) along with the parent or legal guardian and the director or the director’s
designee. Residents held pursuant to the federal contracts addressed in this regulation are not under the jurisdiction
of the juvenile and domestic relations court and therefore do not have their cases managed by a CSU. Accordingly,
this section removes the reference to CSUs. In keeping with the requirement in § 66-10.2, C 7 and E contain
enhanced requirements for cases involving allegations of abuse or neglect. These requirements include
documentation of a statement from the alleged victim, a statement from all staff who observed the alleged abuse
or neglect, and any medical records pertaining to medical examinations connected to the alleged incident.

Section 90. Suspected child abuse or neglect.
The proposed text adds subsection D to address the handling of video footage in cases of suspected abuse or
neglect. This change is intended to address the video footage requirement in § 66-10.2.

Section 100 duplicates 6VAC35-101-100 establishing the grievance procedure for JDCs. Because this section

deals specifically with residents’ rights, it is repeated here to ensure this new chapter fully addresses the topics
outlined in § 66-10.2. The provisions are identical.

121



6VAC35-200 Proposed Stage Memorandum 5

Section 110. Maintenance of case records.

Codc of Virginia § 66-10.2 requires that this regulation include standards for recordkeeping. While the final
proposed text of the JDC regulation contains a substantial set of recordkeeping requirements (6VAC35-101-330),
some of the language is not applicable to records for federal residents. For example, subsection C of 6VAC35-
101-330 references §§ 16.1-300 and 16.1-309.1 of the Code of Virginia pertaining to confidentiality of depariment
records for youth under the jurisdiction of the juvenile and domestic relations court. These references are removed
in this chapter. Additionally, standards related to automated records have been removed since these programs’
records are not automated in any system under JDC management or control. To help ensure federal residents
understand what records are available to them, how to access that information, and what recourse they have if
their information requests are denied, the proposed language adds a requirement at D 5 that this be explained to
these residents. The facility also is required by this section to maintain documentation of the program’s authority
to retain, release, transfer, or destroy records maintained by the federal program. Several minor changes elsewhere
in the section clanfy that this provision applies to residents in federal programs.

Section 130. Emergency and evacuation procedures.
This section is identical to 6VAC35-101-510. The new statute specifically addresses methods to ensure residents
understand their rights and responsibilities, so the workgroup decided it was prudent to duplicate this section in

the new regulatory chapter since residents do have certain responsibilities related to the emergency and evacuation
procedures referenced in these provisions.

Section 140. Escapes.

This section is substantively the same as that contained in the JDC regulation except that it removes the reference
to Code § 16.1-309, which is irrelevant for this chapter.

Section 150. Transportation of residents.

The language in this section is nearly identical to the provisions in 6VAC35-101-630 except that references to
inapplicable Code sections are stricken. Additionally, the JDC regulation contains a subsection G pertaining to
the transportation of residents to a JCC upon commitment, which does not apply to federal residents.

Section 160. Transportation of violent or disruptive youth or youth traveling to specified destinations.
This section is equivalent to 6VAC35-101-635 but has been shortened significantly for this chapter. Much of
6VAC35-101-635 concerns the courts and CSUs and does not apply to federal programs.

Section 190. Fundraising.

The language in this section is identical to that in 6VAC35-101-790 except that it adds the appropriate federal
entity to the list of those who must provide written consent for residents to be used in fundraising activities.

Section 200, Admission and orientation.

Section 200 is substantively very similar to 6VAC35-101-800, which addresses admission and orientation in the
JDCs. The key difference is that Section 200 of this chapter enumerates the residents’ rights in greater detail, as
required by § 66-10.2. In addition, this section adds a requirement that all information be provided to residents in
a developmentally appropriate manner and in a format that is accessible to all residents, including those who have
limited English proficiency, which is a particular concern for this population. Finally, cross-references to other
regulatory sections have been updated, as appropriate.

Section 210. Mental health screening.

122



6VAC35-200 Proposed Stage Memorandum 6

This section removes two Code references that would not apply to federal residents and replaces them with
express requirements. First, in C, if the required mental health screening indicates a need for a mental health
assessment, that assessment shall be conducted within 24 hours. Second, subsection D requires staff to implement
the facility’s suicide prevention program or take other steps as determined by a mental health clinician if the

preliminary or a subsequent mental health screening indicates a significant suicide risk or the need for emergency
intervention.

Section 220. Release from federal programs.

This section is specific to federal programs but is based on similar provisions in 6VAC35-101-840 concemning
release from a JDC.

Section 230. Structured programming.

Section 230 removes the requirement in 6VAC35-101-860 that programming meet the objectives of residents’
individual service plans. Residents in federal programs generally do not have individual service plans.

Section 240. Room restriction.; Section 250, Disciplinary room restriction.

Code of Virginia § 66-10.2 requires that the regulations governing federal programs establish standards that
“avoid the use of isolation.” The department has made a concerted effort over the past several years to reduce and
limit the use of room confinement at both JCCs and JDCs across the state. The SB 20 workgroup discussed these
provisions at great length and determined that the JDC provisions approved by the board for the final stage of that
action are the most appropriate method of addressing the requirements in this Code section. The language in these

two sections, therefore, is identical to 6VAC35-101-1100 and 1105 except for minor edits to update regulatory
cross-references.

Section 260. Physical restraint.; Section 270. Mechanical restraints and protective devices.; Section 280.
Monitoring residents placed in mechanical restraints.; Section 290. Written procedures regarding mechanical
restraints and protective devices.

As with Sections 240 and 250, these sections are identical to their companion provisions in the JDC regulation
and are included here to answer the requirement in § 66-10.2.

Article 8. Mechanical Restraint Chair (Sections 300 through 350}
As above, these sections are included to answer the requirements of the statute and, except for minor edits to

update regulatory cross-references, are identical to their companion provisions in the JDC regulation approved
by the board earlier this year.

PART 11l - FEDERAL PROGRAMS IN JUVENILE CORRECTIONAL CENTERS

Section 380. Suspected child abuse or neglect.

Subsection B removes the requirement to report a case of suspected child abuse or neglect to the CSU and instead
requires that it be reported to the supervising federal entity. This provision also expands the recordkeeping
requirements for suspected abuse or neglect cases to include a statement from the alleged victim, statements from
all staff and residents who observed the alleged abuse or neglect or who have knowledge relevant to the
investigation, and medical records if a medical examination occurred. Finally, this section adds requirements for

handling video footage related to the allegation. These changes all are in response to the requirements in § 66-
10.2.

123



6VAC35-200 Proposed Stage Memorandum

=J

Section 390. Grievance procedure.
Section 390 duplicates the proposed language for 6VAC35-71-80 establishing the gricvance procedure for JCCs.

Because this section deals specifically with residents’ nghts, it is repeated here to ensure this new chapter fully
addresses the topics outlined in § 66-10.2. The provisions are identical.

Section 400}, Other applicable regulations.

Generally, JCCs participating in federal programs will be required to adhere to the provisions of 6VAC35-71 in
addition to this new chapter. This section establishes which provisions in the JCC regulations arc not applicable
because they have been altered for tederal programs or included as distinet sections in 6VAC35-200.

Section 410. Maintenance of case records.

This section makes a number of changes to make the provisions appropriate for federal programs, although the
overall substance remains the same as 6VAC35-71-260. Changes include removing the Code citation from C
since it applies to court-involved youth (juvenile and domestic relations or circuit court), expanding the procedural
requirements for federal case records, and requiring facility staff to maintain documentation of the federal
program’s authority to retain, release, transfer, or destroy records maintained by the program. To help ensure
federal residents understand what records are available to them, how to access that information, and what recourse
they have if their information requests are denied, the proposed language adds a requirement at D 5 that this be
explained to these residents. Finally, the proposed language removes the requirement found in 6VAC35-71-260

to retain records in accordance with Library of Virginia requirements since these records are federal and not state
records.

Section 420. Face sheet.

Section 420 adds primary and preferred language to the list of information that must be included on a federal
resident’s face sheet.

Section 430. Admission and orientation.
Section 430 is substantively similar to the language currently proposed for 6VAC35-71-680, which addresses
admission and orientation in the JCCs. The key difference is that Section 430 of this chapter enumerates the

residents’ rights in greater detail, as required by § 66-10.2. Cross-references to other regulatory sections have
been updated, as appropriate.

Section 440, Resident personal possessions.

This section makes a minor change to require the department to develop written procedures regarding the
disposition of property unclaimed by a federal resident after release from a federal program. By contrast,
6VACT71-690 requires that unclaimed property be disposed of in accordance with § 66-17, which applies to youth
who have been in the custody of the department. This eliminates the possible confusion that could arise if a JCC
were to house a federal resident whose custody was retained by the federal entity.

Section 450. Discharge from federal program.

With minor adjustments, this section is nearly identical to the proposed language for 6VAC35-71-720 regarding
release from direct care.

Section 460). Room confinenent.

124



6VAC35-200 Proposed Stage Memorandum 8

As discussed above for Sections 240 and 250, § 66-10.2 requires this regulation to address “the use of isolation™
in federal programs. For this reason, the proposed language for 6VAC35-71-1140 has been duplicated in Section
460 of this chapter. The workgroup determined this would meet the statutory requirement,

Section 470. Physical restraints.

Section 480. Mechanical restraints and protective devices.

Section 490. Monitoring residents placed in mechanical restraints.

Section 500. Written procedures regarding mechanical restraints and protective devices.

As with Sections 260 through 290, these sections are nearly identical to their companion provisions in the
proposed JCC regulation and are included here to answer the requirement in § 66-10.2.

Article 6. Mechanical Restraint Chair. (Sections 510 through 560)

Section 560 adds a provision that procedures shall provide that any prohibition on placing residents in the restraint
chair in other programs at the JCC also must apply to the federal program. As above, the remaining sections in
this article are included to answer the requirements of the statute and, except for minor edits to update regulatory
cross-references, are identical to their companion provisions in the proposed JCC regulation.

V. CONCLUSION

The attached proposal is the product of many hours of work by the SB 20 workgroup and department staff, and
both the workgroup and the department believe it addresses all of the requirements contained in § 66-10.2. The

department therefore requests that the board grant approval to advance the regulation to the Proposed stage of the
standard regulatory process.

125



00 ~ O N W M =

R W W W W W W W WWNNNNMNNRNNDNNRNRRERE P 2R e e

Part i - All Federal Programs

REGULATIONS GOVERNING YOUTH DETAINED PURSUANT TO FEDERAL CONTRACTS
(6VAC35-200)

PART | - ALL FEDERAL PROGRAMS

6VAC35-200-10. Definitions.

“Department” means the Department of Juvenile Justice,

“Detention center” or “juvenile detention center” means a local, regional, or state publicly or
privately operated, secure custody facility that houses individuals who are ordered to be detained
pursuant to the Code of Virginia or under custody of the federal government and housed in the
detention facility pursuant to a contract with the federal government.

“Direct care employee” means an employee whose primary job responsibilities are: (i)
maintaining the safety, care, and weli-being of residents; (ii) implementing the structured program
of care and the behavior management program; and (iii) maintaining the security of the facility.
For purposes of federal programs in juvenile correctional centers, the term “direct care employee”
shall include a security employee assigned, either on a primary or as-needed basis, to perform
the duties of clauses (i) through (iii) of this definition and who is required to receive initial and
annual training in these areas in order to carry out the responsibilities in clauses (i) through (iii) of
this definition.

“Director” means the director of the department.

“Facility administration” means the juvenile correctional center superintendent or the
superintendent’s designee.

“Facility administrator” means the individual who is responsible for the on-site management
and operation of the detention center on a regular basis.

“Federal program” means a residential program operated in a juvenile correctional center or
juvenile detention center pursuant to a written agreement with an agency of the federal
government in which an administrator agrees to house and provide 24-hour supervision to youth
under legal custody of the federal agency.

“Federal resident” means a resident in a federal program.

“Gender identity” means a person's internal sense of being male, female, or neither,
regardless of the person's sex assigned at birth.

“Juvenile correctional center” means a public or private facility operated by or under contract
with the department where care is provided to: (i) residents under the direct care of the
department, or (ii) residents under custody of the federal government and housed in the
correctional facility, 24 hours a day, seven days a week.

“Mechanical restraint” means an approved mechanical device that involuntarily restricts the
freedom of movement or voluntary functioning of a limb or portion of an individual's body as a
means of controlling his physical activities when the individual being restricted does not have the
ability to remove the device. For purposes of this chapter, mechanical restraints shall include flex
cuffs, handcuffs, leather restraints, leg irons, restraining belts and straps, and waist chains.

“Mechanical restraint chair” means an approved chair used to restrict the freedom of
movement or voluntary functioning of a portion of an individual's body as a means of controlling
his physical activities while the individual is seated and either stationary or being transported.

“Mental health clinician” means a clinician licensed to provide assessment, diagnosis,
treatment planning, treatment implementation, and similar clinical or counseling services, or a
license-eligible clinician providing services under supervision of a licensed mental health clinician.

“Parent or legal guardian” means (i) a biological or adoptive parent who has legal custody of
a resident, including either parent if custody is shared under a joint decree or agreement; (ii} a
bioclogical or adoptive parent with whom a resident regularly resides; (iii) a person judicially
appointed as a legal guardian of a resident; or (iv) a person who exercises the rights and
responsibilities of legal custody by delegation from a biological or adoptive parent, upon
provisional adoption, or otherwise by operation of law.

126



S W o U E W=

N
[N

ol o Lo W0 Lo L Lo W NN R R RS RS R N R R P e e e e e

46
47
48
49
50
51

Part | — All Federal Programs

"Physical restraint" means the application of behavior intervention techniques involving a
physical intervention to prevent an individual from moving all or part of that individual's body.

“Protective device” means an approved device placed on a portion of a resident’s body to
protect the resident or staff from injury.

“Security employee” means an employee in a juvenile correctional center whao is responsible
for maintaining the safety, care, and well-being of residents and the safety and security of the
facility.

"Spit guard” means a device designed for the purpose of preventing the spread of
communicable diseases as a result of spitting or biting.

6VAC35-200-20. Applicability.

This chapter applies to juvenile detention centers and juvenile correctional centers operating
federal programs. Part | (6VAC35-200-10 et seq.) applies to federal programs operated by both
juvenile detention centers and juvenile correctional centers. Part Il (6VAC35-200-60 et seq.)
applies solely to federal programs operated in juvenile detention centers. Part lll (6VAC35-200-
360 et seq.) applies solely to federal programs operated in juvenile correctional centers.

6VAC35-200-30. Initial training requirements for employees in federal programs.

A. All employees who are expected to have direct contact on a regular basis with federal
residents shall receive initial training in the following topics before they may work independently
with federal residents:

1. Cultural background implications, which shali address:
a. Awareness of and sensitivity to the importance of considering different cultural
backgrounds;
b. The impact of various cultural backgrounds on resident experiences,
relationships, communication, and behavior;
c. Potential challenges associated with an undocumented status in the United
States; and
d. Potential for acculturative stress and possible impacts.
2. Cognitive behavioral interventions, which shall address:
a. Helping residents develop an awareness of their thinking;
b. Supporting skill development in the areas of healthy emotional, cognitive, and
behavioral responses;
c. Understanding adolescent development and the impact on behavior,
d. Assisting with relationship building among residents, their peers, and staff; and
e. Working with residents in collaborative problem solving.
3. Trauma-informed care, which shall address:
a. Awareness of trauma, including the types of trauma that might be specific to the
population;
b. Impacts of trauma on residents’ social, emotionai, cognitive, and behavioral
functioning;
¢. Coping skills; and
d. Effective staff responses.
4. De-escalation techniques, which shall include both methods for preventing escalation
and intervening to de-escalate and resolve conflicts or distress when they occur.

B. All employees who are expected to have direct contact on a regular basis with federal
residents shall complete annual refresher training in the topics required in subsection A of this
section.

C. The facilty administrator or facility administration, as applicable, shall maintain
documentation of completed training for a minimum of three years for each individual subject to
the training requirements in this section.

127



00~ G U W=

Part | — All Federal Programs

6VAC235-200-40. Residents with limited English proficiency.

A. Interpretation and translation services shall be available at all times to all federal residents
who have limited English proficiency.

B. The facility administrator or facility administration, as applicable, shall ensure that at least
one bilingual staff is accessible to the federal program.

6VAC35-200-50. Culturally relevant programming.

The facility administrator or facility administration, as applicable, shall ensure that culturally
relevant programming is available to residents in federal programs. The programming shall be
developed with consideration of the cultural needs, preferences, and differences of the
populations served.

128



W oo~ b Wi

B W W W W W W W W NN RN RN NN NN R R e e

Part Il —Federal Programs in JOCs

PART Il - FEDERAL PROGRAMS IN JUVENILE DETENTION CENTERS

Article 1 — General Provisions

6VAC35-200-60. Other applicable regulations.

In addition to the applicable requirements in this chapter, federal programs in juvenile
detention centers shall comply with each section of the Regulations Governing Juvenile Secure
Detention Centers (6VAC35-101) with the exception of the following provisions:

1.

O

10.
1.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24,
25.
26.
27.
28.
29.
30.

6VAC35-200-70. Contracts between juvenile detention centers and federal governmental

6VAC35-101-20
6VAC35-101-45
6VAC35-101-80
6VAC35-101-90
6VAC35-101-100
6VAC35-101-330
6VAC35-101-340
6VAC35-101-510
6VAC35-101-540
6VAC35-101-630
6VAC35-101-680
B8VAC35-101-750
6VAC35-101-790
6VAC35-101-800
6VAC35-101-820
6VAC35-101-840
6VAC35-101-860
B6VAC35-101-1090
B6VAC35-101-1100
6VAC35-101-1105
6VAC35-101-1130
6VAC35-101-1140
6VAC35-101-1145
6VAC35-101-1153
6VAC35-101-1154
6VAC35-101-1155
6VAC35-101-1156
6VAC35-101-1157
6VAC35-101-1158

Part IX, 6VAC35-101-1160 through 6VAC35-101-1270.

entities.

A. When a facility administrator enters into an agreement with a federal governmental entity
for the purpose of operating a federal program, the agreement shall satisfy the following

requirements:
1. The agreement shall be in writing;

2. The agreement shall require the federal governmental entity to comply with 6VAC35-
20, Regulation Governing the Monitoring, Approval, and Certification of Juvenile Justice

Programs and Facilities and this chapter; and

129



00~ Y U1 B W R

Part If —Federal Programs in 1DCs

3. For purposes of demonstrating compliance with this chapter, the agreement shall allow
the department the same access to juveniles in the federal program and to their records
and reports as currently authorized for alt other residents in the detention center under
§ 16.1-309.10 of the Code of Virginia and 6VAC35-20.
B. Upon entering into the agreement, the facility administrator shall: (i) notify the department
immediately, and (ii) provide the department with a copy of the written agreement.
C. Nothing in this section shall prevent the facility administrator and the federal government
from agreeing that services and treatment shall exceed the requirements of this chapter for
juvenites in the federal program.

6VAC35-200-80. Serious incident reports.

A. The following events shall be reported within 24 hours to (i) either the parent or legal

guardian, as appropriate and applicable, and (ii) the director or the director's designee:
1. A serious incident, accident, illness, or injury to the resident;
2. The death of a resident;
3. A suspected case of child abuse or neglect at the detention center, on a detention
center-sponsored event or excursion, or involving detention center staff as provided in
6VAC35-101-90;
4. A disaster, fire, emergency, or other condition that may jeopardize the health, safety,
and welfare of residents; and
5. A resident’s absence from the detention center without permission.
6. The use of the mechanical restraint chair by facility staff, regardless of the purpose or
duration of use.

B. If an incident involving the death of a resident occurs at the facility, facility staff shall notify
the parents or legal guardians, as appropriate and applicable, of all residents in the federal
program provided such notice does not violate any confidentiality requirements or jeopardize any
law-enforcement or child protective services investigation or the prosecution of any criminal cases
related to the incident.

C. Facility staff shall (i) prepare and maintain a written report of the events listed in subsections
A and B of this section and (ii) submit a copy of the written report to the director or the director's
designee. The report shall contain the following information:

1. The date and time the incident occurred;

2. A brief description of the incident;

3. The action taken as a result of the incident;

4. The name of the person who completed the report;

5. The name or identifying information of the person who made the report to the director,
and either the parent or legal guardian, as appropriate and applicable, and the date and
time on which the report was made;

6. The name or identifying information of the person to whom the report was made,
including any law-enforcement or child protective service personnel, or other applicable
agency; and

7. For cases alleging abuse or neglect: (i) a statement from the victim of the alleged abuse
or neglect; (ii) a statement from all staff and residents who observed the alleged abuse or
neglect; and (iii) medical records if a medical examination is conducted in connection with
the allegation of abuse or neglect.

D. In addition to the requirements of this section, serious incidents involving an allegation of
child abuse or neglect at the detention center, at a detention center-sponsored event, or involving
detention center staff shall be governed by 6VAC35-200-90.

E. The federal resident's case record shall contain a written reference (i) that an incident
occurred and (ii} of all applicable reporting.

130



W oo~ O N B M=

Part It -Federal Programs in JDCs

6VAC35-200-90. Suspected child abuse or neglect.

A. When there is reason to suspect that a resident in a federal program is an abused or
neglected child, the matter shall be reported immediately to the local department of social
services or to the state Department of Social Services' toll-free child abuse and neglect hotline as
required by § 63.2-1509 of the Code of Virginia and in accordance with written procedures.

B. Written procedures shall be distributed to all staff members and shall at a minimum provide
for:

1. Handling accusations against staff,

2. Reporting and documenting suspected cases of child abuse and neglect,
3. Cooperating during an investigation, and

4. Measures to be taken to ensure the safety of the residents and the staff.

C. Cases of suspected child abuse or neglect against a resident shall be reported and
documented as required in 6VAC35-200-80. The resident's record shall contain a written
reference that a report was made.

D. If a serious incident alleging child abuse or neglect is reported and the facility determines
that video footage associated with the allegation can be accessed and extracted from a running
video record, staff shall extract and maintain the applicable video footage until all investigations
for the underlying allegation have concluded and at least three years have passed since the
conclusion of the investigation.

6VAC35-200-100 Grievance procedure.
A. Written procedure shall require that residents are oriented to and have continuing access
to a grievance procedure that provides for:
1. Resident participation in the grievance process with assistance from staff upon request;
2. Investigation of the grievance by an impartial, objective employee who is not the subject
of the grievance;
3. Documented, timely responses to all grievances with the reasons for the decision, in
accordance with written procedures;
4. At least one level of appeal;
5. Administrative review of grievances;
6. Protection of residents from retaliation or threat of retaliation for filing a grievance; and
7. Hearing of an emergency grievance within eight hours.
B. Residents shall be oriented to the grievance procedure in an age and developmentally
appropriate manner.
C. The grievance procedure shall be (i) written in clear and simple language and (ii) posted in
an area easily accessible to residents and their parents and legal guardians.

D. Staff shall assist and work cooperatively with other employees in facilitating the grievance
process.

Article 2 - Administrative Provisions

6VAC35-200-110. Maintenance of case records.

A. A separate written case record shall be maintained for each resident in a federal program,
which shall include all correspondence and documents generated or received by the federal
program relating to the care of that resident and documentation of all case management services
provided.

B. Separate health care records, including behavioral health records, as applicable, and
medical records, shall be kept on each federal resident. Behavioral health records may be kept
separately from other health care records. The federal resident’s active health care records shall
be kept in accordance with this section, 6VAC35-101-1030, and applicable laws and regulations.

6

131



00 ~ O N B W M=

Part Il -Federal Programs in JDCs

C. Each case record and health care record shall be kept (i} up to date, (i) in a uniform
manner, and (iii) confidential from unauthorized access.

D. The facility shall have written procedures in place for the maintenance and management
of case records in federai programs. The procedures for managing resident written records shall
address confidentiality, accessibility, security, and retention of records pertaining to federal
residents including:

1. Access, duplication, dissemination, and acquisition of information, restricted to persons
legally authorized according to applicable federal and state laws;

2. Security measures to protect records from loss, unauthorized alteration, inadvertent or
unauthorized access, and disclosure of information

3. Security measures to protect records during transportation between service sites;

4. Designation of the person responsible for records management;

5. Explanation of the record information available to the federal resident, how to access
that information, and the recourse available to federal residents when their record
information requests are denied;

6. Disposition of records when a resident is discharged from the federal program; and

7. Disposition of records if the detention center ceases to operate or terminates its contract
with the applicable federal governmental entity.

E. The facility shall maintain documentation of the program's authority to retain, release,
transfer, or destroy any records maintained by the federal program.

F. Active and closed records shall be kept in secure locations or compartments that are
accessible only to authorized employees and shall be protected from unauthorized access, fire,
and flood.

G. Each resident's written case records and health care records shall be stored separately
subsequent to the resident's discharge in accordance with applicable statutes and regulations.

6VAC35-200-120. Face sheet.
A. At the time of admission, each resident's record shall include, at a minimum, a completed

face sheet that contains the following:
1. The resident's full name, last known residence, birth date, birthplace, sex, gender
identity, race, primary language, preferred language, unique numerical identifier, religious
preference, and admission date.
2. Names, addresses, and telephone numbers of emergency contacts and parents or legal
guardians, if available, and as appropriate and applicable; and
3. Name and telephone number of the supervising agency.

B. The face sheet shall be updated when changes occur and maintained as a part of the
resident’s record.

Article 3 — Safety and Security

6VAC35-200-130. Emergency and evacuation procedures.
A. The facility administrator or the facility administrator's designee shall develop a written

emergency preparedness and response plan which shall address:
1. Documentation of contact with the local emergency coordinator to determine (i) local
disaster risks; (ii) communitywide plans to address different disasters and emergency
situations; and (iii) assistance, if any, that the local emergency management office will
provide to the detention center in an emergency;
2. Analysis of the detention center's capabilities and potential hazards, including natural
disasters, severe weather, fire, flooding, workplace violence or terrorism, missing persons,

severe injuries, or other emergencies that would disrupt the normal course of service
delivery;

132



00 ~ O 1 B w M

Part Il —Federal Programs in J10Cs

3. Written emergency management procedures outlining specific responsibilities for
provision of administrative direction and management of response activities; coordination
of logistics during the emergency; communications; life safety of employees, contractors,
interns, volunteers, visitors, and residents; property protection; fire protection service,
cammunity outreach; and recovery and restoration;
4. Written emergency response procedures for assessing the situation; protecting
residents, employees, contractors, interns, volunteers, and visitors; equipment and vital
records; and restoring services. Emergency procedures shall address:

a. Communicating with employees, contractors, and community responders;

b. Warning and notifying residents;

c. Providing emergency access to secure areas and opening locked doors;

d. Conducting evacuations to emergency shelters or alternative sites and accounting

for all residents;

e. Relocating residents, if necessary;

f. Notifying parents and legal guardians, as applicable and appropriate;

g. Alerting emergency personnel and sounding alarms;

h. Locating and shutting off utilities when necessary, and

i. Providing for a planned, personalized means of effective evacuation for individuals

with disabilities who require special accommodations, such as deaf, blind, and

nonambulatery individuals.
5. Supporting documents that would be needed in an emergency, including emergency
call lists, building and site maps necessary to shut off utilities, designated evacuation
routes, and lists of major resources such as local emergency shelters; and
6. Schedule for testing the implementation of the plan and conducting emergency
preparedness drills.

B. Emergency preparedness and response training shall be developed and required for all
employees to ensure they are prepared to implement the emergency preparedness plan in the
event of an emergency. Such training shall be conducted in accordance with 6VAC35-101-190
through 6VAC35-101-200 and shall outline the employees' responsibilities for:

1. Alerting emergency personnel and sounding alarms;

2. Implementing evacuation procedures, inciuding evacuation of individuals with
disabilities who require special accommodations, such as deaf, blind, and nonambulatory
individuals;

3. Using, maintaining, and operating emergency equipment;

4. Accessing emergency information for residents including medical information; and

5. Utilizing community support services.

C. Contfractors, volunteers, and interns shall be oriented in their responsibilities in
implementing the evacuation plan in the event of an emergency. The orientation shall be in
accordance with the requirements of 6VAC35-101-185 and 6VAC35-101-187.

D. An annual review of the emergency preparedness plan shall be conducted and
documented, and revisions shall be made as deemed necessary. Such revisions shall be
communicated to employees, contractors, interns, and volunteers and incorporated into training
for employees, contractors, interns and volunteers, and orientation of residents to services.

E. If a disaster, fire, emergency, or any other condition occurs that may jeopardize the health,
safety, and welfare of residents, the detention center shall take appropriate actions to protect the
health, safety, and welfare of the residents and to remedy the conditions as soon as possible.

F. If a disaster, fire, emergency, or any other condition occurs that may jeopardize the health,
safety, and welfare of residents, the detention center first shall respond and stabilize the disaster
or emergency. Once the disaster or emergency is stabilized, detention center staff shall report
the disaster or emergency to the parents or legal guardians and the director no later than 24 hours
after the incident occurs in accordance with 6VAC35-200-80. Additionally, the facility

8

133



20~ U W=

W W wwwwWWNRIMNRMNMNMNRNNRNRNNRE R B 22 2 e
g\ubwgas:ﬁgwmumm.p.wwwomoo-—-.lmmhwmmommummnwu-—nom

47
48
49
50
51

Part Il —Federal Programs in JOCs

administrator or the facility administrator's designee shall report to the director or the director's
designee within 24 hours of the incident the conditions at the detention center.

G. Floor plans showing primary and secondary emergency exits shall be posted on each floor
in locations where they are clearly visible to staff and residents.

H. The resident's responsibility to implement the emergency and evacuation procedures shall
be communicated to all residents within seven days following admission or a substantive change
in the procedures.

I. The detention center shall conduct at least one evacuation drill in which its emergency
procedures are simulated each month in each building occupied by residents. During any three
consecutive calendar months, at least one evacuation drill shall be conducted during each shift.

J. Evacuation drills shall include, at a minimum:

1. Sounding of emergency alarms;
2. Practice in evacuating buildings;
3. Practice in alerting emergency authorities;
4. Simulated use of emergency equipment; and
5. Practice in accessing resident emergency information.
K. A record shall be maintained for each evacuation drill and shall include the following:
1. The building in which the drill was conducted;
2. The date and time of the drill;
3. The amount of time taken to evacuate the buildings;
4. The specific problems encountered, if applicable;
5. The staff tasks completed, including head counts and practice in notifying emergency
authorities:
6. The name of the staff members responsible for conducting and documenting the drill
and preparing the record.

L. One staff member shall be assigned who shall ensure that all requirements regarding the

emergency preparedness and response plan and the evacuation drill program are met.

6VAC35-200-140. Escapes.

Written procedures shall govern the actions staff must take to address a resident's escape or
unauthorized absence from the facility.

6VAC35-200-150. Transportation of residents.
A. Except as otherwise provided in 6VAC35-200-160, detention center staff shall follow the
requirements of this section if a resident in a federal program requires transportation.
B. Each detention center shall have transportation available or make the necessary
arrangements for facility-approved and emergency transportation of residents.
1. Each detention center shall be responsible for transporting federal residents to all local
medical and dental appointments and all local psychological and psychiatric evaluations,
as applicable.
2. Unless otherwise provided by agreement, the detention center shall not be required to
transport youth to appointments that are outside of the geographical boundaries of the
Commonwealth or that are more than 25 miles from the facility in one direction.
3. A facility administrator may assign its own staff to transport a federal resident or may
enter into an agreement or contract with a public or private agency to provide the
transportation services for the juvenile.
C. Written safety and security procedures shall be implemented governing the use of vehicles
and the transportation of residents outside the detention center and from one jurisdiction to
another. At a minimum, the written procedures shall provide the following:

1. No juvenile federal resident shall be transported with an adult suspected of or charged
with a criminal act.

134



W oo~ O W B k=

Fart Il —Federal Programs in J0Cs

2. If a person or entity other than the detention center assumes custody of the resident for
purposes of transportation, the detention center shall:
a. Provide the person or entity, except the resident's parent or guardian, with a written
document that identifies any pertinent information known to the detention center
concerning the resident’s immediate medical needs or mental health condition that
reasonably could be considered necessary for the resident’s safe transportation and
supervision, including the resident's recent suicidal ideations or suicide attempts. Any
such information shall remain confidential in the same manner as records protected
under § 16.1-300 of the Code of Virginia and applicable rules and regulations
regarding confidentiality of juvenile records.
b. Provide the individual transporting the resident with any medication the resident
may be required to take during transport or while absent from the facility.
3. The frequency and manner of searches of residents, the manner by which
communications will be accomplished during transit, the ratio of staff to residents, and the
parameters for use of mechanical restraints shall be in accordance, respectively, with
6VAC35-101-560, 6VAC35-101-580, 6VAC35-101-800, and 6VAC35-200-270, and shall
accord with written procedures.
4. If the vehicle transporting the resident becomes inoperable, is involved in an accident,
or encounters a similar emergency, the individual transporting the resident shall notify the
individual's agency immediately and contact local law enforcement for assistance, if
necessary. Detention center staff transporting residents shall observe the required staffing
ratios and shall never leave a resident unattended.
5. If a juvenile absconds during transport, the detention center staff conducting the
transport shall report the incident immediately in accordance with 6VAC35-200-80.
6. If a juvenile requires a meal during transit, the detention center shall provide a bagged
lunch, if feasible.
D. Written procedure shall provide for the verification of appropriate licensure for staff whose
duties involve transporting residents.
E. The detention center shall observe the following if a resident requires transport to a local
medical or dental appointment:
1. If detention center staff transport the detained juvenile to a local medical or dental
appointment as authorized in subdivision B 3 of this section, the detention center shall not
be obligated to pay for any costs associated with the appointment, unless provided for
otherwise by agreement.
2. The detention center may require notice of the date and time of the local medical
appointment, dental appointment, or psychological and psychiatric evaluation at least 72
hours in advance.
F. When the medical staff of a detention center have made a written determination that a
resident's medical condition can be treated without transporting the resident to a routine or

previously scheduled appointment, the detention center is not required to transport the resident
unless ordered by a court.

6VAC35-200-160. Transportation of violent or disruptive youth or youth traveling to
specified destinations.

A. Only juvenile detention center staff or law-enforcement personnel, exciuding the
Department of the State Police, may transport violent and disruptive juveniles.

B. Consistent with the requirements in § 16.1-345 of the Code of Virginia, if a court commits
a federal resident to a mental hospital or training center for observation, the committing court shall
designate the appropriate law-enforcement agency or other agency or party, other than the
Department of State Police, to transport the juvenile.

10

135



00 ~ OV U0 B W=

Part Il —Federal Programs in JDCs

Article 4 — Residents’ Rights

6VAC35-200-170. Visitation.

A. A resident's contacts and visits with family or legal guardians shall not be subject to
unreasonable limitations, and any limitations shall be implemented only as permitted by written
procedures, other applicable regulations, the supervising federal entity, or by order of a court.

B. Residents shall be permitted reasonable visiting privileges and, whenever possible, flexible
visiting hours, consistent with written procedures that take into account (i) the need for security
and order, (ii) the behavior of the residents and visitors, and (iii) the importance of helping the
resident maintain strong family and community ties.

C. Visitation procedures shall be provided upon request to the parent or legal guardian, as
appropriate and applicable, other approved or verified individuals, and the residents.

6VAC35-200-180. Reading materials.

A. Reading materials that are appropriate to residents' ages and levels of competency shall
be available to all residents. Staff shall make reasonable efforts to provide the materials in a
language the resident can understand.

B. Written procedure shall be developed and implemented governing resident access to
publications.

6VAC35-200-190. Fundraising.
Residents shall not be used in fundraising activities without the written permission of

the parent or legal guardian, as applicable, and the appropriate federal entity, and without the
written consent of the residents.

Article 5 - Program Operation

6VAC35-200-200. Admission and orientation.
A. Written procedure governing the admission and orientation of residents in federal programs
shall provide for the following:

1. Verification of legal authority for placement;
2. Search of the resident and the resident’s possessions, including inventory and storage
or disposition of property, as appropriate and required by this section and 6VAC35-101-
810;
3. A general assessment of the resident's physical condition by staff. The facility
administrator or the facility administrator's designee shall not admit for custody an
individual who is (i) visibly under the influence of alcohol or drugs and deemed to require
medical attention; or (ii) in need of immediate emergency medical attention, until the
individua! has received written medical clearance from a physician or mental health
clinician in an outside medical setting.
4. Health screening of the resident as required by 6VAC35-101-980.
5. Mental health screening of the resident as required by 6VAC35-200-210;
6. Notice to the parent or legal guardian of admission, during which facility staff shall ask
whether the resident has any immediate medical concerns or conditions;
7. Provision to the parent or legal guardian of information on (i) visitation, (ii) how to
request information, and (iii} how to register concerns and complaints with the facility.
8. Interview with the resident to answer questions and obtain information; and
9. Explanation to the resident of program services and schedules.

B. The resident shall receive an orientation to the following:

11

136



Part il —Federal Programs in JDCs

1 1. The behavior management program as required by 6VAC35-101-1070.
2 a. During the orientation, residents shall be given written information describing rules
3 of conduct, the sanctions for rule violations, and the disciplinary process. This
4 information shall be explained to the resident and documented by the dated signature
5 of the resident and staff.
6 b. If substantive revisions are made to the behavior management program, the facility
7 administration shall ensure that residents and direct care employees receive notice of
8 these revisions in writing prior to implementation.
9 2. The grievance procedure as required by 6VAC35-200-100;
10 3. The disciplinary process as required by 6VAC35-101-1080;
11 4. The resident’s responsibilities in implementing the emergency procedures as required
12 by 6VAC35-200-130;
13 a. These responsibilities shall be communicated to residents in federal programs
14 within seven days following admission or a substantive change in the procedures.
15 b. Facility staff shall conduct and document an annual review of the emergency
16 preparedness plan, and revisions shall be made as deemed necessary. Revisions to
17 the plan shall be incorporated into orientation of residents to services.
18 5. The residents’ rights, including the following:
19 a. The prohibited actions listed in 6VAC35-101-650;
20 b. The right to have additional precautions in place for residents identified as being a
21 member of a vulnerable population pursuant to 6VAC35-101-655;
22 c. The protections provided for resident mail pursuant to 6VAC35-101-660;
23 d. The right to telephone calls pursuant to 6VAC35-101-670;
24 e. The right to reasonable visitation, limited only as permitted in 6VAC35-200-170;
25 f. The right to have (i) uncensored, confidential contact with their legal representatives,
26 (it) access to the courts; and (iii) freedom from compulsory questioning by law
27 enforcement pursuant to 6VAC35-101-690;
28 g. The right to those personal necessities specified in 6 VAC35-101-700;
29 h. The right to daily opportunities to shower, except as limited in 6VAC35-101-710;
30 i. Protection from routine sight supervision by certain staff members while bathing,
31 dressing, or conducting toileting activities in accordance with 6VAC35-101-730;
32 j. Daily nutritionally balanced meals in accordance with 6VAC35-101-740;
33 k. Availability of reading materials appropriate to the residents’ ages and level of
34 competency, as set out in 6VAC35-200-180;
35 |. The reasonable right to participate in religious activities and freedom from coerced
36 religious participation in accordance with 6VAC35-101-760;
37 m. Availability and access to a recreational program plan that satisfies the
38 requirements of 6VAC35-101-770; and
39 n. Protection of residents’ funds, to be used only in accordance with 6VAC35-101-780,
40 and
41 6. The record information available to the residents while residing in the facility, how to
42 access the information, and the recourse available when record information requests are
43 denied.
44 C. Detention center staff shall ensure that all information provided to the resident pursuant to

45  this section is explained in a developmentally appropriate manner and is available in a format that
46 is accessible to all residents, including those who are deaf, hard of hearing, visually impaired, or
47  otherwise disabled or impaired or who have limited English reading skills or limited English
48  proficiency.

49

50 6VAC35-200-210. Mental health screening.

12

137



00~ O U B W N

Part If —Federal Programs in JDCs

A. Each resident shall undergo a mental health screening administered by trained staff to
ascertain the resident's suicide risk level and need for a mental health assessment or emergency
intervention.

B. The mental health screening shall include the following:

1. A preliminary mental health screening at the time of admission, consisting of a
structured interview and observation, as provided in facility procedures; and

2. The administration of an objective, department-approved mental health screening
instrument within 48 hours of admission. The facility may supplement the screening
instrument with additional questions or observations, as authorized in the facility's written
procedures.

C. If the mental health screening indicates that a mental health assessment is needed, the
assessment shall be conducted within 24 hours of the determination.

D. If the preliminary or subsequent mental health screening indicates significant suicide risk
or the need for emergency intervention, staff shall implement the facility’s suicide prevention
program or take other steps as determined by a mental health clinician.

6VAC35-200-220. Release from federal programs.

A. Residents shall be released from a federal program only in accordance with written
procedure.

B. Each resident's record shall contain a copy of the documentation authorizing the
resident’s release.

C. Residents shall be released only as directed by the federal entity.

D. As applicable and appropriate, information concerning current medications, therapeutic
interventions provided in the program, educational status, and other items important to the

resident’s continuing care shall be provided to the parent, legal guardian, or legally authorized
representative.

6VAC35-200-230 Structured programming
A. Each facility operating a federal program shall impiement a comprehensive, planned, and
structured daily routine, including appropriate supervision, designed to:
1. Meet the residents’ physical, emotional, and educational needs;
2. Provide protection, guidance, and supervision; and
3. Ensure the delivery of program services.
B. The structured daily routine shall be followed for all weekday and weekend programs and
activities. Deviations from the schedule shall be documented.

Article 6 - Room Restriction and Physical Restraints
6VAC35-200-240. Room restriction.
A. Written procedures governing room restriction shall address the following:
1. The actions or behaviors that may result in room restriction;
2. The factors that should be considered before placing a resident in room restriction, such
as age, developmental level, or disability,
3. The circumstances under which a debriefing with the resident should occur, the party
that should conduct the debriefing, and the topics that should be discussed in the
debriefing, including the cause and impact of the room restriction and the appropriate
measures post-release to support positive resident cutcomes; and
4. When and under what conditions staff must consult with a mental health professional
and monitor the resident as directed by the mental health clinician if a resident placed in
room restriction exhibits self-injurious behavior.
B. Whenever a resident is placed in room restriction, staff shall check the resident visually at
least every 15 minutes and more often if indicated by the circumstances.

13

138



90~ AW N =

Part It —=Federal Programs in JDCs

C. Residents who are placed in room restriction shall be afforded the opportunity for at least
one hour of large muscle activity outside of the locked room every calendar day unless the
resident's behavior or other circumstances justify an exception. The reasons for any such
exception shall be approved by the facility administrator or the facility administrator's designee
and shall be documented.

D. Unless a resident is placed in disciplinary room restriction, as provided in 6VAC35-200-
250, the resident shall be afforded the same opportunities as any other resident in general
population, including treatment, education, and as much time out of the resident's room as
security considerations allow. Exceptions may be made in accordance with established
procedures when justified by clear and substantiated evidence.

E. If a resident is placed in room restriction for any reason for more than 24 hours, the facility
administrator or the facility administrator's designee shall be notified and shall provide written
approval for the continued room restriction. The written approval shall include a rationale of why
the continued room restriction is necessary.

F. If the room restriction extends to more than 72 hours, the (i) restriction and (ii) steps being
taken or planned to resolve the situation shall be reported immediately to the director or the
director's designee. If this report is made verbally, it shall be followed immediately with a written,
faxed, or secure email report in accordance with written procedures. For room restriction
anticipated to exceed 72 hours, the medical and mental health status of the resident shall be
assessed by a qualified medical health professional or mental health clinician within the initial 72-
hour room restriction period and on a daily basis after the 72-hour period has elapsed until the
resident is released from room restriction.

G. Room restriction shall not exceed five consecutive days except when ordered by a medical
provider or a mental health clinician.

H. When placed in room restriction, the resident shall have a means of communication with
staff, either verbally or electronically.

I. The facility administrator or the facility administrator's designee shall make daily personal
contact with each resident who is placed in room restriction in order to ensure that all such
residents, with the exception of those placed in disciplinary room restriction, are restricted only
for the minimum amount of time required to address the resident's negative behavior or threat.
During the daily visit, the facility administrator shall assess and document (i) whether the resident
is prepared to.return to the general population, unless the resident is placed in disciplinary room
restriction for a specified time period; and (ii) whether the resident requires a mental health
evaluation.

J. Residents who are placed in room restriction shall be housed no more than one to a room.

K. The provisions of this section shall apply to alt forms of room restriction, including
disciplinary room restriction, unless otherwise provided.

6VAC35-200-250. Disciplinary room restriction.

A. Unless otherwise provided, when a resident is placed in disciplinary room restriction, the
provisions of 6VAC35-200-240 shall apply.

B. Written procedures governing disciplinary room restriction shali:

1. Specify that residents may be placed in room restriction only after application of the
disciplinary process, as provided for in 6VAC35-101-1080; and
2. Comply with the behavior management requirements set out in 6VAC35-101-1070.

C. Residents placed in disciplinary room restriction generally shall not be permitted to
participate in activities with other residents, and all activities are restricted unless an exception is
issued by the facility administrator or the facility administrator's designee. The following activities,
however, shall not be restricted: (i) eating, (ii) sleeping, (iii) personal hygiene, (iv) any legally
required educational programming or special education services; and (v) large muscle activity,
except as permitted in 6VAC35-101-1100 C. The facility administrator or the facility administrator's

14

139



00 ~J G LN S W MO

Part Il —-Federal Programs in JDCs

designee shall provide opportunities for residents placed in disciplinary room restriction to engage
in reading or writing activities in accordance with the safety and security needs of the resident.

6VAC35-200-260. Physical restraint.
A. Physical restraint shall be used as a last resort only after less restrictive interventions have
failed or to control residents whose behavior poses a risk to the safety of the resident, staff, or
others.
1. Staff shall use the least force deemed reasonably necessary to eliminate the risk or to
maintain security and order and shall never use physical restraint as punishment or with
the intent to inflict injury.
2. Physical restraint may be implemented, monitored, and discontinued only by staff who
have been trained in the proper and safe use of restraint in accordance with the
requirements in 6VAC35-101-190 and 6VAC35-101-200.
B. Each detention center shall implement written procedures governing the use of physical
restraint, which shall include:
1. The staff position that will write the report and time frame for completing the report,
2. The staff position that will review the report and time frame for completing the review;
3. Methods to be followed should physical restraint, less intrusive interventions, or
measures permitted by other applicable state regulations prove unsuccessful in calming
and moderating the resident's behavior; and
4. An administrative review of the use of each physical restraint to ensure conformity with
the procedures.
C. Each application of physical restraint shall be fully documented in the resident's case
record. The document shall include:
1. Date and time of the incident;
2. Staff involved;
3. Justification for the restraint;
4. Less restrictive behavior interventions that were unsuccessfully attempted before using
physical restraint;
5. Duration of the restraint;
6. Description of the method or methods of physical restraint techniques used;
7. Signature of the person completing the report and
8. Reviewer's signature and date.

Article 7 — Mechanical Restraints and Protective Devices
6VAC35-200-270. Mechanical restraints and protective devices.

A. Mechanical restraints and protective devices may be used on federal residents for the
following purposes subject to the restrictions enumerated in this section: (i) to control residents
whose behavior poses an imminent risk to the safety of the resident, staff, or others; (ii) for
purposes of controlled movement, either from one area of the facility to another or to a destination
outside the facility, and (iii) to address emergencies.

B. A detention center that uses mechanical restraints or protective devices on federal
residents shall observe the following general requirements:

1. Mechanical restraints and protective devices shall be used only for as long as necessary
to address the purposes established in subsection A. Once the imminent risk to safety has
abated, the federal resident has reached the intended destination within the facility or has
returned to the facility from a destination offsite, or the emergency situation has been
resolved, the mechanical restraint or protective device shall be removed;

2. The facility administrator or the administrator's designee shall be notified immediately
upon using mechanical restraints or protective devices in an emergency;

15

140



0O~ O U b N

T e
N DW= O W

18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51

Part it -Federal Programs in JDCs

3. The facility may not use mechanical restraints or protective devices as a punishment or
a sanction;

4. Federal residents may not be restrained to a fixed object or restrained in an unnatural
position. For purposes of this section, securing a resident to a hospital bed or wheelchair
may be permitted in an outside medical setting upon written approval by the facility
administrator.

5. A mental health clinician or other qualifying licensed medical professional may order
termination of a mechanical restraint or protective device at any time upon determining
that the item poses a health risk.

6. Each use of a mechanical restraint or protective device, except when used to transport
a federal resident or during video court hearing proceedings, shall be recorded in the
resident's case file or in a central log book; and

7. A written system of accountability shall be in place to ensure routine and emergency
distribution of mechanical restraints and protective devices.

8. All staff who are authorized to use mechanical restraints or protective devices shall
receive training in such use in accordance with 6VAC35-101-190 and 6VAC35-101-200;
and only trained staff shall use restraint or protective devices.

C. A detention center that uses a mechanical restraint to contro! a resident whose behavior
poses a safety risk in accordance with subdivision A i of this section shall notify a heaith care
provider and a mental health clinician before continuing to use the restraint and, if applicable, the
accompanying protective device, if the imminent risk has abated, but facility staff deem continued
use of the mechanical restraint necessary to maintain security due to the resident's ongoing
credible threat of self injury or injury to others. This may include instances in which the federal
resident verbally expresses the intent to continue the actions that required the restraint.

D. Detention center staff may not use a protective device on a federal resident unless such
use is in connection with a restraint and shall remove the device when the resident is released
from the restraint.

E. In addition to the requirements in subsections A through D of this section, if staff in a juvenile
detention center use a spit guard to control a federal resident's behavior, they shall observe the
following requirements:

1. Staff may not use a spit guard on a federal resident unless it possesses the following
characteristics:

a. The spit guard's design may not inhibit the resident’s ability to breathe;

b. The spit guard must be constructed to allow for visibility; and

c. The spit guard must be manufactured and sold specifically for the prevention of

biting or spitting.
2. The spit guard may be used only on a federal resident who: (i) previously has bitten or
spit on a person at the facility, or (ii) in the course of a current restraint, threatens or
attempts to spit on or bite or actually spits on or bites a staff member,;
3. The spit guard must be applied in a manner that will not inhibit the resident's ability to
breathe.
4. While the spit guard remains in place, staff shall provide for the resident's reasonable
comfort and ensure the resident's access to water and meals, as applicable.
5. Staff must employ constant supervision of the resident while the spit guard remains in
place to observe whether the resident exhibits signs of respiratory distress. If any sign of
respiratory distress is observed, staff shall take immediate action to prevent injury and to
notify supervisory staff.
6. Staff may not use a spit guard on a resident who is unconscious, vomiting, or in obvious
need of medical attention.

6VAC35-200-280. Monitoring residents placed in mechanical restraints.

16

141



O~ O LN B W

fu—y
O W

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
a3
44
45
46
47
48
49
50

Part It ~Federal Programs in JDCs

A. Written procedure shall provide that if a resident in a federal program is placed
in mechanical restraints, except when being transported offsite, staff shall:

1. Provide for the resident's reasonable comfort and ensure the resident's access to water,
meals, and toilet; and

2. Make a face-to-face check on the resident at least every 15 minutes and more often if
the resident's behavior warrants. Staff shall attempt to engage verbally with the resident
during each periodic check. These efforts may include explaining the reasons for which
the resident is being restrained or the steps necessary to be released from the restraint or
otherwise attempting to deescalate the resident. During each check, a health-trained staff
member shall monitor the resident for signs of circulation and for injuries.

B. If a resident remains in a mechanical restraint for a period that exceeds two hours, except
when being transported offsite, staff shall permit exercise of the resident’s limbs for a minimum of
10 minutes every two hours to prevent blood clots.

C. When a resident is placed in mechanical restraints for more than two hours cumulatively in
a 24-hour period, except during routine transportation of residents, staff immediately shall consult
with a health care provider and a mental health clinician. This consultation shall be documented.

D. if the resident, after being placed in mechanical restraints, exhibits self-injurious behavior,
staff shall (i) take appropriate action to ensure the threat or harm is stabilized, (ii) consult
with a mental health clinician immediately thereafter and document the consultation; and {iii}

monitor the resident in accordance with established protocols, including constant supervision, if
appropriate.

6VAC35-200-290. Written procedures regarding mechanical restraints and protective
devices.
A detention center that uses mechanical restraints or protective devices shall develop and

implement written procedures approved by the facility administrator that reflect the requirements
established in this article.

Article 8 - Mechanical Restraint Chair
6VAC35-200-300. Mechanical restraint chair; general provisions.

A detention center that utilizes a mechanical restraint chair in a federal program shall observe
the following requirements, regardless of whether the chair is used for purposes of controlled
movement in accordance with 6VAC35-200-310 or for other purposes in accordance with
6VAC35-200-320:

1. The restraint chair shall never be applied as punishment or as a sanction.

2. All staff authorized to use the restraint chair shall receive training in such use in
accordance with 6VAC35-101-190 and 6VAC35-101-200.

3. The facility administrator or the administrator's designee shall provide approval before
a resident may be placed in the restraint chair.

4. Staff shall notify the health authority, designated in accordance with 6VAC35-101-930,
immediately upon placing the resident in the restraint chair to assess the resident's
medical and mental health condition, to ascertain whether the restraint is contraindicated
based on the resident's physical condition or behavior or whether other accommodations
are necessary, and to advise whether, on the basis of serious danger to self or others, the
resident should be in a medical or mental health unit for emergency involuntary treatment.
The requirements of this subdivision shall not apply when the restraint chair is requested
by a resident for whom such voluntary use is part of an approved plan of care by a mental
health clinician in accordance with subsection C of 6VAC35-200-320.

5. If the resident, after being placed in the mechanical restraint chair, exhibits self-injurious
behavior, staff shall (i) take appropriate action to ensure the threat or harm is stabilized;

17

142



OO~ h U B WM

Part Il ~Federal Programs in 1DCs

and {ii} consult a mental health clinician immediately thereafter and obtain approval for
continued use of the restraint chair;
6. The health authority, a mental health clinician, or another qualifying licensed medical
professional may order termination of restraint chair use at any time upon determining that
use of the chair poses a health risk;
7. Each use of the restraint chair shall constitute a serious incident, to which the provisions
of 6VAC35-200-80 shall apply;
8. Each use of the restraint chair shall be documented in the resident's case file or in a
central logbook. The documentation shall include:

a. Date and time of the incident;

b. Staff involved in the incident;

¢. Justification for the restraint;

d. Less restrictive interventions that were attempted or an explanation of why the

restraint chair is the least restrictive intervention available to ensure the resident's safe
movement;

e. Duration of the restraint;

f. Signature of the person documenting the incident and date;

g. Indication that all applicable approvals required in this article have been obtained,
and

h. Reviewer's signature and date.

9. Staff shall conduct a debriefing of the restraint after releasing the resident from the
chair.

6VAC35-200-310. Mechanical restraint chair use for controlled movement; conditions.

A. Detention center staff shall be authorized to use a mechanical restraint chair in a federal
program for purposes of controlied movement of a resident from one area of the facility to another,
provided the following conditions are satisfied:

1. The resident's refusal to move from one area of the facility to another poses a direct
and immediate threat to the resident or others or interferes with required facility operations,
and

2. Use of the restraint chair is the least restrictive intervention available to ensure the
resident's safe movement.

B. When the facility utilizes the restraint chair in accordance with this section, staff shall
remove the resident from the chair immediately upon reaching the intended destination. If staff,
upon reaching the intended destination, determine that continued restraint is necessary, staff shall
consult with a mental health clinician for approval of the continued restraint.

6VAC35-200-320. Mechanical restraint chair use for purposes other than controlled
movement; conditions for use.

A. Detention center staff shall be authorized to use a mechanical restraint chair in a federal
program for purposes other than controlled movement provided the following conditions are
satisfied:

1. The resident's behavior or actions present a direct and immediate threat to the resident
or others;

2. Less restrictive alternatives were attempted but were unsuccessful in bringing the
resident’s behavior under control or abating the threat;

3. The resident remains in the restraint chair only for as long as necessary to abate the
threat or help the resident gain self-control.

B. Once the direct threat is abated, if staff determines that continued restraint is necessary to
maintain security due to the resident's ongoing credible threat of self-injury or injury to others,
staff shall consult a mental health clinician for approvai of the continued restraint. The ongoing

18

143



W oo~ W

Sh oD oE W W W W W W W WNMNNNRNBDRNMNNLGRS 2 R e =

Part If ~Federal Programs in JDCs

threat may include instances in which the resident verbally expresses the intent to continue the
actions that required the restraint.

C. Detention center staff shall be excused from the requirements in subsections A and B of
this section when the restraint chair is requested by a resident for whom such voluntary use is
part of an approved plan of care by a mental health clinician.

D. Whenever a resident is placed in a restraint chair for purposes other than controlled
movement, staff shall observe the following monitoring requirements:

1. Employ constant, one-on-one supervision until the resident is released from the chair.
Staff shall attempt to engage verbally with the resident during the one-on-one supervision.
These efforts may include explaining the reasons for which the resident is being restrained
or the steps necessary to be released from the restraint or otherwise attempting to
deescalate the resident;

2. Ensure that a health-trained staff monitors the resident for signs of circulation and for
injuries at least once every 15 minutes in accordance with written procedures; and

3. Ensure that the resident is reasonably comfortable and has access to water, meals, and
toilet.

6VAC35-200-330. Monitoring residents placed in a mechanical restraint chair.

A. If a resident remains in the restraint chair for a period of two hours or more, the resident
shall be permitted to exercise the resident’s limbs for a minimum of 10 minutes every two hours
to prevent blood clots.

B. A detention center shall ensure that a video record of the following is captured and retained
for a minimum of three years in accordance with 6VAC35-101-40:
1. The placement of a resident in a restraint chair when a resident is restrained for
purposes of controlled movement;
2. The entire restraint, from the time the resident is placed in the restraint chair until the
resident’s release when restrained in the chair for purposes other than controlled
movement. Detention center staff may satisfy this requirement by positioning the
restraint chair within direct view of an existing security camera.

6VAC35-200-340. Department monitoring visits; annual reporting; board review.

A. If detention center staff use a mechanical restraint chair to restrain a resident in a federal
program, regardless of the purpose or duration of the use, the detention center shall be subject
to a monitoring visit conducted by the department pursuant to the authority provided in 6VAC35-
20-60. The purpose of the monitoring visit shall be to assess the detention center's compliance
with the provisions of this article.

B. Upon completion of the monitoring visit, the department shall provide the detention center
with a written report of its findings in accordance with 6VAC35-20-90. A detention center cited for
noncompliance with a regulatory requirement pursuant to this monitoring wisit may request a
variance or appeal the finding of noncompliance in accordance with 6VAC35-20-90.

C. The department shall document each monitoring visit conducted pursuant to subsection A
and provide a written report to the board annually that details, at a minimum, the following
information regarding each separate incident in which the restraint chair is used:

1. The facility in which the chair is used, with specific reference to the federal program;

2. The date and time of the use;

3. A brief description of the restraint, including the purpose for which the restraint was
applied, the duration of the restraint, and the circumstances surrounding the resident's
release from the restraint;

4. The extent to which detention center staff complied with the regulatory requirements

related to mechanical restraint chair use, as set forth in Sections 300 through 350 of this
chapter; and

19

144



—

QO Wor -~ bWl

Part If —Federal Programs in JDCs

5. The plans identified to address findings of noncompliance, if applicable.
D. The annual report shall be placed on the agenda for the next regularly scheduled board
meeting for the board's consideration and review.

6VAC35-200-350. Written procedures regarding mechanical restraint chairs.

A detention center that uses a mechanical restraint chair to restrain a resident shall develop
and implement written procedures approved by the facility administrator that reflect the
requirements established in this article. The procedures shall provide that if staff are prohibited
from using restraint chairs on residents in other programs in the facility, such use also shall be
prohibited in the federal program.

20

145



Part it —Federal Programs in JCCs

PART lil - FEDERAL PROGRAMS IN JUVENILE CORRECTIONAL CENTERS
Article 1 — General Provisions

6VAC35-200-360. Contracts between the department and federal governmental entities
A. When the director enters into an agreement with a federal governmental entity for the

purpose of operating a federal program in a juvenile correctional center, the agreement shall
satisfy the following requirements:

1. The agreement shall be in writing;

2. The agreement shall require the federal program’s compliance with 6VAC35-20, Regulation
Governing the Monitoring, Approval, and Certification of Juvenile Justice Programs and Facilities
and this chapter; and

3. For purposes of demonstrating compliance with this chapter, the agreement shall allow the
department the same access to juveniles in the federal program and to their records and reports
as is authorized currently under § 16.1-309.10 of the Code of Virginia and 6VAC35-20 for all other
residents in the juvenile carrectional center.

B. Nothing in this section shall prevent the director and the federal governmental entity from

agreeing that services and treatment for juveniles in the federal program shall exceed the
requirements in this chapter.

6VAC35-200-370. Serious incident reports.

A. The following events shall be reported to the director or the director's designee as soon as
practicable, but no later than 24 hours after the incident:

1. A serious iliness, incident, injury, or accident involving the serious injury of a federal
resident;

2. A federal resident's absence from the facility without permission; and

3. The facility's use of the mechanical restraint chair, regardless of the purpose or duration
of use.

B. As appropriate and applicable, facility staff shall, as soon as practicable, but no later than
24 hours after the incident, report the incidents listed in subsection A of this section to (i) the
parent or legal guardian and (ii) the supervising federal entity.

C. Any incident involving the death of a federal resident shall be reported to the individuals
specified in subsections A and B of this section without undue delay.

D. Facility staff shall prepare and maintain a written report of the events listed in subsections
A and C of this section that shall contain the following information:

1. The date and time the incident occurred;

2. A brief description of the incident;

3. The action taken as a result of the incident;

4. The name of the person who completed the report;

5. The name or identifying information of the person who made the report to the
supervising agency and to the parent or legal guardian; and

6. The name or identifying information of the person to whom the report was made,
including any law-enforcement officer, local department of social services staff, or
representative of another applicable agency.

E. The department shall establish written procedures that address any additional serious
incidents that must be reported, the process for notifying the parties identified in subsection B of
this section, and the steps for completing and submitting the written report required in subsection
D. The JCC administration shall ensure the written procedures are accessible to JCC staff.

F. The federal resident's case record shall contain a written reference (i) that an incident
occurred and (ii) of all applicable reporting.

G. In addition to the requirements of this section, any suspected child abuse and neglect shall
be governed by 6VAC35-200-350.

21

146



Part lit —Federal Programs in JCCs

6VAC35-200-380. Suspected child abuse or neglect.

A. When there is reason to suspect that a resident in a federal program is an abused or
neglected child, the matter shall be reported immediately to the local department of social services
or to the Virginia Department of Social Services toll-free child abuse and neglect hotline as
required by § 63.2-1509 of the Code of Virginia.

B. Any case of suspected child abuse or neglect occurring in a JCC federal program, occurring
during a JCC-sponsored event or excursion, or involving JCC staff shall be reported within 24
hours to (i) the director or the director's designee, (ii) the supervising federal entity, and (iii) the
resident's parent or legal guardian, as appropriate and applicable.

C. When a case of suspected child abuse or neglect is reported in accordance with subsection
A of this section, a record shall be maintained at the facility that contains the following information:

1. The date and time the suspected abuse or neglect occurred,;

2. A brief description of the suspected abuse or neglect;

3. The action taken as a result of the suspected abuse or neglect;

4. The name or identifying information of the person to whom the report was made,
including any law-enforcement officer, focal department of social services staff, or
individual at another applicable agency;

5. A statement of the victim of the alleged abuse or neglect;

6. Statements of all staff and residents who observed the alleged abuse or neglect or who
have knowledge relevant to the investigation; and

7. Medical records, if a medical examination occurred.

D. The resident's case record shall contain a written reference that a report was made.

E. If a serious incident alleging child abuse or neglect is reported and facility staff determine
that video footage associated with the allegation can be accessed and extracted from a running
video record, staff shall extract and maintain the video footage until the investigation for the
underlying allegation has concluded, but for a period of at least three years after the conclusion
of the investigation.

F. Written procedures shall be accessible to staff regarding the following:

1. Handling accusations of child abuse or neglect, including those made against staff,

2. Reporting consistent with requirements of the Code of Virginia and documenting
suspected cases of child abuse or neglect to the local child protective services unit;

3. Cooperating during any investigation; and

4. Measures to be taken to ensure the safety of the resident and the staff.

6VAC35-200-390. Grievance procedure.

A. The department shall have in place a grievance procedure that provides for the following:
1. Resident participation in the grievance process, with assistance from staff upon request;
2. Investigation of the grievance by an impartial and objective employee who is not the
subject of the grievance;

3. Documented-responses to all grievances with the supporting reasons for the decision,;
4, At least one ievel of appeal;

5. Administrative review of grievances;

6. Protection of residents from retaliation or the threat of retaliation for filing a grievance;
and

7. Immediate review of grievances that pose an immediate risk of harm to a resident, with
resolution as soon as practicable but no later than eight hours after the initial review and
review and resolution of all other grievances as soon as practicable but no later than 30
business days after receipt of the grievance. For purposes of this subdivision, a grievance

may be deemed resolved once facility staff have addressed, corrected, or referred the
issue to an external organizational unit.

22

147



Part Hit ~Federal Programs in JCCs

B. Residents shall be oriented to the grievance procedure in an age and developmentally
appropriate manner,

C. The grievance procedure shall be {i) written in clear and simple language, (ii) posted in an
area accessible to residents, and (iii) available in an area easily accessible to parents and legal
guardians.

D. Staff shall assist and work cooperatively with other employees in facilitating the grievance
process.

6VAC35-200-400. Other applicable regulations.

in addition to the applicable requirements in this chapter, federal programs in juvenile
correctional centers shall comply with each section of the Regulations Governing Juvenile
Correctional Centers (6VAC35-71) except the following provisions:

. 6VAC35-71-15

. 6VAC35-71-60

. 6VAC35-71-70

. 6VAC35-71-80

. BVAC35-71-260

. BVAC35-71-270

. 6VAC35-71-680

. BVAC35-71-690

. BVAC35-71-750
10. 6VAC35-71-1140
11. 6VAC35-71-1175
12. 6VAC35-71-1180
13. 6VAC35-71-1190
14. 6VAC35-71-1195
15. 6VAC35-71-1203
16. 6VAC35-71-1204
17. 6VAC35-71-1205
18. 6VAC35-71-1206
19. 6VAC35-71-1207
20. 6VAC35-71-1208

QoOo~NOO s WN=—=

Article 2 — Administrative Provisions

6VAC35-200-410. Maintenance of case records.

A. A separate written case record shall be maintained for each resident in a federal program,
which shall include all correspondence and documents generated or received by the federal
program relating to the care of the resident and documentation of all case management services
provided.

B. Separate health care records shall be kept on each resident and maintained in accordance
with 6VAC35-71-1020 and applicable statutes and regulations. Behavioral health records may be
kept separately from other health care records.

C. Each case record and health care record shall be kept (i} up to date, (ii) in a uniform
manner, and (iii) confidential from unauthorized access.

D. The facility shall have written procedures in place for the maintenance and management
of case records in federal programs. The procedures for managing resident written records shall

address confidentiality, accessibility, security, and retention of records pertaining to residents
including:

23

148



Part it —Federal Programs in JCCs

1. Access, duplication, dissemination, and acquisition of information, restricted to persons
ieqally authorized according to applicable federal and state laws;

2. Security measures to protect records from loss, unauthorized alteration, inadvertent or
unauthorized access, disclosure of information, and transportation of records between
service sites;

3. Securily measures to protect records during transportation between service sites;

4. Designation of the person responsible for records management;

5. Explanation of the record information available to the resident, how to access that
information, and the recourse available to residents when their record information requests
are denied;

6. Disposition of records when a resident is discharged from the federal program; and

7. Disposition of records if a juvenile correctional center ceases to operate or the
department terminates its contract with the applicable federal governmental entity.

E. Facility staff shall maintain documentation of the program’s authority to refain, release,
transfer, or destroy any records maintained by the federal program.

F. Active and closed records shall be kept in secure locations or compartments that are
accessible only to authorized employees and shall be protected from unauthorized access, fire,
and flood.

G. Each resident's written case and health care records shall be stored separately subsequent
to the resident's discharge in accordance with applicable statutes and regulations.

6VAC35-200-420. Face sheet.

A. At the time of admission, each resident’s record shall include, at a minimum, a completed
face sheet that contains the following: (i) the resident’s full name, last known residence, birth date,
birthplace, sex, gender identity, race, primary language, preferred language, social security
number or other unique identifier, religious preference, and admission date; and (ii} the names,
addresses, and telephone numbers of the resident's legal guardians, supervising agency,
emergency contacts, and parents, if available and appropriate.

B. The face sheet shall be updated when changes occur and maintained as a part of the
resident’s record.

Article 3 — Program Operation

6VAC35-200-430. Admission and orientation.
A. Written procedures governing the admission and orientation of residents to a federal
program shall provide for the following:
1. Verification of legal authority for placement;
2. Search of the resident and the resident’s possessions, including inventory and storage
or disposition of property, as appropriate and required by 6VAC35-200-400;
3. Health screening of the resident as required by 6VAC35-71-940;
4. Notice to the parent or legal guardian of the resident’s admission,
5. Provision to the parent or legal guardian of information on (i} visitation, (ii) how to
request information, and (iii) how to register concerns and complaints with the facility,
6. Interview with the resident to answer questions and obtain information;
7. Explanation to the resident of program services and schedules; and
8. Assignment of the resident to a housing unit and sleeping area or room.
B. Residents in federal programs shall receive an orientation to the following:
1. The behavior management program as required by 6VAC35-71-745.
a. During orientation, residents shall be given written information describing ruies
of conduct, the system of privileges and sanctions for rule violations, and the

24

149



Part It —Federal Programs in JCCs

disciplinary process. This information shall be explained to the resident and
documented by the dated signature of the resident and staff,
b. If substantive revisions are made to the behavior management program, the
facility administration shall ensure that residents and direct care employees
receive notice of these revisions in writing before implementation.
2. The grievance procedure, as required by 6VAC35-71-80;
3. The disciplinary process as required by 6VAC35-71-1110;
4. The resident's responsibilities in implementing the emergency procedures as required
by 6VAC35-71-460.
a. Within seven days following admission or within seven days after a substantive
change in procedures, facility staff shall communicate to federal residents the
resident’s responsibilities in implementing the emergency and evacuation procedures;
b. Annually, facility staff shall document the review of the emergency preparedness
plan, required pursuant to subsection A of BVAC35-71-460, and make necessary
revisions. The revisions shall be communicated to residents and incorporated into
resident orientation.
5. The residents’ rights, including the following:
a. The prohibited actions listed in 6VAC35-71-550;
b. The right to have additional precautions in place for residents identified as being
a member of a vulnerable population pursuant to 6VAC35-71-555;
c. The protections provided for resident mail pursuant to 6VAC35-71-560. The
facility administration also shall ensure that written procedures governing resident
mail are made available to all residents and updated as needed,
d. The right to telephone calls pursuant to 6VAC35-71-570;
e. The right to reasonable visitation, limited only as permitted in 6VAC35-71-580;
f. The right to have (i) uncensored, confidential contact with their legal
representatives, (ii) access to the courts; and (iii) freedom from compulsory
questioning by law enforcement pursuant to 6VAC35-71-590;
g. The right to those personal necessities specified in 6VAC35-71-600;
h. The right to daily opportunities to shower, except as limited in 6VAC35-71-610;,
i. Protection from routine sight supervision by certain staff members while bathing,
dressing, or conducting toileting activities in accordance with 6VAC35-71-620;
j. Daily nutritionally balanced meals in accordance with 6VAC35-71-630,
k. Availability of reading materials appropriate to the residents’ ages and level of
competency, as set out in 6VAC35-71-640;
I. The reasonable right to participate in religious activities and freedom from
coerced religious participation in accordance with 6VAC35-71-650;
m. Availability and access to a recreational program plan that satisfies the
requirements of 6VAC35-71-660; and
n. Protection of residents’ funds, to be used only in accordance with 6VAC35-71-
670.
6. The record information available to the residents while residing in the facility, how to
access the information and the recourse available when record information requests are
denied.

7. The student government association and its constitution and bylaws in accordance with
6VAC35-71-90.

C. The facility administration shall ensure that all information provided to the federal resident

pursuant to this section is explained in a developmentally appropriate manner and is available in

a format that is accessible to all residents, including those who are deaf, hard of hearing, visually

impaired, or otherwise disabled or impaired, or who have limited English reading skills or limited
English proficiency.

25

150



Part il —Federal Programs in JCCs

D. The facility administration shall maintain documentation that the requirements of this
section have been satisfied.

6VAC35-200-440. Resident personal possessions.

A. JCC administration shall inventory each federal resident's personal possessions upon
admission and document the information in the resident's case records.

B. The department shall have written procedures for the disposition or storage of items that
the resident is not permitted to possess in the facility. At a minimum, the procedures shall require
that if the items are nonperishable property that the resident may otherwise legally possess, staff
shall: (i) securely store the property and return it to the resident upon release or (i) make
reasonable, documented efforts to return the property to the resident or the resident's parent or
legal guardian.

C. The department shall have written procedures in place regarding the disposition of personal
property unclaimed by residents after release from a federal program.

6VAC35-200-450. Discharge from federal program.

A. The case record of each resident discharged from a federal program shall contain the
following:

1. Documentation that the discharge was discussed with the parent or legal guardian, if
applicable and appropriate, the supervising agency, and the resident; and
2. As soon as possible, but no later than 30 days after discharge, a comprehensive
discharge summary, which also shall be sent to the persons or agency that made the
placement. The discharge summary shall review:

a. Services provided to the resident;

b. The resident's progress toward meeting individual service plan objectives;

¢. The resident's continuing needs and recommendations for further services and care,

if any;

d. The name of the person to whom the resident was discharged;

e. Dates of admission and discharge; and

f. The date the discharge summary was prepared and the identification of the person

preparing it.

B. In addition to the requirements in subsection A of this section, the case record of each
resident discharged from a federal program shall contain a copy of the documentation authorizing
the resident’s release.

C. As appropriate and applicable, documentation concerning current medications, need for
continuing therapeutic interventions, educational status, and other items important to the
resident's continuing care shall be provided to the legal guardian or legally authorized
representative.

D. Upon discharge, the (i) date of discharge and (ii) name of the person to whom the resident
was discharged, if applicable, shall be documented in the case record.

Article 4 — Room Confinement and Physical Restraints

6VAC35-200-460. Room confinement.
A. Written procedures governing room confinement shall address the foliowing issues:
1. The actions or behaviors that may result in room confinement;

2. The factors, such as age, developmental fevel, or disability, that should be considered
prior to placing a resident in room confinement;

3. The process for determining whether the resident's behavior threatens the safety and
security of the resident, others, or the facility, the protocol for determining whether the

26

151



Part It —~Federal Programs in JCCs

threat necessitating room confinement has abated; and the necessary steps for releasing
the resident from room confinement after the threat has abated; and

4. The circumstances under which a debriefing with the resident should occur after the
resident is released from confinement; the party who should conduct the debriefing; and
the topics that should be discussed in the debriefing, including the cause and impact of
the room confinement and the appropriate measures post-confinement to support positive
resident outcomes.

B. If a resident is placed in room confinement, regardless of the duration of the confinement
period or the rationale for the confinement, staff shall take measures to ensure the continued
heaith and safety of the confined resident. At a minimum, the following measures shall be taken:

1. Staff shall monitor the resident visually at least every 15 minutes and more frequently if
indicated by the circumstances. If a resident is placed on suicide precautions, staff shall
conduct additional visual checks as determined by the mental heaith clinician.

2. A qualified medical health professional or mental health clinician shall visit with the
resident at least once daily to assess the resident's medical and mental health status.

3. The resident shall have a means of inmediate communication with staff, either verbally
or electronically, throughout the duration of the confinement period.

4. The resident shall be afforded the opportunity for at least one hour of large muscle
activity outside of the locked room every calendar day unless the resident displays
behavior that is threatening, presents an imminent danger to self or others, or other
circumstances prevent the activity. The reasons for the exception shall be approved by
the superintendent or the superintendent's designee and documented.

5. If the resident exhibits self-injurious behavior while in room confinement, staff shall {i)
take appropriate action in response to the behavior to prevent further injury and to notify
supervisory staff; (i) consult with a mental health clinician immediately after the threat has
abated and document the consultation; and (iii) adjust the frequency of face-to-face
checks, as needed, never allowing more than 15 minutes to pass between checks.

C. Room confinement may be imposed only in response to the following situations:

1. If a resident's actions threaten facility security or the safety and security of residents,
staff, or others in the facility;
2. In order to prevent damage to real or personal property when the damage is committed
with the intent of fashioning an object or device that may threaten facility security or the
safety and security of residents, staff, or others in the facility; or
3. If the resident admits in writing to a charge for or is found guilty of one of the following
offenses pursuant to the disciplinary process in 6VAC35-71-1120 and is placed in
disciplinary room confinement as a sanction:

a. Escape, attempted escape, or Absent Without Leave (AWOL),

b. Possession or use of an unauthorized item that has the potential to threaten the

security of the facility,

c. Assault,

d. Fighting,

e. Sexual misconduct, or

f. Sexual abuse.

D. A resident may not receive a sanction for disciplinary room confinement that exceeds five
consecutive days.

E. Except when a resident is placed in disciplinary room confinement in accordance with
subdivision C 3, room confinement may be imposed only after less restrictive measures have
been exhausted or cannot be employed successfully. Once the threat necessitating the

confinement has abated, staff shall initiate the process for releasing the resident from
confinement.

27

152



Part Ili —Federal Programs in JCCs

F. iIf a resident is placed in room confinement, the resident shall be provided medical and
mental health treatment, as applicable, education, daily nutrition in accordance with 6VAC35-71-
630, and daily opportunities for bathing in accordance with 6VAC35-71-550.

G. Within the first three hours of a resident's placement in room confinement, a designated
staff member shall communicate with the resident to explain (i) the reasons for which the resident
has been placed in confinement; (ii) the expectations governing behavior while in room
confinement; and (iii) the steps necessary for the resident to be released from room confinement.

H. A resident confined for six or fewer waking hours shall be afforded the opportunity at least
once during the confinement period to communicate, wholly apart from the communications
required in subsection F of this section, with a staff member regarding the resident’s status or the
impact of the room confinement. A resident confined for a period that exceeds six waking hours
shall be afforded an opportunity twice daily during waking hours for these communications.

|. The superintendent or the superintendent's designee shall make personal contact with every
resident who is placed in room confinement each day of confinement.

J. If a resident is placed in room confinement for 24 hours, the superintendent or the
superintendent's designee shall be notified and shall provide written approval for any continued
room confinement beyond the 24-hour period.

K. The facility superintendent's supervisor shall provide written approval before any room
confinement may be extended beyond 48 hours.

L. The administrator who is two levels above the superintendent in the department’s reporting
chain of command shall provide written approval before any room confinement may be extended
beyond 72 hours. The administrator's approval shall be contingent upon receipt of a written report
outlining the steps being taken or planned to resolve the situation. The facility administration shall
convene a treatment team consisting of stakeholders involved in the resident's treatment to
develop this plan. The department shall establish written procedures governing the development
of this plan.

M. Room confinement periods that exceed five days shall be subject to a case management
review that adheres to the foliowing requirements:

1. A facility-level review committee shall conduct a case management review at the
committee's next scheduled meeting immediately following expiration of the five-day
period.

2. If the facility-level case management review determines a need for the resident's
continued confinement, the case shall be referred for a case management review at the
division-level committee meeting, which shall occur no later than seven business days
following the referral.

3. Upon completion of the initial reviews in subdivisions L 1 and L 2 of this section, any
additional time that the resident remains in room confinement shall be subject to a
recurring review by the facility-level review committee and the division-level review
committee, as applicable, until either committee recommends the resident's release from
room confinement. Upon written request of the division-level review committee, the
administrator who is two levels above the superintendent in the department’s reporting
chain of command shall be authorized to reduce the frequency of or waive the division-

level reviews. The rationale for the waiver shall be documented and placed in the
resident’s record.

6VAC35-200-470. Physical restraints

A. Physical restraint shall be used as a last resort only after less restrictive behavior
intervention techniques have failed or to control residents whose behavior poses a risk to the
safety of the resident, staff, or others.

28

153



Part Il ~Federal Programs in JCCs

1. Staff shall use the least force deemed reasonably necessary to eliminate the risk or to
maintain security and order and shall never use physicat restraint as punishment or with
intent to inflict injury.
2. Physical restraint may be implemented, monitored, and discontinued only by staff
trained in the proper and safe use of restraint in accordance with the requirements in
6VAC35-71-160 and 6VAC35-71-170.

B. The JCC administration shall have written procedures in place governing use of physical

restraint that shall. '

1. Require training in crisis prevention and behavior intervention techniques that staff may
use to control residents whose behaviors pose a risk;
2. ldentify the staff position that will write the report and timeframe for completing the
report;
3. Identify the staff position that will review the report for continued staff development for
performance improvement and the timeframe for this review; and
4. ldentify the methods to be followed should physical restraint, less intrusive behavior
interventions, or measures permitted by other applicable state regulations prove
unsuccessful in calming and moderating the resident’s behavior.

C. Each application of physical restraint shall be fully documented in the resident’s record.
The documentation shall include the:

1. Date and time of the incident;

2. Staff involved in the incident;

3. Justification for the restraint;

4. Less restrictive behavior interventions that were attempted unsuccessfully prior to using
physical restraint;

5. Duration of the restraint;

6. Description of the method of physical restraint techniques used,;

7. Signature of the person completing the report and date; and

8. Reviewer's signature and date.

Article 5 - Mechanical Restraints and Protective Devices

6VAC35-200-480. Mechanical restraints and protective devices.

A. Mechanical restraints and protective devices may be used in federal programs for the
following purposes subject to the restrictions enumerated in this section: (i) to control federal
residents whose behavior poses an imminent risk to the safety of the resident, staff, or others; (ii)
for purposes of controlled movement, either from one area of the facility to another or to a
destination outside the facility, and (iii) to address emergencies.

B. When JCC staff use mechanical restraints or protective devices, they shall observe the
following general requirements:

1. Mechanical restraints and protective devices shall be used only for as long as necessary
to address the purposes established in subsection A. Once the imminent risk to safety has
abated, the federal resident has reached the intended destination within the facility or has
returned to the facility from a destination offsite, or the emergency has been resolved, the
mechanical restraint or protective device shall be removed.

2. The superintendent or the superintendent’s designee shall be notified immediately upon
using mechanical restraints or protective devices in an emergency.

3. The facility administration may not use mechanical restraints or protective devices as a
punishment or a sanction.

4. Federal residents shall not be restrained to a fixed object or restrained in an unnatural
position.

29

154



Part Il —Federal Programs in JCCs

5. A mental health clinician or other qualifying licensed medical professional may order
termination of a mechanical restraint or protective device at any time upon determining
that the item poses a health risk to the resident.

6. Each use of a mechanical restraint or protective device, except when used to transport
a resident or during video court hearing proceedings, shall be documented in the
resident’s case record and in the daily housing unit log;

7. A written system of accountability shall be in place to document routine distribution of
mechanical restraints and protective devices;

8. All staff who are authorized to use mechanical restraints or protective devices shall
receive training in such use in accordance with 6VAC35-71-160 and 6VAC35-71-170, as
applicable; and only trained staff shall use restraints or protective devices.

C. If staff in a JCC use a mechanical restraint to control a federal resident whose behavior
poses a safety risk in accordance with subdivision (A)(i) of this section, they shall notify a qualified
health care professional and a mental health clinician before continuing to use the restraint and,
if applicable, the accompanying protective device if the imminent risk has abated, but staff
determine that continued use of the mechanical restraint is necessary to maintain security due to
the resident’s ongoing credible threat of self-injury or injury to others. This may include instances
in which the resident verbally expresses the intent to continue the actions that required the
restraint.

D. Staff in a juvenile correctional center may not use a protective device on a federal resident
unless the use is in connection with a restraint and shall remove the device when the resident is
released from the restraint.

E. In addition to the requirements in subsections A through D of this section, if staff in a juvenile
correctional center use a spit guard to control a federal resident’s behavior, they shall observe
the following requirements:

1. Staff may not use a spit guard unless it possesses the following characteristics:

a. The spit guard’s design may not inhibit the federal resident’s ability to breathe;

b. The spit guard must be constructed to allow for visibility;

¢. The spit guard must be manufactured and sold specifically for the prevention of biting
or spitting.

2. The spit guard may be used only on a federal resident who: (i) previously has bitten or spit
on a person at the facility, or (ii) in the course of a current restraint, threatens or attempts to spit
on or bite or actually spits on or bites a staff member.

3. The spit guard must be applied in a manner that will not inhibit the federal resident’s ability
to breathe.

4. While the spit guard remains in place, staff shall provide for the federal resident's
reasonable comfort and ensure the resident’s access to water and meals, as applicable,;

5. Staff must employ constant supervision of the federal resident while the spit guard remains
in place to observe whether the resident exhibits signs of respiratory distress. If any sign of
respiratory distress is observed, staff shall take immediate action to prevent injury and to notify
supervisory staff.

6. Staff may not use a spit guard on a federal resident who is unconscious, vomiting, or in
obvious need of medical attention.

6VAC35-200-490. Monitoring residents placed in mechanical restraints.

A. Written procedures shall provide that if a federal resident is placed in mechanical restraints,
except when being transported offsite, staff shall:

1. Provide for the resident's reasonable comfort and ensure the resident's access to walter,
meals, and toilet; and

30

155



Part 1l —=Federal Programs in JCCs

2. Conduct a face-to-face check on the resident at least every 15 minutes, and more often
if the resident's behavior warrants. During each check, a staff member trained in the use
of mechanical restraints shall monitor the resident for signs of circutation and for injuries.
3. Attempt to engage verbally with the resident during each periodic check. These efforts
may include explaining the reasons for which the resident is being restrained or the steps
necessary to be released from the restraint or otherwise attempting to deescalate the
resident.

B. If a federal resident remains in 2 mechanical restraint for a period of two hours or more,
except during transportation of residents offsite:

1. The resident shall be permitted to exercise the resident’s limbs for a minimum of 10
minutes every two hours in order to prevent blood clots; and

2. A medical staff member shall canduct a check on the resident at least once every two
hours.

C. When a federal resident is placed in mechanical restraints for more than one continuous
hour in a 24-hour period, with the exception of use in routine off-campus transportation of
residents, staff shall consult with a mental health clinician. This consultation shall be documented.

D. If the federal resident exhibits self-injurious behavior after being placed in mechanical
restraints, staff shall (i) take appropriate action in response to the behavior to prevent further injury
and to notify supervisory staff; (ii) consult with a mental health clinician and medical staff

immediately thereafter and document the consultation; and (iii) adjust the frequency of face-to-
face checks as needed.

6VAC35-200-500. Written procedures regarding mechanical restraints and protective
devices.

The department shall develop written procedures approved by the director that reflect the
requirements established in this article.

Article 6 — Mechanical Restraint Chair
6VAC35-200-510. Mechanical restraint chair; general provisions.

If staff in a JCC utilize a mechanical restraint chair in a federal program, they shall observe
the following requirements, regardless of whether the chair is used for purposes of controlled
movement in accordance with 6VAC35-200-520 or for other purposes in accordance with
6VAC35-200-530:

1. The restraint chair shall never be applied as punishment or as a sanction.

2. Al staff authorized to use the restraint chair shall receive training in such use in
accordance with 6VAC35-71-160 and 6VAC35-71-170.

3. Before placement in the chair, the health authority or the health authority's designee
shall ensure that the resident's medical and mental health condition are assessed to
determine whether the restraint is contraindicated based on the resident's physical
condition or behavior and whether other accommodations are necessary.

4. The superintendent or the superintendent’s designee shall provide approval before a
resident may be placed in the restraint chair.

5. Staff shall notify the health authority or designee immediately upon placing the resident
in the restraint chair. The health authority or designee also shall ensure that a mental
health clinician conducts an assessment to determine whether, on the basis of serious
danger to self or others, the resident should be in a medical or mental health unit for
emergency involuntary treatment. The requirements of this subdivision shall not apply
when the restraint chair is requested by a resident for whom such voluntary use is part of

an approved plan of care by a mental health clinician in accordance with subsection C of
6VAC35-200-530.

3

156



Part Il —Federal Programs in JCCs

5. If the resident exhibits self-injurious behavior after being placed in the mechanical
restraint chair, staff shall: (i) take appropriate action in response to the behavior to prevent
further injury and to notify supervisory staff and (ii) consult a mental health clinician
immediately thereafter and obtain approval for continued use of the restraint chair;
6. The health authority or his designee, a mental health clinician, or other qualifying
licensed medical professional may order termination of restraint chair use at any time upon
determining that use of the chair poses a health risk;
7. Each use of the restraint chair shall constitute a serious incident, to which the provisions
of 6VAC35-200-80 shall apply;
8. Each use of the restraint chair shall be documented in the resident’s case record and
in the daily housing unit log. The documentation shall include the:

a. Date and time of the incident;

b. Staff involved in the incident;

c. Justification for the restraint;

d. Less restrictive interventions that were attempted or an explanation of why the

restraint chair is the least restrictive intervention available to ensure the resident’s safe
movement;

e. Duration of the restraint;
f. Signature of the person documenting the incident and date;

g. Indication that all applicable approvals required in this article have been obtained;
and

h. Reviewer’s signature and date.

9. Staff involved in the use of the chair, together with supervisory staff, shall conduct a
debriefing after each use of the restraint chair.

6VAC35-200-520. Mechanical restraint chair use for controlled movement; conditions.

A. JCC staff shall be authorized to use a mechanical restraint chair in federal programs for
purposes of controlled movement of a resident from one area of the facility to another, provided
the following conditions are satisfied:

1. The resident’s refusal to move from one area of the facility to another poses a direct
and immediate threat to the resident or others or interferes with required facility operations;
and

2. Use of the restraint chair is the least restrictive intervention available to ensure the
resident’s safe movement.

B. When facility staff utilize the restraint chair in accordance with this section, staff shall
remove the resident from the chair immediately upon reaching the intended destination. If staff
determine upon reaching the intended destination that continued restraint is necessary, staff shall
consult with a mental health clinician for approval of the continued restraint.

6VAC35-200-530. Mechanical restraint chair use for purposes other than controlled
movement; conditions for use.

A. JCC staff shall be authorized to use a mechanical restraint chair in federal programs for
purposes other than controlled movement provided the following conditions are satisfied:

1. The resident’s behavior or actions present a direct and immediate threat to the resident
or others;

2. Less restrictive alternatives were attempted but were unsuccessful in bringing the
resident under control or abating the threat;

3. The resident remains in the restraint chair only for as long as necessary to abate the
threat or help the resident gain self-control.

B. Once the direct threat is abated, if staff determine that continued restraint is necessary to
maintain security due to the resident’s ongoing credible threat of self-injury or injury of others,

32

157



Part il —Federal Programs in JCCs

staff shall consult a mental health clinician for approval of the continued restraint. The ongoing
threat may include instances in which the resident verbally expresses the intent to continue the
actions that required the restraint.

C. JCC staff shall be excused from the requirements in subsections A and B of this section
when the restraint chair is requested by a resident for whom such voluntary use is part of an
approved plan of care by a mental health clinician.

D. Whenever a resident is placed in a restraint chair for purposes other than controlled
movement, staff shall observe the following monitoring requirements:

1. Employ constant, one-on-one supervision until the resident is released from the chair;
2. Attempt to engage verbally with the resident during the one-on-one supervision. These
efforts may include explaining the reasons for which the resident is being restrained or the
steps necessary to be released from the restraint or otherwise attempting to deescalate
the resident;

3. Ensure that a licensed medical provider monitors the resident for signs of circulation
and for injuries at least once every 15 minutes; and

4. Ensure that the resident is reasonably comfortable and has access to water, meals, and
toilet.

6VAC35-200-540. Monitoring residents placed in a mechanical restraint chair.

A. If a resident remains in the restraint chair for a period of two hours or more, the resident
shall be permitted to exercise the resident's limbs for a minimum of 10 minutes every two hours
to prevent blood clots.

B. The JCC administration shall ensure that a video record of the following is captured and
retained for a minimum of three years in accordance with 6VAC35-71-30:

1. The placement of a resident in a restraint chair when a resident is restrained for
purposes of controlled movement;

2. The entire restraint from the time the resident is placed in the restraint chair until the
resident’s release when restrained in the chair for purposes other than controlled
movement. The JCC staff may satisfy this requirement by positioning the restraint chair
within direct view of an existing security camera.

6VAC35-200-550. Department monitoring visits; annual reporting; board review

A. If staff in a JCC federal program use a mechanical restraint chair to restrain a resident,
regardless of the purpose or duration of the use, the JCC shall be subject to a monitoring visit
conducted by the department pursuant to the authority provided in 6VAC35-20-60. The purpose
of the monitoring visit shall be to assess staff compliance with the provisions of this article.

B. Upon completion of the monitoring visit, the department shall provide the JCC
administration with a written report of its findings in accordance with 6VAC35-20-90.

C. The department shall document each monitoring visit conducted pursuant to subsection A
of this section and provide a written report to the board annually that details at a minimum the
following information regarding each separate incident in which the restraint chair is used:

1. The facility in which the chair is used with specific reference to the federal program;

2. The date and time of the use;

3. A brief description of the restraint, including the purpose for which the restraint was
applied, the duration of the restraint, and the circumstances surrounding the resident's
release from the restraint;

4. The extent to which the JCC complied with the regulatory requirements related to
mechanical restraint chair use as set forth in Sections 510 through 560 of this chapter;
and

5. The plans identified to address findings of noncompliance, if applicable.

33

158



Part i —Federal Programs in JCCs

D. The annual report shall be placed on the agenda for the next regularly scheduled board
meeting for the board’s consideration and review.

6VAC35-200-560. Written procedures regarding mechanical restraint chairs.

Department staff shall develop written procedures approved by the director that reflect the
requirements established in this article. The procedures shall provide that if staff in a juvenile
correctional center are prohibited from placing residents in restraint chairs in other programs in
the facility, such use also shall be prohibited in the federal program.

34

159



. P.0. Bo
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA. i i

Director
. . 804) 371.0700
Department of Juvenile Justice Fax: §304§ 371.6497

www.djj.virginia.gov

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Juvenile Justice

FROM: Virginia Department of Juvenile Justice

DATE: September 21, 2022

SUBJECT: Merrimac Juvenile Detention Center Variance Request Regarding Behavior Management

Program and Disciplinary Protocol

I.  Summary of Action Requested

The Department of Juvenile Justice (the department) respectfully requests that the Board of Juvenile Justice
(the board) consider granting a variance to the Merrimac Juvenile Detention Center (Merrimac) in accordance
with 6VAC35-20-92. Merrimac is requesting variances to the regulatory requirements set out in 6VAC35-
101-1070(B)(3) and 6VAC35-101-1080(B), (C), and (D) regarding behavior management programs and the
required disciplinary process applicable to rule infractions for which room confinement may be imposed as
a sanction. Merrimac has submitted this request in order to continue the successful and effective operation of
the Cognitive Behavioral Training Program (CBT Program) that has been in place at the facility for 15 years
and for which prior variances have been issued. The CBT Program seeks to reduce criminogenic behaviors
by modifying the individual thought patterns that drive such behaviors. The CBT Program’s protocols for
addressing these behaviors conflict with the aforementioned regulatory provisions.

The department requests that the board consider whether to issue a variance similar to those previously issued
to Merrimac in 2008, 2014, and 2017 and, if issued, whether the variance should remain in effect permanently
or should be limited to a period of five years or some other specified period.

II. Background

The board’s Regulation Goveming Juvenile Secure Detention Centers requires regulated facilities to
implement a behavior management program to help residents achieve positive behaviors and to address and
correct inappropriate behaviors constructively and safely. The regulation requires that all secure juvenile
detention centers adopt written procedures governing these programs. These procedures must identify
available sanctions, which may include a cooling off period, limited to 60 minutes, as set forth below:

160



Mervimac Variance Request Memorandum 2

6VAC35-101-1070. Behavior Management.

..(B) Written procedures governing this program shall provide the following:...3) The definition and
listing of a svstem of privileges and sanctions that is used and available for use. Sanctions (i} shall be
fisted in the order of their relative degree of restrictiveness; (i) may include a “cooling off”" period
where a resident is placed in a room for no more than 60 minutes; and (iii} shall contain alternatives to
room confinement,

The regulation also addresses the disciplinary process detention centers must implement and follow to
ensure that due process protections are in place for residents who fail to adhere to the rules of the facility
and are subject to room confinement as a sanction. Among the components of the disciplinary process,
detention centers must: i) complete a disciplinary report on residents alleged to have violated any rule for
which room confinement may be imposed; ii) ensure that an impartial party conducts a review of the report;
iii) allow for an appeal from the impartial party’s decision; and iv) ensure that the report for a resident

deemed guilty of the offense is retained in the resident’s case record. The relevant portions of the regulation
are set forth below:

(A). Procedures. Written procedures shall govern the disciplinary process that shall contain the
following:

1. Graduated sanctions and progressive discipline;

2. Training on the disciplinary process and rules of conduct; and

3. Documentation on the administration of privileges and sanctions as provided in the behavior
management program.

(B). Disciplinary report. A disciplinary report shall be completed when it is alleged that a resident has
violated a rule of conduct for which room confinement, including a bedtime earlier than that provided
on the daily schedule, may be imposed as a sanction.

1. All disciplinary reports shall contain the following:
a. A description of the alleged rule violation, including the date, time, and location;
b. A listing of any staff present at the time of the alleged rule violation;
c. The signature of the resident and the staff who completed the report; and
d. The sanctions, if any, imposed.
2. A disciplinary report shall not be required when a resident is placed in his room for a "cooling off"
period, in accordance with written procedures, that does not exceed 60 minutes.

(C). Review of rule violation. A review of the disciplinary report shall be conducted by an impartial
person. Afier the resident receives notification of the alleged rule violation, the resident shall be provided
with the opportunity to admit or deny the charge.
1. The resident may admit the charge, in writing, and accept the sanction (i) prescribed for the offense
or (ii} as amended by the impartial person.
2. The resident may deny the charge and the impartial person shall:
a. Meet in person with the resident,
b. Review the allegation with the resident;
¢. Provide the resident with the opportunity to present evidence, including witnesses;

d. Provide, upon the request of the resident, for an impartial staff member to assist the resident in
the conduct of the review,;

161



Merrimac Variance Request Memorandum 3

e. Render a decision and inform the restdent of the decision and rationale supporting this decision;

. Complete the review within 12 hours of the time of the alleged rule violation, including weekends
and holidays, unless the time frame ends during the resident’s scheduled sleeping hours. In such
circumstances, the delay shall be documented and the review shall be conducted within the
same time frame thereafter,

g. Document the review, including any statement of the resident, evidence, witness testimony, the
decision, and the rationale for the decision; and

h. Advise the resident of the right to appeal the decision.

(D). Appeal. The resident shall have the right to appeal the decision of the impartial person.

1. The resident’s claim shall be reviewed by the facility administrator or designee and shall be decided
within 24 hours of the alleged rule violation, including weekends and holidays, unless the time frame
ends during the resident's scheduled sleeping hours. In such circumstances, the delay shall be
documented and the review shall be conducted within the same time frame thereafier. The review
by the facility administrator may be conducted via electronic means.

2. The resident shall be notified in writing of the results immediately thereafier.

(E). Report retention. If the resident is found guilty of the rule violation, a copy of the disciplinary report
shall be placed in the case record. If a resident is found not guilty of the alleged rule violation, the

disciplinary report shall be removed from the resident's case record and shall be maintained as
required by 6VAC35-101-330.

The board granted Merrimac a variance on January 9, 2008, to the now repealed 6VAC35-140-550, which
preceded the current regulation and contained substantially similar requirements. The current requirements
took effect on January 1, 2014, as a result of a comprehensive overhaul of the residential regulations. The
board approved Merrimac’s request for a variance to the above requirements on April 9, 2014, for a period
of three years, and again on November 8, 2017, for a period of five years or until the applicable regulatory
provisions might be changed. The current variance expires on November 8, 2022.

Updates to 6VAC35-101 currently are undergoing Executive Branch review for the final stage of the standard
regulatory process and are anticipated to become effective in the near future. The pertinent regulatory

provisions are substantially the same in this update and will not impact Merrimac’s need to obtain a variance
for these provisions.

I11. Rationale

Under Merrimac’s CBT Program, residents who fail to adhere to behavioral expectations are subject to a
disciplinary response rather than a punishment. The response involves removing the resident from any

reinforcing stimuli and having the resident serve a temporary time-out or cooling-off period. Residents may
be required to serve one of the following:

A five-minute time-out in the program area for inappropriate behavior;

e A “30-5, consisting of 30 minutes of room confinement followed by a five-minute time-out period
served outside of the room; or

e A “30-30-5," consisting of 60 minutes of room confinement followed by a five-minute time-out
period served outside the room. The “30-30-5" is imposed in response to actual, attempted, or verbal

162



Merrimac Variance Request Memorandum 4

V.

threats to the physical safety and security of staff, other youth, or the facility. The resident is required
to spend the last 30 minutes of the 60-minute confinement period completing a written self-analysis
in which the resident considers the impact of their behavior, accepts responsibility for failing to meet
facility expectations, and explores alternatives for addressing the trigger situation.

While serving any time-out period, if the resident fails to meet the applicable behavioral expectations, such

as sitting quietly, remaining awake, or completing the report when applicable, the time-out period may be
extended, in some cases beyond 60 minutes.

Sections 1070 and 1080 of 6VAC35-101 himit cooling-off periods to no more than 60 minutes, require
alternatives to room confinement, and require detention centers to provide due process protections to
residents who may be subjected to room confinement. This includes completing a disciplinary report, having
the report reviewed by an impartial person, affording the resident an opportunity to admit or deny the charge,
and providing the resident with an opportunity to appeal the final decision.

Merrimac’s administration asserts that these regulatory requirements conflict directly with the provisions and
goals of the CBT Program. The facility administration does not view Merrimac’s responses to disciplinary
issues as sanctions, and residents are not charged with offenses. Protections are in place to ensure that
decisions to impose room confinement are reviewed and the resident is provided an opportunity to object to
the confinement. All room confinements of whatever duration require the supervisor on duty to be notified
immediately. A room confinement of 60 minutes or more requires immediate review by an impartial shift

supervisor and review by a director within 24 hours or the next business day. Residents may file a grievance
if they deem the confinement unfair.

Proposed Variance

The proposed variance would apply only to Merrimac and would enable the facility to continue operating the

CBT Program. The department recommends the following revisions, applicable only to Merrimac, to
6VAC35-101-1070(B):

6VAC35-101-1070. Behavior Management.

..(B) Written procedures goveming this program shall provide the following:...3) The definition and
llstmg of a system of privileges and sanetions consequences that is used and available for use. Sanctions
Conseguence s shatbbetisted-in-the orderof-their-relative degree-of restrictiveness-it) may include a

“cooling off period” where a resident is placed in a room for the time perioed necessary to address the

failure to adhere to behavioral expectations re-mere-than-60-minutes—and-Hii)-shall-contatnalternatives
to-room-confinement,

Further, the department recommends substituting 6VAC35-101-1080 in its entirety with the following
language, applicable only to Merrimac:

6VAC35-101-1080. Disciplinary Process.

A. Written procedures shall govern the disciplinary process and shall contain the following:
1. Training on the disciplinary process and rules of conduct; and

163



Merrimac Variance Request Memorandum 2]

2. Information on the administration of privileges and consequences as provided in the behavior
management program.

B. If aresident is required to serve a cooling off period, the resident shall be authorized to file a grievance
addressing any confinement the resident feels is unfair or is in violation of program policy. The grievance
shall be reviewed by the shift supervisor immediately and by a director within 24 hours or the next
business day. The review shall include an examination of any recordings and interviews with any staff
or residents with direct knowledge of the incident. The supervisor shall document the findings, and the
report shall be forwarded to the Deputy Director of Programs.

C. The Assistant Director or designee shall review the results of the Supervisor’s report and approve or
reject the findings or request additional information.

D. Documentation of confinements that are deemed to violate the programn guidelines shall be removed
from the resident’s record.

V. Request

The department respectfully requests that the board consider whether to issue to Merrimac a variance,
pursuant to 6VAC35-20-92, to allow Merrimac to continue its CBT Program.

VI. Requested Duration of Variance

Since this variance has been in place since 2008 in one form or another, and since it has not resulted in life,
health, or safety issues, the department requests that, if approved again by the Board, it remain in effect
permanently or until such time as (i) Merrimac discontinues its CBT Program or alters the program’s cooling
off parameters or (ii) any or all of the regulatory provisions set forth in 6VAC35-101-1070(B)(3) and
6VAC35-101-1080(B), (C), and {D) are amended in such a way as the make the variance unnecessary.

164



Middle Peninsula Juvenile Detention Commission

Merrimac Center
9300 Merrimac Trail
Williamsburg, VA 23185
757-887-0225

MEMORANDUM
TO: Virginia Board of Juvenile Justice
FROM: Gina Mingee, Executive Director, Merrimac Center

SUBJECT: Request for Amendment to 6VAC35-101-1070 (B) (3) and
Variance from 6VAC35-101-1080 (B), (C), and (D)

DATE: September 1, 2022

. Action Requested

Merrimac Center is requesting the State Board of Juvenile Justice approve an amendment to
BVAC35-101-1070 (B) (3) and a variance from 6VAC35-101-1080 (B), (C), and (D). Some of the
tenets of the evidenced-based Cognitive Behavioral Training Program {CBT), currently the
behavior management program at Merrimac Center, are inconsistent with these regulatory
requirements as written. The Center cannot foresee a way to comply with these requirements
and continue to operate this evidenced-based program. The time period for the requested
variance is permanently or a minimum of five years. The Center's CBT program has been in
effect for 15 years with no plans for modification.

Il. Background

Merrimac Center implemented the CBT program in March 2007. A variance from the previous
Department of Juvenile Justice (DJJ)} Standard 6VAC35-140-550 was granted by the Board of
Juvenile Justice (BJJ) on January 9, 2008 and again in 2014 when the new regulatory

standards were implemented by DJJ [6VAC35-101-1080 (B), (C), and (D}]. An amendment to

B6VAC35-101-1070 (B) (3) was also granted in 2014. The variances were again granted in 2017
for a period of five years.

165



Ill. Rationale

The Merrimac Center implemented a behavior management program predicated upon cognitive
behavioral and behavior modification interventions in March of 2007. The impetus for the
implementation of this program was a response to experiential knowledge and the research that
long periods of room confinement do not result in improved behavior or learning important life
skills to manage one’s own behavior. Trauma research tells us room confinement and restraint
will exacerbate a person’s trauma. Data from the Massachusetts Youth Screening Instrument -

2™ Version (MAYSI-2) tells us that 75% of our detention population have experienced or
witnessed traumatic events.

Given this knowledge, Merrimac Center searched for ways to reduce room time and teach pro-
social skills. Several detention facilities across the country have been using the program modet
based on the Cognitive Learning Theory. This model has been found to reduce room
confinement, conflict and stress in the facility, and recidivism. The Cognitive Behavioral Training
(CBT) program is based on "what works research,” summarized by David W. Roush, Ph.D. and
Edward Latessa, Ph.D. that provides empirical evidence that CBT interventions are the most
promising to have a significant impact on delinquent and criminal behavior.

David Roush's most recent book, Recalibrating Juvenile Detention: Lessons Learned from the
Court-Ordered Reform of the Cook County Juvenile Temporary Detention Center, accounts what
was learned from the US District Court-ordered reform of the Cook County Juvenile Temporary
Detention Center in lllinois, serving Chicago’s highest risk and most disadvantaged youth. The
reform occurred after years of litigation surrounding the egregious and unconstitutional conditions
of juvenile detention. The book includes an analysis of a major evaluation research report done
by the University of Chicago Crime Lab and explains how and why this reform of conditions
achieved successful outcomes unlike others that have failed.

The Chicago Crime Lab findings are considered the "gold standard" evidence-based research of
detention and validate that detention reform based on CBT programming produces statistically
significant reductions in detention vicience and recidivism, as well as positively influences certain
life outcomes for juvenile detainees. The approach that was evaluated was the CBT program,
including all the interventions, that Merrimac follows with fidelity to the model.

The cognitive model states that prior to all human behaviors, a person is presented with an
antecedent situation. Based on that situation, a person has certain self-talk (thoughts) that give
rise to feelings and then to behavior. This behavior then resuits in consequences which
introduces a new antecedent situation, and the cycle repeats itself ad infinitum. For the
purposes of behavior modification, we seek to change individual thinking patterns and,
therefore, the behaviors and consequences that result.

Research indicates that criminogenic thinking and attitudes are risk factors for re-offending.
Therefore, we use the cognitive model because its goal is to change such thinking. It uses
techniques to monitor thought patterns, recognize the connections between thinking and
behavior, and replace distorted thinking with rational thinking in order to foster more appropriate
behavior. We challenge our residents to pay attention to the thought patterns they have and

166



the behaviors and consequences that result. This further challenges residents to reduce

“automatic” thinking and recognize the thoughts that put them at risk of doing something hurtful
or irresponsible.

We also use the principles of behavior modification to create an environment that manages
consequences to key behaviors. Using these principles, the probability of more appropriate and
pro-social behaviors can be increased, while the probability of inappropriate and anti-social
behaviors can be decreased.

The behavior modification portion of our program uses POSITIVE REINFORCEMENT (the
presentation of a reward or desirable event after the target behavior) and EXTINCTION (a non-
response to a given behavior). The use of positive reinforcement and extinction leads to a
behavior management system that is focused on discipfine rather than on punishment.

A punishment {or “sanction”) is an undesirable event that is delivered upon the completion of an
undesirable or inappropriate behavior. The problem with "punishers” is that the entire
punishment situation, including persons and places, often leads to strong feelings (fearfanger)
being generated by the individual who is being punished. Thus, the punishment creates an
emotional response that complicates the behavior change process. Further, while punishment
may reduce the probability of a given undesirable behavior, it does nothing to replace it with a
more desirable behavior. Very likely, another undesirable behavior rises to take its place.

In contrast, discipline refers to using extinction to extinguish a negative behavior by
circumventing positive reinforcement of the behavior. Discipline is also a system that teaches
new behaviors through self-control and self-management of one's own behavior. Using CBT
and behavior modification interventions, we focus on:

Generating and strengthening appropriate behaviors

Weakening or eliminating inappropriate behaviors

Generating self-control

Safeguarding human rights within the institutional setting

Developing pro-social attitudes and values

Providing juveniles with the tools that will enable success within society

omsEwN =

The CBT program at Merrimac Center is focused on positive rather than negative responses to
behavior. Therefore, there are no rules stating what a resident can't do, but rather there are
expectations of behavior. The basic behavior expectations are divided into five areas. The
program uses a point system that grades behaviors in each area during short periods of time.
These include “talk”, “ignore”, “cooperate/participate”, "area”, and “gestures”.

When residents do not meet these expectations, they can earn a disciplinary response based
on extinction rather than punishment. |f expectations are not followed, the resident is
immediately removed from any reinforcing stimuli, such as laughing from peers, arguing from

staff, etc. to serve a time-out / “cooling off period”. The behavior management plan uses four
forms of discipline.

167



1. 5-Minute Timeout

The five-minute timeout is the most minimal and common type of consequence we have. This
timeout occurs in the program area, not in a room. A five-minute timeout is earned for any type
of minor inappropriate behavior rather than a “rule violation”. These behaviors include arguing,
talking on quiet time, interrupting others, failing to follow directions on the first prompt, etc.

2. Thirty and Five (30-5)
The 30-5 is thirty minutes of room confinement and a five-minute time out served outside the
room and is a mid-level consequence. A 30-5 can be earned for refusing a five-minute time-

out, refusing to take responsibility for the inappropriate behavior, horseplay with other residents,
stealing, and name-calling.

3. Thirty, Thirty and Five (30-30-5)

The 30-30-5 is thirty minutes in room confinement and thirty minutes to complete a written
report of the situation (completed in room confinement). This is the highest-level consequence,
The report is processed with a staff member and the resident then completes the five-minute
time-out outside of the room. A 30-30-5 can be earned for threats of or actual assault, behavior

that causes a physical restraint, serious property damage, gang-related behavior, or possession
of dangerous contraband.

The report completed in the 30-30-5 is the Rational Self-Analysis (RSA) (see attached). This is
a report detailing their thinking, rational and irrational thoughts, how the behavior impacted
others, and a more appropriate way of responding to the trigger situation. The expectation is
that the resident must write their report appropriately and demonstrate that they are accepting
responsibility for their inappropriate behavior, or their 30-30-5 will start over from the beginning.
Residents who do not have the reading and writing skills to complete the form will be assisted
by staff. Processing the form and verbalizing its various components is a critical part of the 30-
30-5, as it is where most of the learning can take place.

The expectations for the 30-5 and the 30-30-5 are that the resident will sit quietly while
remaining awake and will not engage in talking, banging, yelling, or walking around.

Any room confinement beyond sixty minutes is the choice made by the resident who is
oriented and aware of the time-out guidelines upon admission and repeatedly thereafter.
Reasons typically associated with the time-out going beyond 60 minutes include:

a. Refusal of the residents to take responsibility for their own behavior on the Rational
Self-Analysis (RSA) form or process the RSA with a staff, which starts the time-out
over again.

b. Non-compliance with time-out expectations including extended sleeping while in
time-out.

c. Yelling or banging on the door before beginning the time-out which extends the time-

out.

Pacing before beginning the time-out.

e. Getting up from the bunk in the middle of the time-out to talk to a staff or peer
passing the room causing the time-out to start over.

Q

168



4. Strategic Program Modification {SPM)

Occasionally, a juvenile may not experience success within the context of the regular

behavioral management program:

a. the resident’s behavior in a single incident has had significant impact on the juvenile's
relationships with others or has affected the operations of the facility.

b. the resident demonstrates a consistent and worsening pattern of observed behavior that is
harmful to the resident, his relationships, or facility operations.

The SPM is not a permanent status but a time-limited intervention where the goal is to increase
the skill level of the resident for maintaining appropriate behavioral control and thus enable
him/her to work within the standard program. The resident must agree with the SPM plan, as
indicated by his/her signature on the SPM Form (see attached). The residents are also allowed
to request placement on SPM to self-improve their behavior. A SPM must be approved by the
Deputy Director or Director as requested by a supervisor and/or mental health counselor.
Thought is given to the particular behaviors and thinking that has proved problematic for the
juvenile. Mental health staff develop the individualized SPM based on the problematic behavior,
the resident is moved to a camera room, removed from program, and level status changed to
SPM. The particular type of SPM determines the appropriate course of action. The goal is to
get the resident to full program participation as quickly as possible. During the course of the
SPM the resident completes and processes various CBT forms to resolve their irrational
thinking patterns.

The discipline strategies, behavioral expectations, cognitive behavioral concepts, reinforcement
structure, and time-out guidelines are not only reviewed with the residents at orientation, but
also throughout each day and during 21 groups per week that help them focus on various CBT-
related topics. These include addictions, anger management, girls’ growth, goal setting,
health/self-care, life skills, moral decision making, rational behavior training, relationships,
restorative justice, risk management, social skills training, Aggression Replacement Training
(ART), and Girls’ Circle groups. The residents also receive praise at a 5:1 ratio (five praises to
one correction) and positive reinforcement on a continuous basis in various forms for
appropriate behavior.

Data on the number and type of mid- and high-level consequences as well as the lengths of
room time has been collected since the inception of the behavior management program. As
referenced in the table below, barring the month of April 2020, the amount of room time per
consequence, the overall number of consequences over a three-month period, particularly high-
level consequences, and the amount of room time exceeding 60 minutes has continued to
decrease. In April 2020, on one day there were ten 30-5s and during one consequence the
resident chose to sleep for close to 5 hours rather than completing the 30-30-5. These two
dates in April 2020 skewed the overall results of “maximum time in room” and amount of 30-6s
in April. The number of restraints has remained fairly constant since 2012.

Also, to note Merrimac served 189 CAP, Re-Entry, and Community Placement Program youth
committed to The Department of Juvenile Justice from April of 2012 to June of 2016. While
these youth typically have more serious charges, are repeat offenders and can stay for years at

169



a time, our April 2020 data indicates that there was no adverse effect on our goal of reducing
room-time, high-level consequences, and average room time per consequence. In addition,
although the population has steadily decreased, the average room time per consequence,
continues to decrease.

April | Aprit | April | April | April Apr- Abt Sl QBT
2006 | 2008 | 2012 | 2016 | 2020 | Jun <l S gan
2008 2012 2016 2020
Average
room time
per 48 51 40 45 36 47 41 40 36
consequence | hours | minutes | minutes | minutes | minutes | minutes | minutes | minutes | minutes
30-5s served 97 30 29 56 347 172 171 117
30-30-5s 48 18 19 13 117 67 58 27
233 227 165 349 325 227 165 349
minutes | minutes | minutes | minutes | minutes | minutes | minutes | minutes
Maximum =388 | =378 | =275 | =582 | =542 | =378 | =275 | =5.82
time in room hours hours hours hours hours hours hours hours
Physical
restraints 3 9 5 6 7 18 10 14 13
Number of
room times
over 60
minutes 13 4 2 2 48 18 7 2

Since 2007, all staff have become proficient with the continuation of the CBT program and
receive refresher training annually. Anecdotally, the staff and residents report satisfaction with
the program and increased staff morale. Staff are also invested in the CBT program because of
the changes they see in the residents on an ongoing basis. Via our Parent Survey, parents
report overall satisfaction with the Center, the staff interactions, and the program.

Standard 6VAC35-101-1080, as written, is in direct contradiction to the objectives we are trying
to accomplish: to reduce room confinement and to teach pro-social skills. Room confinement/
“cooling off periods” as well as the five-minute time outs are never punishments or sanctions
but rather are opportunities to identify, take responsibility, and process one’'s own behavior. The
juvenile is not being “charged” with an offense. In summary, the Merrimac Center cannot see a
way to comply with the following requirements and continue to operate our behavior

management program which is evidenced-based and a model program for the state of Virginia.
Therefore, we are requesting the folliowing:

1. An amendment of requirement 6VAC35-101-1070 (B) (3):

¢ 6VAC35-101-1070 (B). Behavior management.

170



B. Written procedures governing this program shall provide the following:

1. A listing of the rules of conduct and behavioral expectations for the resident;

2. Orientation of residents as required by 6VAC35-101-800 (admission and orientation);
3. The definition and listing of a system of privileges and sanctions that is used and
available for use. Sanctions (i} shall be listed in the order of their relative degree of
restrictiveness; {ii) may include a "cooling off" period where a resident is placed in a
room for no more than 60 minutes; and (iii) shall contain alternatives to room
confinement;

4. The specification of the staff members who may authorize the use of each privilege
and sanction;

5. Documentation requirements when privileges are applied and sanctions are imposed,
6. The specification of the processes for implementing such procedures; and

7. Means of documenting and monitoring of the program's implementation including, but
not limited to, an on-going administrative review of the implementation to ensure
conformity with the procedures.

Justification for amendment: As stated above, The Merrimac Center does not impose
“sanctions” with a degree of restrictiveness as a part of the behavior management program. it

only imposes disciplinary responses of no more than 60 minutes as a time-out/ “cooling off”
period.

2. A variance from requirement 6VAC35-101-1080 (B) (C) (D):

e BVAC35-101-1080 (B). Disciplinary process.

B. Disciplinary report. A disciplinary report shall be completed when it is alleged that a resident
has violated a rule of conduct for which room confinement, including a bedtime earlier than

that provided on the daily schedule, may be imposed as a sanction.

1. All disciplinary reports shall contain the following:
a. A description of the alleged rule violation, including the date, time, and location;
b. A listing of any staff present at the time of the alleged rule violation;
c. The signature of the resident and the staff who completed the report; and
d. The sanctions, if any, imposed.

2. A disciplinary report shall not be required when a resident is placed in his room for a
"cooling off" period, in accordance with written procedures, that does not exceed 60

minutes.

Justification for variance: Behaviors earning a sixty-minute time-out of room confinement, or
“cooling off period’ are the result of actual, attempted, or verbal threats to the physical safety
and security of the staff, other youth, or the facility as verified on video/ audio surveillance
rather than a “rule violation". Residents are never imposed with a sanction of room
confinement to exceed 60 minuies or early bedtime.

To teach pro-social skills, the resident who is confined for sixty minutes must complete a self-
analysis form that identifies the inappropriate behavior, the thinking and feelings that caused
the resident to act, consequences to the “community”, and alternative ways to get their needs

171



met. This form describes in detail the reason for the confinement. A 5-minute time-out is tHen
campleted outside of the room.

6VAC35-101-1080 (C). Disciplinary process.

C. Review of rule violation. A review of the disciplinary report shall be conducted by an
impartial person. After the resident receives notification of the alleged rule violation, the
resident shall be provided with the opportunity to admit or deny the charge.

1. The resident may admit the charge, in writing, and accept the sanction (i) prescribed
for the offense or (ii) as amended by the impartial person.
2. The resident may deny the charge and the impartial person shall:
a. Meet in person with the resident;
b. Review the allegation with the resident;
c. Provide the resident with the opportunity to present evidence, including witnesses;
d. Provide, upon the request of the resident, for an impartial staff member to assist
the resident in the conduct of the review;
e. Render a decision and inform the resident of the decision and rationale supporting
this decision;
f. Complete the review within 12 hours of the time of the alleged rule violation,
including weekends and holidays, unless the time frame ends during the resident's
scheduled sleeping hours. In such circumstances, the delay shall be documented and
the review shall be conducted within the same time frame thereafter;
g. Document the review, including any statement of the resident, evidence, witness
testimony, the decision, and the rationale for the decision; and
h. Advise the resident of the right to appeal the decision.

Justification: All confinements or the placement of a resident in a locked room require the
Supervisor on Duty be notified immediately. Confinements of sixty minutes or more are
reviewed immediately by the shift supervisor (an impartial person) and reviewed by a director
within 24 hours or the next business day. The review includes review of video and audio
recordings as well as interviews with staff and residents. Residents may file a grievance if they
feel they have been treated unfairly by being placed in room confinement. All reviews are

documented on the internal incident report, as well as the grievance status. Residents are
never “charged” with an offense.

IV. Proposed Effect of the Variance

Merrimac Center will be allowed to continue to function within the parameters of the CBT
behavior management program based on the variance originally granted by DJJ in January,
2008. The functioning of the staff and residents will continue with operations as usual using a
“best-practices” model that utilizes appropriate discipline, reduces room confinement,

decreases physical restraints, enhances residents’ sense of personal responsibility, encourages

residents to change their thinking patterns, teaches appropriate social skills, and rewards
positive behavior.

172



Attachments:
Rational Self-Analysis (RSA-III)
Strategic Program Modification Plan (SPM Plan)

173



(108 pinoys
8jdoad Jayjo pue noA yuiys noA moy ‘sucheiredxe Jnod ‘s soj yooq eweb, ol ‘nok puno.e
suaddey jeym je Buioo; Jo shem Jiseq aie asayl) 431739 JH0D ONIATHIANN I

{2 S1y1 0P 0} BNURUOI NOA J1 aunry 8y} Ut ueddey ALl jeUYM
SIIABLEY SIUE DIp NOA taym Jsed ay} pavaddey JeyAn inoA mes Asy; yuit NoA op MoH ;1ea) Aayp
DI MOL{ ¢OR SIBLIC PP 1EUM ¢SIBHI0 01 nod o) peuaddey jeys) SFONINDISNOD €D

(g Jseay Je jsy ‘pamoyioj 1ey;

Joineyaq pue sbuyas) 8y} SAOID JO pasamodws Aeas jey) siybnoyy Joj yoor ing JBunwan, jo 1ot
e spapuy jey) SiyBnoy; jeyur 8y Jsnf o sooy |Uop '§-0£-06 IHL AINYYI LYHL HOIMYHYE
(20p oA pip 1eum) HOIAVHIE 20 | FHL F00-38 wbu peay anok ybnoay) juam seys Bumuiyystubnow a4l iv) M1¥1-413S ‘18

(iswawaiels 1. 951 é193 noA pip 1eym) SONIMA3L LI

(sjanaq 2100 butAuapun ay) puejsIspun

oA diay yim 1ey) pue omeyaqsburas; ay) paysnd Ajeal jew siubnoy) € s 2) spybnolf} (Buigpfue
JoY 3y} FUILISPUN 10 3DH10 pue Lg 0} ¥98q 09 "'SIHONOHL LOH ‘29 pip 40 }18} nOA 1055q pausddey Jeym u mes noA se uonenys) SINIAS ANV S1OVH 'V
3d1S TYNOILLYHNI
Hun :Buissasoud geig :a1eQ :aweN (Hoday Bupjuiy ] Jo sisAieuy-yes feuosey) Nl vsd

174



{¢in0 siyt i) 01 SABD My Jxou Sy L AjjuBIalp op NOA UBD JBUM ;mou Jybu Agusisap op
NOA UBD JBUA £ 4Ny Yl L Jussaip Bupyiawos Buiop olut jrasnoA xiej noA ues mo ¢ subis Buitiem
ay; 812 Jeys Buod uonenys jo pury sty ees noA ues moH) N3LSIT-MO0T1-dOLS "3

(£ QImin} 8y} L SSB20NS AIOW
nod 166 pue [eUONBS e/0uW 3G PINoM 5ja1eq 8103 mau Jeym! §4317138 IHO0D M3N +d

c{seauanbasuos pue 10iABYeq "BUnUY] S1y} O) PES)) NOA J0f AYSL 848 1Y) 8Xlf SUOREMIS
JeUA ¢InD00 JoiABYaq ejeudoiddew pue Bunjuil jeucneds sy seop uaym) SNYI LIV "¥3

{zuonenys ay inoqe Auasagip yuw) noA ued
Aem Jeym uj /Sa0usnbasu0d Jajleq O} B3] DINOM DUE [BUONR] 810U Q18 JeL} SIAIBUIBHE H[e]-48S
ase jeym) S1IHONOHL LOH., HO 28, OL JALLYNYALTY AYNOLLYY "€d

(¢101ADYAG pup Bunjuryl snod abuoyd jou op nod Jraiminf
Y} ur uaddoy oYM NOA 335 A3H) PINOM MOH ([33f A3U] PINOM MO ¢ 0P SIYI0 PINOM JDYM ¢SI3410 Of dnod

01 vaddoy pinom 1o4m) YN LN4 IHL STONINDISNOD TNASSIIONS JHOW ‘€3

(¢ Buiaa) pue Bupiuiy) JUBISHIP thim "ainny

sy ur op noA pinom teym) IYNLNA JHL N) HOIAVHIE JLVINdOUddY JUON ‘23

toqoy [ ywnsnoA [J wuns 13 ae] Aeq [ Aepswoog ] Aqued-Aquen [
iiuasaidal spybnoy) oy anok op AsoBaies Bupjuiyl [euonel YoM
NO ADSsies N ADQ ssewo nO AQwres NO AD 1Bed NO AQ eMv—ew

N[O AOSsiEen N[O ADQ sewo N[O aQlesy NO AQ 1994 NO AQ amiv—ig#
NO AQdsikes N[ AQ sewio NO Al lees NDO AD 19ed NG AQ any—ty

(STYOD Aw yaeas sl d1ay Hie} 455 Aw §300-9

ESHIHLO upm Buoje 196 aw diay we) 48s Aw $300-0

£1OV pue Anjeal uo paseq “Ty 3y Hel jas Aw si-y

;sburaay Ayleay aaey pue jaeq 1334 ow didy Hie jies Aw saoq-4

iAueay pue JAITY ow daay diay yie) yos Au s90g-Y

{(Bupuny

Jeuone jo Aiobajes feiauab syl 10819 pue ‘[euoles aie spyBnoy; 1oty iNoA Jt 885 0} §o34d 0}

90¥4v 25n) S1IHONOHL L0H, ¥O .28~ 40 3ONITIVHD TVNOLLVY 20

(:Sy818q 8103 pUE HIB)-j18s [euoiles aJou 9) pebueyd

nod i aq sBuyas; snod pinom jeym) IUNLNS IHL NI SONIT334 AHLTVIH JHOW LS

(ipieay PUB USSS SABY BIBLLIEI CBPIA B PINOM JBUM LUCHENYS 3Y)
Jo maua {feuotiowa-uouyeuoned) aanoslqo syl stieymt L, 40 MDIHD YHIWVYI LA

3QIS TYNOILLVY

175



STRATEGIC PROGRAM MODIFICATION PLAN

Resident: Date:

Behavior requiring SPM;

Date & Time of behavior:

Date & Time of 30-30-5: _ ___Timeserved:

Requesting Supervisor/Mental Health Clinician:

Approving Director:

Projected release date from SPM:

Staff assigned to process SPM Plan:

Staff signature, ime and date of completion Resident Signature

Resident will complete Thinking Tools including Resident Analysis of Problem (RAP), Personal
Self Change Exercise, Targeted Thinking Report and Scope of Consequences Worksheet by:

Staff assigned to process Resident Analysis of Problem (RAP):

Staff signature, time and date of completion Resident Signafure

Staff assigned to precess Personal Self Change Exercise:

Staff signature, time and date of completion Resident Signature

Staft assigned to process Thinking Report:

Staff signature, time and date of completion Resident Signature

Staff assigned to process Scope of Consequences Worksheet:

Staff signature, time and date of complelion Resident Signature
hme and date of completion

Resident will meet with other party involved and group: [Names and frequency)
to restore relationships before returning to Program.

Page 12 of 13

176



Staff assigned to process with other parties:

Stoff Signalure, time and date of completion Resicdlent Signature

Staft assigned to process with group:

Stoff Signature. time and date of complelion Resident Signature

Resident will have activities restricted/ permitied as follows:

Actual release date from SPM: _

Return to program on level |

177



COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA il i3

Director
. : 804) 371.0700
Department of Juvenile Justice Fax: :304; 3716497

www.djj.virginia.gov

MEMORANDUM

TO: State Board of Juvenile Justice

FROM: Virginia Department of Juvenile Justice

SUBJECT: Request Extension of Variance Applicable to Juvenile Correctional Centers; Security
Staff Supervision of Residents during Transportation

DATE; September 21, 2022

I. SUMMARY OF ACTION REQUESTED

Bon Air Juvenile Correctional Center (the JCC) respectfully requests the State Board of Juvenile Justice (the
board) to approve an extension of the variance submitted on behalf of the JCC and last approved by the board
on June 19, 2019, pursuant to 6VAC35-20-92. The JCC seeks this extension of the variance to various
regulatory requirements that collectively prevent staff classified as “security staff” from supervising residents
during routine and emergency transportation without a direct care staff present.

II. BACKGROUND

On June 19, 2019, the board approved a request submitted on behalf of the JCC seeking to extend a September

2016 variance to the regulatory requirement provided for in 6VAC35-71-830(A). The regulation section
provides:

During the hours that residents are scheduled to be awake, there shall be at least one direct care staff
member awake, on duty, and responsible for supervision of every 10! residents, or portion thereof, on
the premises or participating in off-campus, facility-sponsored activities.

The regulation defines “direct care staff” in 6VAC35-71-10 as

[T]he staff whose primary job responsibilities are for (i) maintaining the safety, care, and well-being
of residents; (ii) implementing the structured program of care and the behavior management program;
and (iii) maintaining the security of the facility.

! Proposed amendments to the regulation that are underway modify these staffing ratios to 1:8 to comply with federal juvenile facility
standards mandated by the Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA)

178



Although the current regulations do not define ‘security staft,” the term has been operationalized in the
department’s standard operating procedures to mean: “staff who are responsible for maintaining the safety care,
and well-being of residents and the safety and security of the facility to provide residents and staft with a safe
living and work environment.”

The issue necessitating the 2016 variance arose in large part due to the department’s implementation of the
Community Treatment Model (CTM) in the JCCs in 2015. As part of this implementation, the department
reclassified the majority of the direct care staff positions, formerly juvenile correctional officers, so that security
staff constituted a separate category from direct care staff. Direct care staff, in addition to their supervisory and
security functions, were given enhanced programmatic responsibilities consistent with the goals of developing
communities and providing treatment within each correctional center unit, including leading therapeutic
structured activities, facilitating and ensuring positive group interactions through coaching and mentoring
residents, and serving as accessible role models and advocates to assigned residents. Security staft were assigned
tasks primarily involving facility security, such as conducting perimeter checks, operating the central control
center, and performing searches at the security entrance. More recently, some security staff have also been tasked
with providing coverage in the individual living units to address shortages on the units. Even in these expanded
roles, however, security staff are not primarily responsible for direct care duties, and therefore, in the absence of
direct care staft, do not satisfy the staffing ratio requirements needed to transport residents on and off-campus.

I11. PROPOSED VARIANCE

The proposed variance extension would continue to allow secunity staff to supervise residents during routine or

emergency transportation without direct care staff being present. The provisions of the proposed variance mirror
those approved by the board in 2019.

6VAC35-71-10. Definitions.

“Security staff” means siaff who are responsible for maintaining the safety, care, and well-being of
residents and the safety and security of the facility to provide residents and staff with a safe living and
work environment. Security staff shall include resident specialists, security coordinators, and security

Managers.

6VAC35-71-540. Transportation.

A. Each JCC shall have transportation available or make the necessary arrangements for routine and
emergency transportation.

B. There shall be written safety rules for transportation of residents and for the use and maintenance of
vehicles.

C. Written procedure shall provide for the verification of appropriate licensure for staff whose duties
involve transporting residents.

D. Residents shall be supervised by security staff or direct care staff during routine and emergency
transportation.

179



6VAC35-71-830. Staffing pattern.

A. During the hours that residents are scheduled to be awake, there shall be at least one dircct care staff
member awake, on duty, and responsible for supervision of every ten residents, or portion thereof,
on the premises or participating in oft-campus, facility-sponsored activities, excluding routine and
emergency transportation,

B. During the hours that residents are scheduled to sleep, there shall be no less than one direct care staft
member on duty and responsible for supervision of every 16 residents, or portion thereof, on the
premises.

C. There shall be at least one direct care staff member on duty and responsible for the supervision of
residents in each building or living unit where residents are sleeping.

IV. RATIONALE

While security employees do not meet all the elements for classification as direct care staff under Section 10 of
6VAC35-71, there are compelling reasons to continue to allow them to transport residents outside the presence
of direct care staft. First, under the department’s current procedures, security staff are required to receive the same
volume of training hours as direct care staff. Security staff receive 120 hours of training initially and 40 hours of
training annually on the same topics as direct care staff.

Second, the temporary nature of transportation eliminates the need for supervision by direct care staff primarily
tasked with implementing the Community Treatment Model (CTM). Unlike the CTM housing units, which
depend upon consistent staffing by employees whose primary duties involve implementing behavior management,
it is not necessary for security who are supervising residents during routine or emergency transportation to have
the heightened qualifications needed to successfully lead group discussions and activities, facilitate group
interactions, or satisfy other requirements related to treatment. Those security staff who do not have these
heightened qualifications will continue to possess the training and skills needed to maintain the security of the
facility and the safety of residents during transport.

Finally, by acceding to the department’s request to incorporate the substance of the variance into the proposed
amendments to 6VAC35-71, the board already has demonstrated its approval of the provisions in this variance.
This variance has been in place since 2016, with some modifications in 2019, and has remained an effective tool
for administering the CTM and ensuring that important activities and services are not interrupted when residents
require transportation on or off-campus.

V. DURATION OF VARIANCE
In order to avoid additional requests for extension if the proposed amendments to the JCC regulation arc

delayed, Bon Air Juvenile Correctional Center requests that the variance be granted and remain in effect for an
additional five years or until conforming amendments to 6VAC35-71 take effect, whichever occurs first.

180



P.O. Box 1110

Amy M. Floriano COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA Richmond, VA 23218
, . (R04) 371 0700

Department of Juvenile Justice Fax. (R04) 371.6497

www.djj virginia.gov

July 28, 2022

Joyce Holmon

Deputy Director of Residential Services
Bon Air Juvenile Correctional Center
1900 Chatsworth Avenue

Richmond, Virginia 23235

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL

Dear Ms. Holmon:

This letter responds to your request for a waiver to the regulatory requirement in 6VAC35-71-
830 related to staffing ratio requirements during routine and emergency transportation of residents.
On behalf of the Bon Air Juvenile Correctional Center (JCC) you are requesting that [ grant a waiver
authorizing security staff to continue to transport residents on and offsite outside the presence of
direct care staff. You seek this waiver pursuant to my authority under 6VAC35-20-93.

The basis for your request involves a variance that had been in place for the Bon Air Juvenile
Correctional Center since 2019 and that expired on June 16, 2022. The variance, originally approved
in September of 2016, allowed security staff to conduct routine and emergency transportation of
residents both within the perimeter of Bon Air and offsite without a direct care employee being
present during the transportation. DJJ’s Policy and Legislation Division plans to present a request for

extension of this variance to the Board of Juvenile Justice (board) at the September 21, 2022, board
meeting.

Pursuant to 6VAC35-20-93, the Director of the Department of Juvenile Justice has the authority
to issue a waiver to a noncritical regulatory requirement, provided: (i) the requirement is not
mandated by statute or by federal or state regulations other than those issued by the board; (ii)
noncompliance with the regulatory requirement will not result in a threat to the health, welfare, or

181



Joyce Holmon
July 28, 2022
Page Two

safety of residents, the community or staff; (iii) enforcement of the regulatory requirement will create
an undue hardship; (iv) juveniles’ care or services would not be adversely affected; and (v)
emergency conditions or circumstances make compliance with the regulatory requirement impossible
or impractical. Based on my review of this request, it appears that the JCC is presented with such
circumstances. While the federal Prison Rape Elimination Act standards impose staffing ratios for
juvenile correctional centers, the proposed variance does not conflict with these federal standards.
Furthermore, the variance has been in place since September 2016, and the department has seen no
evidence to suggest that application of the variance threatens the health, welfare, and safety of
residents. Rather, the variance has helped to ensure that direct care staff can assume their normal
posts and carry out their duties of implementing the behavior management program without any
disruption related to transportation responsibilities. Additionally, I agree with your concern that
enforcing the variance for the short period of time until the September board meeting will create an
undue hardship for direct care staff at Bon Air by requiring them to modify practices that have been
in place for over five years and are needed to preserve the existing CTM structure. Finally, I do not
anticipate this waiver adversely affecting residents’ care or services, as it will continue to ensure that
direct care staff can focus their efforts on their programmatic responsibilities without interruption.

I find that your request meets the regulatory criteria for issuance of a waiver, and I grant your
request accordingly. The waiver will expire when the board makes a determination on your variance

request on September 21, 2022. 1 will forward your variance request to the board for consideration at
the meeting.

Sincerely,

5 LT

Amy M. Floriano

cc:  Tyren Frazier
Board of Juvenile Justice

182



COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA Richmond, VA 23213

Director
. . 804) 371.0700
Department ofJuvemle Justlce Fax: 2804; 371.6497

www.djj.virginia.gov

MEMORANDUM
TO: State Board of Juvenile Justice
FROM: Virginia Department of Juvenile Justice

SUBJECT: Request Extension of Variance Applicable to Direct Supervision Staff in Juvenile Correctional
Centers; Training

DATE September 21, 2022

I. SUMMARY OF ACTION REQUESTED

The Department of Juvenile Justice (the department) respectfully requests the State Board of Juvenile Justice
(board) to approve an extension of the variance submitted on behalf of the Bon Air Juvenile Correctional Center
and last approved by the board on November 13, 2019. The variance authorizes non-security staff classified as
“direct supervision staff” to receive a portion of their mandated training hours prior to working with residents and
the remaining hours before the close of their first year of employment with the department.

I1. BACKGROUND

On November 13, 2019, the board granted the department an extension on a variance originally issued in
November 2014. The variance applied to certain non-security staff in the Bon Air Juvenile Correctional Center

and relieved them of the requirement to comply with certain provisions in 6VAC35-71-160. Subsection B of the
regulation provides:

B. Direct care staff and employees responsible for the direct supervision of residents shall, before that
employee is responsible for the direct supervision of a resident, complete at least 120 hours of training,
which shall include training in the following areas:

1. Emergency preparedness and response;

2. First aid and cardiopulmonary resuscitation, unless the individual is currently certified, with
certification required as applicable to their duties;

3. The facility’s behavior management program;

4. The residents’ rules of conduct and the rationale for the rules;

5. The facility’s behavior interventions, with restraint training required as applicable to their duties;
6. Child abuse and neglect;

7. Mandatory reporting;
8. Maintaining appropriate professional relationships;

1 183



9. Appropriate interaction among staff and residents;
10. Suicide prevention;

1 1. Residents’ rights, including but not limited to the prohibited actions provided for in 6VAC35-71-550;
12. Standard precautions;

13. Recognition of signs and symptoms and knowledge of actions required in medical emergencies;

14. Adolescent development;

15. Procedures applicable to the employees’ position and consistent with their work profiles; and

16. Other topics as required by the department and any applicable state or federal statutes or regulations.

The variance currently in place authorizes non-security, direct supervision staff (interpreted by the department to
include counselors, teachers, mental health providers, and recreational staft) to receive 40 of the 120 hours of
mandated initial training required pursuant to 6VAC35-71-160 before assuming direct supervision responsibility.
The remaining 80 hours of training must be completed before the end of the employee’s first year of employment
with the department. Under the variance, direct supervision staff must receive the initial 40 hours of training in
the 16 various topics enumerated in subsection B of Section 160 before they may provide services to residents.

The department originally sought the variance in order to address the logistical challenges associated with
providing training to non-security staff. Unlike the staff classified as “direct care” or “security staff,” who are
hired in mass and are trained as a group, non-security staff have a different rate of attrition, are hired as the
positions become vacant, and often have rolling start dates. Before the board approved the initial variance, these
issues created a significant delay in the provision of important educational, mental health, and other mandated
services. At the time, classroom training sessions conducted by the department’s Training and Organizational
Development Unit were offered on a limited basis due to unpredictable participation rates. Non-security staff
often waited months before a new training session opened for them, and by regulation, were prohibited from
assuming direct supervision responsibilities until their mandated training hours were completed. This frequently

disrupted vital behavioral health, educational, and other services while applicable staff waited for training to
become available.

To address this issue, the department has made 40 hours of institutional training available to direct supervision
staff in the 16 enumerated topics. New direct supervision employees receive this training prior to working directly
with residents and obtain the additional 80 hours of training with the department’s Training and Organizational
Development Unit before the end of their first year of employment.

I1I. PROPOSED VARIANCE

The proposed variance would allow the department to maintain the status quo by authorizing new direct
supervision staff to receive 40 hours of training before assuming their direct supervision responsibilities and the
remaining 80 hours before the close of their first year of employment. Direct care staff and security staff would
remain subject to the current regulatory requirements. The specific provisions of the variance are provided below:

¢ 184



6VAC35-71-160. Required initial training

B. Direct care staff and security staff, aad—empleyemensﬁﬂ%ﬂae—dﬁeeks&pefwswﬂ—et—m&d%

shall; before thatemployee-isresponsible assuming responsibility for the direct supervision of a resident,
shall complete at least 120 hours of training, which shall include training in the following areas:

1. Emergency preparedness and response;

2. First aid and cardiopulmonary resuscitation, unless the individual is currently certified, with
certification required as applicable to their duties;

3. The facility’s behavior management program;

4. The residents’ rules of conduct and the rationale for the rules;

5. The facility’s behavior interventions, with restraint training required as applicable to their duties;

6. Child abuse and neglect;

7. Mandatory reporting;

8. Maintaining appropriate professional relationships;

9. Appropriate interaction among staff and residents;

10. Suicide prevention;

11. Residents’ rights, including but not limited to the prohibited actions provided for in 6VAC35-71-350
(prohibited actions);

12. Standard precautions;

13. Recognition of signs and symptoms and knowledge of actions required,

14. Adolescent development;

15. Procedures applicable to the employees” position and consistent with their work profiles; and

16. Other topics as required by the department and any applicable state or federal statutes or regulations.

C. Employees responsible for the direct supervision of residents shall complete _at least 40 hours of
training, including training in the topics set out in subdivisions (B)(1) through (B)(16) of this section

before they may assume their direct supervision responsibilities. An additional 80 hours of training must
be completed before the end of the emplovyee’s first vear of employment.

IV. RATIONALE

A variance continues to be necessary to ensure the security and well-being of residents and is not expected to
threaten the safety of residents or staff.

Since its initial issuance in 2014, the variance has prevented the interruption of essential services to residents.
Without the variance, non-security direct supervision staff could be delayed in assuming direct supervision
responsibilities for several months while awaiting the next available training opportunity or would need another
employee who has completed the required training to be present while services are provided. Neither alternative
would resolve the issue. The department continues to confront staff shortage and retention challenges, and relying
on the presence of additional staff during the provision of essential counseling, education, or other important
services may exacerbate these challenges, as well as hinder efforts to maintain confidentiality.

The proposed variance also exceeds national standards for juvenile correctional staff established by the American

Correctional Association (ACA). Currently, the ACA directs all new juvenile careworkers to receive 120 hours
of training in such topics as security procedures, suicide prevention, use of force, safety procedures, and key

3 185



control during their first year of employment. The standards do not require that a specified volume of training
hours be satisfied before direct care staft or staff responsible for the direct supervision of residents may assume
the provision of care or services. By mandating that non-security direct supervision staff receive an initial 40
hours of training in the 16 topics, the variance has implemented additional safeguards to ensure that staft who
may not have experience in a confinement setting are sufficiently trained in the required topics. Under the existing
and proposed extended variance, direct supervision staft will need to continue to receive training in the 16 topics
enumerated under Subsection B before assuming their direct supervision responsibilities.

Finally, if granted, the variance will continue to exceed the regulatory requirements applicable to juvenile

correctional centers before the last amendments to the regulation took effect in 2014. Prior to January 2014, the

only ftraining non-security staff were required to complete prior to working with residents was emergency
preparedness and response.

V1. DURATION OF VARIANCE

The department requests that this variance be granted and remain in effect for an additional five years or until
conforming amendments are made to 6VAC35-71, whichever occurs first.

4 186



Ay M. Pl COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA s 05000

Director
, . 804) 371.0700
Department of Juvenile Justice Fax: ﬁgm; 1716497

www.djj.virginia gov
TO: State Board of Juvenile Justice

FROM: Virginia Department of Juvenile Justice

SUBJECT: Request Amendment of Two Policies: 02-002 (Media Relations) and 02-024 (Collaboration with
Colleges and Universities); Request Rescission of One Policy: 20-106 (Behavior Management)

DATE: September 21, 2022

I. SUMMARY OF ACTION REQUESTED

The Department of Juvenile Justice (the Department) respectfully requests the State Board of Juvenile Justice
(the Board) to approve the amendment of two existing Board policies and the rescission of one existing Board
policy pursuant to the authority established in Code of Virginia § 66-10.

II. BACKGROUND OF THE REQUEST

Code of Virginia § 66-10 contains three provisions that empower the Board to establish certain policies and
give rise to duties related to policies. The statute provides in pertinent part:

The Board shall have the following powers and duties:

1. To establish and monitor policies for the programs and facilities for which the Department is responsible
under this law;
2. To ensure the development of a long-range youth services policy;

3. To monitor the activities of the Department and its effectiveness in implementing the policies developed
by the Board...

Pursuant to this statutory authority, the Board currently has 36 active policies in place ranging in subject matter
from overall administration of the Department to operations within facilities and programs regulated by the
Department. Many of these policies were initially established in the early 1990s and were last reviewed or
updated more than ten years ago.

At the April 2022 Board meeting, the Department informed the Board of its intent to conduct a comprehensive
review of each existing Board policy and to make a formal recommendation to the Board to retain, amend, or
rescind each one based upon the review. The Department noted its plan to recommend retaining or amending
the policies that are mandated by statute or that provide additional guidance above and beyond what is

187



mandated by regulation and to recommend rescinding the policies that have been subsumed into regulation, that
duplicate existing law, or that arec obsolete

Since the April Board meeting, the Department has continued its comprehensive review of the Board policies
and is recommending action on three additional policies for the Board’s consideration. The policies and
summaries are contained in Parts IV and V of this memorandum.

[I1. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN BOARD POLICIES AND BOARD REGULATIONS

Code of Virginia § 2.2-4001, which provides definitions for terms used in the Administrative Process Act

(§ 2.2-4000 et. seq.) (the Act), defines the term “regulation” as “any statement of general application, having the
force of law, affecting the rights or conduct of any person, adopted by an agency in accordance with the
authority conferred on it by applicable basic laws.” The Act makes it clear that all regulations are subject to the
requirements contained in the Act unless an exception or exemption applies.

In contrast, policies are neither defined nor expressly addressed in the Act. Furthermore, while policies may be
enforced by the authorized body to the extent that they do not collide with a law or regulation, they do not have
the same force and effect of law afforded to regulations.' It is the Department’s understanding, therefore, that
policies are not regulations subject to the requirements of the Act. This means that the authority to establish,
amend, and rescind Board policies rests solely with the Board, and additional involvement or approval by other

executive branch agencies is not required, nor must the Board consider any public comments before taking
action to amend or rescind such policies.

IV. SUMMARY OF POLICIES IDENTIFIED FOR AMENDMENT

Current Policy

02-002 Media Relations

The Board of Juvenile Justice recognizes and affirms the public's right to be informed about the causes and
consequences of delinquent behavior and the philosophy, programs, services, and activities of the
Commonwealth’s juvenile justice system and its component parts consistent with the statutory requirements to
protect the confidentiality of individual juveniles in the system.

Recognizing that the communications media serve as important conduits for information to the public, the Board

of Juvenile Justice is committed to maintaining a relationship of cooperation and mutual respect with the news
media.

Further, it is the policy of the Board to encourage residential and non-residential programs in Virginia’s juvenile
justice system to properly and accurately communicate information to the news media, without compromising
facility security or the confidentiality of individual.

Effective Date: May 9, 1993 Most Recent Review: November 14, 2007

2011 Op. Va. Att'y Gen. 99, 102.

188



Recommendation: Amend

Proposed Amended Policy

02-002 Media Relations

' The Board of Juvenile Justice recognizes and affirms the public's right to be informed about the causes and
consequences of delinquent behavior and the philosophy, programs, services, and activities of the |
Commonwealth’s juvenile justice system and its component parts consistent with the statutory requirements to
protect the confidentiality of individual juveniles in the system.

i Recognizing that the communications media serve as important conduits for information to the public, the Board

of Juvenile Justice is committed to maintaining a relationship of cooperation and mutual respect with the news |
media.

Further, it is the policy of the Board to encourage residential and non-residential programs in Virginia’s juvenile
justice system to interact with the media in a courteous and professional manner and to handle all media inquiries
in accordance with applicable laws, regulations, and procedures, without compromising facility security or the
confidentiality of individuals.

Effective Date: May 9, 1993 Most Recent Review: September 21, 2022

Rationale for Recommendation: In its current form, the policy fails to provide programs with any guidance on
what is meant in the final sentence by “properly” communicating information to the news media. This omission
could tend toward making the policy overly broad or permissive. The amended version points to “applicable
laws, regulations, and procedures” to remind programs of their statutory and regulatory obligations and to
encourage them to refer to their own internal procedures in determining how to handle media requests for
information. Importantly, the amended version retains the original language concerning the priority given to
facility security and confidentiality. This amendment provides programs with more direction while safeguarding

the flexibility required for individual programs to handle media inquiries in the manner most appropriate for
them.

Current Policy

02-024 Collaboration with Colleges and Universities

The Board recognizes that institutions of higher education offer opportunities for research, student internships, |
academic coursework for Department employees, and assistance with seminars and conferences — all of which |
can enhance the services offered to youth and their families.

| The Department and its organizational units are encouraged to collaborate with colleges, universities, and other
institutions of higher learning in programs and projects of mutual concern.

| Effective Date: May 1, 1994 Most Recent Review: September 21, 2022

189



Recommendation: Amend

Proposed Amended Policy

02-024 Collaboration with Colleges and Universities

The Board recognizes that institutions of higher education offer opportunities for research, student internships,
| academic coursework for Department employees and committed youth, and assistance with seminars and
conferences. These opportunities can enhance the services offered to youth and their families and equip the
department with additional resources to carry out its mission.

The Department and its organizational units are encouraged to collaborate with coileges, universities, and other
institutions of higher learning in programs and projects of mutual concern and benefit.

Effective Date. September 21, 2022 Most Recent Review: September 21, 2022

Rationale for Recommendation: The Department recognizes that educational institutions play an integral role
in enhancing the skillset of its employees and interns and in performing research in topics that may inform the
agency’s work. As such, the Department supports retaining this document. While the current policy
acknowledges the benefits of educational institutions, including providing academic coursework opportunities
for Department employees, it fails to identify committed youth as potential beneficiaries of these opportunities.
In addition, the department believes that any collaboration with educational institutions should involve projects
or programs that mutually benefit both entities. The proposed amendments reflect this philosophy.

V. SUMMARY OF POLICIES IDENTIFIED FOR RESCISSION

Current Policy

~ Behavior Managément

[20-106

The Department shall develop procedures and practices that will reward the positive behavior of individual
residents in facilities operated by or under contract with the Department and encourage residents who behave
negatively to correct their behavior.

Effective Date: September 9, 2009  Most Recent Review: September 21, 2022

Recommendation: Rescind

Rationale for Recommendation:

The Board’s current regulations require juvenile correctional centers and juvenile detention centers to
implement behavior management programs. The regulations define “behavior management™ as “those principles
and methods employed to help a resident achieve positive behavior and to address and correct a resident’s
inappropriate behavior in a constructive and safe manner.”

190



In accordance with these regulatory requirements, the Department’s Community Treatment Model (CTM),
which is established and described in the agency’s written procedure, serves as the Bon Air Juvenile
Correctional Center's behavior management program, The CTM program allows residents to progress through a
system of phases, and such residents arc awarded privileges, such as an increased number of outgoing phone
calls, later bedtimes, and participation in approved unit leisure activities or oft-campus trips, as they advance to
higher phases. Residents may be frozen on their current phase if they commit certain behavioral infractions or

fail to comply with certain facility expectations, and in such case, may be denied the privileges associated with
their current phase.

Alternative direct care programs operating in juvenile detention centers are not required to implement the CTM,
but all such programs have implemented a behavior management program in accordance with the regulatory
requirements that apply to juvenile detention centers. They also have entered into memoranda of agreement
with the Department requiring them to incorporate incentives, sanctions, and interventions to address and
change residents’ behavior. Other alternative direct care programs operating in group homes or residential
treatment centers also have similar behavior management programs in place.

The department believes that these regulatory mandates alongside the provisions in the MOAs render this policy
unnecessary and is therefore recommending that the Board agree to rescind this policy. 1f the Board adopts the
Department’s recommendation, the applicable juvenile correctional center and alternative direct care programs
would continue to utilize a behavior management program that allows for a system of privileges to reward

positive behavior and sanctions to discourage negative behavior in order to comply with their regulatory and
contractual mandates.

VL. IMPACT AND EFFECTIVE DATE OF BOARD ACTION

[f the Board votes in support of the Department’s recommendations in Parts IV and V of this memorandum, the
proposed amendments and rescissions will take effect immediately. Amending the two Board policies, as
recommended in Part IV, will ensure that the general public remains informed regarding the juvenile justice system
within the confines of the law and that the department continues to maintain collaborative partnerships with
educational institutions. For the reasons set forth in Part V of this memo, rescinding 20-106 is not expected to
impact juvenile correctional centers or the alternative direct care programs in place for committed juveniles. These
institutions will continue to operate their behavior management programs as contemplated in the policy.

191



	Part I.pdf
	Part II

